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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
22,608,452 24,877,491 27,205,047 29,069,155 33,927,533
(446,290,842) (491,081,672) (537,027,628) (573,825,120) (669,729,501)
11,940,322 13,360,342 15,170,442 17,175,073 19,765,745
(235,701,956) (263,733,151) (299,464,525) (339,035,941) (390,175,806)
6,514,383 7,095,770 8,134,487 9,168,032 10,741,230
(128,593,920) (140,070,500) (160,574,773) (180,976,952) (212,031,880)
343,961 421,390 389,475 424,329 1,007,548
(6,789,790)  (8,318,239)  (7.688,237)  (8,376,254) (19,888,998)
4,664,852 5,391,677 6,198,743 7,117,212 7,545,282
(92,084,178) (106,431,704) (122,363,187) (140,493,765) (148,943,867)
389,410 419,913 413,416 426,179 428,661
(7,686,953)  (8,289,083)  (8,160,832)  (8,412,773)  (8,461,768)
479,143 540,578 618,009 720,570 782,859
(9,458,283)  (10,671,010) (12,199,498) (14,224,052) (15,453,637)
11,461,179 12,819,764 14,552,433 16,454,503 18,982,886
(226,243,673) (253,062,141) (287,265,027) (324,811,880) (374,722,170)
6,885,075 7,422,930 7,822,659 8,230,043 9,530,163
(135,911,381) (146,528,638) (154,419,289) (162,461,049) (188,125,418)
2,805,107 2,699,895 2,437,275 2,321,406 2,549,130
(55,372,812)  (53,295,927)  (48,111,809) (45,824,554) (50,319,826)
661,741 758,925 981,133 665,444 1,131,215
(13,062,767)  (14,981,180) (19,367,565) (13,135,865) (22,330,184)
371,001 708,551 816,206 837,637 1,172,187
(7,323,560)  (13,986,797) (16,111,906) (16,534,954) (23,138,971)
20,933,665 22,923,630 24,994,301 26,647,796 31,253,082
(413,230,547) (452,512,456) (493,387,502) (526,027,493) (616,935,839)
17,602,056 18,849,155 20,372,901 21,907,127 25,121,040
(347,464,585) (372,082,320) (402,161,066) (432,446,687) (495,889,330)
6,807,956 7,196,002 7,618,591 8,001,650 9,032,456
(134,389,051) (142,049,079) (150,390,986) (157,952,571) (178,300,681)
10,076,833 10,904,731 11,926,040 12,970,450 14,977,766
(198,916,683) (215,259,390) (235,420,030) (256,036,683) (295,661,101)
514,244 517,440 562,741 623,353 727,212
(10,151,177)  (10,214,266) (11,108,507) (12,304,988) (14,355,165)
1,449,863 1,829,272 1,785,176 1,913,471 2,792,933
(28,620,296)  (36,109,829) (35,239,374) (37,771,918) (55,132,497)
157,101 53,197 109,195 36,033 43,779
(3,101,174)  (1,050,109)  (2,155,509) (711,291) (864,197)
780,673 1,108,212 1,371,845 1,507,657 1,869,398
(15,410,485)  (21,876,105) (27,080,220) (29,761,149) (36,901,917)
1,670,294 1,948,355 2,204,789 2,414,605 2,668,412
(32,971,604)  (38,460,528) (43,522,535) (47,664,303) (52,674,453)
® 2,073,343 2,498,311 2,817,924 3,057,867 3,416,001
(40,927,791)  (49,316,659) (55,625,820)  (60,362,295)  (67,431,860)
Tierl CET1
® 1,583,927 1,740,584 1,875,372 2,042,480 2,215,395
(31,266,719)  (34,359,128) (37,019,843)  (40,318,555) (43,731,897)
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Tierl ® 79,906 199,894 319,884 359,881 439,878
(1,577,344)  (3,945,908)  (6,314,510)  (7,104,051)  (8,683,192)
Tier2 ® 409,510 557,833 622,668 655,506 760,728
(8,083,727)  (11,011,623) (12,291,466) (12,939,688) (15,016,771)
) 13,712,894 15,485,352 16,989,668 17,849,566 19,862,505

(270,692,528) (305,680,848) (335,376,046) (352,350,433) (392,085,849)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
602,557 629,350 659,332 721,746 725,499
(11,894,475)  (12,423,369) (13,015,214) (14,247,266) (14,321,350)
488,159 500,870 545,079 577,987 589,966
(9,636,259)  (9,887,174)  (10,759,859)  (11,409,463) (11,645,929)
67,742 72,927 74,545 80,329 81,282
(1,337,227)  (1,439,579)  (1,471,518)  (1,585,694)  (1,604,507)
213,963 224,096 229,897 260,275 274,023
(4,223,630)  (4,423,655)  (4,538,167)  (5,137,829)  (5,409,214)
136,647 138,605 164,699 165,886 145,267
(2,697,412)  (2,736,063)  (3,251,158)  (3,274,590)  (2,867,571)
251,674 266,576 265,050 295,880 306,216
(4,968,045)  (5,262,210)  (5,232,087)  (5,840,671)  (6,044,704)
202,631 212,924 216,400 241,936 258,688

(3,999,936)  (4,203,120)  (4,271,736)  (4,775,817)  (5,106,501)

202,783 212,098 215,925 241,183 259,140
(4,002,936)  (4,186,815)  (4,262,360)  (4,760,952)  (5,115,424)

105,927 358,396 (60,936) 239,615 1,322,003
(2,090,999)  (7,074,737) ((1,202,877))  (4,730,000) (26,096,339)
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
@ 0.93 0.90 0.83 0.86 0.82
® 13.66 12.43 11.35 11.57 11.28
@ 2.38 2.23 2.20 2.12 1.90
® 2.25 2.09 2.04 1.96 1.73
W ® 1.48 1.38 1.27 1.36 1.30
11.24 11.59 11.31 11.13 11.20
Q) 31.27 30.49 29.23 30.46 31.63
1
1 ® 0.59 0.59 0.59 0.65 0.69
(11.65) (11.65) (11.65) (12.83) (13.62)
1 ® 0.59 0.59 0.59 0.65 0.69
(11.65) (11.65) (11.65) (12.83) (13.62)
1
0.30 1.02 0.17) 0.68 3.78
(5.92) (20.13) ((3.36)) (13.42) (74.62)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 1.59 1.40 1.57 1.43 1.37
© 256.11 295.45 266.20 299.73 302.60
0 4.08 4.15 4.17 4.30 4.16
Tierl CET1 &) 11.55 11.24 11.04 11.44 11.15
Tierl ) 12.13 12.53 12.92 13.46 13.37
& 15.12 16.13 16.59 17.13 17.20
® 60.65 62.25 62.45 61.40 58.54
7.41 7.85 8.13 8.33 7.88
1
1 ay 4.54 5.00 5.39 5.87 6.37
(89.62) (98.70) (106.40) (115.87) (125.74)
)
)
(3) CSRC 9 - 1
2010 33 1
O]
®)
©) CBIRC
(7) CAS CAS
®)
©)
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(10)
(11)
2020 2021 2022
12 31 12 31 12 31
& 25 59.15 62.01 64.21
25 122.98 138.94 235.12
@ 10 4.07 2.44 2.59
10
® 12.58 11.67 13.54
@ 1.39 1.10 1.30
31.86 20.23 25.77
33.92 57.43 46.35
12.20 13.66 6.03
(1) CBIRC
@
®) 10
(4) CBIRC
2022 1 2 3 4
205,857 181,802 177,741 160,099
(4,063,617) (3,588,771) (3,508,607) (3,160,354)
70,750 58,195 68,560 61,635
(1,396,605) (1,148,769) (1,353,374) (1,216,675)
367,281 541,504 480,412 (67,194)
(7,250,127) (10,689, 289) (9,483,333) ((1,326,410))
1951 1979 2
2009 1
2010 7
1
2
3
IT
2022 33,927,533
19,765,745 25,121,040
17.20 2022 258,688
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2014
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1,000 Tierl
39

2022 12 31

4
3,329
11 5
9
500 28
3
A A-1
Al P-1
A Fl1+
MOF
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2022 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392,450 100.00
9,500,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,002 100.00
1,750,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
o 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
40,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
150,000,000 51.00
@ 2,949,916,475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
7,556,038,271 100.00
® 20,000,000,000 100.00
12,000,000,000 100.00
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(2 2012 12 31
2012 12 31
2016 12 31
2,844
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
®) 2021 1 25
100
2021 12 31 2022 12 31

3,761
51

19
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/
53,342,800,000
@ 50.00
@ 313,000,000 31.95
@ 6,343,200,000 15.61
@ 3,885,500,000 25.26
@ 6,000,000,000 15.67
® 88,500,000,000 9.04
® 11,150,000,000 8.97
(1) 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour 1°Afrique BSCA.
BSCA. 50
BSCA.
@
?) 2021 9.04
*
20
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2022 452,258 752
8,615
2022 12 31
13,640 3.0
63,423 14.0
50,300 11.1
64,118 14.2
92,566 20.5
41,523 9.2
117,321 25.9
752 0.2
8,615 1.9
452,258 100.0
2022 12 31
580 0.1
37,565 8.3
263,507 58.3
125,365 27.7
25,241 5.6
452,258 100.0
2022 12 31
121,596 26.9
15,374 3.4
18,008 4.0
16,218 3.6
142,417 31.5
462 0.1
10,021 2.2
70,108 15.5
23,438 5.2
34,616 7.6
452,258 100.0
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2022 12 31
30 96,583 21.4
31 40 110,549 24.4
41 50 103,269 22.8
51 141,857 31.4
452,258 100.0

2022 12 31
247,110 54.6
205,148 45.4
452,258 100.0
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14 5 1 2 3
2
3
E
2 2 1
2022 7.33
17.9 2.8
M&A ESG
2022 2,697.5
36.4 21.3
2022 MAU 172
1
3 2
2022

1.37
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3.0
5.1
9.1 9.4 10.0
7.0 PPI
2.0 M2 11.8
668.9

PBOC

PBOC
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2023
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2 5 12
12
5

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
(@) (@)
7,963,577 46.5 8,299,082 42.1
2,269,076 13.2 2,270,647 11.5
1,910,717 11.2 2,290,351 11.6
4,992,382 29.1 6,862,641 34.8
17,135,752 100.0 19,722,721 100.0

39,321 43,024
17,175,073 19,765,745

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
(@) (@)
90 74,359 0.43 103,332 0.52
91 360 52,847 0.31 54,504 0.28
361 3 40,886 0.24 42,584 0.22
3 16,829 0.10 12,419 0.06
184,921 1.08 212,839 1.08

10 )
A 88,326 0.45
B 80,540 0.41
C 47,091 0.24
D 43,121 0.22
E 38,962 0.20
F 37,184 0.19
G 37,097 0.19
H 32,500 0.16
1 31,189 0.16
J 26,567 0.13
462,577 2.35

2022 12 31 2.59
10 13.54
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CBIRC
5
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
(@) (@)
16,636,899 97.09 19,163,860 97.17
253,071 1.48 287,799 1.46
245,782 1.43 271,062 1.37
48,712 0.28 122,688 0.62
170,611 1.00 131,072 0.66
26,459 0.15 17,302 0.09
17,135,752 100.00 19,722,721 100.00
39,321 43,024
17,175,073 19,765,745
2022 12 31 25,280 271,062
0.06 1.37
34,728 287,799 1.46
0.02
2022
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31
203,939 83.0 2.22 215,078 79.4 2.00
93,620 38.1 3.58 80,187 29.6 2.61
110,319 44.9 1.68 134,891 49.8 1.76
36,246 14.7 0.51 49,048 18.0 0.65
18,872 7.7 0.36 27,258 10.0 0.51
6,179 2.5 0.99 7,948 2.9 1.23
2,340 0.9 1.33 2,428 0.9 1.25
3,009 1.2 0.64 3,769 1.4 0.65
5,822 2.4 0.96 7,624 2.8 0.98
24 8.25 21 9.38
5,597 2.3 1.31 6,936 2.6 1.62
245,782 100.0 1.43 271,062 100.0 1.37

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
66,402 32.6 4.43 46,618 21.7 2.59
12,269 6.0 1.21 8,190 3.8 0.72
28,172 13.7 3.39 46,039 21.4 5.48
17,859 8.8 0.85 18,299 8.5 0.79
18,384 9.0 3.72 18,709 8.7 3.05
3,371 1.7 0.47 9,332 4.3 1.07
6,558 3.2 2.25 8,387 3.9 2.43
20,314 10.0 0.50 13,568 6.3 6.78
24,026 11.8 1.61 31,588 14.7 1.80
362 0.2 0.24 299 .1 0.08
IT 1,024 0.5 1.76 3,785 1.8 5.22
5,198 2.5 1.58 10,264 4.8 2.43
203,939 100.0 2.22 215,078 100.0 2.00
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31
1,297 0.5 0.41 1,200 0.4 0.20
26,265 10.7 0.64 30,913 11.4 0.65
17,463 7.1 0.61 34,503 12.7 1.07
58,562 23.8 2.38 56,958 21.0 2.07
49,632 20.2 1.86 47,178 17.4 1.53
12,258 5.0 2.07 14,214 5.2 2.24
74,708 30.4 1.99 79,160 29.3 1.86
5,597 2.3 1.31 6,936 2.6 1.62
245,782 100.0 1.43 271,062 100.0 1.37
( )
2022
1 2 3
12
2022 1 1 516,225 57,503 162,959 736,687
(€))
1 2 (8,989) 8,989
2 3 (19,154) 19,154
2 1 6,978 (6,978)
3 2 7,151 (7.,151)
214,451 214,451
(23,641) 46,764 72,488 95,611
(129, 855) (13,431) (143,286)
(25,646) (25,646)
(57,584) (57,584)
2022 12 31 575,169 80,844 164,220 820,233
@ 3 17
@
@
2022
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VaR
VaR 1 250
99
VaR
( )
2021 2022
53 67 99 36 63 43 70 29
) 149 190 289 35 110 93 203 11
44 83 136 21 23 34 62 22
VaR 150 210 307 87 138 112 216 55
[®) VaR
(liify : BRART)
2022F(SH T HHE5 I EEOVaRM IE{E
¥300
— YRk
¥250 —_— AR
—_— YRS
¥200
¥150
¥100
¥50
¥0
HPHEIR 02EIA NRZEIA MEMPAR  222ESHA NZE6R  NREIR 20MESA MNIESR MEMEA ENA MN2EIZA
2021 VaR
VaR

VaR
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2022
2022 12 31 1
231,893 612,497
1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2021 12 31 (6,739,001) 1,022,100 4,872,511 (844,390) (554,215) 3,539,307 2,949
2022 12 31 (7,916,628) 1,131,350 6,172,781 (612,497) (1,855,309) 4,896,869 (14,137)
) 44.3
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
100 (37,792) (39,264) (43,292) (59,146)
100 37,792 39,264 43,292 59,146
12
2022 12 31 100
43,292 59,146
2022
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2022
5,889 9.24 2022
9,069
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
66,079 10,364 58,857 8,451
(3,454) (542) 4,306 618
() 44.3
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
+5 224 77
-5 (224) a7
+5 1,484 1,470
5 (1,484) (1,470)
5

®©)

77
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ooooooo
2022
2022
64.21 235.12 2022 4
0.1 132.1 2022
23,577.1 18,195.0 129.6
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2021 12 31 22,689 (13,368,709) 899,919 (663,272)  (428,608) 2,013,118 11,388,711 2,279,803 2,143,651
2022 12 31 28,091 (14,851,083) 1,055,881 (851,713) 158,614 1,075,518 13,361,537 2,438,081 2,414,926
@) 44.2
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CBIRC 100

2017

2022 4 0.1
132.1 92
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2022 4
1 HQLA | | 6,660,040
2 15,390,035 1,452,458
3 1,730,832 86,538
4 13,659,203 1,365,920
5 10,753,089 4,171,340
6 3,708,579 912,151
7 7,004,568 3,219,247
8 39,942 39,942
9 4,325
10 2,809,406 970,895
1 812,151 812,151
12 132 132
13 1,997,123 158,612
14 157,235 157,235
15 2,503,021 20,568
16 6,776,821
17 979,755 979,281
18 1,431,877 804,730
19 874,037 874,037
20 3,285,669 2,658,048
21 HQLA 5,441,769
22 4,118,773
23 132.1
CBIRC 100
2
2022 3 2.6 131.6
23,577.9 17,922.2
2022 4 2 129.6
23,577.1 18,195
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2022 3 2022 4
2022 3
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,588,375 399,925 | 2,988,301
2 2,588,375 369,925 | 2,958,301
3 30,000 30,000
4 7,251,207 | 8,414,810 186 93 | 14,192,426
5 1,855,017 1,762,266
6 5,396,190 | 8,414,810 186 93 | 12,430,160
7 6,534,169 | 5,534,794 | 1,132,697 440,788 | 6,127,486
8 3,740,174 1,870,087
9 2,793,995 | 5,534,794 | 1,132,697 440,788 | 4,257,399
10
11 34 | 1,576,021 184,338 213,283 269,701
12 [ NSFR 35,751
13
34 | 1,576,021 184,338 177,532 269,701
14 [AsF 23,577,914
RSF
15 |NSFR
HOLA 1,042,806
16
2,286 222,047 242,170 233,251
17 4,945 | 4,896,907 | 3,321,464 | 12,526,135 | 14,078,882
1 HQLA
18
112 13,021 789 90, 684 93,046
1 HQLA
19
3,531 | 1,924,047 218,050 54,000 452,162
20
PSE 10 | 2,775,528 | 2,922,461 | 6,979,780 | 8,757,323
21
35 10 64,168 43,159 174,367 162,458
22 112,101 112,451 | 5,108,575 | 4,454,553
23
35 3 3 70 50
” HQLA
1,292 72,210 67,713 293,096 321,798
25
26 168,023 718,151 727,426 987,971 | 2,447,593
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27
28 ccp

1,889 1,606
29 NSFR 52,435 16,683
30 NSFR

8,368 8,368
31 168,023 718,151 727,426 933,647 2,420,936
32 4,411,586 119,644
33 |RSF 17,922,177
34 131.6
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2022 4
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 2,644,467 359,929 | 3,004,396
2 2,644,467 329,929 | 2,974,396
3 30,000 30,000
4 7,506,344 | 8,516,795 178 71 | 14,518,347
5 1,945,807 1,848,517
6 5,560,537 | 8,516,795 178 71 | 12,669,830
7 6,119,189 | 6,240,749 725,744 422,522 | 5,770,736
8 3,440,730 1,720,365
9 2,678,459 | 6,240,749 725,744 422,522 | 4,050,371
10
11 237 | 1,537,738 148,895 234,550 283,625
12 NSFR 25,372
13
237 | 1,537,738 148,895 209,178 283,625
14 |ASF 23,577,103
RSF
NSFR
5 HOLA 1,171,313
16
1,561 307,925 309,457 309,472
17 6,369 | 4,872,642 | 3,290,220 | 12,897,124 | 14,482,369
1 HQLA
18
2,350 201 126,201 126,654
1 HQLA
19
4,353 | 1,609,949 251,349 88,140 455,960
20
PSE 13 | 3,060,706 | 2,848,849 | 7,252,284 | 9,085,690
21
35 13 90,964 62,974 216,756 210,266
22 113,971 113,743 | 5,110,795 | 4,458,009
23
35 5 5 126 88
" HQLA
2,003 85,666 76,078 319,704 356,056
25
26 209,720 557,078 628,738 781,938 | 2,110,185

27
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28 CCcP

1,534 1,304
29 NSFR 30,997 5,625
30 NSFR

6,343 6,343
31 209,720 557,078 628,738 749,407 2,096,913
32 4,988,063 121,709
33 |RSF 18,195,048
34 129.6

®
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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@
@
2022 258,688 16,752 (6.9 )

2021 2022
577,987 589,966 11,979 2.1
80,329 81,282 953 1.2
63,430 54,251 (9,179) -14.5
721,746 725,499 3,753 0.5
260,275 274,023 13,748 5.3
165,886 145,267 (20,619) -12.4
114 59 (55) -48.2
295,471 306,150 10,679 3.6
409 66 (343) -83.9
295,880 306,216 10,336 3.5
53,944 47,528 (6,416) -11.9
241,936 258,688 16,752 6.9
241,183 259,140 17,957 7.4
753 (452) (1,205) -160.0

2022 81.3 2022
589,966 11,979
67,212 55,233
1.90 1.73
22 23
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2021 2022
16,396,903 694,009 4.23 18,616,462 761,827 4.09
® 7,283,225 252,804 3.47 8,264,804 277,557 3.36
6,898,990 242,742 3.52 7,880,577 266,999 3.39
@ 384,235 10,062 2.62 384,227 10,558 2.75
2,230,582 34,726 1.56 2,273,182 34,494 1.52
® 1,326,895 26,475 2.00 1,857,129 34,669 1.87
27,237,605 1,008,014 3.70 31,011,577 1,108,547 3.57
@ (693,989) (778,144)
@ 1,538,232 1,494,646
28,081,848 31,728,079
20,482,267 329,593 1.61 22,874,532 388,546 1.70
® 2,045,524 40,727 1.99 2,775,872 59,951 2.16
® 2,148,719 59,707 2.78 2,536,605 70,084 2.76
24,676,510 430,027 1.74 28,187,009 518,581 1.84
@ 1,223,364 1,094,193
25,899,874 29,281,202
577,987 589,966
1.96 1.73
2.12 1.90
€))
® MOF
®
)
®)
Q)
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90,829 (23,011) 67,818
32,964 (8,211) 24,753
646 (878) (232)
9,898 (1,704) 8,194
134,337 (33,804) 100,533
40,635 18,318 58,953
15,773 3,451 19,224
10,717 (340) 10,377
67,125 21,429 88,554
67,212 (55,233) 11,979
2022 1,108,547 100,533
3,773,972
67,818 9.8 761,827
2021 2022
8,919,710 364,488 4.09 10,137,788 397,225 3.92
2,633,532 95,786 3.64 3,007,512 104,531 3.48
6,286,178 268,702 4.27 7,130,276 292,694 4.10
300,719 7,584 2.52 636,982 9,657 1.52
6,709,545 313,225 4.67 7,400,635 343,274 4.64
466,929 8,712 1.87 441,057 11,671 2.65
16,396,903 694,009 4.23 18,616,462 761,827 4.09
2 2022
24,753 277,557
232 34,494
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8,194
34,669
88,554 518,581
3,510,499
58,953 388,546
2021 2022
2,833,037 68,774 2.43 3,570,097 91,235 2.56
5,251,761 50,131 0.95 5,440,570 58,498 1.08
8,084,798 118,905 1.47 9,010,667 149,733 1.66
6,624,035 189,467 2.86 7,906,059 221,256 2.80
5,773,434 21,221 0.37 5,957,806 17,557 0.29
12,397,469 210,688 1.70 13,863,865 238,813 1.72
20,482,267 329,593 1.61 22,874,532 388,546 1.70
19,224
59,951
10,377 70,084
2022 953 1.2
81,282 12.4
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2021 2022

11,094 10,296 (798) 7.2

11,644 11,979 335 2.9

23,677 23,965 288 1.2

15,435 15,760 325 2.1

30,476 26,772 (3,704) -12.2

1,980 1,979 @ -0.1
3,832 4,308 476 12.4

583 459 (124) -21.3
98,721 95,518 (3.203) -3.2
18,392 14,236 (4,156) -22.6
80,329 81,282 953 1.2
2022 54,251 9,179
8,722
9,126
8,520
2021 2022

14,241 5,519

15,035 5,909

11 160

34,143 42,663

63,430 54,251

2022 13,748 274,023
1.17 31.63
2021 2022

137,953 146,547 8,594 6.2

61,558 61,861 303 0.5

30,988 34,770 3,782 12.2

19,797 20,865 1,068 5.4

6,606 6,525 (81) 1.2

3,373 3,455 82 2.4

260,275 274,023 13,748 5.3
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2022 145,267
28,031 140,968
2022 6,416 11.9 47,528
15.52

2021 2022
269,899 37.4 277,544 38.3
318,402 44.1 355,348 49.0
85,942 11.9 44,436 6.1
47,503 6.6 48,171 6.6
721,746 100.0 725,499 100.0

2021 2022
35,518 4.9 (12,124) 1.7
144,528 20.0 160,848 22.2
107,394 14.9 113,162 15.6
98,191 13.6 106,753 14.7
107,196 14.9 121,558 16.8
154,202 21.3 156,305 21.5
24,413 3.4 25,998 3.6
50,304 7.0 52,999 7.3
721,746 100.0 725,499 100.0

39

2021 2022
294,995 40.9 317,780 43.8
426,751 59.1 407,719 56.2
721,746 100.0 725,499 100.0
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(®)
2022 12 31 4,858,378 16.7 33,927,533
2,528,383 15.4
1,300,120 15.8 227,724 9.8
465,771 70.0
334,550 39.9
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
17,175,073 - 19,765,745 -
720,570 - 782,859 -
16,454,503 56.6 18,982,886 56.0
8,230,043 28.3 9,530,163 28.1
2,321,406 8.0 2,549,130 7.5
665,444 2.3 1,131,215 3.3
837,637 2.9 1,172,187 3.5
560,122 1.9 561,952 1.6
29,069,155 100.0 33,927,533 100.0
2022 12 31 19,765,745 2,590,672
15.1
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
16,709,573 97.5 19,294,060 97.8
9,168,032 53.5 10,741,230 54.4
424,329 2.5 1,007,548 5.1
7,117,212 41.5 7,545,282 38.3
426,179 2.5 428,661 2.2
17,135,752 100.0 19,722,721 100.0
39,321 - 43,024 -
17,175,073 - 19,765,745 -
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
2,613,749 28.5 3,075,421 28.6
6,554,283 71.5 7,665,809 71.4
9,168,032 100.0 10,741,230 100.0
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31
1,497,847 16.3 1,800,124 16.7
1,017,210 11.1 1,136,482 10.6
@ 830,457 9.1 839,621 7.8
2,002,461 22.8 2,326,448 21.7
493,538 5.4 613,076 5.7
716,090 7.8 872,432 8.1
291,573 3.2 345,311 3.2
193,539 2.1 200,035 1.9
1,494,187 16.3 1,750,511 16.3
153,577 1.7 363,008 3.4
IT
58,283 0.6 72,560 0.7
@ 329,270 3.6 421,622 3.9
9,168,032 100.0 10,741,230 100.0
@
2022 467,039
36,729
@
2022 12 31 5 @ )
(©)) (©)) ®)
5
73.4 0.9
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
5,242,288 73.6 5,346,603 70.9
175,770 2.5 193,746 2.6
468,688 6.6 576,696 7.6
626,783 8.8 647,651 8.6
603,392 8.5 780,362 10.3
291 - 224 -
7,117,212 100.0 7,545,282 100.0
2022 12 31 428,070 6.0
2.0
10.2
23.0
29.3 E
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31

313,295 1.8 607,244 3.1

4,088,464 23.8 4,730,796 24.0

2,839,822 16.6 3,234,190 16.4

2,461,253 14.4 2,746,965 13.9

2,664,937 15.6 3,092,798 15.7

592,710 3.5 634,482 3.2

3,749,092 21.8 4,247,585 21.5

426,179 2.5 428,661 2.2

17,135,752 100.0 19,722,721 100.0

39,321 - 43,024 -

17,175,073 - 19,765,745 -

2022 12 31 9,530,163 1,300,120
15.8 1,279,613

2021 12 31 2022 12 31

7,500,443 92.7 8,780,056 93.6

384,231 4.7 384,223 4.1

114,544 1.4 122,393 1.3

93,794 1.2 92,009 1.0

8,093,012 100.0 9,378,681 100.0

137,031 - 151,482 -

8,230,043 - 9,530,163 -
2021 12 31 2022 12 31

4,760,965 63.4 5,622,143 64.0

1,557,354 20.8 1,868,323 21.3

710,759 9.5 793,174 9.0

238,604 3.2 241,508 2.8

232,761 3.1 254,908 2.9

7,500,443 100.0 8,780,056 100.0
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31
32 - 17 -
3 255,381 3.4 326,850 3.7
3 12 900,411 12.0 990,908 11.3
1 2,952,095 39.4 2,920,434 33.3
5 3,392,524 45.2 4,541,847 51.7
7,500,443 100.0 8,780,056 100.0

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
7,190,104 95.9 8,340,248 94.9
249,096 3.3 347,389 4.0
61,243 0.8 92,419 1.1
7,500,443 100.0 8,780,056 100.0

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
460,241 5.7 522,057 5.6
6,249,598 77.2 7,170,257 76.4
1,383,173 17.1 1,686,367 18.0
8,093,012 100.0 9,378,681 100.0
137,031 151,482 -
8,230,043 - 9,530,163 -
2022 12 31 2,661,497

1,868,323
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2022 12 31 10
()
2022 70,520 3.18 2032 3 11 -
2021 50,962 3.38 2031 7 16 -
2020 49,365 3.74 2030 11 16 -
2020 46,984 3.79 2030 10 26 -
2022 46,770 3.06 2032 6 6 -
2021 46,692 3.30 2031 11 5 -
2021 41,681 3.52 2031 5 24 -
2021 40,494 3.22 2026 5 14 -
2022 40,381 2.90 2032 8 19 -
2022 34,330 2.91 2029 2 21 -
(€D
2022 12 31 4,605,286 17.3 31,253,082
3,213,913 14.7
879,462 46.0
7,746
21.5 361,741 24.0
Tier2
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
21,907,127 82.2 25,121,040 80.4
1,913,471 7.2 2,792,933 8.9
36,033 0.1 43,779 0.1
1,507,657 5.7 1,869,398 6.0
1,283,508 4.8 1,425,932 4.6
26,647,796 100.0 31,253,082 100.0
2022 12 31 3,213,913 14.7
25,121,040 0.5
60.6 3.9
48.5
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31
21,479,255 99.5 24,602,463 99.5
8,001,650 37.1 9,032,456 36.5
2,667,190 12.4 3,572,373 14.4
5,334,460 24.7 5,460,083 22.1
12,970,450 60.1 14,977,766 60.6
6,993,575 32.4 8,470,655 34.2
5,976,875 27.7 6,507,111 26.4
@ 507,155 2.3 592,241 2.4
116,198 0.5 134,971 0.5
21,595,453 100.0 24,737,434 100.0
311,674 - 383,606 -
21,907,127 - 25,121,040 -
@
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
99,289 0.5 63,008 0.3
5,228,107 24.2 6,042,492 24.4
3,023,021 14.0 3,554,960 14.4
3,787,784 17.5 4,316,180 17.4
3,676,925 17.0 4,144,186 16.8
1,094,526 5.1 1,231,680 5.0
4,569,603 21.2 5,249,957 21.2
116,198 0.5 134,971 0.5
21,595,453 100.0 24,737,434 100.0
311,674 - 383,606 -
21,907,127 - 25,121,040 -
2021 12 31 2022 12 31
12,380,970 57.4 13,385,031 54.1
3 1,838,380 8.5 2,161,199 8.7
3 12 3,120,029 144 3,804,033 15.4
1 5 4,240,028 19.6 5,378,056 21.7
5 16,046 0.1 9,115 0.1
21,595,453 100.0 24,737,434 100.0
311,674 - 383,606 -
21,907,127 - 25,121,040 -
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Tier2
2022 12 31 253,092 10.5
2,674,451 1 0.50 6.37

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
349,983 14.5 349,983 13.1
360,000 14.9 440,000 16.5
173,428 7.2 173,426 6.5
34,927 1.4 35,354 1.3
220,792 9.1 246,764 9.2
351,616 14.5 388,600 14.5
925,955 38.2 1,032,524 38.6
(2,096) 0.1) 1,761 0.1
6,754 0.3 6,039 0.2
2,421,359 100.0 2,674,451 100.0

2021 12 31 2022 12 31
459,900 22.0 415,641 17.2
414,934 19.9 702,237 29.1
304,238 14.6 329,420 13.7
165,639 7.9 167,876 7.0
743,594 35.6 797,219 33.0
2,088,305 100.0 2,412,393 100.0
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IFRS CAS

IFRS CAS

@
@
Q)
2022
9,032,456 1,030,806
11,748,778
2,156,417
819.4 2022
9,364.9 411.5
50.9
2022 555.0
2.04
264.9 52.8
47.7
2022 1.2
3 2 2022
1.24 380.0
2022

384.5 3,040,906
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1,190.9 1,148.2

2022
9,831.2 2022 862.59
E
E
2022
4,508.6
2022 618.7
58.9
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2019 5
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2021 3
3
1
1
1
1

65.63 21.25 - 86.88

5.47 1.86 - 7.33

59.07 20.57 - 79.64
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2022
2025
2022
2025
2022 12
2025 12 - - - -
2017 9
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2019 7
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2025 12 - - 0.99 0.99
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2025 6 - - - -
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2022 11 14.77 7.30 - 22.07
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2022 12 - - 39.88 39.88
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1 1,108,547 1,008,014
1 (518,581) (430,027)
1 589,966 577,987
2 95,518 08,721
2 (14,236) (18,392)
2 81,282 80,329
3 5,519 14,241
4 5,909 15,035
160 11
5 42,663 34,143
725,499 721,746
6 (274,023) (260,275)
8 (145,267) (165,336)
(59) (114)
306,150 295,471
66 409
306,216 295,880
9 (47,528) (53,944)
258,688 241,936
259,140 241,183
(452) 753
258,688 241,936
1
(1 )

11 0.69 0.65
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258,688 241,936
(16,089) 8,504
16,717 3,572
(516) (2,865)
3,853 (1,724)
3,965 7,487
128 (282)
(33) 115
%5 (167)
4,060 7,320
262,748 249,256
263,424 248,399
(676) 857

262,748 249,256
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1 21,882,718 19,898,196
1 (10,236,789) (8,488,733)
1 11,645,929 11,409,463
2 1,885,525 1,948,753
2 (281,019) (363,058)
2 1,604,507 1,585,694
3 108,945 281,117
4 116,644 296,791
3,158 217
5 842,168 673,983
14,321,350 14,247,266
6 (5,409,214) (5,137,829)
8 (2,867,571) (3,274,590)
(1,165) (2,250)
6,043,401 5,832,598
1,303 8,074
6,044,704 5,840,671
9 (938,203) (1,064,855)
5,106,501 4,775,817
5,115,424 4,760,952
(8,922) 14,864
5,106,501 4,775,817

(1 )
11 13.62 12.83
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5,106,501 4,775,817
(317,597) 167,869
329,994 70,511
(10,186) (56,555)
76,058 (34,032)
78,269 147,793
2,527 (5,567)
(651) 2,270
1,875 (3,297)
80,144 144,497
5,186,646 4,920,313
5,199,990 4,903,396
(13,344) 16,917

5,186,646 4,920,313
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12 2,549,130 2,321,406
13 630,885 218,500
83,389 96,504
14 500,330 446,944
15 30,715 21,978
16 1,172,187 837,637
17 18,982,886 16,454,503

18
522,057 460,241
7,306,000 6,372,522
1,702,106 1,397,280
20 8,092 8,297
21 152,572 153,299
1,381 1,381
22 149,698 143,027
23 136,105 135,636
33,927,533 29,069,155
24 901,116 747,213
25 2,459,178 1,622,366
26 333,755 291,105
27 12,287 15,860
15 31,004 19,337
28 43,779 36,033
29 25,121,040 21,907,127
10 1,936 -
30 1,869,398 1,507,657
22 9 655
31 479,580 500,443

31,253,082 26,647,796
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33 440,000 360,000
80,000 80,000
360,000 280,000
34 173,426 173,428
35 35,354 34,927
36 246,764 220,792
37 388,600 351,616
1,032,524 925,955
1,761 (2,096)
2,668,412 2,414,605
6,039 6,754
2,674,451 2,421,359

33,927,533 29,069,155
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12 50,319,826 45,824,554
13 12,453,670 4,313,190
1,646,099 1,904,989
14 9,876,514 8,822,675
15 606,314 433,846
16 23,138,971 16,534,954
17 374,722,170 324,811,889

18

10,305,405 9,085,157
144,220,440 125,793,584
33,599,572 27,582,307
20 159,736 163,783
21 3,011,771 3,026,122
27,261 27,261
22 2,955,039 2,823,353
23 2,686,713 2,677,455
669,729,501 573,825,120
24 17,788,030 14,749,985
25 48,544,174 32,025,505
26 6,588,324 5,746,413
27 242,545 313,076
15 612,019 381,712
28 864,197 711,291
29 495,889,330 432,446,687
10 38,217 -
30 36,901,917 29,761,149
22 178 12,930
31 9,466,909 9,878,745

616,935,839 526,027,493
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33 8,685,600 7,106,400
1,579,200 1,579,200
7,106,400 5,527,200
34 3,423,429 3,423,429
35 697,888 689,459
36 4,871,121 4,358,434
37 7,670,964 6,940,900
20,382,024 18,278,352
34,762 (41,375)
52,674,453 47,664,303
119,210 133,324
52,793,663 47,797,627

669,729,501 573,825,120

2023 3 30
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2021 12 31
349,983 360,000 173428 34927 220,792 351616 925955 (2,096) 2,414,605 6,754 2,421,359
259,140 259,140  (452) 258,688
427 3857 4284 (224) 4,060
427 259,140 3857 263424  (676) 262,748
3 80,000 @) 79,997 79,997
36 25,972 (25,972)
37 36,984 (36,984)
10 (72,376) (72,376) (72,376)
10 (17,239) (17,239) (17,239)
2 2
1 1 (37) (36)
2022 12 31
349,983 440,000 173426 35354 246764 388600 1,032,524 1761 2,668412 6,039 2,674,451
2020 12 31
349,983 320,000 173431 25987 196071 311,449 828240  (372) 2,204,789 5957 2,210,746
241,183 241,183 753 241,936
8,940 (1,724) 7216 104 7,320
8,940 241,183 (L724) 248399 857 249,256
3 40,000 ©) 39,997 37 40,034
36 24,721 (24,721)
37 40,167  (40,167)
10 (64,782) (64,782) (64,782)
10 (13,798) (13,798) (13,798)
(97) (97)
2021 12 31

349,983 360,000 173428 34,927 220,792 351,616 925955 (2,096) 2,414,605 6,754 2,421,359
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6,908,664 7,106,400 3423469 689459 4,358434 6,940,900 18,278,352 (41,375) 47,664,303 133324 47,797,627
5,115,424 5115424 (8922 5,106,501
8,429 76,137 84566 (4,422 80,144
8,429 5115424 76,137 5199990 (13,344) 5,186,646
33 1,579,200 (59) 1,579,141 1,579,141
36 512,687 (512,687)
37 730,064  (730,064)
10 (1,428,702) (1,428,702) (1,428,702)
10 (340,298) (340,298) (340,298)
(39 (39
20 20 (730) (712)
202 12 31
6,908,664 8685600 3423429 697,888 4,871,121 7,670,964 20,382,024 34,762 52,674453 119,210 52,793,663
2020 12 31
6,908,664 6,316,800 3423528 512,983 3870442 6148003 16349458  (7,343) 43522535 117,591 43,640,126
4,760,952 4760952 14,864 4775817
176,476 (34,032) 142,444 2,053 144,497
176,476 4760952 (34,032) 490339 16917 4,920,313
33 789,600 (59) 789,541 730 790,271
36 487,993 (487,993)
37 792,807 (792,897)
10 (1,278,797) (1,278,797) (1,278,797)
10 (272,373) (272,373) (272,373)
(1,915) (1,915)
2021 12 31

6,908,664 7,106,400 3,423,469 689,459 4,358,434 6,940,900 18,278,352 (41,375) 47,664,303 133,324 47,797,627
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( )
12 31

2022 2021
306,216 295,880
3,494 2,322
17,883 17,475
145,267 165,886
59 114
(277,557) (252,804)
45,140 39,188
(4 (5,647) 4,019
(847) (1,285)
(66) (409)
(797) (922)
() (2,547) 16,877
230,598 286,342
' (444,340) 313,337
IC ) 17,681 (4,992)
( ) (16,796) 48,919
(2,598,793) (2,026,482)
150,974 10,483
) 41,292 (99,232)
3,972,068 1,712,770
« ) (54,148) 173,587
) 92,784 (116,370)
1,391,320 298,362
(69,317) (58,747)

I ) 1,322,003 239,615
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2,006,183 1,619,583
266,576 247,470
1,685 2,793
5,857 5,790
(3,308,162) (2,178,694)
(37 -
(2,000) (2,146)
(22,092) (26,033)
(1,051,990) (331,237)
80,000 40,000
3 3
2,035,552 1,635,127
(18) (39
(1,656,608) (1,497,003)
(68,079) (40,429)
(4,946) (5,010)
- 37
(87.681) (78,677)
298,217 54,003
568,230 (37,619)
1,124,762 1,175,153
12,641 (12,772)
38 1,705,633 1,124,762
775,043 717,022
(389,721) (342,465)
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12 31
2022 2021
6,044,704 5,840,671
68,972 45,836
353,010 344,957
2,867,571 3,274,590
1,165 2,250
(5,478,975) (4,990,351)
891,064 773,571
(111,472) 79,335
(16,720) (25,366)
(1,303) (8,074)
(15,733) (18,181)
(50,278) 333,152
4,552,005 5,652,391
(8,771,272) 6,185,272
349,023 (98,542)
(331,553) 965,661
(51,300,174)  (40,002,755)
2,980,227 206,934
815,104 (1,958,840)
78,408,622 33,810,080
(1,068,882) 3,426,607
1,831,556 (2,297,144)
27,464,657 5,889,666
(1,368,318) (1,159,666)
26,096,339 4,730,000
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39,602,052 31,970,568
5,262,210 4,885,058
33,262 55,134
115,617 114,295
(65,303,118)  (43,007,420)

(730)

(39,480) (42,362)
(436,09) (513,891)
(20,766,283) (6,538,618)
1,579,200 789,600
(59 (59
40,181,796 32,277,407
(355) (770)
(32,701,442)  (29,550,839)
(1,343,879) (798,068)
(97,634) (98,897)
730
(1,730,823) (1,553,084)
5,886,804 1,066,019
11,216,860 (742,599)
22,202,802 23,197,520
249,533 (252,119)
38 33,669,195 22,202,802
15,299,349 14,154,014
(7,693,093) (6,760,259)
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IASB

IFRSs

(1) IFRS 3 ()

(@ I1AS 37 — ()

3 1AS 16 — ()

4 IFRS 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 IASB 2018 2020 ()

IAS 41
( )IFRS 3
IFRS 3
2018 2018
IAS 37 IFRIC 21
IAS 37

( )IAS 37 -
( )IAS 16 -
( )IFRS 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 IAS 41 IFRS 2018-2020

IASB IFRS 1 IFRS 9 IFRS 16 IAS 41 IFRS 2018-2020

IFRS 16
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(1) IFRS 17
(2 1AS 1 IFRS
2
3 1AS 8
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() IFRS 16
(6) IAS
2020
(7) 1AS
2022
(8 IFRS 10 IAS
28
( )IFRS 17
IFRS 17 IFRS 4
2021 12
IFRS 17
IFRS 4
IFRS 17 2023 1 1
2023 1 1 IFRS 17
2023 IFRS 17
17
( )IAS 1 IFRS 2
significant
2

( )IAS 8
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12
2022 2020 2024 1 1
( )IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 10
IAS 28
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2016
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(i)
(i)

(iii)

88

89

() ()
(i)
(i)

8.10
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5-50
311

3%
3%
3%

1.94%-19.40%
8.82%-32.33%
12.13%-19.40%
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12 31

2022 2021
761,827 694,009
417,978 380,351
343,849 313,658
231,114 208,225
46,443 44,579
34,494 34,726
9,853 5,868
16,672 11,989
8,144 8,618
1,108,547 1,008,014
(388,546) (329,593)
(52,582) (36,930)
(45,140) (39,189)
(24,944) (20,519)
(6,776) (3,479)
(593 (318)
(518,581) (430,027)

589,966 577,987
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®

)/
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12 31
2022 2021
26,772 30,476
23,965 23,677
15,760 15,435
11,979 11,644
10,296 11,004
4,308 3,832
1,979 1,980
459 583
95,518 08,721
(8,573) (11,942)
(3,386) (3,509)
(1,391) (1,598)
(886) (1,343)
(14,236) (18,392)
81,282 80,329
12 31
2022 2021
13,244 3,847
@) 3,623 3,650
(11,050) 6,672
516 440
(814) (368)
5,519 14,241




I

I

207/509

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31
2022 2021
5 (237)
6,040 20,907
(i) (643) (7,445)
859 1,235
- 1,068
(352) (493)
5,909 15,035
12 31
2022 2021
32,942 29,188
5,611 224
1,241 1,065
900 1,032
797 948
1,172 1,686
42,663 34,143
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( )

)

( )

(2) 2022 110
108
105

©)
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2021
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12 31
2022 2021
o) 146,547 137,953
@ 61,861 61,558
34,770 30,988
20,865 19,797
©) 6,525 6,606
3,455 3,373
274,023 260,275
12 31
2022 2021
95,935 89,580
9,738 9,347
6,031 5,859
5,685 5,480
181 222
165 157
4,308 4,001
11,362 10,963
127,374 119,750
19,135 18,188
38 15
146,547 137,953
106
1% 5% 7%
3% 2%
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(0]
(i)
(iii)

2023 1 20
2022 12 22
2022 12 22

7
1
( ) 2022 12 31
XX
656 127 86 869
0] 55 11 7 73
591 120 85 796
591 120 85 796
380 380
380 380
361 361
380 380
(i) 10 10
(iii)
(iv)
50 50
50 50
(v) 29 29
300 300
330 330
280 280
591 125 20 806
(vi) 148 51 22 221
1,005 206 85 1,296
(vii) 438 83 55 576
(viii) 399 399
(ix 656 127 86 869
(x
(xi 21 21
(xii 345 70 47 462
(xiii 501 120 85 796
(xiv 1,005 219 86 1,310
2,970 6,672 1,379 819 11,840
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(iv)
v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x
(xi
(xii
(i
(xiv)

()

2022 6 29
2022 5 10
2022 11 28
2022 9 6
2022 12 22
2023 2 7
2022 6 13
2022 5 10
2022 8 9
2023 3 21
2023 2 28
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2022 12 31
2021 12 31
Xiii
@) 879 148 81 1,108
879 145 81 1,105
791 136 81 1,008
(i) 660 118 66 844
381 381
380 380
380 380
360 360
(iii) 34 K
(iv)
)
(Vi)
879 145 81 1,105
50 50
50 50
(vii) 21 21
300 300
(viii) 46 46
(ix) 39 39
791 127 81 999
791 125 83 999
(x) 264 38 26 328
1,989 211 80 2,280
1,988 183 81 2,252
(xi) 48 48
(xii)
(xiii) 370 370
(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi) 33 33
(xvii) 242 242
(xviii) 268 268
(xix) 330 49 A4 413

2,954 10,289 1,425 775 15,443
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0} 2021 1 28 2021 2 9

(i) 2021 3 31 2021 6 15

(i) 2021 11 19

(iv) 2021 3 5

) 2022 1 20

(vi) 2022 1 20

(vii) 2021 7 26

(viii) 2021 11 11

(i) 2021 11 11

X 2021 11 4

Xi 2021 1 7

xi 2021 7 27

xiii 2021 11 19

(xiv) 2021 9 28

(xv) 2021 12 31

(xvi) 2021 8 20

(xvii) 2021 11 11

(xviii) 2021 11 11

(xix 2021 6 11

(9

2 5

() 5

2022 2021 12 31 5
( ) 12 31
2022 2021

21 13
16 18
1 1
38 32
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5
12 31
2021 2020
4,500,001 5,000,000 2
5,000,001 5,500,000 2

5,500,001 6,000,000

6,000,001 6,500,000

6,500,001 7,000,000 1 1
7,000,001 7,500,000

7,500,001 8,000,000

8,000,001 8,500,000

8,500,001 9,000,000 1
9,000,001 9,500,000

9,500,001 10,000,000

10,000,001 10,500,000

10,500,001 11,000,000

11,000,001 11,500,000

11,500,001 12,000,000

12,000,001 12,500,000 1
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 5
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
5
( 622 )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
7
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
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2021 12 31

(25%)
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12 31
2022 2021
140,968 168,999
1,919 2,947
(4,094) 1,588
7,669 (15,393)
(268) (15)
(152 (442)
(462) 367
(313) 7,835
145,267 165,886
12 31
2022 2021
54,326 64,852
707 954
361 239
55,394 66,045
(7.866) (12,101)
47528 53,944
25%
SAR
12 31
2022 2021
306,216 295,880
76,554 73,970
1) (46,528) (42,983)
20,331 23,311
(2,810) (2,434)
(19) (48)
2,128
47528 53,944

oOoOooodn



10
( )
(
2021
2020
(1) 2021
2022 6 29
GAAP )
1
2022 12 31
(2) 2020
2021 5 27
64,782
2021 12 31
©)
2022
2022 1 26
1,936
2022 8 29
2,128
2022 12 28
1,936
2021
2021 1 27
1,936
2021 8 30

2,128

2021
0.2068

2020

)
@)

©)
©)
(4)

72,376
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GAAP

2021
2022 3 11

2021
2022 11 22

2022
2023 3 13

2020
2021 3 11

2020
2021 11 5
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12 31
2022 2021
72,376
64,782
72,376 64,782
4,064 4,064
1,936
11,239 9,734
(
2021
2020
0.1851
2022 4.84%
2022 5.32%
2023 4.84%
2022 12 31
2021 4.84%
2021 5.32%



(4)

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

(5) 2022

2020 85
2022 5 12
8 18 2019
2022 8 20
8 22 2020
2022 8 24
9 1 2019
2022 9 5
11 14 2021
2022 11 16
5 7 2020
2021 5 12
8 17 2019
2021 8 20
8 19 2020
2021 8 24
9 2 2019
2021 9 6
12 31

3.48%

85

35

35

40

85

85

35

35

1 0.2222

216/509

Tierl

2,958

4.39%

4.50%

4.20%

3.76%

3.48%

4.39%

4.50%

4.20%
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2022 5

3,732

1,575

1,470

1,504

2,958

3,731

1,575

1,470

77,766
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11.
1
12 31
2022 2021
( ) 259,140 241,183
( ) (17,239) (13,798)
( ) 241,901 227,385
( ) 349,083 349,983
1 ( ) 0.69 0.65
2015 2014 2
V.33
2022 2021 2020 2019 7 Tierl
V.33
2022 1 2022
6,000 Tierl 11,239
2021 4,064
Tierl 9,734

2022
2021 12 31 1
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12
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
67,180 74,610
1) 2,153,612 1,973,077
%) 169,295 101,010
©) 157,997 171,765
2,548,084 2,320,462
1,046 944
2,549,130 2,321,406
1 PBOC
2022 12 31 PBOC
PBOC
2
3 PBOC
13
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
580,465 184,968
9,507 10,345
38,694 22,507
628,666 217,820
3,538 2,140
(1,319) (1,460)
630,885 218,500
14
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
236,552 250,953
172,631 93,315
90,929 104,295
500,112 448,563
2,780 1,080
(2,562) (2,699)
500,330 446,944
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
/
1,766,754 25,476 (25,684)
87,071 1,374 (569)
26,850 (26,253)
242,817 2,512 (871)
148,701 1,353 (3.880)
30,715 (31,004)
2021 12 31
/
2,145,080 18,983 (14,402)
51,631 1,133 (332)
20,116 (14,734)
271,371 1,141 (2,366)
145,374 721 (2,237)

21,978 (19,337)
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CBIRC ( )(@o13 1 1 )
2019 1 1
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
31,566 49,277
8,825 6,943
40,391 56,220
D
( ) 2022 12 31
/
37,721 1,455 (45)
( ) 2021 12 31
/
48,716 33 (1,104)
/
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
)
2,653 1,599
(2,778) (1,566)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( )
1 3 1
1 3 1 5 5
2022 12 31 1,985 445 10,137 23,556 1,598 37,721
2021 12 31 861 3,958 9,203 30,412 4,282 48,716

220/509



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

( ) 202 12 31
39,250 - - -
2,787 - (179) -
42,037 - (179) -
( ) 2021 12 31
51,356 ; ; )
2,551 - 52 -
53,907 - 52 -
@)
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
16
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
1,113,854 780,571
59,835 59,378
1,173,689 839,949
945 597
(2,447) (2,909)
1,172,187 837,637

42
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12 31
2022 2021

) 17,638,704 15,951,755
) 1,344,182 502,748

18,982,886 16,454,503

10,814,664 9,496,436

7,563,875 7,136,568
18378539 16,633,004
43,024 39,321
(782,859) (720,570)

17,638,704 15,951,755

336,634 78,419
1,007,548 424,329
1,344,182 502,748
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OooooOodd
17.2
( ) 2022 12 31
1 2 3()
12
17,815,149 335,352 271,062 18,421,563
(537,797) (80,842) (164,220) (782,859)
17,277,352 254,510 106,842 17,638,704
1,344,176 6 0 1,344,182
(37,372 ) 0 (37,374)
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3(i)
12
16,157,097 269,446 245,782 16,672,325
(500,117) (57,494) (162,959) (720,570)
15,656,980 211,952 82,823 15,951,755
502,701 47 - 502,748
(16,108) 9) - (16,117)
1 2 ECL 3 ECL
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17.3
12
( 2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
0] (i)
2022 1 1 352,237 50,260 140,884 543,381
1 2 (5,288) 5,288 - ]
2 3 - (13,043) 13,043 -
2 1 5,603 (5.603) - -
3 2 - 6,154 (6,154) -
152,359 - - 152,359
(16,541) 22,052 44,450 49,961
(73,299) (9.374) (19,331) (102,004)
- - (41,665) (41,665)
2022 12 31 415,071 55,734 131,227 602,032
( 2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
(iii) (iv)
2022 1 1 163,988 7,243 22,075 193,306
1 2 (3,701) 3,701 - -
2 3 - (6,112) 6,111 -
2 1 1,375 (1,375) - ]
3 2 - 997 (997) -
62,092 - - 62,092
(7,100) 24,712 28,038 45,650
(56,556) (4,057) (6,315) (66,928)
- - (15,919) (15,919)
2022 12 31 160,098 25,110 32,993 218,201
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2021 1 1

W NN P
N P WDN

2021 12 31

2021 1 1

w NN
N P W N

2021 12 31

(i) 2022

(i) 2022

6%

2022

2022 1 1

@iy 2022

(iv) 2022
106%

2022
44%

(v) 2021

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
(v) (Vi)
282,549 53,699 135,634 471,882
(6,339) 6,338 - -
- (21,124) 21,124 -
2,448 (2,448) ; ]

- 1,151 (1,151) ]
115,643 - - 115,643
19,839 29,179 50,760 99,778
(61,904) (16,535) (19,730) (98,169)

- - (45,753) (45,753)
352,237 50,260 140,884 543,381

2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
(vii) (viii)
128,414 7,003 23,907 159,324
(1,899) 1,899 - -

- (4,141) 4,141 -
2,320 (2,320) - -

- 1,269 (1,269) -
69,982 - - 69,982
13,434 6,830 11,106 31,370
(48,263) (3,297) (2,312) (53,871)

- - (13,499) (13,499)
163,988 7,243 22,075 193,306

2022 1 1 22%
2 2022 1 1
1
3
4% 2
2021 1 1 13
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(vi) 2021 2 2 2021 1 1
21%
2021 3 2021 1

(vii) 2021 1 15%

(viii) 2021 2
8% 1 2

2021 3 5%
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18
12 3
( 2022 2021
18.1 522,057 460,241
18.2 7,306,000 6,372,522
18.3 1,702,106 1,397,280
9,530,163 8,230,043
18.1
12 31
( 2022 2021
(1 155,869 159,382
2 1,250 2,313
?) 364,938 298,546
522,057 460,241
5,480 5,409
(i) 351,425 306,454
165,152 148,378
522,057 460,241
@)
(D 12 31
2022 2021
16,999 8,925
63,951 25,144
18,445 68,800
27,203 25,268
126,598 128,137
17,988 21,389
5,790 5,279
5,493 4577
155,869 159,382
2 12 31
2022 2021
626 1,009
624 1,304
1,250 2,313

227/509
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( )
@) (ii) 12 31
2022 2021
27,678 22,636
176,537 131,578
882 645
205,097 154,859
111,902 104,676
47,939 39,011
364,938 298,546
1
18.2
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
4,751,633 4,117,564
1,783,050 1,506,965
169,394 145,826
90,812 100,576
6,794,889 5,870,931
0} 290,891 290,891
(ii) 93,332 93,340
(iii) 11,580 13,463
7,190,692 6,268,625
135,743 122,924
(20,435) (19,027)
7,306,000 6,372,522
35,017 19,994
(iv) 6,832,620 5,882,053
438,363 470,475
7,306,000 6,372,522
@) 2020 1 MOF 2020 1 1 5
(i) 1998 MOF 93,300 2028
2008 12 1 2.25%
(i) 41(2)

(iv)
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(D
( ) 2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
7,324,788 347 1,300 7,326,435
(19,150) - (1,285) (20,435)
7,305,638 347 15 7,306,000
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
6,389,720 548 1,281 6,391,549
(17,764) - (1,263) (19,027)
6,371,956 548 18 6,372,522
2 3
) 0]
( ) 2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
2022 1 1 17,764 - 1,263 19,027
4,903 - - 4,903
126 - 22 148
(3,643 - - (3,643)
2022 12 31 19,150 - 1,285 20,435
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
2021 1 1 14,850 190 1,064 16,104
1 2 ) 1 - -
1 3 1) - 1 -
2 3 - ) 7 -
2 1 30 (30) - -
3,996 - - 3,996
586 (1) 191 776
(1,696) (153) - (1,849)
2021 12 31 17,764 - 1,263 19,027

(i) 2022 12 31
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183
( ) 202 12 31
/
@ 1,694,785 1,697,405 2,620 (6,343)
© 3519 4,701 1,182
1,698,304 1,702,106 3,802 (6,343)
( ) 2021 12 31
/
o 1,373,040 1,392,691 19,651 (10,761)
@ 3,480 4,589 1,109
1,376,520 1,397,280 20,760 (10,761)
D
(@
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
870,339 649,753
235,712 241,828
429,063 364,339
135,994 105,803
1,671,108 1,361,723
(i) 10,558 16,861
1,681,666 1,378,584
15,739 14,107
1,697,405 1,392,691
124,853 131,184
1,486,760 1,186,801
85,792 74,706

1,697,405 1,392,691

(0] 412
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(b)
( )
( )
2 3
(©)
( )
2022 1 1
1 3
2 1
2022 12 31
( )
2021 1 1
2
1
2021 12 31

(i) 2022 12 31
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202 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,696,481 400 524 1,697,405
(6,078) © (256) (6,343
2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,390,789 1,870 32 1,392,691
(10,457) (189) (115) (10,761)
(i)
202 12 31
1 2 3
12
10,457 189 115 10,761
(117) - 11 -
51 (51) - -
1,942 - - 1,942
(1,257) @ 30 (1,231)
(5,004) (125) - (5,129)
6,078 9 256 6,343
2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
9,536 432 106 10,074
(188) 188 - -
307 (307) - -
4,809 - - 4,809
(50) 2 9 (39)
(3,957) (126) - (4,083)
10,457 189 115 10,761
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2
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
4,564 4,448
137 141
4,701 4,589
19
(1
2022 12 31
/ %) )
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2009 11 11 4,113,392,450 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 9,500,000,000 100.00 100.00
UK 2011 11 29 100,000,002 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 1,750,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 40,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 150,000,000 51.00 51.00
(i) 2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
2014 12 23 7,556,038,271 100.00 100.00
(iii) 2017 8 1 20,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
2019 7 25 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
(i) 3 2
(ii) 2012 12 31 51
2012 12 31 1,381 2016 12 31
917 2,844 3,761

51

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

(iii)2021 1 25 10
100

(2

Al
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20
(1
/ (%) (%)
(i) 2015 53,342,800,000 50.00 50.00
CFA
( (i) 2015 i3 313,000,000 31.95 33.33
)
(i) 2018 6,343,200,000 15.61 1111
( )
(ii) 2019 3,885,500,000 25.26 20.00
( )
( ) (i) 2020 6,000,000,000 15.67 14.29
( )
(iii) 2020 88,500,000,000 9.04 9.04
(iv) 2022 11,150,000,000 8.97 8.97
( 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sno-Congolaise pour | Afreque BSCA. BSCA.
50% BSCA.
(ii
(iii 2021 9.04%
(iv
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! (%) (%)

2018 B 1,000 69.00 28.57

2018 B 500 74.00 33.33

2018 B 1,500 66.67 50.00

2018 H 2,000 50.00 50.00
)

2018 &l 2,000 50.00 50.00
(

2019 I 1,800 66.67 50.00

2019 H 400 70.00 50.00
(

2019 e 3,500 20.00 20.00

(
2019 B 1,000 50.00 50.00



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
21
( )
2022 1 1 189,309 65,906 16,398 9,516 281,129
2,673 7,203 730 6,709 17,315
4,948 1,204 - (6,152) -
(3574) (5,347) (1.875) © (10,805)
2022 12 31 193,356 68,966 15,253 10,064 287,639
2022 1 1 (77,605) (45,724) (4,110) - (127,439)
(6.951) (6.289) (775) - (14,015)
1,117 4,885 699 - 6,701
2022 12 31 (83,439) (47,128) (4,186) - (134,753)
2022 1 1 (270) (6) (81) (39 (391)
@ - (11 - (13
9 1 80 - %0
2022 12 31 (263) 6] (12) (34 (314)
2022 1 1 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299
2022 12 31 109,654 21,833 11,055 10,030 152,572
( )
2021 1 1 185,794 66,118 14,721 7,349 273,982
4,820 6,161 1,864 7,443 20,288
4,482 592 194 (5,268) -
(5,787) (6,965) (381) ® (13,141)
2021 12 31 189,309 65,906 16,398 9,516 281,129
2021 1 1 (72,476) (46,282) (3,718) - (122,476)
(6,801) (5,951) (771) - (13523)
1,672 6,509 379 - 8,560
2021 12 31 (77,605) (45,724) (4,110) - (127,439)
2021 1 1 (262) ©) (47) (34) (352)
® - (36) - (44)
- 3 2 - 5
2021 12 31 (270) (6) (81) (34) (392)
2021 1 1 113,056 19,827 10,956 7,315 151,154
2021 12 31 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299

2022 12 31
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22
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
149,698 143,027
) (655)
149,689 142,372
1
( )
2022 1 1 136059 11,844 272 8452 (14,437) 182 142,372
) 2,626 2,963 (83) 1,745 236 379 7,866
- - - - (549) - (549)
2022 12 31 138,685 14,807 189 10,197 (14,750) 561 149,689
( )
2021 1 1 121,944 10,426 388 10525  (10,718) 456 133,021
) 14,115 1,418 (116)  (2,073) (969) (274) 12,101
- - - - (2,750) - (2,750
2021 12 31 136,059 11,844 272 8452  (14,437) 182 142,372
2 /I
( )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
/ / / /
( ) C ) «C ) « )
554,800 138,685 544,441 136,059
50,271 12,570 28,267 7,087
59,228 14,807 47,379 11,844
40,788 10,197 33,809 8,452
758 189 1,088 272
2,220 561 780 182
708,065 177,009 655,764 163,896
(109,465) (27,320 (86,404) (21,524)
(109,465) (27,320) (86,404) (21,524)

598,600 149,689 569,360 142,372
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3,868 2021 12 31 12
24
( )
25
( )
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12 31
2022 2021
72,230 75,176
@) 19,982 20,384
) 10,877 10,191
7,885 6,188
3,662 1,836
2,996 2,718
2,193 2,018
1,082 899
740 659
14,458 15,567
136,105 135,636
2022 12 31
2022 12 31 12
3,952 10,688 2021 12 31
12 31
2022 2021
891,603 740,629
9,513 6,584
901,116 747,213
12 31
2022 2021
267,750 167,300
2,121,826 1,401,314
3,408 3,332
50,495 41,446
2,443,479 1,613,392
15,699 8,974
2,459,178 1,622,366
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12 3
2022 2021
191,299 129,317
140,429 161,119
331,728 290,436
2,027 669
333,755 291,105
12 31
2022 2021
12,039 15,646
248 214
12,287 15,860
12 31
2022 2021
40,010 31,298
3,560 4,720
43,570 36,018
209 15
43,779 36,033

42

239/509



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

240/509

OoOoOoOoOodno
29
12 31
( ) 2022 2021
5,470,469 5,346,931
6,508,440 5,978,690
3,686,042 2,761,506
8,479,927 7,000,805
@) 427,959 339,588
164,597 167,933
24,737,434 21,595,453
383,606 311,674
25,121,040 21,907,127
1
12 31
( ) 2022 2021
152,626 127,012
121,800 66,418
52,384 75,099
50,783 32,948
50,366 38,111
427,959 339,588
2 2022 12 31 25,093,700
2021 12 31 21,854,821
27,340 2021 12 31 52,306 2022 12 31
2021 12 31
30
12 31
( ) 2022 2021
@) 478,063 420,813
2 306,523 262,272
©) 1,074,198 816,321
1,858,784 1,499,406
10,614 8,251
1,869,398 1,507,657
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
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el
o o

2022

2022

2021

2022

2022

10

10

Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2
Tier2

2.40%

2.80%

125% 2

200% 2

SOFR+0.55%
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1

1

1

0]
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
x)
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)
(xx)
(xxi)
(xxii)
(xxiii)
(xxiv)
(xxv)
(xxwvi)
(xxvii)
(xxviii)
(xxix)
(xxx)
(xxxi)
(xxxii)
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12 3
2022 2021

15,000 -
5,000 -
2,089 1,913
2,089 -
209 -

- 50,000

- 40,000
40,000 40,000
50,000 50,000
40,000 40,000
40,000 40,000
40,000 -
10,000 10,000
20,000 20,000
20,000 -
50,000 -
20,000 -
57,643 56,305
20,000 20,000
20,000 20,000
- 2,770
2,000 2,000
2,500 2,500

- 3,870
4,000 4,000
2,000 2,000
6,000 6,000
500 500
1,099 1,100
2,998 3,000
3,500 3,500
1,500 1,500
478,127 420,958
(64) (145)
478,063 420,813

2023 3 2



2012 12

vii 2017 10

viii 2018 4
CBIRC

ix 2019 3
CBIRC

x 2019 4
CBIRC

(xi) 2020 4
CBIRC

(xii) 2022 6
CBIRC

(ii)2019 3
CBIRC

xiv 2019 4
CBIRC

xv) 2022 6
CBIRC

xvi) 2022 9
CBIRC

xvii) 2022 9
CBIRC

15

10 Tier2

10 Tier2

CBIRC

10 Tier2

CBIRC

10 Tier2

CBIRC

10 Tier2

CBIRC

10 Tier2

CBIRC

15 Tier2

CBIRC

15 Tier2

CBIRC

15 Tier2

CBIRC

10 Tier2

CBIRC

15 Tier2

CBIRC

4.99%

2023 4
Tier2

2024 3
Tier2

2024 4
Tier2

2025 5
Tier2

2027 6
Tier2

2029 3
Tier2

2029 4
Tier2

2032 6
Tier2

2027 9
Tier2

2032 9
Tier2

1
445% 1
445% 1
428% 1
430% 1
310% 1
345% 1
453% 1
463% 1
365% 1
303% 1
334% 1

242/509
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2022 12 20
2022 10 17
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 Tier2
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Xviii)
( ) 2022 12 31
(%)
2023 5 2024 4 2.60-2.90 2,801
2023 3 2023 6 0.50-0.66 4,906
2023 7 2027 3 0.70-2.25 46,982
2023 11 LIBOR+0.66 0.85 2,089
2023 8 115 865
57,643
( ) 2021 12 31
(%)
2023 5 2024 4 2.60-2.70 1,502
2022 10 2023 6 0.50-1.00 8,583
2023 7 2026 9 0.70-1.65 34,745
2022 7 2023 11 LIBOR+0.66 0.85 11,475
56,305
XiX) 2020 4 3 1.99%
XX) 2021 4 3 3.38%
xxi) 2019 6 368% 1
2022 6 5
(x4ii) 2020 11 390% 1
i) 2021 8 306% 1
xxiv) 2019 9 330% 1 2022 9
23
(300v) 2020 3 268% 1 2023 3
16
xovi) 2019 9 340% 1
(owvii) 2020 3 275% 1
(ouiii) ( ) 2020 6 5 380% 1
(3X) ) 2021 4 5 410% 1
(%) ( ) 2021 6 5 380% 1
xxi) 2018 3 10 555% 1
2023 3 5
(00T 2020 3 360% 1
2025 3 25 2025
3 30 4.60%
22022 12 31
1 0.00%  5.85% 2021 12 31
1 -0.02%  3.09%
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3
2022 12 31
2 1 0.00%
3.37% 2021 12 31 2 1 0.00%  0.45%
2022 12 31
2 1 0.00% 5.81% 2021 12 31
1 1 -051%  0.59%
31
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
125,130 105,262
112,572 153,389
(1) 71,469 59,736
47,716 61,639
2 40,788 33,809
10,918 10,067
8,418 10,571
MOF 1,732 1,286
60,837 64,684
479,580 500,443
1
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
() 68,820 57,262
() 1,801 1,386
() 758 1,088
71,469 59,736
( ) 2022
11 12 31
(3 42,785 96,704 (87,504) 51,985
(@ 137 9,821 (9,781) 177
(a 446 6,083 (6,191) 338
418 5,735 (5,843) 310
14 182 (181) 15
14 166 (167) 13
9,145 4312 (2,759) 10,698
4,749 11,392 (10,519) 5,622

57,262 128,312 (116,754) 68,820
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2021
12 31
35,010 90,052 (82,277) 42,785
108 9,406 (9,377) 137
385 5,895 (5,834) 446
367 5,514 (5,463) 418
9 223 (218) 14
9 158 (153) 14
8,039 4,001 (2,895) 9,145
3,838 10,982 (10,072) 4,749
47,380 120,336 (110,454) 57,262
2022
12 31
694 11,283 (11,349) 628
40 366 (342 64
652 7,620 (7,073) 1,199
1,386 19,269 (18,764) 1,801
2021
12 31
619 10,924 (10,849) 694
40 360 (360) 40
7,221 6,093 (13,562) 652
7,880 18,277 (24,771) 1,386
2022
12 31
1,088 38 (368) 758
2021
12 31
1,551 15 (478) 1,088

245/509
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12 31
2022 2021
2.50% 2.58%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
2
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
(i) 28,051 20,271
5,317 5,333
7,420 8,205
40,788 33,809
( ) 2022 12 31
1 2 3
12
202 1 1 18,333 651 1,287 20,271
1 2 (113) 113 - .
2 3 - (133) 133 -
2 1 122 122 - -
3 2 - 97 97 -
@ 11,600 - - 11,600
4,045 1,294 479 5,818
€ (8,350) (839) (449) (9,638)

2022 12 31 25,637 1,061 1,353 28,051
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2021 12 31

a 2022
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2021 12 31
1 2 3
12
33,356 1,661 739 35,756
(155) 155 - -
- (219) 219 -
51 (51) - -
- 31 (31) -
9,797 - - 9,797
(79) 616 539 1,076
(24,637) (1,542) (179) (26,358)
18,333 651 1,287 20,271
2021 2022 2021
2022
2021
2022 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
2021 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
H
A H 2018 6 19,960
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( ) ( ) ( )
5
0,
o 6.00% 100 400 40,000
5
5
0,
o 5:50% 100 400 40,000
5
2019
5
4.39% 100 850 85,000
5
2
2019
5
4.20% 100 350 35,000
5
2
2020
5
3.48% 100 850 85,000
5
2
2020
5
4.50% 100 350 35,000
5
2
2021
5
3.76% 100 400 40,000
5
2
2022 5
3.49%
5 100 500 50,000
2
2022 5
317%
5 100 300 30,000

Q)
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2014 11

2.29%

2015 3

2.24%

CBIRC

2022 12 31
)

@)
120

2019 8 16

4.39%

2019 9 3

4.20%

249/509

800 1
400 2022 12 31
5 6.00% 1
2019 11 1
3.03% 2.29% 5.32%
400 2022 12 31
5 5.50% 1
2020 3 6 5
2.60% 2.24% 4.84%
[2019]42
A
2018 6 25,189
243 2.46
79,899
Tierl
85 Tierl
100
35 Tierl
100
2020 120

100

Tier2

CBIRC

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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) 39,944
5
2019 11 5
) 39,955
5
2020 3 11
Tierl
(2021 12 31 :79,899
2019
2019 8 20
5
2019 9 5
5

Tierl
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2020 5 8 85 Tierl 2020 5 12
100
5 5
3.48%
2020 8 20 35 Tierl 2020 8 24
100
5 5
4.50%
2021 120 Tierl
2021 11 12 40 Tierl 2021 11 16
100
5 5
3.76%
2022 2 18 50 Tierl 2022 2 22
100
5 5 3.49%
2022 9 1 30 Tierl 2022 9 5
100
5 5 3.17%
5 CBIRC
CBIRC
Tierl
Tierl
2022 12 31 Tierl 359,970 (2021 12 31
1 279,973 )
2010 2018
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2021 12 31

2022 12 31

2020 12 31

2021 12 31

2023 3 30

10% 25,309

25%

GAAP

2021

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2022
46,400 (11,482) 34,927
(15,523) 3,749 (11,774)
(434) 109 (325)
16,838 (4,407) 12,431
128 (33) %5
47,418 (12,064) 35,354
2021
34,773 (8,786) 25,987
9,442 (2,192) 7,250
(1,131) 283 848
3,607 (902) 2,705
(282) 115 (167)
46,409 (11,482) 34,927
10%
50%
2021

24,335

251/509
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MOF

2022 12 31
2021 40,167
2021 39,217

2023 3 30
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

[2012] 20 2012 7 1

oOoOooodn

1.5%

36,984
2021 12 31 32,221
2022 6 29
67,557
2022
3
12 31
2022 2021
67,180 74,610
169,295 101,010
145,374 12,163
172,663 103,110
1,151,121 833,869
1,705,633 1,124,762
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(
)
2022 12 31
340481 185872 126,792 106041 125092 172,289 23,777 28,203 - 1,108,547
(74,888) (113455) (61,901) (83,036) (69,369) (76,645 (22,675) (16,612) - (518581)
( (324,776) 75,809 39,376 75,998 58,671 53,819 23,288 (2,185) - -
)
(59,183) 148,226 104,267 99,003 114,394 149,463 24,390 9,406 - 580,966
38,434 13,864 10,132 8,739 8,383 10,694 1,880 3,392 - 95,518
(3.449) (2532 (1.907) (1.488) (2,099 (2,004) (439) (327) - (14,236)
34,985 11,332 8,225 7,251 6,289 8,690 1,445 3,065 - 81,282
7,968 (141) 11 23 23 43 14 (2,400) - 5,519
I
)
/ 4,159 (211) (299) (165) 24 (3,005) (40) 5,446 - 5,909
154 - - - - - - 6 - 160
(207) 1,642 980 641 828 1,114 189 37,476 - 42,663
(12,124) 160,848 113,162 106,753 121,558 156,305 25,998 52,999 - 725,499
(15,377) (41,206) (29,738) (34,422) (41,175) (56,358) (14,865) (40,882) - (274,023
8135  (17,916) (20,160) (9,983) (30,566) (66,701) (6,050) (2,026) - (145267)
- - - 7 (19 (30) (5 (12 - (59
'Y (19,366) 101,726 63,264 62,355 49,798 33,216 5,078 10,079 - 306,150
56 - - - - - - 10 - 66
(19,310) 101,726 63,264 62,355 49,798 33,216 5,078 10,089 - 306,216
( ¥
(47,528)
258,688
2,338 3,242 2,641 3235 3,322 4,373 1,193 521 - 20,865
5,518 1,656 1,555 2,509 3,813 4,672 734 2,405 - 22,862
2022 12 31
6,499,065 7,213,176 4,496584 6,166,474 4,953,791 6,386,015 1,470,623 1,243,493 (4,651,386) 33,777,835
2,105 - - - - - - 5,087 - 8,092
149,698
33,927,533
19,786 28,509 17,393 30,071 30,283 43,660 11,297 24,889 - 205,978
@
(3,689,997) (7,285,870) (4,489,449) (6,189,612) (4,991,794) (6,448,867) (1.480,796) (1,280,358) 4,651,386 (31,205,357)
2 23 32 B 32 (47,725)
23 23 5 23 (31,253,082)

52 32 32 E2 32 i
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13,308 640,617 420,037 454542 356,150 353,388 75,901 98,450 - 2412,393

@
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( )
2021 12 31
312,005 165902 116,342 97,411 112,282 159,636 23,728 19,808 - 1,008014
(62,136)  (93.360)  (48,988)  (71,233)  (59,171)  (66,727)  (20,385) (8,027) - (430,027)
(
) (271,993) 63,604 31,990 65,005 48,445 44,643 19,617 (1,401) - -
(21,224) 136,146 99,344 91273 101,556 137,552 22,960 10,380 - 577,987
39,414 14,432 10,099 8,913 8,641 11,416 2,071 2,835 - 98,721
(3,529) (3,568) (2,707) (2,149) (2,791) (2,921) (634) (93) - (18,392)
35,885 10,864 8,202 6,764 5,850 8,495 1,437 2,742
- 80,329
14,241
7,621 613 54 86 33 46 24 5,764 -
/ 15,035
12,174 (4,065) (925) (380) (726) 6,416 (115) 2,656 -
9 - - - - - - 2 - 1
1,053 970 629 448 483 1,693 107 28,760 - 34,143
35518 144528 107,394 98,191 107,196 154,202 24413 50,304 - 721,746
(18196)  (38779)  (27.919)  (32,533)  (38428)  (53152)  (14431)  (36,837) - (260,275)
(10057)  (33.444)  (21,895)  (32,026)  (30,379) (33,349 (4,104) (632) - (165,386)
(20) - - (1) (9) (45) (22) (17) - (114)
7,245 72,305 57,580 33,631 38,380 67,656 5,856 12,818 - 295,471
58 - - - - - - 351 - 409
7,303 72,305 57,580 33,631 38,380 67,656 5,856 13,169 - 295,880
(53,944)
241,936
1,872 3,186 2,546 3,106 3,124 4,255 1,193 515 - 19,797
3,684 2,565 3,642 4,141 4,014 5,771 969 2,158 - 26,944
2021 12 31
5349436 6245511 3,777,921 5144974 4261718 5616038 1202922 1,158,228 (3,920,620) 28,926,128
1,072 - - - - - - 7,225 - 8,297
143,027
29,069,155
@ 15,399 30,401 20,108 30,150 28,146 42,446 10,731 27,004 - 204,475
(2,878,758) (6,304,624) (3,787,707) (5,185,277) (4,293,433) (5647,159) (1,303,874) (1,105,290) 3,920,620 (26,585,502)
(62,294)
(26,647,796)
12,035 537,337 366,666 389,817 308,368 320,502 75,593 77,987 - 2,088,305

@
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( )
2022 12 31
417,689 343,674 339,641 7,543 1,108,547
(160,818) (239,481) (115,219) (3,063) (518,581)
( )

(29,880) 224,630 (194,750) - -
226,991 328,823 29,672 4,480 589,966
57,633 32,256 905 4,724 95,518
(7.470) (6,466) (44) (256) (14,236)
50,163 25,790 861 4,468 81,282
/ - - 6,707 (1,188) 5,519
/ (741) (254) 1,326 5,578 5,909
- - 154 6 160
1,131 989 5,716 34,827 42,663
277,544 355,348 44,436 48,171 725,499
(86,066) (123,520) (24,248) (40,189) (274,023)
(101,917) (45,775) 2,814 (389) (145,267)
47 - - (2 (59)
89,514 186,053 23,002 7,581 306,150
- - - 66 66
89,514 186,053 23,002 7,647 306,216
(47,528)
258,688
5,707 10,987 3,662 509 20,865
4,835 11,204 4418 2,405 22,862
2022 12 31
11,695,117 7,512,287 14,162,923 407,508 33,777,835
. . - 8,002 8,092
149,698
33,927,533
(9,945,976) (15,451,979) (5,469,192) (338,210) (31,205,357)
(47,725)
(31,253,082)
2,308,207 104,186 - - 2,412,393
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( )
2021 12 31
382,068 313,486 304,389 8,071 1,008,014
(129,812) (210,635) (86,184) (3,396) (430,027)
( )/ (24,981) 186,829 (161,848)
227,275 289,680 56,357 4,675 577,987
59,722 34,000 1,058 3,851 98,721
(11,392) (6,634) (39) (327) (18,392)
48,330 27,456 1,019 3,524 80,329
11,040 3,201 14,241
/ (7,181) (75) 17,158 5,133 15,035
11 11
1,475 1,341 357 30,970 34,143
269,899 318,402 85,942 47,503 721,746
(82,315) (112,663) (29,168) (36,129) (260,275)
(111,269) (49,672) (4,567) (378) (165,886)
(72) 4 (2 (36) (114)
76,243 156,063 52,205 10,960 295,471
409 409
76,243 156,063 52,205 11,369 295,880
(53,944)
241,936
5,230 10,484 3,630 453 19,797
5,933 13,909 5,510 1,592 26,944
2021 12 31
9,539,860 7,110,002 11,884,433 391,833 28,926,128
8,297 8,297
143,027
29,069,155
(8,833,093) (13,357,389) (4,083,852) (311,168) (26,585,502)
(62,294)
(26,647,796)
1,213,942 874,363 2,088,305

259/509
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2022 12 3
291,067 817,480 1,108,547
(165,864) (352,717) (518,581)
I( 158,544 (158,544) -
283,747 306,219 589,966
37,779 57,739 95,518
(5,986) (8,250) (14,236)
31,793 49,489 81,282
(1,990) 7,509 5,519
« ) (211 6,120 5,909
160 160
4,441 38,222 42,663
317,780 407,719 725,499
(115,112 (158,911) (274,023
(71,334) (73,933) (145,267)
(17) (42) (59)
131,317 174,833 306,150
66 66
131,317 174,899 306,216
(47,528)
H 3 258,688
8,291 12,574 20,865
6,012 16,850 22,862
2022 12 31
12,003,909 22,160,093 (386,167) 33,777,835
8,092 8,092
149,698
H 52
33,927,533
(11,093,700)  (20,497,824) 386,167  (31,205,357)
i
(47,725)
(31,253,082)
H 52
815,000 1,597,393 2,412,393
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( )
2021 12 31
259,517 748,497 1,008,014
(140,954) (289,073) (430,027)
I ) 136,984 (136,984) -
255,547 322,440 577,987
38,344 60,377 98,721
(7.389) (11,004) (18,392)
30,956 49,373 80,329
6,497 7,744 14,241
« ) (2,476) 17,511 15,035
1 1
4,471 20,672 34,143
294,995 426,751 721,746
(104,046) (156,229) (260,275)
(64,790) (101,096) (165,886)
(48) (66) (114)
126,111 169,360 205,471
409 409
126,111 169,769 295,880
(53,944)
241,936
7,758 12,039 19,797
6,521 20,423 26,944
2021 12 31
10,419,215 18,612,453 (105,540) 28,926,128
8,207 8,297
143,027
29,069,155
(0631,167)  (17,059,875) 105,540 (26,585,502)
(62,294)
(26,647,796)
703,422 1,384,883 2,083,305

262/509
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1 MOF
2022 12 31
MOF
( )
MOF
MOF
( )
MOF
( )
MOF

MOF
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35.29% 2021 12 31 35.29%
MOF
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
913,436 9.58% 797,193 9.69%
333,078 3.49% 324,619 3.94%
23
4,377 0.02% 4,018 0.02%
(MOF ) 4 0.00% 4 0.00%
1,732 0.36% 1,286 0.26%
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
32,424 2.92% 28,513 2.83%
() 0.01% (50) 0.01%
1,382 1.45% 1,133 1.15%
103 1.87% 126 0.88%
12 31
2022 2021
% %
0.00-9.00 0.00-9.00
0.0001-4.43 0.01-0.80

42
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2022 12 31
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40.03% 2021 12 31 40.03%
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
14,012 0.07%
31,747 0.33% 52,357 0.64%
11,745 0.05% 38,090 0.17%
31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
1,077 0.10% 1,787 0.18%
(395) 0.08% (616) 0.14%
3 0.05% 23 0.16%
12 31
2022 2021
% %
3.65
215-5.15 2.154.38

264/509
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12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
120,662 19.13% 88,842 40.66%
61,552 12.30% 123271 27.58%
6,049 19.69% 4,003 18.21%
46,008 3.92% 27,577 3.29%
31,468 0.17% 20,935 0.13%
851,275 8.93% 736,027 8.94%
122,269 4.97% 79,144 4.88%
91,971 27.56% 68,168 23.42%
5,604 18.08% 2,747 14.21%
6,155 14.06% 9,909 27.50%
3,032 0.01% 4,159 0.02%
2,000 0.45% 2,000 0.56%
1,239 0.38% 1,800 0.59%
31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
20,359 1.84% 20,143 2.00%
(2,918) 0.56% (1,473) 0.34%
699 12.67% 1,887 13.25%
4,194 70.98% 3,061 20.36%
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©)

2022 12 31

6.72% 2021 12 31 6.72%
( )

( )

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

12 31
2022 2021
% %
-0.90- 2,50 0.00-4.05
-025-950  -0.52-4.00
0.00- 7.15 0.02 - 5.00
2.65- 4.40 2.55- 3.89
0.00- 6.15 0.00 - 4.90
0.00-5.98 0.00 - 9.00
0.00- 3.99 0.23 - 3.04
-020-603  -0.43-345
0.00- 6.26 0.02 - 5.00
2.00-4.23 2.03- 4.00
0.0001 - 3.99 0.00 - 3.99
484 484
SSF
SSF
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
41,549 3.54% 43,755 5.22%
78,773 0.31% 65,415 0.30%
1,250 0.28% 1,250 0.35%
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
29 0.00% 32 0.00%
(2,798) 0.54% (2,226) 0.52%

266/509
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12 31
2022 2021
% %
245-4.30 2.58-3.90
0.45- 4.26 0.46 - 4.26
484 484
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
83,895 16.77% 84,863 18.99%
601 0.01% 365 0.00%
288 0.21% 102 0.08%
32 32
15,881 0.65% 14,079 0.87%
798 0.24%
2,247 0.01% 1,857 0.01%
15 0.00% 986 0.20%
2,866 0.87% 2,034 0.67%
10 0.00% 16 0.00%
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12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
1,484 0.13% 1,440 0.14%
100 1.69% 1 0.00%
1,941 2.03% 1,777 1.80%
150 0.35% 94 0.30%
(512) 0.10% (368) 0.09%
(1,655) 11.63% (321) 1.75%
(354) 0.13% (242) 0.09%
12 31
2022 2021
% %
0.30-668  1.21-365
000  000-368
0.00-413  0.00-512
1.25
001-185  0.30-185
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
1,043 0.01%
H H
H H
24 0.00% 16 0.00%
2,664 0.01%

2 0 2 0
0 A 0 A

2 0 2 0
0 A 0 A

4 0.00% 4 0.00%

268/509
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9.57

31 11.97
( )

2021 12 31

2022 8 29
2021
8 CBIRC

2022 12 31
2021 12 31
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12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
21 0.00%
© 0.00% 0 0.00%
12 31
2022 2021
% %
3.65- 4.60
0.00- 1.65 0.00-0.72
0.25-1.85
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 10.40
CSRC
2022 12 31 17.66 2021 12
12 31
2022 2021
11.84 15.44
2022 12 31
2021
2021 11.94
15.44
CBIRC
95,327 12,792
CBIRC

4,085

269/509
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12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
7,342 0.03% 6,319 0.03%
23
7,500 1.70% 7,500 2.08%
12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
(279) 0.05% (240) 0.06%
2 A
2022 2021
% %
0.00 - 5.00 0.00- 5.00
484-532 4.84-532

270/509
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12 31
2022 2021

(%) (%)
120,662 19.13% 88,842 40.66
61,552 12.30% 123,271 2758
6,049 19.69% 4,003 18.21
87,557 7.47% 71,332 8.52
46,523 0.25% 20,935 0.13
2,129,536 22.35% 1,910,196 2321
122,293 4.97% 79,160 4.88
91,971 27.56% 68,168 23.42
5,604 18.08% 2,747 14.21
6,155 14.06% 9,909 27.50
107,933 0.43% 118,001 0.54
1,736 0.36% 1,290 0.26
10,750 2.40% 10,750 2.99
1,239 0.38% 1,800 0.59
4 0.00% 4 0.00

12 31
2022 2021

(%) (%)
53,910 4.86 50,475 5.01
(6,457) 1.25 (4,605) 1.07
805 14.59 2,036 14.30
4,194 70.98 3,061 20.36
1,382 145 1,133 1.15
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41,
D
/
)
WMPs WMPs
WMPs WMPs WMPs
2022 12 31 WMPs 2,004,687 2021
12 31 2,110,935 WMPs 1,933,155
2021 12 31 : 2,072,533 2022 12 31
WMPs 5,742 2021 6,129
WMPs
WMPs 2022 12 31
2021 12 31 14,238
6.42 WMPs 426
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
WMPs
2022 12 31 423,668 (2021 12 31
463,451 ) 2022
1,556 (2021 1,530 )
WMPs
2022 12 31
73,497 2021 12 31 80,229

272/509
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42,
/ 2022 12
31 5,317 2021 12 31
5,333 31
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
1,929 1,961
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
31,744 21,567
383,897 438,333
415,641 459,900
702,237 414,934
797,219 743,594
329,420 304,238
167,876 165,639
2,412,393 2,088,305
CBIRC (2013 1 1 )
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
( ) 12 31
2022 2021

1,186,585 1,178,909

273/509



28
)
31 1,095,330
16
12 31
MOF
2022 12 31
2021 12 31 63,405
2022 12 31

140

43,779
12

43

2022 12 31

274/509
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12 31
2022 2021
44,352 33,407
3,565 4,749
47,917 38,156
2022 12 31
(2021 12 31 36,033
1,218,412 2021 12
2022 12 31 2021
51,367
3 5
2021 12 31



8.7

2022 12 31
(2021 12 31 102,388 )
6,706
91,802 2021 12 31 95,682
2022 12 31
8,850 (2021 12 31 9,691

2022 12 31
11,883 2021 16,542

2022 12 31 42
1,769 (2021 12 31 707 )

2022 12 31
29,000 2021 12 31

275/509

9,736
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

0oooood
101,538
2021 12 31
8.7
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PD LGD EAD
IFRS 9

PD LGD EAD

12 12m PD PD

12 12m EAD EAD
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LGD

LGD
LGD

IFRS 9
30

IFRS 9

90

278/509



2022 12 31
2023
4.50 5.50

12 31

DCF

PD LGD

2023

GDP

3.50

12

10%
5%

279/509

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

CPl PP
PD LGD
2022
2021 12 31
10%
DCF
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12 31

2022 2021
2,481,950 2,246,796
630,885 218,500
500,330 446,944
30,715 21,978
1,172,187 837,637
0) 18,982,886 16,454,503
383,048 328,769
(ii) 7,306,000 6,372,522
(iii) 1,697,405 1,392,601
76,368 77,881
33,261,774 28,398,221
(iv) 2,384,342 2,068,034

35,646,116 30,466,255

2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
11,726,113 21,104 11,747,217
211,587 211,587
221,992 221,992
11,726,113 454,683 12,180,796
(377,699) (186,959) (564,658)
11,348,414 267,724 11,616,138
2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,433,212 25,819 7,450,031
76,848 76,848
49,070 49,070
7433212 151,737 7,584,949
(160,098) (58,103) (218,201)

7,273,114 93,634 7,366,748

280/509
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( ) 2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
9,588,174 16,422 9,604,596
203,289 203,289
209,519 209,519
9,588,174 429,230 10,017,404
(336,129) (191,135) (527,264)
9,252,045 238,095 9,490,140
( ) 2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,071,624 7,071,624
49,781 49,781
36,264 36,264
7,071,624 86,045 7,157,669
(163,988) (29,318) (193,306)
6,907,636 56,727 6,964,363
(i)
( ) 2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,324,788 7,324,788
347 347
1,300 1,300
7,324,788 1,647 7,326,435
(19,150) (1,285) (20,435)
7,305,638 362 7,306,000
( ) 2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
6,389,720 6,389,720
548 548
1,281 1,281
6,389,720 1,829 6,391,549
(17,764) (1,263) (19,027)

6,371,956 566 6,372,522

281/509
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(iv)

(v) 2022 12 31

(vi)

2021 12 31
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2022 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,696,481 400 1,696,881
507 507
17 17
1,696,481 924 1,697,405
2021 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,390,789 399 1,391,188
1,471 1,471
32 32
1,390,789 1,902 1,392,691
2 3

282/509
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12 31
2022 2021
(%) (%)
607,201 50 313,248 31
2,953,442 24.3 2,383,014 23.8
1,645,878 135 1,325,589 13.2
1,663,666 136 1,427,512 14.3
1,784,698 14.7 1,477,841 14.8
2,686,130 221 2,297,775 23.0
407,763 34 367,382 3.7
410,068 34 406,823 4.1
12,158,846 100.0 9,999,184 100.0
43 a7
1,777,354 235 1,705,450 23.9
1,588,312 21.0 1,514,233 21.2
1,083,299 14.3 1,033,741 14.5
1,308,100 17.3 1,187,096 16.6
1,561,455 20.7 1,451,317 20.3
226,719 30 225,328 32
18,593 0.2 19,356 0.3
7,563,875 100.0 7,136,568 100.0

19,722,721 17,135,752
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12 3
2022 2021
(%) (%)
2,386,103 19.8 2,145,617 215
2,107,478 17.3 1,694,879 17.0
1,768,004 145 1,507,059 151
1,184,206 9.7 1,054,517 10.5
891,470 7.3 876,407 8.8
874,684 72 719,530 7.2
827,723 6.8 574,187 5.7
928,185 7.6 446,486 4.5
361,175 3.0 303,347 3.0
223,745 18 203,937 2.0
605,983 50 473,218 4.7
12,158,846 100.0 9,999,184 100.0
5,346,608 70.7 5,242,297 73.4
577,522 7.6 469,498 6.6
210,850 28 193,706 2.7
647,651 86 626,783 8.8
781,244 10.3 604,284 8.5
7,563,875 100.0 7,136,568 100.0
19,722,721 17,135,752
2022 12 31
1
1 5 5
3,530,142 1,210,988 2,121,511 6,862,641
727,408 526,599 1,036,344 2,290,351
1,412,521 589,521 6,297,040 8,299,082
282,640 132,282 1,855,725 2,270,647

5,952,711 2,459,390 11,310,620 19,722,721

2021 12 31
1
1 5 5
2,307,472 860,788 1,824,122 4,992,382
667,336 466,119 777,262 1,910,717
1,279,772 587,215 6,096,590 7,963,577
386,734 118,536 1,763,806 2,269,076

4,641,314 2,032,658 10,461,780 17,135,752

284/509
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4 0)
( ) 2022 12 31
31 o1 361
30 ) 360 3 3
11,058 6,758 14,117 6,548 3,695 42,176
11,931 3,978 6,073 9,263 1,141 32,386
38,066 30,496 31,125 24,384 6,450 130,521
822 223 3,189 2,389 1,133 7,756
61,877 41,455 54,504 42,584 12,419 212,839
( ) 2021 12 31
31 o1 361
30 90 360 3 3
7,313 4,388 10,949 4,431 4318 31,399
5,017 2,953 7,569 9,031 1,876 26,446
30,388 21,419 29,563 22,740 7,734 111,844
1,922 959 4,766 4,684 2,901 15,232
44,640 29,719 52,847 40,886 16,829 184,921
(i) 1
5
( ) 12 31
2022 2021
161,691 141,243
109,371 104,539
271,062 245,782
6
12
2022 12 31
19,625 2021 12 31 18,307
2022 12 31

544 2021 1,984

285/509
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1
182 183
2
()
( ) 2022 12 31
5,664,931 5,664,931
2,060,235 2,060,235
600,420 600,420
(ii) 229,401 507 17 229,925
94,114 94,114
MOF 333,078 333,078
20,340 347 15 20,702
9,002,519 854 7] 9,003,405
( ) 2021 12 31
4,807,834 4,807,834
1,787,588 1,787,588
511,253 1,218 512,471
(ii) 209,339 253 32 209,624
94,122 94,122
MOF 324,619 324,619
28,389 548 18 28,955
7,763,144 2,019 50 7,765,213
i 2022 12 31 2021 12 31

i 2022 12 31 894 2021 12 31 3,634
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

202 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

236,475 1,046 1,479 2,310,130 2,549,130
84,380 68,09 155,947 315,608 6,854 630,885
211,786 87,740 194,248 5,166 1,390 500,330
5414 9579 12175 3394 153 30,715
3872 1,149,79% 9,671 8,848 1,172,187
20,179 681,898 1,063,014 4,435,288 3011518 8,870,989 18,982,886
3,120 4,89 23,260 87,262 43539 236,736 123,250 522,057
361 59,732 137,709 557,500 2398673 4152025 7,306,000
17 55,910 108,643 412,304 508,101 522,430 4,700 1,702,106
3,662 67,982 1,148 3r7 3,041 i 81 76,368
28,091 391,957 2,238,670 1,596,986 6,027,753 696732 13783804 2,438,081 33,472,664
(33 (112,661) (103,477) (684,017) (928) (901,116)
(1,683,473) (125,841) (210,189) (298,685) (140,990) (2/459,178)
(3442 (117,150) (100,850) (100,734) (8,951) (2,628) - (333,755)
(12,039) (49 (209) (12,287)
(9.158) (9,093) (11,057) (1,696) (31,004
(13,768) (16,034) (13,277) (700) (43,779)
(13,399,420) (757,431) (1,489,777) (3.918,388) (5,546,897) (0127 (25,121,040)
(44,857) (517,156) (834,459) (137,878)  (335,048) (1,869,398)
(144,633 (1,923) (2,123) (8478) (53,560) (75464 (286,181)
(15,243,040) (1,182,789) (2,448,699) (5:869,139) (5:891,804) (422,267 (31,057,739)
28091 (14.851,083) 1,055,881 (851,713) 158,614 1075518 13361537 2,438,081 2,414,926

287/509
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2021 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
175,620 244 2,144,842 2,321,406
78,385 29,425 41,606 57,200 11,884 218,500
181,508 115,957 132,768 14,975 1,736 446,944
4,284 4,770 9,233 3,688 3 21,978
3872 810,227 20,738 2,800 837,637
16,555 661,910 817,875 3,243,507 3371483 8343173 16,454,503
4,721 19,554 11,609 81,376 38,219 175,922 128,840 460,241
394 57,670 111,377 593,026 2740193 2,869,862 6,372,522
32 36,490 72,014 294,752 611,990 377,413 4,589 1,397,280
1,836 67,612 309 3,442 959 54 %8 3571 77,881
22,689 326,338 1,801,377 1,200,332 4,415,621 6,792,486 11,768207 2,281,842 28,608,892
(32 (49,889) (31,806) (663,870) (1,616) (747,213)
(1,105,856) (28,658) (139,121) (139,143) (209,588) (1,622,366)
(106,957) (92,770) (80,218) (6,394) (4,766) (291,105)
(15,646) (214) (15,860)
(3918) (4,255) (7,643) (3,305) (216) (19,337)
(18,841) (6.877) (9,156) (1,159) (36,033)
(12,386,137) (603,855) (1,303,745) (3,209,263) (4,388,038) (16,089) (21,907,127)
(84,856) (277,220) (723,814) (126,768)  (294,999) (1,507,657)
(187,376) (4,484) (7,810) (11,122) (42,500) (63212) (2,039) (318,543)
(13,695,047) (901,458) (1,863,604) (4,844,229) (4,779,368)  (379,496) (2039)  (26,465,241)
22,689 (13,368,709) 899,919 (663,272) (428,608) 2,013,118 11,388,711 2,279,803 2,143,651
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202 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

236,475 1,046 1,479 2,310,130 2,549,130
84,380 69,226 157,741 317,966 7,459 636,772
214,343 89,477 197,592 8,002 1,461 510,875
3915 1,152,070 9,713 8,951 1,174,649
69,763 761,628 1,201,723 5,009,884 5913248 13,302,937 26,349,183
3120 4372 2349 93412 78,252 265,549 123,250 591,451
1,308 60,167 146,879 690,483 3111553 5,005,895 9,016,285
121 56,112 110,418 440,003 708,529 610,826 4701 1,930,710
5203 70,871 1172 384 3,147 7 82 80,938
80,310 394,846 2,319,000 1,740,877 6,852,917 082712 19,186,750 2,438,081 42,839,993
(33 (112,845 (104,746) (697.076) (944) (915,644)
(1,683,473) (127.254) (212,647) (302,080) (144,069) (2,469,523)
(3442) (117,966) (101,840) (101,573) (10,676) (2,891) (338,389)
(12,039) (44 (204) (12,287)
(13,775 (16,108) (13482) (701) (44,066)
(13,399,420) (758,152) (1,495,385) (3,974,506) (5:900,104) (10,666) (25,538,233)
(44,980) (520,814) (850,121) (195391)  (386,684) (1,997,990)
(144,633) (1,969) (2,157) (8,677) (54,073) (75,542) (287,051)
(15,243,040) (1,176,941) (2,453,697 (5,947,559) (6306,162) (475,783 (31,603,182)
80,310  (14,848,194) 1,142,149 (712,820) 905,358 3520960 18710967 2,438,081 11,236,811
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2021 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
175,620 944 2,144,842 2,321,406
79,506 29,581 42,282 57,883 12,424 221,676
183,457 118,102 134,679 16,303 1,840 454,381
3915 813,408 20,849 2,826 840,998
66,076 733,902 981,574 3,956,763 5475868 12,476,078 23,690,261
4721 19,856 12,128 88,156 64,095 196,609 128,840 514,405
1,269 58,718 118,783 706,909 3315201 3548575 7,749,455
119 36,686 73,474 316,861 691,188 435,749 4,589 1,558,666
3,821 70,332 362 3,456 992 55 98 3,617 82,733
75,200 330,179 1,875,970 1,371,502 5,265,069 9575134 16658949 2,281,888 37,433,981
(32 (49,991) (32,020) (678,145) (1,597) (761,785)
(1,105,856) (29,446) (140,548) (146,482) (229,627) (1,651,959)
(106,990) (93,027) (80,847) (7,283) (4,967) (293,114)
(15,646) (214) (15,860)
(18,849) (6,898) 9.172) (1,162) (36,080)
(12,386,137) (604,386) (1,308,635) (3,255,950) (4,683,792) (19,066) (22,257,966)
(84,971) (278,957) (740,163) (182,848)  (331,012) (1,617,951)
(187,376) (4,553) (7,854) (11,313) (43,000) (63,288) (2,039) (319,423)
(13,695,047) (899,185) (1,867,939) (4,922,072) (5149,309) (418,547 (2039)  (26954,138)
75,200 (13,364,868) 976,785 (496,347) 342,997 4425825 16240402 2,279,849 10,479,843
2022 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5 5
(1,392) 489 1,558 67 72
2021 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
650 512 448 (202) 1,509
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202 12 31
3
12 1
5 5
272,243 469,123 296,445 36,192 1,290,729
(272.191) (469.332) (294,755) (36,015) (1,291,343)
52 (209) 1,690 177 (614)
2021 12 31
3
12 1
5 5
441,786 354,719 88,158 751 1,241,783
(439,862) (353,358) (68,759) (1,000) (1,215,628)
1,924 1,361 19,399 (249) 26,155
2022 12 31
1
1 5
129,074 125,563 161,004 415,641
702,237 702,237
797,219 797,219
155,951 156,531 16,938 329,420
157,063 10,448 365 167,876
1,941,544 292,542 178,307 2,412,393
2021 12 31
1
1 5
85,271 177,371 197,258 459,900
414,934 414,934
743,594 743,594
153,029 135,151 16,058 304,238
162,515 2,738 386 165,639
1,559,343 315,260 213,702 2,088,305

291/509
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VaR

2022
63 43 70 29
) 110 93 203 11
23 34 62 22
138 112 216 55

2021
53 67 99 36
@ 149 190 289 35
44 83 136 21
150 210 307 87

VaR
VaR
LPR
LPR LPR

LPR
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202 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,451,239 62,050 2,493 33,348 2,549,130
556,431 40,426 3514 30,514 630,885
226,596 201,279 48,943 23,512 500,330

22,433 3,242 2,466 2,574 30,715
1,172,187 1,172,187
18,514,226 310,569 68,962 89129 18,982,886
50,877 10,355 793 1,032 522,057
7,169,086 120,139 4,216 12,559 7,306,000
1,399,333 226,214 6,924 69,635 1,702,106
69,338 3,132 2,768 1,130 76,368
32,090,746 977,406 141,079 263433 33,472,664
(899,455) (1,66) (901,116)

(2,390,553) (30,949) (26,589) (1,087)  (2.459,178)
(78,693) (191,969) (40,088) (23,005) (333,755)
(12,243) (44) (12,287)
(23,656) (2,083) (2,019) (3,246) (31,004)
(11,855) (23.671) (8,253) (43,779)

(24,461,622) (581,718) (30,946) (46,754)  (25,121,040)

(1,559,352) (253,818) (20,772) (35456)  (1,869,398)

(267,757) (15,043) (2,137) (1,244) (286,181)
(29,705,186)  (1,099,251) (122,595) (130,706)  (31,057,738)

2,385,560 (121,845) 18,484 132,727 2,414,926

146,496 119,764 4,936 (120,394) 150,802

2,149,291 213,226 12,193 37,683 2,412,393
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( ) 2021 12 31
( (
) ) )
2,241,015 61,233 1,142 18,016 2,321,406
148,782 49,451 2,561 17,706 218,500
152,884 218,378 43,509 32,173 446,944
18,053 1,175 1,805 945 21,978
837,637 837,637
15,985,155 344,323 60,014 65011 16,454,503
446,980 10,933 677 1,651 460,241
6,307,943 49,929 9,991 4,659 6,372,522
1,151,033 197,730 2,756 45,761 1,397,280
69,258 5,315 2,528 780 77,881
27,358,740 938,467 124,983 186,702 28,608,892
(745,597) (1,616) (747,213)
(1,572,836) (17,571) (24,877) (7.082)  (1,622,366)
(67,315) (178,291) (26,842) (18,657) (291,105)
(15,860) (15,860)
(14,397) (2,290) (2,164) (486) (19,337)
(20,302) (9,950) (5,781) (36,033)
(21,373,264) (459,099) (32,650) (42,114)  (21,907,127)
(1,175,836) (229,994) (36,114) (65,713)  (1,507,657)
(294,746) (19,984) (1,508) (2,305) (318,543)
(25,280,153) (917,179) (124,155) (143,754)  (26,465,241)
2,078,587 21,288 828 42,948 2,143,651
154,772 8,789 23,045 (35,288) 151,318
1,799,496 245,491 10,216 33,102 2,088,305
5%
( ) 202 12 31 2021 12 31
5% (2,266) 629 (3,317) 186
5% 2,266 (629) 3,317 (186)
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PBOC
2015 12 24 PBOC 2019 8 16
PBOC LPR
LPR
) 202 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,290,703 1,479 256,948 2,549,130
145,656 155,047 313,789 6,714 9,679 630,885
215,067 94572 184,103 3,808 2,780 500,330
30,715 30,715
1,148,899 9,648 8,823 4817 1,172,187
4,368,066 2,991,024 10,389,935 780,984 409,853 43,024 18,982,886
4,712 27,798 89,739 36,243 204,647 158,918 522,057
54,222 125,806 502,088 2,378,345 4,110,472 135,067 7,306,000
67,249 125,564 394,577 575,672 518,612 20,432 1,702,106
76,368 76,368
8,294,574 3,529,459 11,884,533 3,781,766 5,243,584 738,748 33,472,664
(109,923 (102,708) (678,938) (9,547) (901,116)
(1,800,732) (206,070) (295,798) (138,920 (17,658) (2,459,178)
(120,034 (100,254) (100,017) (8,851) (2572 (2,027) (333,755)
449 (204) (12,039) (12,287)
(31,004) (31,004)
(13,749) (15,924) (13,198) (699) (209) (43,779)
(14,110,126) (1,436,280) (3,803,857) (5,378,056) (9,115) (383,606) (25,121,040)
(56,638) (536,873 (819,900) (110,345) (335,028) (10,614) (1,869,398)
(286,181) (286,181)
(16,211,202) (2,398,109) (5,711,752) (5,637,075) (346,715) (752,885) (31,057,738)
(7,916,628) 1,131,350 6,172,781 (1,855,300) 4,896,869 (14,137) 2,414,926
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( ) 2021 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,032,222 289,184 2,321,406
102,908 41,099 56,447 11,503 6,543 218,500
182,417 116,368 132,215 14,866 1,078 446,944
21,978 21,978
809,716 20,666 2,786 4,469 837,637
4,316,155 2,451,794 8,483,615 709,928 453,690 39,321 16,454,503
18,736 16,130 84,068 32,078 156,612 152,617 460,241
57,004 104,328 543,312 2,676,021 2,869,265 122,592 6,372,522
64,522 96,496 277,788 566,997 372,294 19,183 1,397,280
77,881 77,881
7,583,680 2,846,881 9,580,231 4,011,393 3,851,861 734,846 28,608,892
(48,518) (31,000) (659,796) (1,263) (6,636) (747,213)
(1,127,742) (138,506) (138,393) (205,554) (12,171) (1,622,366)
(106,779) (99,692) (78,797) (3,046) (1,295) (1,496) (291,105)
(214) (15,646) (15,860)
(19,337) (19,337)
(18,838) (6,871) (9.147) (1,157) (20) (36,033)
(12,926,703) (1,254,524 (3,120,029) (4,240,028) (16,046) (349,797) (21,907,127)
(94,101) (294,188) (701,558) (114,560) (294,999) (8,251) (1,507,657)
(318,543) (318,543)
(14,322,681) (1,824,781) (4,707,720) (4,565,608) (312,554) (731,897) (26,465,241)
(6,739,001) 1,022,100 4,872,511 (554,215) 3,539,307 2,949 2,143,651
100 12
( ) 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
+100 (43,292) (59,146) (37,792 (39,264)
-100 43,292 59,146 37,792 39,264
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2012 CBIRC

Tierl Tierl

2014 4 CBIRC

2017 1 CBIRC

CBIRC

2022 12 31 CBIRC

Tierl
Tierl

Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2

Tierl 2.5%
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Tierl

@
)
@
@
©)

4

©)

(6)
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5% 6% 8%

1%

CBIRC
( )
CBIRC
2022 2021
12 31 12 31
11.15% 11.44%
13.37% 13.46%
17.20% 17.13%
2,228,372 2,053,737
(12,977) (11,257)
2,215,395 2,042,480
439,878 359,881
2,655,273 2,402,361
760,728 655,506
3,416,001 3,057,867
19,862,505 17,849,566
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)
1
Tierl Tierl Tierl Tierl
2 Tierl ( ) (
Tierl )
3 Tierl ( )
Tierl
4 Tierl ( Tierl )
5 Tier2 Tier2 ( )
( Tier2 )
(6
46
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
46.1
« )
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
46.2
1
2 1
3
46.3
(
MOF
)
( ) 2022 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 6,878,808 7,040,956 76954 6,878,799 85,203
487 477 484,583 53,371 431,212
( ) 2021 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 5953781 6,107,442 32976 5961771 112,695

428,856 435,680 47,865 387,815
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2022 12 31
1 2 3

26,850 26,850
2,512 2512
1,353 1,353
30,715 30,715
1,344,182 1,344,182
1,344,182 1,344,182
5,933 120,665 126,598
17,988 17,988
5,345 445 5,790
5,493 5,493
204,056 1,041 205,097
8,120 12,475 91,307 111,902
543 25,900 21,496 47,939
1,210 40 1,250
26,644 381,569 113,844 522,057
213,030 1,473,792 1,686,822
10,583 10,583
1,230 3471 4,701
214,260 1,484,375 3471 1,702,106
240,904 3,240,841 117,315 3,599,060
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2022 12 31
1 2 3

(12,039) (12,039)
(248) (248)

(12,039) (248) (12,287)
(26,253) (26,253)
(871) (871)
(3,880) (3,880)
(31,004) (31,009
(27,340) (27,340)

(70,383) (248) (70,631)
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2021 12 31
1 2 3
20,116 20,116
1,141 1,141
721 721
21,978 21,978
502,748 502,748
502,748 502,748
8,225 119,912 128,137
21,389 21,389
3,948 1,331 5,279
4,261 316 4,577
154,585 274 154,859
13,501 12,063 79,112 104,676
251 19,305 19,455 39,011
2,273 40 2,313
32,459 328,941 98,841 460,241
162,072 1,213,723 1,375,795
16,896 16,896
1,165 3,424 4,589
163,237 1,230,619 3,424 1,397,280

195,696 2,084,286 102,265 2,382,247
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2021 12 31
1 2 3

(15,646) (15,646)

(214) (214)
(15,646) (214) (15,860)
(14,734) (14,734)
(2,366) (2,366)
(2,237) (2,237)
(19,337) (19,337)
(52,306) (52,306)

(87,289) (214) (87,503)
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2022 1 1

2022 12 31

2021 1 1

2021 12 31

I

I
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2022
98,841 3424 (214)
33,970 38
(19,401) @
&2
434 243 (34)
(233)
113,844 3471 (248)
523
2021
102,883 21,119 (9,770) (73,118)
32,827 1,792
(37,436) (19,277) 9,570 73,553
567 659 (14) (435)
(869)
98,841 3,424 (214)
783
/ .4
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47.1

12023 2 20 2022
2023 2 22

22023 3 30

25,309

67,557

2022 12 31
77,766

2022 12 31

47.2 Tier2

2023 3 23

Tier2

50 3.49%
2022 12 31
( .36)
37)
2022 12 31
10)
70
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1 0.2222
2023 Tier2
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12 31
2022 2021
2,548,564 2,320,907
609,195 198,745
83,389 96,504
583,079 531,065
30,715 21,978
1,169,113 832,216
18,899,856 16,377,896
347,744 320,106
7,267,567 6,337,768
1,650,807 1,337,218
51,521 51,523
2,105 1,073
141,159 140,675
148,699 142,180
131,534 127,195
33,665,047 28,837,049
901,077 747,101
2,475,046 1,636,419
263,009 233,468
12,039 15,646
31,004 19,337
35,484 30,456
25,120,347 21,906,047
1,936
1,828,305 1,461,094
350,094 388,958

31,018,341 26,438,526
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12 31
2022 2021
349,983 349,983
440,000 360,000
80,000 80,000
360,000 280,000
173,227 173,229
35,700 34,262
245,235 219,926
381,222 348,955
1,019,630 913,752
1,709 (1,584)
2,646,706 2,398,523
33,665,047 28,837,049

2023 3 30

310/509



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
50 «( )
( )
2021 12 31 349,983 360,000 173229 34262 219926 348955 913752  (1,584) 2,398,523
253,086 253,086
1,438 3,293 4,731
1,438 253086 3293 257,817
80,000 ©) 79,997
25,309 (25,309)
32267 (32,267
(72,376) (72,376)
(17,239) (17,239)
1 an (16)
2022 12 31 349,983 440,000 173227 35700 245235 381,222 1,019,630 1,709 2,646,706
( )
2020 12 31 349,983 320000 173232 25784 195501 309,642 812,626 (78) 2,186,780
243,354 243,354
8,478 (1,506) 6,972
8,478 243354  (1,506) 250,326
40,000 ®3) 39,997
24,335 (24,335)
39313 (39,313)
(64,782) (64,782)
(13,798) (13,798)

2021 12 31 349,983 360,000 173,229 34,262 219,926 348,955 913,752 (1,584) 2,398,523
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 Decemiber 30223
[Amoumin im milfiors of Renminb, unless otheraise stated)

Mote Year ended 31 Decembar
L4 2022 2021

Interest income 1 1,108547 1,008,014
Interest gL 1 {518,581) (430,027}
Met interest income 1 589,966 577.987
Fee and commission income 2 95,518 98,71
Fee and commission expanse 2 (14,236) [18,392)
_Net fee and commission income E B1.282 80,329
Met trading gain 3 5,519 14,241
Met galn on financial investments 4 5,909 15,035
Met gain on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost 160 11
_?E![F[EE{-‘F“"E incomeae 5 42 663 34,143
Operating income T25,499 721,746
Operating expenses [ {274,023) {260,275}
Credit impairment losses B {145,267) (165 846)
Impairment losses on other assots [549) 1114}
Operating profit 306,150 295471
Share of results of associates and jeint ventures &6 409
Profit bafore tax 306,216 255,840
Income tax expense g [47,528) [53,944)
Profit for the year 258,688 141,936
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 259,140 241,183
Non-controlling interests [452) 753
258 588 241,936
Eamnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Bank (exprossed in RMB yuan per share)
— Basic and diluted 11 0.69 0,65

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.

190 | DIEEaRy
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensivelncome

For tha yead ended 31 Dacambser 7027

{Amounts in millions of Remminbi, wlees otherwioe stated)

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Profit for the year 258,688 241,936
Other comprehensive Income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
Fair value changes on debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (16,089} 8,504
Loss allowance on debt instruments at fair value
through ather comprehensive incame 16,717 3,572
Income tax impact for fair value changes and loss allowance on
delyt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive iIncome [516] [2.865)
Forelgn currency translation differences 3,853 [1,724)
Subbotal 3,965 7,487
Iterns that will not be reclassified whsegquently to profit o I
Fair valwe changes on other equity investmants designated at Fair value
thraugh ather comprehensive incame 128 [282)
Incaome tax impact for fair value changes on other equity investments
designated at fair value through ather comprehensive income {33] 115
Subtotal 95 {167)
Other comprehensive incame, net of tax 4,060 7,320
Total comprehensive income for the year 162,748 249,256
Total comprahenshve income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 163,424 248,359
Man-controlling interests {676) B57
162,748 249,156

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemants.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A5 at 31 December 3022
[Amourts i millions of Benminks, anless otheraise shated]

Mote  Asat 31 December
1 2022 2021
Assots ) '
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,549,130 2,321,406
Deposits with banks and ather financial institutions 13 630 ERS 218,500
Priscious metals 83,389 96,504
Placemenis with and loans to banks and other financial institutions 14 500,330 446,944
Derivative financial assets 15 0,715 21,978
Financial assets hold undor resale agreomants. 16 1,172,187 837,637
Loans and advances to customars 17 18,982 886 16,454,503
Financial investments 18
Financial asscts at fair value through profil or ks 522,057 460,241
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 7,306,000 6,372,522
Other debt instrument and other equity investments
at fair value through ather comprehensive income 1,702,108 1,397,280
Investrment in associates and joint ventures 20 8,002 8,297
Praperty and equipmient 21 152,572 153,299
Goodhwill 1,381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 22 149,698 143,027
Other assets 23 13E,105 135,636
Total assets 13,927,533 19,069,155
Limbilities
Borrowings fram central banks 24 901,116 747,213
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 25 2,459,178 1,622,366
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 26 333,755 291,105
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 27 12,287 15,B60
Derivative financial liabilities 15 31,004 19,337
Financial assets soid under repurchase agreements. 2B 43,7719 36,033
Due 1o customers 29 25,121,040 21,907,127
Dividends payable 10 1,936 -
Debt securities issued 30 1,B69,398 1,507,657
Deferred tax linbdlities 22 a 655
Other Habdithes 31 A79,580 500,443
Total liabilities 31,253,082 26,647,796
192 | (i snl
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A at 31 Degernber 2002
{Amaunty v milkans af Resmink, wieis atherwiestated)

Note As at 31 December

1) 2022 2021
Equity

Ordinary shares 32 349,983 349,983
Qiher equity instruments 33 430,000 360,000
Proferonce shares 80,000 80.000
Perpetual bonds 360,000 280,000
Capital reserve 34 173,426 173,428
Investment revaluation reserve a5 35,354 34,927
surplus reserve E1] 246,763 220,792
Genetal reteree a7 388,600 351,616
Retained earnings 1,032,524 925,955
Forcign currency translation rescrva 1,761 [2.096)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 2,668 412 2414605
MWon-contralling interasts 6,039 B, 754
Total equity 2,674,451 2,421,359
Total equity and llabilities 33,927,533 29,069,155

Approved and autharized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023,

[d7

Chalrman Viee Chairman

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these concolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year snoed 31 Decembaer 2022
[Armounts i millions of Renminks, anless otheraise stated]

Farngn
= e Eaiil] L

oy Ordaay o el renkEm Sn el bbwd i mrtileg

W (U T e i ] www bl ek T
A W Dt HQA WMl W R Wiy mwm HLiW R B L LY Ll
Frolit ko the pei = = = = = = Bue = Thle L
(v cotrhivea Eory - E o ol a Lisr it L] Al
Pial roepaphemvy wcarm for B e - - - Lin] - - o s g Em  RLas
Ll (DTS TIE. By Rkt k1] - [ F] 1 § - = - = = AW 1]
Bgpreprmte b wrgka e L] = = = = Har = g = = =
3 il 1D B T H E - - - . E o ] - . -
Doty gt Sty ot dlden 1] = = . . L = = [FLIM} o FLING
e u - - o - - - i - | - LA
Eaederd prls v ey rdy olien = - = * - . . =] =]
Duham - - ] . " . . " i (ia] (i)
A ot AL Deurmbin 100 Wyl oo R B3 misE LN Ll Ledif il R
s ¥] Decemster HOO HENL 1En TR BESR =i LA DL i L LS F ]
Pt o the i = = = = = = ML = |n bt HUS
Rt comprehersas weorg - - - L - - - [{%r ] 1 U] e
Tidal rocpeherrine wezaran fox I yran - - L = HLIE ILhe e LA
Lot petbnstn v pots ok i 1] = am 1 ] = | - - nw ] L]
g 1 sk IR ] - - - Al - (ST - - -
Approgeatn 13 fraerd Hesre o - - - - oE [ ] - - -
Dorchiniet s D B Sy ity hoicn ] » % - H e * M (2% ]
Dmvcmits ot £ st ot ok ] - = - = - S Lt ] = IEN | = 1178
Techerc AN Kot ST F3p talieny - B - . - - 2 i ~ ] =
A p2 0L Cwrwmbye 2201 M MO 1NN W W Nlile KN g Ll [ Te R

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For tha yead ended 31 Decembaer 2012
{Amounts in millions of Romminbi, wnless otherwicestaned)

Note Year ended 31 December

w 2022 2021
Cash flews from operating activities
Profit betare tax 306,216 295,880
Adjustments for;
Amartization of intangilyle assets and other assets 3,434 2,322
Depreciation of property, equipment and right-ol-use assets 17,883 17,475
Credit impalrment losses 145,267 165,8E6
Irmpairment losies on other assets 59 114
Interest income anising from investment securities [277.557) (252, 804)
Interest expense on debl securities lisued 45,140 39,188
Revaluation (gain)fless on financial |nstruments at fair valee
through profit or loss [5.647) 4,019
Mel gain on investment secunithes [BaAT) [1,285)
Share of results of associates and jont ventures [{c] {a09)
Met gakn on disposal and stocktake of property, equipment and
other assets [7a7) (921)
Met forelgn exchange [gain)/loss [2.547) 16,877
230,598 286,342

Met changes in nparating assets and apesating liabilitios:
Het (increase]/decrease in balances with central banks, deposits with banks and

other fimancial institutions i, 340) 313,337
Met decrease/[Inorease) in placements with and loans to banks and
othar financial institutions 17,681 (4,552
Net [Increasa)fdecrease in financial assets held under resale agreements {16,796) 43, 919
Met increase in loans and advances to customers (2.598,793) |2,036,482)
Met increase in borrowings from central banks 150,974 10,483
Met incressef|decrease) in placements fram banks and
ather finandial institutions 41,292 (99,232)
Met increase in due to custormers and deposits from banks and
ather finanoial mstitutbons 3,972,068 1,712,770
[Increasa)/decrease in other aperating assets {54, 148) 173,587
Increase/[decrease] in ather aperating liabilities 92,784 [116,370)
Cash from operations 1,391,320 298,362
Income tax pakd {69,317) [58,747)
Met cash from operating activities 1,322,003 239,615
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
[Asmoumti in millions of Renminbl anleds otheradee stated)

Mote  Year ended 31 December
L 202z 2021
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash recelved from disposal/redemption of investment securities 2,006,183 1,619,583
Cash received from investment income 266,576 247,470
Cash recelved from disposal of investment in associates and jaint ventures 1,685 2,793
Cash received from disposal of property, equipment and other assots 5,857 5,790
Cash paid for purchase of investment securitios (3,308,162} (2,178,694}
Acquisition of non-controlling ntarests 137} -
Increase in investment in assoclates and joint ventures {2,000) [2,146])
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assets |22,092) [26,033)
Met cash used in investing activities (1,051,990} [331,237)
Cash flows from financing activities
Contribution from isswes of othar equity instruments B, 000 40,000
Cash payments far transaction cost of ather equity instruments issued 131 13
Cash received from debt securities issued 2,035,552 1,635,127
Cash payrments for transaction cost of debt securities issued (18} 39)
Repayments of debt securities issued |1,656,608) (1,497,003}
Cash payments for interest on debt securities issued (68,079) [40,439)
Cash paymants for principal portion and interest porthon of lease liability {4,946) [5,010)
Capital contribution from non-controfling mierests —_ a7
Dividends paid (87,681) (78,677
Met cash from financing activities 298,217 54,003
Met increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 568,230 (37,619)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 lanwary 1,124,762 1,175,153
Cifect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 12,641 (12,772}
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 38 1,705,633 1,124,762
ket cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 775,043 717,022
Intarest pald [389,721) (342, 465)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Foor ghae yeasr ended 31 Ccambaer 20X
{Amawnts in millions of Rerminbi, wiless atherwise szated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™) is the successor entity to the Agriculiural Bank of China (the
“Predecessor Entity”) which was a wholly state-owned commuerdial bank approved Tor setup by the People's Bank of
China (the "PROCT) and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC™), On 15 January
2009, the Bank was established after the completion of the financial restructuring of the Predecessor Entity, The
Bank's establishment was authorized by the PBOC, The Bank was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 20010 and 16 luly 2010, respectively,

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo, BOOOZH 111000001 issued by the China Banking and
Insyrance Regulatory Commission (the "CBIACY), and business license Mo, 911100001000054748 issued by
Beijing Administration of Industry and Commaerce. The registered office of the Bank is located at No, 6%
Jiamguomen Mei Avenue, Dongeheng District, Beijing, the PRC.

Thir principal activithes of the Bank and its subsidipries (collectively, the “Group®) inclede Renminbi ("RMB™) and foreign
curnency depasits, leans, clearing ard settloment services, assets custodian serices, fund management, financial leasing
sorvices, insurance senvices and other services as approved by relevant regulators, and the provision of related services
by its overseas establishmants as approved by tho nespective local regulators,

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and i15 subsidiaries operating in Chinese mainkind are referred
o as the “Domestic Operations™, Branches and subsidiaries registered and operating outside Chineseé mainland are
referred to as the "Overseas Dperations”,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with Internatkonal Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFR5S"), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board [“IASB"). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements Include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for this financial year and the comparative period.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cemain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Histarical eost i generally based on the fai value of consideration given in exchange for a4sets and that is
received (o In some circumstances the amount expected to be paid] with respect o liabilites.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFASs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also reguires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s

accounting policles. The areas invelving a higher degree of judpement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consalidated financial statements are disclosed in Naote (L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Asnoinas im mdllices of Renminbs, anless ofheeracise sated]

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1  Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the standards effective in 2022 relevant to and adapted by the
Group

The Growp has adopted the following amendments Lo the IFRSs issued by the LASE that are first
effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2022,

Maotoed
{1)  Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework ]
{2] Amendments to AS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract [ii)
(3] Amendments to 145 16 Froperty, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds (i)
before Intended Use
4]  Amendments to IFRS 1, Annual Impravements to (FRS Standards (i)
IFRE G, IFRS 156 and 1AS 41 2018-2020

() Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference te the Conceptual Framework

The amendments have updated IFRS 3 Business combinations, to refer to the 2018 Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting, and added an exception to the requirement to refer o the 2018
Conceptual Framework to determinate what constitetes an asset or a liabllity in 8 business
combinatien. The exception relates to llabilities and contingent liabilities that would have been
within the scope of 1A5 37 or IFRIC 21. The Board has also clacified that the acguirer should not
recognize contingent assets, as defined in IAS 37, at the acquisition date. The adoption of the
amendments does nat have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

(i)  Amendments to [AS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling e Contract

The amendments clarify the meaning of ‘costs to fulfil & contract’ for the purposes of assessing
whether a conbract Is onerous, In particoular, the amandments explain that such costs comprise the
Incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly 1o
fulfilling contracts, The amendments also clarify that. before a separate prowvision for an onerous
contract is established, an entity recognizes any impairmant loss that has occurned on assets used in
fulfilling the contract, rather than merely on assets dedicated 1o that contract, The adoption of the
amendments doas not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

{iil}  Amerndmeants to [AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any procecds received from selling items preduced while the entity is preparing the
asset for its intended use, The amendments also clarify that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is
functioning properly’ when it assesses the technical and physical perfarmance of the asser, and thay
the financial performance of the asset is not relevant to this assessment. The adoption of the
amendments does not have a significant impact on the Group's conselidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 Decernbes 3022
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1  Basis of preparation {Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the standards effective in 2022 relevant to and adopted by the
Group (Continued)

{iv) Amendments to [FRS 1, IFR5 @, IFRS 16 and [AS 41 Anaual improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020

The WASE itsued amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and [AS 41: Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020, which provide an aplional relief far the measurement of cumulative
translation differences to certain first-time adopters, darily the types of fees (o be included when
azsessing the derecognition al financial Rability, amend an illustrative example accompanying IFRS
16, "Leases’, and remove the requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring fair value.
The adeption of thete amendments does not have a significant impact on the Groun's consalidated
financial statements.

1.2 Stendords ond amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and hove not
been adopted before thelr effective dates in 2022

The Group has not adopted the following new standards and amendments that have been lssued by
the 1ASE but are not yet effective,

Effecthe far
annual perlods
beginning onor after  Notes
{1} 1FRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 banuary 2023 [{1]
{2} Amendments taIAS 1 and IFRS Distlariie of Aceouming Palicies 1 Jarmiary 2023 {is]
Practice Statement 2
{3 Amendments tolAs B Definitian of Accountirg Extimates Vsnugry 7023 |)
4} AmendmentstolAS 12 Deferned Tax redated 1o Aduets and 1 lanuary 2023 (i)
Liakilities arising Fram a Single
Trantaction
|5/ AmendmentstolFRS 16 Lease Liability im 2 Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024 %
(6]  AmendmemstolA51[2020) Clrssificationof Liabilities a5 Curnent 1lanuary 2024 [wi}
or Man-cument
7] Amendmensto lAS1[2022) Mar-current Lishilithes with Covenamts 1 lanuary 2024 |
il AmendmentstoFRS10andIAS28  Saleor Contributionof Assets Thesdfective die has neow {va)
betweenzn | nvestor andits been dedorred indefinitely

Assocate o Jobst Vesfure

(i) IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. Amendments to
IFRS 17 were sued In June 2020 and December 2021 wo address stakeholder concerns and
Implementation challenges, IFRS 17 sets out a single principle-bazed standard for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts in the financal statements of the
issuers of those contracts.

IFRS 17 showld be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and the
amendments should be applied at the same time. The Group will adopt IFRS 17 from

1 January 2023, The Group will change its accounting policles from the beginning of 2023 and
disclose jis financial statements in accordance with IFRS 17 and its amendments since the first
quarterly report of 2023, Dased on a preliminary assessment, the Group anticipstes thar the
adoption of IFRS 17 and its amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
cansalidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 Decemiber 2022
[Arnoniras im millices of Renminbs, anless ofherassn siated|

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are naot yet effective and have
nat been adopted before their effective dotes in 2022 (Continued)

{ii}  Amendments to IAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Thie amendments clarify that an entity will be required to diselose its "material” aceounting poliey
infarmation as apposed to “signiicant™ accounting palicies and provide additional guldance an how
Lo identify material accounting policy information. The amendments (o IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide additionsl guidance and examples 1o explain and illustrate 1he application of the "'m.lr-:lep-
materinlity process® to accounting policy Information. The Group anticipates that the adoption of
the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statemenis.

{iii} Amendmeants to [AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments now define "accounting estimates” as “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject bo measurement uncertainty” and remowve the definition of “a change in accounting
estimate™. The amendrments also clarify that the effects of a change in an input or a measurement
technique used 1o develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates unless they
result fram the correction of prior period errors, The Group snticipates that the adeption of the
amendrments will not have a sigrificant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

{iv) Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from o
Single Transaction

The amendrments specify how entites should account for deferred tax on transactions such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences on initial recognition, As a result, entities will need to recognize a deferred
tax asset and a deferred tax lizbility for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a
lease and & decommissioning provision, The Group anticipates that the adoption of the
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group®s consolidated financial statements.

(vl  Amendments ta IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments add to the requirements explaining how an entity accounts for a sale and
leaseback after the date of the transaction. The amendments require a seller-lessee to
subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way that it does not recognize
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains, including cases with
variable lease payments in the leaseback. The Group anticipates that the adeption of the
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 33 Decamber 2032
{Amounts in millions of Aeaminbi, wless otherwise sabed)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
i  Basis of preparation {Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant te the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2022 (Continued)

fwil Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants

The amendments to 1AS 1 12|:|2D| concern the f!qu“’!l‘ﬁ!l‘ll! an det Ermining ila |i3h|li|'|' 1% current
or non-current. In particular, the amendments specily the condition of an entity to classify a
liability as non-current requires that a right 1o defer settlement must exist at the end af the
reporting period and have substance, and clarify that classification s wnaffected by
management’s intentions or expoctations about whether the entity will exercise its right to dofer
settlement,

The amendments alsa specily the classiflication of lisbilities that will or may be settbed by istuing an
entity's own equity instruments, When a lability incledes a counterparty conversion aption that
invalves a transfer of the entity's cwn equity instrurmnents, the classification of such lability ks not
aftected only when the conversion opthon |5 recognized separately from the host liabdity as an
Buity companent under IAS 32

The amendments to LAS 1 [2022] specify that enly covenants with which an entity must comply on
or befare the reporting date affect the classification of a liabslity as current or non-current.
Covenants with which the entity must comply after the reporting date (e, future covenants) do not
affect a liakility"s classification at that date. Howewver, an entity is required to disciose information
regarding the risk that the non-current liabdlities subject to future covenants could become
repayable within taehre months after the end of the reporting period.

The 2022 amendments defer the effective date of the 2020 amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024_ if an entity applies one of these two amendments for
an earlier period, the other amendments should also be applied for that period.

The Group anticpates that the adoption of the amendmants will not have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

{wit) Amendments ta IFRS 10 and |AS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an Inconsistency between IFRY 10 and 1AS 28 in the sale and contribution
of assets between an imvestor and Its associate or joint venture.

A full gain or loss is recognized when 3 transaction involves a business. A partial gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if those
Fsoets are in @ subsidiary.

The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not hawe a significant impact on
the Grouwp's consalidated financial statemants,
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Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements
For the yead ended 31 Decemiber 2022
[Amoniras im millices of Renminks, anless ofbaracen iated]

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)
2 Consolidation
Basis of consolldation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries a5 well
as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from s invelvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power aver the entity.

income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
ilatement of pﬂ:rﬂ or leas fram the date af acqubisition or up to the date on which control ceases, respectively.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, where appropriate, to consistently reflect
the accounting policies ol the Group.

‘When merging, all intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset

Mon-controlling Interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the controlling party's
equity therein,

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests i the amount of those interests at initial recognition plas the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Further, total comprehensive income of a
subsidiary is attributed, based on the proportion of their respective holdings, to the equity holders of the Bank
and to the non-controlfing interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

In the Bank's statemant of linancial position, s investrments In subsidisries are stated at cost, less impairment losses,
ary.

Business combinations

Meguisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the surm of the acquisition date fair value
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred or assumed by the Group, and any equity interests
issued by the Group. Acquisition related costs are recognized in the consolldated statement of profit or koss as
incurred.

Al the acquisition date, irmespective of non-centrolling interests, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilibes
and contingent llabMitles assumed are recognized at thekr falr values; except that deferred tax assets or
lizbilithes, and assets or llabilities related to employes benefit arrangements are recognized and measured n
accordance with A5 12 — Income Taxes and 1AS 19 — Employee Benefits, respectively.

Non-controlling Interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and entitle their holders to a
progortionate share of the entity’s net assets In the event of liguidation are accounted for at either fair value

or the non-controfling Interests” proportienate share in the recognized amounts of the acquires’s Identifiable
net assets, The choice of measurement basls is made on a transaction-by-trangaction basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 Decernbes 3022
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2  Consolidation (Continued)
Gaodwill

Goodwill repressents the excess of the cost of an acquisition less the Fair value of the Group's share of the net
identifiable asiets of acquired subsidiaries and associates at the date of acquisition, Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries s presented separately in the consolidated staterment of financial pesition.

For the purpases of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU") or groups of CGUS that is expected 1o benefit from the synergies of the Business combination.

A CGU i the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets of groups of assets.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or mare frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. I the recoverable amount of the CGU, which i the higher afl fair
value less costs to sell and value in wse, is less than its carrying amount, the deficit, reflecting an impairment
loss, is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any geodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the ather
assels of the CGU on a pro-rata basis, based on the carying amount of aach asset in the CGU. Any goodwill
impairment loss is recognized directly in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognived for goodwill is not reversed in subtequent periods.

Investment in assoclote and folnt venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
contractually agree 1o share contral of the arrangement through o separate entity, and have rights te the net
assels of the arrangement based on legal farm, contract terms, and other facts and clrcumstances. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investes but does not
constitute control or [oint contral aver those policy decisions, Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of contral aver an activity, and exists only when the decisions relating te the activity require the unanimeouws
consent of the Group and other parties sharing the control.

The post-acquisition profit or loss of an associate or @ joint venture is incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity methed of accounting. Under the equity method, Investment in an
assoclate or a joint venture Is initlally recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group®s
share of the net assets of the asseclate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of loss of an associate or a
loint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture {which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture], the
Group discontinwes recognizing its share of further loss. Additional loss & recognized only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate or joimt
venture.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group considers whether there are circumstances that indicate the
possibility of impairment of the Groug's Investment in an associate or a joint wenture; when that is the case,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with 145 36 — Impairment
of Assets, as o single asset by comparing its recoverable amownt (the higher of falr value less costs to sell and
value in usa] with its carrging amount, any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in accordance with 1AS 36, to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation {Continued)
lavestment in assoclate and joint venture (Cantinued)

‘Whan an entity in the Group transacts with the Group's disociate of joint venture, profits and losses resulting
from the transaction are recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of the
intencst in the associate or joint venture that are not reloted to the Group. Unrealized losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence af an impairment af the ascet transferred.

3  Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses of financial instruments are caleulated using the effective interest method and
included in the current profit and loss.

The Group uses the effective interest method (o cabculate the interest income and expense of linancial assels
and labilities measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, presented as
“interest income” and “interest expense” respectively. For specific accounting policies, please refer to the Nate
11 B.4 subsequent measurement of financial instruments.

4  Fee and commission income

Fee and comrmission income is recognized when the Group fulfills its performance abligation, either over time
ar at a point in time when a customer obtains control of the service.

For the performance obligations satisfied at a point in tme, the Group recognizes revenue when control ks
passed to the customer at a certain point in time, including insurance agency fee, merchant acquiring service
few, settlement & clearing services and bond underwriting fee, ele. For the performance obligations satisfied
over time, the Group recognizes revenue according to the progress toward satisfaction of the obligation over
the time, incleding consultancy and advisory fee and custodian fee, etc.

5 Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Growp's Domestic Operations is RMB. The presentation currency of the Group
and the Bank is RMB.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencles} are recorded bn the respective functional currency (Le.
the currency of the primary economic environment n which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
forelgn currendes are retranslated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-manetary items carried at falr value
that are denaominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at histosical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary itemns, and on the retranslation of monetary items,
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for the
following:

(il  eachange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investmant in the
Overseas Operations;
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
5  Foreign currency translation (Continued)

{i] changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in fereign currency clasdified as financial
investmaents at fair vakee through other comprehendive income are analyzred between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amartized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the
carrying amount, Tramlation differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized in the
consalidated statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in
other comprehensive inceme.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary iems carried at fair value are included in
the consolidated statement of prafit of boss for the period except fof exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are alo recognized directly in ather
comprehensive Inooms.

For the purpowes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group®s
Owerseas Operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and experdes are translated at eschange rates
at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising, If any, are recognized in other compeehansive income and accurmulated in equity
under the foreign currency transiation reserve and non-cantrolling interests, as appropriate. The accumulated
foreign currency translation resenve related to the Overseas Operations will be reclassificd from equity to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal af all or part of the Overseas Operations,

6 Taxation
Income tax compdrises eurrent and defarred tox.
Current tox

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
corsolidated statement of profit of loss because it excludes iberms of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's Babllity for current tax b
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting persod.,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax s recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognired for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it s probable that taxable
prafits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized, Deferred tax
assets and llabilities are not recognized for temporary differance refated to goodwlill or the initial recognition
|other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabikties in a transaction that affects neither
tawable profit nor accounting profit,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
& Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continuad)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differances associated with investments in subsidiaries,
amociates and joint ventures, except where the Group i able to control the timing of reversal of the temparary
dilference and it B probable that the lemporary difference will nat reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assety arising from deductible temperary differences sssaciated with sueh investments and interesty are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sulficient taxable profits against which to wtilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected Lo reverse in the foreseeable luture.

The carrying amount al deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that the termposary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future or it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all ar part of the aswet to be utilized,

Deferred tay assets and lisbilities are measured at the tax rates that are expacted to apply in the periad in which the
Hability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rate (and tax lows) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period,

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow frem
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recaver or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and labilities. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tay is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respeciivily,

Deferred tax assets and liabdlities are offset when these is a legally enforceable right o set off current tax
assels against eurrent tax liabilities, when they relate to income toxes levied by the same toxntion authority
and the Group intends to settle it current tax assets and labilties on a net basis,

Value-added Taxes ("WAT")

The Group malnly provides financial services such as loan sendces, direct-charge financlal sendces, insurance
sarvices and transfer of financial commodities, which are subgect to the VAT rate of 6%. For other services, VAT
& calculated and paid in accordance with the tax rates stipulated in the tax law.

Pursuant to the “Clroular of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Further
Clarification of Relevant Policies Applicable to the Financlal Sector in the Comprehensive Implementation
of tha VAT Pilot Programs” {Cal Shul [2016] Mo. 46), the Bank elected to adopt a simplified methodology to
caloulate VAT at 3% on interest income derived from loans granted to farming households, rural enterprises
and other rural institutions by county-level sub-branches included in the Bank's pllot programs of the
County Area Banking Division, including those under the Banks prowincial branches in provinces,
autanomaous reglons, municipalities directly under the central government and municipalities with
independant budgetary status as well as those under the Xinjlang Production and Construction Corps
Branch.

In accordance with the Ministry of Finance (the *MOF"] and the State Administration of Taxation's “Circular
regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for Financial, Real Estate Developmaent and Education Ancillary and
Other Services” (Cal Shui [2016] No, 140), the "Supplementary Circular regarding Issues concerning Value-
added Taxes Policies for Asset Management Products™ (Cai Shui [2017] Mo, 2) and the “Circular on the Relevant
Issues concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Call Shul [2017] No. 56]. the Group
shall pay VAT at 3% for taxable asset management activities undertaken after 1 January 2018,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits

Employee benafits are all forms of consideration given and ather relevant expenditure incurred by the Group
in exchange for services rendered by employees or for termination of the employment contracts, Thewe
benefits inclede short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early retirement benelits.

Short-term employee benefits

Shart-1enm Emph”lﬂl} bEnelits include walaries, bonuses, alowances and !Umlllr staff wellare, medical
insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and
atalf education expenses, In the reporting peéried in which an employee had renderéd services, the Group
recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those services as a liability with a corresponding
increase in the expenses in the consolidated statement al pmfil! or lois or capitalization at cost of related
assnis

Post-employment benefits

The Group's post-employment beneflts are primarlly the payments for basic pensions and unermployment
insurance related to gavernment mandated sodial welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme established.
Al these post-ernployment benefits are defined contribution plans, under which, the Group makes fixed
contributions into & separate fund snd will have no legal or constructive obligation to make further
contributions if the fund does mot hald sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employes
services |n the eurrent and prior periods.

Contributions to the basic pensions and umemployment insurance plan are recognized in the consolidated
staternent of profit or loss for the period or capitalizathion as cost of related assets in which the related
payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank’s head office and domesti branches (“Domestic Institutéons™} participate in an
annulty scheme established by the Bank [the “Annuity 5cheme®). The Bank pays annuity contributions with
reference to employees’ salares, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss or capltalized as cost of related assets when incurred. Except for the fiwed contribution into the Annulty
Schame, the Bank has mo further obligation |f the Annulty Scheme does not have sufficient assets for the
payment of any retirement benefits to employees funded by the Annuity Scheme.

Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept voluntary retirement bafore the
nommal retirement date, as approved by management. The related benefit payments are made from the date
of early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the Group's early retirement benefits is in accordance with termination benefits
as determined in 145 19. The liability s recognized for the early retirement benefit payments from the date of
early retirement ta the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination benafit is met
with a corresponding charge in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Differences arising from changes in
assumptions and adjustments of the standards of benefits are recognized in the consolidated statement of
prafit or loss when incurred,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments
8.1 Initlal recognition, elassification and measurement af financial instruments

Finangial assets or financial liabillties are recognized when the Growp Becomes 3 pany to the contractual
provisions al the financial instrument,

For purchases or sales of financial assets in & regular way, the relsted awsets and liabilities are recognized
or sold assets are derecognized at the trade date, along with the recognition of gains ar lasses on disposal
and the receivables due from the buyer. The trade date is the date on which the Group commils 1o
purchasie or sell the financial asset.

At initiad recagnition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial lability at its fair value. Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial linbilities earried at fair value through prafit or lots are expensed in profit
or less, For other classes of financial assets or financial Nabilities, the relevant transaction osts are included
in the initial recognized value.

{1} Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories based on the Group's
business model for managing the assets and the cath flow characteristics of the assets:

il Amortized cost|“ACT);
{i¥]  Fair value through other comprehensive income {“FYWOC"); or
lid]  Fair value through profit or loss {“FVPL"].

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assels in order to generate cash flows.
That is, whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets
or i5 1o collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows ansing from the sale of assets. If
nelther of these ks applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financkal
assets are classified as part of "other® business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by
the Group in determining the business moded for & group of assets inclede past experience on how
the cash flows for these assets were collacted, how the group of asset’s perfarmance ks evaluated
and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how
managers are compensated.

Where the business model i to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows.
represent solely payments of principal and interest {"5FP1°). In making this assessment, the Group
conskders whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e.
Interest includes consideration far the time value of money, credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular perod of time, other basic lending risks and a profit margin
that ks consistent with a baskc lending amrangement. The Group also assesses whether the financial
asset contains @ contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flowes such that it would not meet this condition,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are SPPI
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cantlnued]
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.1 Initial recognition, elassification and measurement of finanelal instruments (Continued)

(1} Financial assets [Continued)

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments in the Group are
described as below:

Debe Instrurments

Dbt nstruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liabiity from the
issuer’s perspective, such as loans, government ond corporate bonds. Classification and
measurement of debt instruments depend on the Group's business models for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the debt instruments of the Group are classified into three categories below:

[l  AC: Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
1o collect contractual cash flows; and contractual terms ghve rise on specified dates to cash
Nows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
and that are not designated as at FYPL, are measured at amortized cost.

[} FwOCI: Debt instrurments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash fiows and seling financial assets; and contracteal terms give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. and that are not designated as at FYPL, are measured ot FYOCL.

liii)  FWPL: Al financial assets not classified as measured at AC or FYOC) as described above are
measured at FVPL

The Group may akso irrevocably designate finonclal assets as at FYPL If dolng <o significantly reduces
or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and liabilities baing measured on different bases,

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the lssuer's perspective
referring to Note Il B.9, and examples of equity Instrumants inchude basic ordinary shares. The Group
subsequently measures all equity Investments at FVIFL, except for the equity investment not held for
trading whera the Group's management has elected, at initlal recognition, to irevocably designate an
equity investment as at FYOCL

{2} Financial liabilities
The Group's financial Habilities are classified inte financial liabdlitles at FVPL and other financial
liabilities carried at amortized cost on Initial recognition. Financlal llabilitles at FVPL Is applbed to

derivatives, financlal liabilities held for trading and financial lkabilities designated as such at initial
recognition.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Finandial instruments [Continued}
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement af finaneial instruments (Continued)
2] Financial liabilities (Continued)

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial hobility a3 measured ot fair
value thraugh profit of loss when doing Lo results in more relevant infarmation, because either:

i} it ebminates or sgnificantly reduces a measurement of recognition inconsstency that would
of htrwiie arise; or

] & group of financial labilities or financial assets and financial labilities is managed and its
performance i evaluated on a falr value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management of investment strategy, and information about the Group 15 provided intermally
on that basis to the entity’s key management personnal

Once the designation is made, it shall not be revoked,

Fimancial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial asseis which do net gualify for
derscagnition, if the enterprise retains substantially all the risks and rewards of the ewnership of
the transferred financial psset and does not qualified for derecognition, the Group shall continue to
recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety and recognize a financial lability for the
consideration recaived. In applying the continued imvalvement approach of aceounting, please refer
1o the Mote |1 8.7 Derecognition of financial assets for the measurement of the transferred liability.

8.2 Reclossification of financlal assets

When the Group changes the business model for managing its financial assets, it shall reclassity all
affected financial assets, and apply the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The
Group does nol restate any previously recognized gains, bosses (including Impairment gains or losses) or
interost, Reclassificotion date is the Tirst day of the first reporting period following the change in business
modal that results in the Group reclassifiping financlal assets,

8.3 Determination of falr value

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfier a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. For financlal Instruments traded in
active markets, the determénation of fair values of financial assets and financial llabilities ts based on
gquoted market prices. Active market is a place in which transactions for the asset or lability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing Information on an ongoing basis. In an active
market, the guoted prices of relevant assets or labilities should be readily and regularly avallable from
exchanges, dealers, brokers, imdustry groups, pricing institutions or regulatory Institutions by the
enterprise. The current market may not be active when there 5 a significant decline in the velume of
transaction or evel of activity, price guotations vary substantially elther over time or among market-
makers and current prices are not avadlable. For financial instruments not traded In active markets, fair
value I determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation technigues include the use of
recent transaction prices, fair walue of other financial mstrements that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other technigues commaenly wsed by market
participants. When measuring the asset or Nabllity at fair value, the Group shall use valuation technigues
that are aparopriate in the cireumstances and for which sufficient data and other information ase
available to measure falr value, select inputs that are consistent with the characteristies of the asset or
Hability that market participants would take into account in a transaction for the asset or lability. These
valuation technigues include the use of observable and/or unobservable inputs, and obsenvable inputs
are preferred.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B4 Subsequent measurement af flnancial instruments
Subsequent measurement af Tnancial instruments depends on the Categories:
{1} Financial assets and ligkilitics measured at amortized cost

Thie amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liabidity s measwred at
initial recognition: (i} minws the principal repayments; (i) plus or minus the cumulative amartization
using the effective interest method of any diffesence between that initial amount snd the maturity
amount; [iii}) for financial assets, adjusted for amy loss allowance. Interest income and fnterest
eupences [rom these financial assets and liabdlities are included in "interett income” and “interest
expense” using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carnying amount of a
financial asset [i.e. its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or 1o the amortized cost of a
financial Habifity. The calculation does mot consider expected credit losses [“ECLY) but Includes
transaciion costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points pald or received that are integral to the
effective interest rate. For purchased or originated credit-impaired ("POCI) financial assets, the Group
caleulates the eredit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is caleulated based on the ameortized cost of
the fimanciol asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorparates the impact af expected eredit
losses in estimated future cash flows.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate 1o the gross carrying amount of
finaneial assets and is included in “interest income”, axcept for:

[l POCIfinancial assets, whose interest income |s calculated, since inltial recognition, by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to thelr amortized cost; and

(&} financial assets that are not POCI but have subsequently become credit-impaired, whose
interest income & calculated by applying the effective interest rate to thelr amortized cost
{l.e.net of the expected credit loss allowance). If, in a subseguent peried, the financia! assets
improve their gualities so that they are no longer credil-impaired and the improvement in
credit quality Is related objectively to a certain event occurring after the appication of the
above-mentioned rules, then the interest income |s calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to thelr gnoss carmying amount.

(&} Finarcial assets ot fair value through other comprehensive income
Debe instruments
Movements In the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairmant
Eains or losses, Interest revenue cabculated by using the effective interest method and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the Instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss.
When the finandal asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or koss previously recognized in OCl is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these financlal assets is Included in
“Interast Income” using the effective interest method.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
& Financial instruments [Continued}
8.4 Subseqguent measurement of financlal instruments (Continued)
(2} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Continued)
Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are not held lor trading are designated as FVOCI. Dividends,
when mepresenting @ réturn on such investments, conlinue (o be recognized in profit o loss as
investment income when the Group®s right to receive payments is established, Other net gains of
losses are recognized in other comprohensive income, On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in othber comprefenshe income ant recinssified to retained EAMMINgS.

{3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The financial asset is measured at fair value and net gains or losses are recognized In profit or loss of
the current period.

{4) Financial liabiiities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FYPL are measured at fair value with all gains or losses recognized in profit or
lass of the current periad, except for financial Rabilities designated as at fair value through prafit of
lozs, where gaind or losses an the financial Habilities sre treated as follows:

[1  changes in Tair value of such financial liabiities due to changes in the Group's own credit risk
are recognized in other comprehensive income; and

(%] other changes in fair value of such financial labilities are recognized in profit or loss of the
current period. IF the accounting of changes in the credit risk of the financial labilities in
accordance with (1) will create or enlarge accounting misrmatches in profit or boss, the Group
recognizes all gains or losses on such financial liabilities (including amounts arising fram
changes in its own credit risk) in the prafit or loss of the current period.

‘When the Nabilitles designated as at falr value through profit or loss s derecognized, the cumulative gadn
or loss previously recognized in other comprehansive income s redassified from equity to retained
earnings.

8.5 Impairment of finonciol instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-sooking basis the ECL associated with its debt imstrument assets carried
at amortized cost and FVYOC! and exposures arksing from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

ECL is the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights,
Credit loss Is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, which are all cash shortfalls,
discounted at the orginal effective interest rate [or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI
financlal assets),
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financlal instruments (Continued)
B5 Impairment af financial instruments [Continued)
The Group measuries ECL of a fimancial instrument reflecting:

(it anunbinsed and prabability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possitle
Buteames;

{i)  vhe time value of money; and

{iiy reasonable and suppoertable information thot s available withowt undue cost or effort at the
regorting date aboul past events, current conditions and focecasts of future econamic conditions.

For financial instruments whose impairment losses are measured wsing the ECL models, the Group
spplies a three-stage impairment model to caleulats their impairment allowanes and recognine their ECL,
as Talbows:

—  Stage I: Il the credit risk has not increased significantly since (ts initial recognition, the financial
asset is included in Stage L

—  Stage 1I: If the eredit risk hos increased significantly since its initlal recognition but is net vet deemed
to be credit-impaiced, the financial instrument is moved to Stage Il. The description of how the
Group determines when a significant increade in credit fick has oecurred i dischosed in Note IV 44 1,

= Stage [ If the financial mstrument is credit-impasred, the fnancial instrument is then mosed to Stage 1L
The definition of eredit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in Note IV 44.1

Financial instruments in Stage | have their ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL af the
financial asset for the next 12 months |{*12m ECL"). Financlal instruments in Stage Il or Stage 11l have thelr
ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments | “Lifetime
ECL). The description of inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues used In measuring the ECL s
disclosed in Note IV 44,1,

For accounts recelvable, lease recelvables and contract assets, the Group always recognize lifetime
expected credit losses, The Group uses provision matriz based on its historical credit loss experience for
above-mentioned financlal assets to estimate ECLs. The historical credit experience Is appropriately
adjusted to reflect the specific factors of borrowers, current events and forecast future conditions as at
reporting date.

The Group applies the impairment reguirements for the recognition and measurement of & loss
allowance for debt instruments that are meassured at FVOCL. The loss allewance is recognized in other
comprehensive income and the impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, and it should not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument other than POCI at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the financial instrument is no longer regarded as experiencing a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal 1o 12-
maonth expected credit losses at the current reporting date and the amount of expected credit losses
reversal |5 recognized in profit or loss, For POCH financial assets, at the reporting date, the Group anly
recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition,

Aeeruad epert 3023 | 213

335/509



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 December 3023
[Arnoniras im millices of Renminbs, anless ofherassn siated|

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Finandial instruments [Continued}
B.6 Madification of contracts

The Group semelimes renegotiates of otherwise modifies contracts, resulting in @ change o the
contractual cash flaws, When this happens, the Group assesses whether the new terma are substantially
different to the ariginal terms,

Il the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original financial asset and recognizes
a ‘new’ asset at fair valug and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegatiation i3 consequently condidered Lo be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purpascs, including far the purpose of determining whether a g'gnifll:anl increase n credit risk has
occurred. However, the Group also assosses whother the now financial atset recognired is deemoed (o be
eredit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in creumatances where the renegatiation was driven by
thee debtor being unable to make the orginally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are
also recognized in profit or loss as a gain or loss on denecognition.

Il the werms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result n
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount based an the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognizes a madification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying
amount is recaleulated by discounting the modified cash Mlows at the original effective interest rate (or
eredit-adjusted effective intérest rate for POCI finoncial assets).

8.7 Derecognition of financial ossets

Financial asset is derecognized when one of the following conditions is met: {i) the Group's contractual rights
to the cash fews frem the financlal asset expire; (i) the financial asset has been transferred ond the Group
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership af the financial asset; or (1] the financial asset
has been transferred, although the Group medther transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it does not retain contral over the transferred asset.

The financial asset has been transferred, f the Group neither transfors nor retains substantilly all the
risks and rewards of the asset nos wransferred control of the asset, the asset ls recognized to the extent of
the Group's continuing imvolvement In the asset, whereby the related liability ts recognized accordingly.

On derecognithen of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the sum of the consideration
recelved for the part derecognized any cumulative amount of falr value recognized in other
comprehenshve income [if the transfer invelves any other debt instrument investments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income] and the carnying amount allecated to the part derecognized
on the date of derecognition shall be included in profit and loss for the current perlod,

8.8 Derecognition of financial liobilities
A financial lability is removed when the obligation speafied in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
axpires In whole or in part. An exchange berween the Group and lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial Hability
and the recognition of a new financial liability,
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or transferred to another

party and the consideration paid, Including any non-cash assets transferred or llabilities assumed, shall
be recognized In profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B9 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group alter
deducting all of its liabilities. A financial imstrument is an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions
(i) and [ii] below are met: (i] The financial instrument includes no contractual ebligation to deliver cash or
asnother financial asset to another entity, of to exchange financial assets or financial lishilities with
another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Group; and

(ii) i the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it B a non-
derrwative instrument that intledes o contractual oblgations for the Group 1o defiver a variable number of its
own equity mstruments; of a derivatiee that will be settled only by the Group exdchanging a fixed amount of
cash ar another financial asset for a fived numbser of its own equity instruments,

Preference shares and perpetual bonds issued by the Group that should be classified as equity
instruments are recognized in equity based on the actual amount recehved.

B.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recogniced at foir value at the date a dervative contract i entered into and are
subzequently remeasured ot their fair valoe ot the end of the reporting period. The changes in falr value are
recagnized in profit or bods,

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship between hedged tems and
hedging instruments, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking varhous
hedge transactions. The Group alio documents s assessment, both ot hedge inception and on on
ongolng basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

fa} Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognized asset or labiliy
or an unrecognized firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, Mability or firm
commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and coubd affect profit or loss or other
comprehenshe Income,

The changes in fair value of hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as falr value
hedges are recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, together with the changes in
falr value of the hedged Item attributable to the hedged risk.

Any adjustment of the carrying amount arising fram the recognition of hedging gains or losses of
the hedgad item shall be amortized to profit or loss if the hedged item ks a financial Instrumant
measured at amortized cost,

The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting when the hedging relationship ceases to meet
the gualifying criteria after taking inte account any rebalancing of the hedging relationship,
Including the hedging instrument has expired or has been sold, terminated or exercised, If the
hedged items are derecognized, the unamortized adjustment of the carrying amount is recognized
In profit or loss,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8 Financial instruments {Continued)

8.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)

(B} Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge is a hedge of the expesure to variability in cash flows that is sttributable to a particular
risk aiociated with a recognired awet or Rabifity (such as all or some future interest payments on

EDINETOOOO
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variahle rate debt) or a highly probabie forecast transaction that could witimately alfect the arofll or lass.

The effective porticn of the net ghirs and losses of hedging mstruments that are dcﬂ'gm'll:d and
qualify as cazh flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity in the “other comprehensive income”, The ineffective portion is recognized immediately in
the profit ar loss.

Amounts sccumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the profit or loss in the
same periods when the hedged item affects the profit or loss,

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer maets the criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing In equity at that time remains (n aquity and
is recognited in the periods when the hedged ivem affects profit or loss. When the hedged future
cash flows are no langer expected to oocur (for example, the recoagnized hedged asset i disposed
of), the cumulative gain or loss previously recognided in other comprehensive income i
Immediately reclassified to prafit or lass,

8.11 Embedded derivative financial instruments

216 | (DEHnany

Certain derlvatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the comersion option in a convertible
bond. If the hybrid contract contains a host that i a financial asset, then the Group assesses the entire
contract for classificatbon and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded derivatives are treated
as separate derivatives when:

it Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related 1o those of the host contract;
[} A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative; and
i) The hybrid contract is not measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Where an embedded derivative is separated from a hybrid coentract, the Group accounts for the host
contract of the hybrid contract in accordance with the applicable accounting standards. Where the fair
value of the embedded derivative s unable to be rellably measured on the basis of the terms and
conditions, the fair valuve of the embedded derivative is determined as the difference between the fair
valua of the hybrid contract and the fair value of the host contract, If, after using the above method, the
fair value of the embedded derivative at the acquisition date or at the end of a subsequent financial
reporting period ks still unable to separately measured, the Group designates the entire hybrid contract
as a falr value through profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.12 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabifities

When the Group has o legal right to set off the recognired amounts and the legal right is currently
enforceable, and the Group intends either 1o settle on a net basis, or Lo realize the financial asset and
settle the financial lability simultaneousty, financial 336t and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
presented in the consalidated statement of financial pasition. Otherwise, financial ausets and liabilities
shall be settbed respectively but mot offset each ather. The legally enforceable right af set-off must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insalvency ar bankiuplcy al the Group or the corunterparty.

8.13 Financlol assets held under resale agreements and financiol assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Financial assets transferred s collateral in conpection with repurchase agreements, invalving fised
repurchase dates and prices, are not derecognized. They continue to be recorded as investments
classified as financial assets before sale or loan. The corresponding liability b included in financial assets
sodd under repurchase agreements. The items which are not derecognized are disclosed i Note IV 42
Contingent lablfities and commitments — Collateral.

Consideration paid for financial assets held under agreements to resell are recorded as financial assets
held under resale agreements, the related linancial assets accepted is not recognized in the consolidated
statement of linancial position (Note IV 42 Contingent liabilitees and commitments — Collateral),

The difference between the purchase and sale price is recognized as gain or loss in profit or loss of the
current perhod using the effective interest method.

9 Insurance contracts
Insurance contract classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant insurance risk. The Group
issues primarily e insurance cantracts, which insure events assoclated with mortality over a long duration. The
Group also issues non-life insurance contracts, which cover casualty and health Insurance risk. When necessary, the
Group enters into reinsurance contracts to transfer indurance risks 1o the reinsurer. A significant imurance risk test
s performed at inception of the Insurance contracts,

Some insurance contracts contain both an insurance component and a deposit component. The Group
unbundies those components, if the Insurance component and the deposit component are separately
measured. The unbundied insurance companent is accounted for according to IFRS 4 = insurance Contracts
and the unbundled deposit companent s accounted for as a financial labilicy.

Insurance income recognition

Insurance premium income is recognized when the following conditions are met: the insurance contract is

issued and related insurance risk is undertaken by the Group, the related economic benefits are likely to flow
to the Group, and the related income can be reliably measured,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
9 Insurance contracts (Continued)
lnsurance cantroct Nabilities

Insurance contract Rabilities are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount of payménts that the
Group will be required to make vo Tulfill its obligations under the insurance contracts, which represents the
difference between expected future cosh outflows and inflows relmed to such contracts. A reasonable
eqtimate of expected future net cash flows is determined based an information curfently available as a1 the
end al the reporting period, The Group has considered the impact of time value in the liability caloulation for
long-term life insurance.

The Group performs lability adequacy tests based on information currently available, as at the end of the
reparting period. Additional Insurance contract liabilities will be recorded if any deficiency exists,

100 Precious metals
Prociows metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals,

Prachous metals that are not related to the Group's trading activities are initizlly measured at acquistion cost
and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Precious metals that are redated to
the Group's trading activities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in profit or loss,

11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment incleding buildings held for use in the supply of services, or for administrative purpose
{ather than construction in progress) are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, f any., When the costs
attributable to the land use rights cannot be reliably measured and separated from that of the bailding at
inception, the casts are included in the cost of buildings and recorded In property and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure incurred for the proporty and equipment [other thon construction In progress) is
included in the cost of the property and equipment [other than construction in progress] If it is probable that
econamic benefits assoclated with the asset will flow to the Group and the subseguent expenditure can be
measured, and the carrying amount of the replaced part s derecognized. Other subsequent expenditure is
recognited in profit or loas in the perod in which i1 is incurred.

Depreciation is recognized as a component of operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss 50 as to recognize the consumption of the economic valve of property and equipment {[other than
construction in progress), less thelr estimated residual values, over thelr estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation rates are reviewed at the end
of each reporting perod.

The useful lives, estimated residual valee rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of property and
equipment are as follows:

Estimoted Annual

residual depreciation

Classes Useful lives value rates rates
Buildings 550 years I 1.94%-19.40%
Machimery and equipment 3-11 years W HEIN-33IN
Muotor vehicles 5—H years. I 12.13%-19.40%
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
11 Property and equipment [Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried al cost, as
construction in progress, less any impairment loss. Construetion In progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Deprociation of these assets,
on the same basis a3 other property and equipment, commaences when the assets are ready for their intended
[F17:N

An item of property and equipment ks derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expectid to arise from its continued wie. Any gain or loss arting on the disposal or retirerment af an item of
prepenty pnd equipment is determined as the difference between the sales procecds and the carrying amaunt
of the asset and is recognized in other operating income or operating expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The accounting policies of impairment of property and equipment are included In Note 1| 17
Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill,

12 Land use rights

Land use rights are classificd in other assets and amortized over a straight-line basls ower their authorized wsefu!
lives.

13 Foreclosed assets

The Group initially recognizes at fair value the foreciosed financial assets. Non-financial foreclosed assets are
initially recognized at the fair value of the rights given up by oreditors and other costs such as taxes directly
attributable to the asset.

When the debtor pays off the debrs with multiple assets or in form of restructuring arcangemaent, the Group
firstly recognizes and measures the foreclosed financial assets and restructured rights according to provision
illustrated in Mote Il 8.1 Initlal recognitkon, dassification and measurement of financial instruments. The net
amount, of the fair value of the rights given up by creditor deducted the initial amount recognized for the
transferred financial assets and restructured rights, shouwld be distributed in accordance with the proportion of
the fair value of each non-financial asset. The distributed amount should be recognized as the initial book
value ol each non-financial foreclosed assets.

The difference between the fair value and book value of the rights given up by ereditar is recorded in prnﬁ! and
loss.

14 Investment property

Imvestment property s property held to eam rental income or for capital apprediation, or both,

Investment properties are measured using the eost model, Depreciation and amortization is recognited the
same way &s property and eguipment and land wse rights. Subsequent expenditure incurred for the Investment
property is included in the cost of the investment property if it is probabde that economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditure can be measured reliably, Other
subsequent expenditure i recognired in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred,

The accounting policies of impalrment of investment property are included in Note Il 17 Impairment of non-
financinl assets other than gaodwill,

Where an impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of the investrment property is increased to
thie revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased earrying amount does not exceed
the earrying amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss been recognized. A reversal of an
impalrment kass is recognized in profit or loss.

When an investment property ks sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of
any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and refated taxes, In profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
15 Leasing

Lease is a contract ar part of a contract thatl conveys the right to use an adget for a period of time in exchange
far contideration.

The Group a3 lessee

The Group recagnized the right-of-use pdsets at the commencement date, and recognized the lease liabilities at
the present value of the outstanding lease payments, Lease payments include fixed payments, the amounts
expected to be payable By the Group if the Group i reasanably certain 1o cxercise a purchase aptian or an
aption o lerminate the lease. Variable lease payments nod included i the messurément aof the leass liakility
are recognized as an expense in profit or less when incurred,

The right-of-use assets of the Group are measured at costs, which include the amount of the nitial
measurement of lease liabilities, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial
direct costs and bess any lease incentives receivad. If the Group could reasanably determinge the ownership of
the leased asset when the lease term expires, the right-of-use assets are depreciated owver the asset’s
remaining useful lile. Otherwise, the right-of-use assets are depreciated over the sharter period of the aiset’s
wieful life and the leade térm on o dtraight-line basic. When the recoverabile eodts of Fight-of-use assets are
lower than the carrying amount, the value of right-of-use assets will be decreased down to the recoverable
COSLs.

The Group chooses not (o recognize the right-of-use assets and lease linbilities for short-term leases and leases
of low-vakue assets, and the rental expenses are recognized as expense in profit or loss on a straight- line basis
over each period of the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Leases
ol low value assets are the underying assets are of low value when new.

The Group as lessor

‘When the Group is the lessor In a finance lease, a finance lease recelvable as an amount equal to the net lease
mvestment Is recognized and the finance lease asset is derecognized at the commencement date. The finance
lease recetvables ore recorded in the consolidated staterment of financial posithon as loamns and advances to
customers,

‘When the Group Is the lessor In an operating lease, rental income from operating leases s recognized as other
operating income in the consclidated statement of profit or loss on a stralght-Ene basis over the term of the
related lease. The initlal direct costs are incleded in the camrying amount of the wnderlying assets and is
recognized as expenses over the lease lerm on the same basis as the leasa income.

16 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite wseful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amaortization and any accumulated impairment loss. Amaortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally range from 5 to 20 years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual Impairment
assessment,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
17 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group réviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assety to dotermine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss, f any
such indication gxists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in arder 1o determine the extent of the
impalrment loss, il any. The recoverable amount s the higher of the asset's fair valee less costs to sell and
value in use.

If the recoverable amount ol an asdet i estimated to be less than its earrying amount, the carmying amount of
the asset is reduced 1o i1s recoverable amount. An impairment loss i recognized in profit or boss,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrping amount of the assct & increased to the rovised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
arnpunt that would have been determined, had ne impalrment loss been recognized. A reversal of an impairment
lopss is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and highly liguld assets, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash
and aisels with original maturity of three months or less under cash and balances with central banks, deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, placerments with and loans te banks and ather financial institutions
and financial assets held under resale agreesments.

19 Dividend distribution

Dhddend distribution to the Bank's ordinary equity holders is recognized as a lability in the Group's and the
Bank’s fimancial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the annueal general meeting of
the Bank.

As authorized by the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to declare and
distribute dividends on preference shares. Preference share dividend destribution Is recognized as a Nability in
the Group's and the Bank's financial statemants in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Board of Directors of the Bank.

20 Contingent liabilities and provisions

A contingent labllity is a possible obligation that arses from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurmence of one of more uncertain future events not whally within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that s not recognized because
it ts not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the ameunt of obligatien cannot be
maeasured reliably.

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a rellabse estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision s measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custadian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to safeguard assets for custamers in
accordance with custody agreements between the Group and securities investment funds, social security funds,
insurance tompanies, trust companies, qualified foreign institutional Investors, annuity schemes and other
institutions and individuals, The Group receives fees in retum for its services provided under the custody
agreements and does not have any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under custody,
Aszets under custody are not recognized in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers. Under the terms of entrusted loan
arrangemients, the Group grants loans to barrowers, &1 an mtermediary, accoeding 1o the loan object, purpose,
amaunt, interest rate and repayment plan determined by the principal, The Group is responsible for the
arrangement and callection of the entrusted loans and receivet a commission for the services rendered and
does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans, The entrusted loans and funding for
entrusted funds are not recognized in the Group's consalidated statement of Minancial position,

22 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A flinancial guarantee contract 5 a contract that requires the issuer o make specified payments to reimburse
thie halder for a loss incurred because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in accordance with
the original or revised terms of a debt instrument.

Financlal guarantees are mitally recognized at fair value on the date the guarantes was given, Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group's Habilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the nital
amount, less amaortization of guarantee fees, and the expected credit loss provision required to settle the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is recognized in profit or loss.

The impairment allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group s measured using ECL rmodels. The
Growp has not provided any commitment to provide boans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be
sattled net in cash or by delivering or |ssuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financlal guarantee contracts, the less allowance ks recognized as o provision.
Howewer, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot
saparately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component frem those on the loan
compaonent, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with the loss
allowance for the lpan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying
amaunt of the loan, the expected credit losses ore recognized as a provision,

23 Related parties

The Growp deternmines the Group's related parties in accordance with IFRSs and other relevant provisions.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AMD JUDGEMEMNTS

In the application of the Gmup‘: acoounting palicies, which are described in Nete I, management is reguired (o
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
jedgements, eitimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other relevant factars
including reasonable expectations for future events,

The judgements, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
eatimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as approgriote.

Thee following are the eritical judgements and key estimates management has made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting podicies that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
aidets and Habilities within the nest twelve months.

1

Classification of financial assets

Thee critical judgements the Group has made in determining the classification of financial assets include analysis
af business models and characteristies of contractual eash MNaws,

The Group determines the business model for managing financial assets at the level of financlal asset portfolio.
The facters considered incude how the asset’'s performance (s evaluated and reported to key management
persannil, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

When assessing whether the eontractual cash flow of finonciol assets s consistent with the basie lending
arrangement, the Group has the following main judgements: whether the principal may be subject to change in
the duration or amount of maney due to prepayments during the duration; whether interests only included
time value of money, credit risk, other basic borrowing risks, and considerations for costs and profits. For
example, whether the amount paid in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and interest on the
outstanding principal, as woll as reasenable compensation for early termination of the contraet.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit bess allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost and
FVOC! and for exposures arsing from some loan commitments and finandal guarantes contracts, is an area
that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behavior (the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is further detaded in Mote IV 44.1 Credit risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Growp uses valuation techniques to estsmate the fair value of financial Instruments which are not quoted
in an active marker. These valuation technigues Include the use of recent transaction prices of the same or
similar imstruments, discounted cash flow analysis and generally accepted pricing models. To the extent
practical, market observable inputs and data, such as Iinterest rate yield curves, foreign currency rates and
implied option volatilities, are used when estimating fair value through a valuation technique, Where market
observable inputs are not available, they are estimated using assumptions that are calibrated as closely as
possible 1o market observable data. However, areas such as the credit risk of the Group and the counterparty,
liquidity, volatilites and correlations require management to make estimates. Changes In assumptions about
these facters could affect the estimated fair volue of financial Instruments,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

3 Fair value of financlal instruments [Continued)

With respect to PRC government obligations related to large-scale policy directed financing transactions, fair
value is determined using the stated terms of the related instrument and with reference 1o terms determined
by the PRC government in similar transactions engaged in or directed by the PAC government. |n this regard,
there are no ather relevant market prices or yields reflecting arm's length transactions of a comparable siqe
and tenor,

4 Deferred taxes

There are certain transactions and activities in the erdinary course of the Group's business for which the
ultimate tax effect & uncertain. The Group made certain estimation and Judgemeant for items of uncertainty in
the application of tax legislations, taking into account existing tax legislation and past practice of tax authorities
‘Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially estimated, such
differences will alfect the current incame tax, deferred incame tax and VAT during the period in which such a
determination 15 made.

5 Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acls as assel manager of or investor in structured entities, the Group makes signilicant
judgement an whether the Group contrals and should conselidate these stroctured entities. When perfarming
this assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual rights and chligations in light of the transaction
structures, and evaluates the Group's power over the structured entities, performs analysis and tests on the
variable returns from the structured entities, Including but not limited to commilssion income and asset
management fees earned as the asset manager, the retention ol residual income, and, il any, the lguidity and
ather support provided to the structured entities. The Group also assesses whether it acts as a principal or an
agent through onalyss of the scope of its decision-rmaking authority ower the structured entities, the
remuneration to which it & entiiled for asset management services, the Group's exposure to variability of
returns firom its other interests in the structuned entities, and the rights held by other parties in the structured
entities,

& Derecognition of financial assets transferred

in its normal course of business, the Group transfers its finandal assets through various types of transactions
incheding regular way sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements,
securities lending. The Group applies significant judgement In assessing whether it has transferred these
financial assets which qualify for a full or partial deracognition.

‘Where the Group enters into structurad transactions by which it transfers financial assets to structured
entithes, the Group analyzes whether the substance of the relationship between the Group and these
structured entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether the Group neods
to consolidate these structured entities. This will determine whather the following derecognition analysis
should be conducted at the consolidated level or at the entity level from which the financial assets are
transferred.
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1 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
6 Derecognition of financial assets transferred (Continued]

The Group analyzes the contraciual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to determine
whether the derecognition criteria are met based on the fallowing considerations:

. whether it has transferred the rights te receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets ar the
wransfer qualifies for the “pass through® of those cash flows to independent third portics.

#  the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the linancial assets are transferred.
Significant judgement is applied in the Group's estimation with regard 1o the cash flows before and after
the transfers and other factors that affect the cutcomes of Group's assessment an the extent thot risks
and rewards are transforred,

. whiere Uhie Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards associated
with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether it has refinquished (ts controls over these financial
assets by assessing whether the transferee has the practical ability to sell the astet in its entirety 1o an
unrelated third pary and (s able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer, and if the Group has continuing Invalvement in these transferred
linancial assets. ‘Where the Group has not retained control, it derecognises these linancial assets and
recognizes separately as pssets or Habilities any rights and obligations ereated or retained in the transfer.
Otherwise, the Group continues to recognize these flinancial msets to the extent of its continuing
Imvodvement in the financial assets

2 MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 NETINTEREST INCOME

Year end mber
1022 2021
Interest income
Loans and advances to customers 761,827 694,008
Including: Corporate lpans and advances 417,978 380,351
Personal logns and advinces 343,849 313,658
Financial investments
Debt instrumaent investmaents at amortized cost 231,114 208,225
Other debt instrument imvestments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 46,443 44,579
Balances with central banks 34,494 34,726
Macements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions 9,853 5868
Financial assats held under resale agreements 16,672 11,589
Deposits with banks and other financlal institutions B,144 8,618
Subtotal 1,108,537 1,008,014
Interest expense
Dusis Eo ELSTOMERS (388,545} [329,593)
Depaosits fram banks and other financial institutions (52,582) (36,930)
Dbt secwrities ssved {45,140} (39, 188)
Borrawings from central banks (24,943) (20,519)
Macements from banks and other financial institutions 6,775} {3,478)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreemaents |593) [31E)
Subtotal [518,581) [430,027)
Net interest incame 589,966 577,987
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Fee bnd eommiition incame ol
Electronlc banking services 26,772 30,476
Agency services 23,965 23,677
Bank cards 15,760 15,435
Consultancy and adwisory services 11,979 11,644
setthement and clearning services 10,296 11,004
Custodian and ather fiduciary services 4,308 3,832
Credit commitment 1,979 1,980
Others 459 583
Subtotal 95,518 98,721
Fee and commission expense
Bank cards [8.573) [11,2432)
Electronic banking services {3,386) [3,504)
Settlement and clearing services. {1.391) [1,598])
Others [BEE) [1,343)
Subtotal [14,236) [18,392)
Net fee and commission income B1,2E2 80,329

3  NET TRADING GAIN

fil

226 @*wseni

Net gain on debt instrurments held Tor trading

Wit galn on precious metaks

et {lossifgain on foreign exchange rate derivatives

el gain on interest rate derivatives
Others

Tatal

Year ended 31 December

Hote 2022 2021
13,2484 3,847

[ 3,623 3,650
[11,050) 8,672

516 440
fs14) {368)

£.519 14,241

Met poin on precipus metols consists of net grin on precious metals ond precious metol reloted dervotive products.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4  NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Year ended 31 December

Nate 2022 2021

Net gainf{loss) on debt instruments designated as at FViPL 5 {237)
Net gain on other debt instruments and equity investments

measured at FVPL 6,040 10,507
Net loss on finandial Mabilities designated as at FYPL i} (B43) |7A45)
Net gain on other debt instrument and other

equity Investmants measured at FVOC1 RS9 1,235
Net gair on underlying assets and liabilities rolated to

principal guaranteed wealth management products

designated as at FYPL - 1,068
Others {352) [493)
Total 5,909 15,035

fil  Met loss on financial Febifities designated os of FYPL ©

deposiits designmbed af FVPL

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

af the papobie amount wpon the matunity of strectured

Year ended 31 December

2022 021
Insurance gramiwm 32,942 29,188
Net galn on Toreign exchange 5,611 224
Rental income 1,241 1,065
Galn on disposal of property and equipment §00 1,032
Gowvernmant grant Tar Q48
Others 1,172 1,686
Total 42,663 34,143

OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Motes 2022 2011
Staff costs [§1] 146,547 137,953
General aperating and administrative expenses {21 61,861 61,558
Insurance benefits and claims 34770 30,088
Deprecistion and amaortization 20,865 19,797
Tax i surcharges (3] 6,525 6,606
Others 3,455 31371
Total 274,023 260,275
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

& OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)

(1) Staff costs
Year ended 31 Decamhar
= A0Ed i
Short-term employes benelis

Salaries, banuses, allowances and subsidics 95,935 89,580
Houwsing funds 9,738 8,347
social insurance 6,031 5,859
Including: Medical insurance 5,685 5480
Mtaternity insurance 181 222
Employment injury insurance 165 157
Labar union fees and staff education expenses 4,308 4,001
Others 11,362 10,963
Subtotal 127,374 112,730
Defined contribution benefits 19,135 14,188
_ Early retiremant banefits 38 15
Total 146,547 137,953

{2} inchuded In general operating and administrative expenses is auditor's remuneration of RMBL10 million
for the year, consisting of RMBL0E milbon for fimnancial statements audit service and RMB2 million for
nan-audit professional service (2021 RMB106 million for the year, consisting of RMB105 million for
financial statements sudit serdce and AMBL million for non-audit professional service).

{3) City construction and maintenance tax Is calculated at 1%, 5% or 7% of VAT and sales taxes for the
Group's Domestic Operations.

Education surcharge is calculated at 3%, while local education surcharge ts calculated at 2% of VAT
and sales taxes for the Group's Domestic Operations.

22g (DEeeanl
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SEMIOR MANAGEMEMNT

(1) Details of the Dérectors”, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s emolements are as follows (in thousands

of RME:
Yoar ended 31 Decomber 2022
Basic  Contribution Othier
salaries 1o relirement  benefits
and bencfit  in kind
Item Notes Feos  allowances schomes {xu) Tatal
Exgcutive Directon
Gu Shu - 656 127 86 BED
Fu Wanjun il - 55 13 7 73
Thang Xuguang - 551 110 a5 796
Lin Li - 501 110 BS 796
Independent Mon-Executive Directors
Huang Zhenzhang 1z0 - - - 380
LEUNG EC May Yee, Margaret 350 - - - 380
Liu Showying 381 E - - 361
Wu Liansheng 180 - - - IR0
Wang Changyun [} 1] - - - 10
Non-Executive Directors
Liao Luming - - - - -
Li Wi - - - - -
Zhou N - - - - -
Liu Klaopeng - - - - -
Kiag Hiang = - 2 =
Zhang QI (i} -
Supenisors
Deng Lijuan [k} - - - - -
Wu Gang 50 - - - 50
Huang Tag 50 - - - 50
Wang Xugjun [l 29 - - - 29
Li Hangxia 300 & = = 300
Ku Kianglin a30 - - = 330
‘Wang Xixin 280 - - - 280
Seniar Management
Xu Han - 5491 135 a0 EDE
Liu Jiawang {vi] - 148 51 22 221
Han Guogiang = 1,005 106 8BS 1,294
E eecutive Director resigned
Thang (ngiong i) - 438 B3 55 576
Non-Exetutive Directoss resigned
Wang Xinxin i} 350 - - - 359
Supervisors resigned
Wang lingdong (i) = 656 127 o6 863
Fan Jlangiang ] - - - - "
shao Lihang [xi] 21 - - - £l
Seniopr Managerment resigned
Cui Yong il - 5 70 47 452
fhang ¥i (4] - 591 120 as 796
Li Zhicheng {aiv) - 1,005 218 a6 1,310
Total 2.970 6,672 1318 B9 11.Ba0
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(1) Detalls of the Directars, Supervitors’ ond Senior Management's emaluments are as follows [in thousands
of RMB): [Continued)

fil

il
fisif
i}
fed
fil
feil

i)

i)
feief
few)

Fu Wanjun wos elected Wioe Chairman of the Soord of Directors and Exeountive Director and Executive President
effective 20 fanvary 2023,

Waong Chongyun wos slected Independent Non-Executive Bivrector effective 22 Becember 20032
fong di was elected Non-Exccutive Dvrector effective 22 December 2022,

Beng Liuen was elected Swpenvior of the Shorefolders Representotive effective 29 fune 2022
Waong uejin was elecfed Supenvisor Representing Employees effective 10 May 2622

Lir Jiowong wos elected Executive Vice President effective 28 Novwmber 2022

fang Qingsong coased to be ¥ice Chairman of the Joord of éredtars and Deeculive drector and Deecutive
Prosident effective § September 1022

Wang Minkin ceased o be Independent Mon-Esccwbive Directar offective 22 Decomber 2022,

Warg lingdong cemed fo be Chavrsan of the Boord of Supervsors ond Supenwsor of the Shoreholders
Representative effective 7 February 2023,

Firn Sangioag ceased o be Superviior of the Shirehalders Represenimtive effective 13 Jfure J028

Shoe Lhong ceased (o be Supervisor Bepresenting Employees effective 10 Moy 2027

i ¥ong ceased to be Executive Wice President effectve 9 Avgusr 20232,

Zhong Vi ceosed to be Executive Wiee President effective 21 Mosch 2023,

Li Shicieng cemsed b be Chief Rivk Gficer effectine 28 Februmry 2023

Ouher benefits in kind incivde the Bank's contribidfons to medvcol fund, howsing fund and other social induronces,

wehich gre payobie fo labour gnd securly authovities bosed an the lower of cevfain pevcentoge of [he salaries

g allowanges ar the prescribed upper imits o8 required by the relevont reguiations issued by the gowernment
muthovities,

The total compensation packages for the above Dectors, Sugensors and Sendos Managoment for the year eaded 31
Decernber 2022 have not yet been finalized in accordance with regulations af the relevant authorities in the PRC a1
the date of this comsolidated financlal statements. The final compensation will be dizclosed Im o separaie
announcement when detenmined,

2030 | () e au
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
[Continued)

(1) Detaik of the Directors’, Supenditors’ and Serior Monogement's emoluments are os folows fin thoieands of
AMBJ (Continued)

Wear ended 31 December 2021 {Restated)
Baax Costribution Other
alares o netrement beerrfets
and Barafil in kind
Item Netes Fees allawances ot |}

Exgutive Dinecions

G S li} - o] 1L8 &l
Thang Qingsong - 145 ]
Zhang Xuguang 136 &l
Lin Li ] - 118 11

823
eE5EE |§

Inclepencent Nan-Executive Deecions
Wang Kinxin
Huang Zhen thang
LEWING KO My Yee, Margaret
Liu SHouying
Wu Liansheng i)

o
pEEEE

Non-Executive Directons
Liao Luming
LW
Thou )l ]
Liu Xiaopeng [l
Hlao Xiang |

Superviary
Wang lingdang
Fan kanglang
Shao Likang
‘Wu Gang
Huang Tao [w]
Lu Homgeia
Xu X@nglin [wii] 46
wang Klein [ix) L

£ 145 i 1,108

Bruoa,

waHnee

Senior Management
Cul Yong - b 17
Xu Han - T 115
Zhang ¥i [x] = 154 38
LU Zhicheng 1,509 b
Han Guogiang 1588 183

ERupne=
BEzgs

23z | (DAavbul
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Fod the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
|Amounts in millions of Reraminbi, wnless athersise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

{Continued)
{1} Detailsaf the Directors), Supendisors” and Seaior Monogemenit's emolaments ore as follows i thousands of
RIB): [Continwed)
_Yiear ended 31 Decemnber 2021 (Restated]
Baale Cantribetion Other
sdlires 1o retirement bevedts
and pengfit In e
tem Notes Fess allowances scheme (1] Tonl
Executive Directos resigned
Thou Mubing [xi] - Ll - - 1]
Mon-Executhve Dire clors resigned
Wu liangtac ] - - - - E
¥iaa Xing i} in - - - Exll
Tha Haiin (L] - - - - -
Li Qe e} o = = - -
Suparyisars fetigred
¥ia Taili L} 1 - - - et}
Li Wang |l M2 - = T w
Thang lis | %8 2 - s 8
Seniar Management resigned
IhanDangiheng ein) - 130 = £l 413
Total 2934 10288 Lars L] 15,443

I Gl Shu was elected Execunive Dvvectar effecrive 28 Jenwary 2021 and elected Chairman af the Bood of Direciors
effective 3 Februgny 2021

il b bd wers elected Exevutive Wice President effectve 31 Mangh 2020 and Eeecuthe Dinector aiffective 15 june 2021,
il W Lionsheng was elecied independenr Noa-Executive Director gffective 15 Navember 2021,

fl  2how N owas elected Nan-Executive Director effective 5 March 2031,

fvl L Xipopeng was eleched Non-Executive Divector effectve 20 lanuary 2022,

fel  Xoo Kieng was elected Non-Executive Divector effective 20 January 2022,

fwi) Humng Too was eieched Supervisor Representing Employees effective 26 July 2021,

fwilll Mo Xienglin was elected External Supendsor effectiee 11 November 2001

fix]  Wong Xixin was efegied External Supervisor effective 11 November J071,

el Ehvong ¥owes elected Executive Wice Presidend effective 4 November 2071,

el Frow Mubing ceased fo be Chairmaon of the Soond of Directors and Executive Blrector effective 7 fanuary 2031
fmil] Wi Sangtoo ceased fo be Mon-Execitive Director effective 27 fuly 2021

[mR]l Moo Ning ceased (o be Independent Son-Cxecetive Divector effective 19 November 2020

fafe) Zhu Hafin cegsed o be Non-Expcutive Director effectve 28 September 2021,

fevl L (Mpun ceased to be MonExecutive Blrector effective 31 December 2031

fw]  Xfa Talli ceased fo be Supervisor Representing Empiloyees effective 20 August 2021
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(1) Detois of ihe Directors’, Supervisors’ and Semor Monogement's emoluments are as follows fin thousands of
RMB): (Continued)
{mai) L Wang ceosed to be External Supenasor effective 11 Movember 2021,
(mil} Thong He ceased fo be External Supenvisor effective 11 November 2071
fein] Fhon Dangshenp ceased to be Ewecutier Wice President effective 11 June 2021,

faie]  Other benefits in kind include the Bank's contribublons to medical fund, howsing fund ond other soclal inswenoes,
which are payobie to imbour and security authorities bosed on the lower of cerfain percentoge of the solaries
ond olfpwances or the prescribed upper imits o5 requined by the refevant regulotions issued by the government
autherities,

{2) Five individuols with the highest emoluments in the Group

{iy Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none of them are Directors,
Supervisars or Senlor Management whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of
the five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were as follows:

__ Yearended 31 December
R . 2022 2021
Basic salaries and allowances 21 13
Discretionary bonuses 16 18
Contribution to retirerment benafit schemes and olhers 1 1
Tatal ia 32

{il  The number af these five individuals whose emaluments lell within the following bands are as Tollows:

Year ended 31 Decamber

Y 2022 2021
AMBA,_ 500,001 to ANIBS, 000,000 yuan -
AMBS, 000,001 to AMBS, 500,000 yuan
AMBS, 500,001 to RMBE,000,000 yuan
RMBE,000,001 to RMBE, 500,000 yuan
AMBS. 500,001 1o AMBET 000,000 yuan
AMBT,000,001 10 AMB 7,500,000 yuan
RMBT.500,001 1o AMBS,000,000 yuan
FIABE, 000,001 10 ANES, 500,000 yuan
RMBE, 500,001 1o AMES,000,000 yuan
REMIE, 000,001 to AMES, 500,000 yuan
AAIES, 500,001 1o AMB 10,000,000 yuan
RMB10,000,001 to RMB10,500,000 yuan
AMB10,500,001 to AMEB11,000,000 yuan
RMEB11,000,001 to AMB11,500,000 yuan
AMET1,500,001 to RKE12,000,000 yuan
HRMB12, 000,001 bo ANIB 1.2, 500, 000 yaan 1 -

LI R B

| D D N I I TR I R B
T O |

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an ivducement o poin or upon jaining the Growp of as a
compensation for loss of affice. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
none of the five highest pald Individuals walved any emolument.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(3) Other benefits and interests of Directars and Supervisors purivant to the Hong Kang

Companies Ordinance {Cop.622),

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no emolument was paid by the Group ta
any of the Directars and Supervisors a5 an inducement 1o jgin of upon joining the Group of as a
eampensation for loss of office. Except for the Anniuity Scheme dnd Pension Scheme (Note 1| 7 Employee
benefits), there were no other retirement benefits for Directors or Supervisars, or consideration provided
to third parties for making awailable Directors' or Supervisers’ orvices; and none of the Directors or
Supervisors waived any emalument, or had materal inferests, whether directly or indirectly, in any
material transactions, AFFANZEMEnTs of CONTFActs in relation to the Group's business for the years ended
31 Decemnber 2022 and 31 December 2021,

The Group enters into credit transactions with the Directors, Superdisors or certain contralled body
carporates and connectad entities of the Directors ar Supervisors at arm's length in the ardinary course
of business, For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 Decemiser 2021 and as at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021, the respective balances of loans and advances from the Group 1o Directors,
Supervisars or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors
were not significant. The Group did not provide any guarantee o security to the Directors, Supendsars of
certain eontrodled body earporates and eonnected entities of the Directors ar Supervisars in respect of
their loans, quasi-loans or credit transactions,

8 CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

ooOooood

Yoar 1 O mibar
2022 2021
Loans and advances to customers 140,368 168,999
Financial investments
Debt instrument investmaents at amortized cost 1,919 2,947
Othar debt instrument investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income [4.0%a) 1.588
Provision for guarantees and commitments 7,663 (15,393}
Flacements with amd bpans to banks and other financial institutions (268) {15}
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions [152) (442}
Financial assets held under resale agreements (a62) 167
Others (313) 7,835
Total 145,267 165,886
204 | (Dreiui
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 Dacembar

= i 20eL
Current income tax
— PRE Enterprine Incomie Tax 54,326 B4 B52
— Hang Kang SAR Inearme Tax 707 054
— Other jurisdictions Income Tax 361 239
Subtotal 55,394 66,045
Distmrvvid tak jHote V:23). §7:86€) {12.101)
Taotal 47,578 53,044

Domestic and Overseas Branches Income Tax s calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit for both years,
and also includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Branches as determined in accordance with the relevant
PRC income tax rules and regulations. Pre-tax deduction items of enterprise Income tax are governed by the
relevant tax regulations in Chinese mainland, Taxation arlsing in ather jurisdictions {including Hong Kong SAR)
is calculated at the rates prevalling In the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 can be reconciled to the profit
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

__Year gnded 31 Docember
MNote 2022 2021
Profin before pax 306,216 295,880
Tax ealeulated at applicable PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 76,554 73,970
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose [§8] [26,528) (42,983}
Tax effect of costs, expenses and losses not
deductible far tax purpose 20,331 23,311
Tax effect of perpetual bonds interedt expense {2,810) (2.434)
Effect of different tax rates in ather jurisdictions {19} [a8)
Eftect of others = 2,128
Income tax expense 47,528 53.944

{1 Nen-toxaply income primartly includes interest income from PR treesary bands amd municipal government bonds.

10 DIVIDENDS

__Year en

Motes 2022 2021

Dividends on ardinary shares declared and paid
Cash dividend relatod to 2021 (1) 72,376 -
Cash dividend related to 2020 {2 = 54,782
71,376 64,782
Dividends on preference shares declared and pald {1 4,064 4,064
Dividends on preference shares declared and unpaid 13y 1,936 -
Interast on parpaiual bonds declared and paid {#) 11,239 9,734
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 DIVIDENDS |Continued)

{1)  Distribution of dividend on aralinary shares for 2021

A cosh aiwidend of RABOLZ06E (tow included) pey ordinary shove refated to 2021, avmounting to RMBTZ 3% millan
{Eow included) in botn! waos approved, offer the required opproprictions for the stotory surplus resevee and' the
gerenml reserve for 21 o3 determined (0 occondance with the relevant scocunling rles and flnancicl reguiarions
applicohie to PRC enterprises (the “PRC GAAPT), o the onaval genero) meeting heid on 29 June 2022

Fhe obove dividend was recognized os distribution ond distributed duning the peor ended 31 December 2022

{2] Distribution of dividend on ordinary shores for 2020
A cosh avvidead of RMEQ 1851 (row imchded) per ordingry shive retated to 2020, amawating 1o RMVESY, 782 milian
(eow inpluded) v toto) waos approved, ofter the required opproprictions for the stohory swplus resenae and the
gemere! resevve for 2020 o5 defermined in accardance with the “FRC GAAPT, at the annupd general meeting held on
27 May 2821,
The abowe dividend was recognized os dstnbution and distrbuted duning the pear ended 31 Deceminer 2021

i3] Distribution of dividend on preference shares
Distriutian af dhvidend on preference shares for 2022
A rrech oividend ot the dividend rote of L84% per onnum redated to the second tronche of preference shores of X021 to
22T aemowntinng o AMBE 536 milliow (fox nclieded)] in tatad wos appvoved of the Boord of Dvectars” Meeting held on
26 Jomuovry 2027 and distribued on 11 March 2022,
A cash dhwdend aof the diwidend rote of 5.3.2% per onnumm reioted to the first tronche of preference shares of 2021 to
AP2T amounting I RMB2.128 mlkion (fox included) in tohal wos epproved of the Board of Directovs” Meeting hefld an
20 Apgust 2022 and distritunted’ on F Movember X022,
A cosh aévidend ot the dividend rofe of 484% per annum redated to the second tonche of preference shores of 2022 to
AO2T aenaunting fo FRIRLF36 million frox incluced) i fatol was mpprewed at the Raoed of Divectors’ Meeting held an
28 December 2028 ond dialributed on 13 Morch 2023, As of Deceminr 31 2022, the dividenth on preference: shores
dieclored and unpeid wos recognized in the tonsoldared sratement of finoncial position,
Distriburtian of dwdend on preference shares for 2021
A cosh okadend at the dividend rofe of 4.84% per oanam redated fo the second tronche of preference shores of 2020 to
AD21 amouating e RMBE 936 million (fox incleded) m tofal wis approved of the Boord of Divectars” Meeting held an
27 Jonuovy 2021 ond dNstrbuted on 11 March 2021,
A cosh dividend ot the dividend rote of 5.32% per anmum refoted to the first fronche of preference shares of 2020 to
202 aevaunting fo RMVESTIR arillion [fox inclisgied) in total waors aparovsed ot the Roaed of Directors” Meeting hefd an
20 Apgust 2021 and distributed’ on 5 November 2007,

{4 Distribution of interest an perpetwval bonds
tustributian of imtereafl an perpelunl bonds for J022
Perpetval bands Msted én the stotement of fnoncin! podition rifer o undicted tier 1 copital bords. An mterest ot the

imterest rate af 1.45% per anawm relaied fo the 2020-first tronche of perpetual bonds of AMBES billfion omounting fa
BAAED 958 milliod i tetal was deciered on 7 Moy 2022 and dictributed on 12 May 2022

205 | (Dreeanl
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 DIVIDENDS (Continued)
f4) Distribution of [nterest on perpefusl bonds (Continued]
Distributian of interest on perpetuel bonds for 2022 (Continued)

An interest at the interest rate of 4.35% per orawm reloted to the 2009.first tranche of perpetual bonds of AMVIBAS
Lillic emeurting o MBI, 733 milian é todol was dedlered on 8 Auguid 2022 and distributed on 20 Avgunt 2022,

Ar saterest ab the interest rate of £.50% per ennwm refated (o the 2020-second Iranche of perpe tinal bonds of AMBIS
hiffion omourting to AABE, 575 milflon in tofof waos declored on 22 August 2022 and distributed on 24 August 2032

A fnterest af the intevest rate of 4.208 per arnum reloted to the 2009-second froncihe of perpetual bonds of AMBIS
Billion emounting (o AMBLSFD miliom a0 tofgd was declared on 1 Sepfemiber 2022 and distributed on 5 September
2022,

An interest at the interest rote of 3.76% per orawm related o the 2021-first tranche of perpetual bonds of FAABAD
biffign omounting to AMEL 504 million in tofal was declored on 14 Movember 2007 and disributed on 15 Movember
2022,

Distribuation of inleresl on peipeliuol Bords for 2021

Arl innerest at thwr interest rate of 3.48% per annum related to the J020-first franche of perpetual bonds of AMBES
biffion omounting to AVEL 355 milfon in totof was declored on 7 Moy 2021 ond distributed on 12 May 2021.

An interest af the Dnterest rote of 4.30% pov omnom reloted 1o the 2019 firet ranche of pevpetual bonds of AVBES
bilipn ampurting te AMEZ, 732 milion da tobol wos deglored on 17 August 2021 and distributed on 20 Avgust 2021,

An faterest at the interest rate of 4. 50% per annum refated to the 2000-secand tranche of perpetual bends of AVBIS
billicer erncunting o AVBLS7S milffan d febal was dectared on 19 Awgust 2020 and distributed an 24 Auvgust 2021,

A fitevest af e inteves! rade of 4.20% per annum relited (o the 2008-second tranche off perpetial bonds of AMBIS
hilfion amounting fo KMBL 470 mifkon i tofal wos declared on 2 September 2021 ond distributed on & September
2021,

(5] A final dividend of RAAB0 2222 (tox indluded) per ordinivy shone @0 respect af the yeor ended 31 Decernber 2022

taraiag AMBTZ, 766 millica [lex facludled) has Been proposed by the Doord af Directovs and i subifact lo appvovel by
the ondinovy eguity holders in the anaval general meeting.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The ealeulation af basic and diluted earnings per share is as fallows:

Year ended 31 Decamhber

e L. I
Earnings:
Profit for the year attributable to equity halders of the Bank 2£5,140 141,183
Less: profit for the year attributable 1o other equity instruments holders
af the Bank (17.239) [13,798)
Profit for the year antributable 1o ondinary equity holders
af the Bank 241,901 217,385
Wumber of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in Bssue fin milllens) 349,983 349,983
Baisic and diluted earnings per shar (RMB yuan) 0.69 0.65

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank issued two non-cumulative
preference shares, respectively, and the specific terms are induded in Note 1V 33 Other equity Instruments.

For the years ended 31 December 2022, 31 December 2021, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
Bank Issued seven non-cumulative undated tier 1 capital bonds, respectively, and the specific terms are
included in MNote IV 33 Other equity instruments.

For the purpose of cabculating basic earnings per share, cash dividends of AMBG,000 million (tax incleded) of
non-cumulative preference shares dedlared in respact of the year of 3022 and interests of RMB11,239 milllon
af non-cumulative undated tier 1 capital bonds in respect of 2022 were deducted from the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Bank {2021 cash dividends of KME4,064 miflion (tax included) of
non-cumiulative preference shares declared in respect of the year of 2021 and Interests of RMBS,734 million
of non-cumulative undated tier 1 capital bonds).

The conversion feature of preference shares is considered to fall within contingently issuable ordinary shares
The triggering events of conversion did not occur for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, and therefore the conversion featwre of preference shares has no dilutive effect on earnings per share
calculation,

12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Notes 2022 2021
Cash 67,180 74,610
Mandatery reserve deposits with central banks (1} 2,153,612 1,973,077
Surplus reserve deposits with central banks (2} 169,295 101,010
Other depasits with central banks [E]} 157,997 171,765
Subtatal 2,548,084 2,320,462
Accrued interest 1,046 Gaa
Total 2,539,130 2,321, 406
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (Continued)

[41]

The Group ploces mondotary resenwe depotils wath the PAOC ond sverseos regulotory bodies. These (nclude AMR

reserve deposits and foreign cuvrenoy reserve deposits thot ore not mvaiioble for wse fn te Growp’s daily operotions.

As ot 31 December 2022, the moadatory depasit reseree rotios of the domestic branches of the Bank in respect of
customer deposdts denominehed in AVE end foreign currencies were comsistent with the requirement of the PROC. The
mandotory reserve funds ploced with the contral bonk of domestic subsitiaries of the Growp ove determined by the

PHOC, The af fatory reserve dep
Chinese modniand are determimed by dooo! jurbsdictions.

(4]
urwestricted deposits.

8]
PAOC that are not ovaifable for wie in the Group's daily operations.

13 DEPDSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

1 ploced with the central bonks of those countries or regions outsicle

Surpliss resenve depodits with centro! banks molude funds for the purpose of cosh settfement ond other kimds of

Other depozits with central bmaks prirmarily represent fisco) deposits ond foreign exchamge rik revenve ploced with the

A at3 m

RSP 2022 2021
Deposits with:
Domestic banks 580,465 184,968
Other domestic finandal Institutions 9,507 10,345
Owerseas banks 38,694 22.507
Subtotal 628,066 217,820
Accrued interest 3,538 2,140
Allowance for impairment losses (1.319) (1,460}
Carrying amount 630,885 218,500

14 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 Decerm ber

2022 2021

Placements with and loans to;
Domestic banks 236,552 250,953
Othor domestic financial institutions 172,631 93,315
Overseas banks and other financial institutions 90,929 10, 295
Subtotal 500,112 448,563
Accrued interest 2,780 1,080
Allowance for impalrment losses [2.562) [2,699)
Carrying amount 500,330 446,944

361/509
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINAMCIAL INSTRUMEMNTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group primarily énters into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal dedivative contracts
related to trading, asset and iability management, and customer initiated transactions,

The contractual/notional amounts and fair values of the derivative financial instruments entered inte by the
Group are set out in the following tables. The controctual/national amounts of derivative financial instrurnents
provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized in the eonsolidated statement of
fimancial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash lows invalved or the current fair
values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure 1o credit or market risks. The
Tair value of derivative instruments become favourable h!.wh! or unfavourable (labilities) as & result of
fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or precious metal prices relative to their terms.
Thar aggregated fair values of derivative financial sssets and liabikties can fluctuate significanthy,

Certain financial assets and financial liabilivies of the Group are subject to enforceable master net
arfangements or similar agreements, The agreement between the Group and the counterparty generally
alows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilites when both elect to settle on a
niet basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and financial liabilities will be setted on a gross
basis, However, sach party bo the master netting arrangements or similar agreements will have the option o
settle all such amounts on a net basks in the event of default of the other party. The Group did not offset these
financial assets and financiel liabilities on a net basis. As a1 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
Group did not hold any other linancial assets or Habilities, ather than derivatives, that are subject to master
netting arrangements or similar agreements,

i1 December 2022

Contractual f !
notional — Fairvalwe
smuumnt Rssets Liabilities
Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps, and
Cross-Curtency interest rate swaps 1,766,754 15476 (25.684)
Currency options 87,071 1,374 [569)
Substotal 26,850 {26,253)
Imterest rate derivatives
IntEest Fate Swaps 242,817 1,512 [871)
Precious metal derivatives and others 148,701 1,353 [3.880)
Tetal 30,715 {31, 004)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)

31 December 2021
Contractualf
naticnal Fair walue
amgunt Assets Liabllities
Exchange rate defivatives
Currency faraards and swaps, and
Cross-Currency interest rate pwaps. 2,145,080 18,983 [14,402)
Currency options 51,631 1,133 {332}
Subtotal 20,116 [14,734)
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rote swaps 271,31 1,141 [2,366)
_Pr_lEIP_u; metal derivatives and others 145,374 721 [2,237)
Tatal 21,978 {19,337}

Credit risk welghted amount for derlivative transaction counterparties represents the counterparty cradit risk
associated with derivative transactions and is calculated in accordance with the “Capital Rules for Commercial
Banks (Provisional)® issued by the CBIRC which was effective from 1 January 2013 and "Measurement Rule of
Counterparty Default Risk Welghted Assets on Derivatives” issued by the CBIRC which was effective from 1
lanuary 2019, and is dependent on, among other factors, creditworthiness of custemers and maturity
characteristics of each type of contract. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the credit risk
welghted amount for derivative transaction counterparties was measwed under the Internal Ratings-Based

approadh.
Az 1 r
2022 2021
Counterparty credit default rsk-weighted assets 31,566 49,277
Credit value adjustmant risk-weighted assets 8,825 6,943
Taolal 40,391 56,220

1) Foir value hedges

The following designated falr value hedging instruments are included in the dervative fimancial
Instruments disclosed above,

31 December 2022
Contractualf Fair valye

notiomal

amount Aasets Liabilities
Interest rate swaps 37,721 1,455 |45}

31 December 2021
Contractualf Fair_walug
notignal
amownt Assots Liabilities

Interest rate swaps 48,716 33 {1,104)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)

{1} Fair value hedges [Continued)
The Group wies interest rabe swaps 1o hedge against changes arising from changes in intorest rates in faie
walue of loans and advances to customers and other debt instrument investments at fair value through

ather comprehensive income.

The Growp's net gains{lowses] on fair value hedges ane as follow:

—Yearended.3l Oecember
2022 2021
Het gains/[lossas) an
— hedging instruments
— hedged itema

2,653
[2,778)

1,599
{1,566]

The gain and lass arising from the ineffective portion recognized in net trading gains were immaterial
n 2022 and 2021

The following table shows maturity details with national amount of hedging instruments diselosed

abowe:
Fair value hedges
Batween Betweoen Botwoeen
Lerss than land3 3 and 12 land5 Orwr 5
imonth  months  months = years il Total
31 December 2022 1,985 445 10,137 23,556 1,508 I
31 December 2021 861 3,958 9,203 30,412 4,282 48,716

The following table sets out the details of the hedged items covered by the Growp's fair value hedging

strategies:
31 December 2022
Accumulated

amount of falr value
Carrying amount of adjustments on the Line items in the
hedged items hedged items statement of
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities financial position
Other debt instrument
investments at fair
walue through other
Bonds 35,250 = = -  oomprehensive income
Loans and advances to
Loans 2,787 - {1749) - customirs

Total 42,037 - {179} -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Continued)

(1) Fair valve hedges (Continued)

The following table sots oult the details of the hedged items covered by the Graup’s fair value hedging

strategies: [Continued)

#1 December 2071

Accumulated
amount of fair value

Carrying amount of adjustments on the Line items in the

hedged items hedged itams statement of

Assets Liahilitles Assets  Liabilitles ﬂ“\?ﬂdﬂ position

Investmients at fair

walue through other

Bands 51,356 - - - eamprehensive income

Loans and sdvances to

Loans 2,551 - 52 - CUSTOMErs
Total 53,907 - 52 -

(2] Cash flow hedges

As at 31 Decemnber 2022, no cash flow hedge had occurred [31 December 2021: Nil).

16 FINAMNCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 D mbier

2022 2021

Analyzed by collateral typa:
Debt securities 1,113.B54 780,571
Bills 59,835 59,3748
Subtotal 1,173,689 835,945
Accrved interest 945 547
Allowance for impairment losses {2,247) (2, 909)
Carrying amount 1,172,187 B37.637

The collateral received In connection with financial assets held under resale agreements is disclosed In Note
Iy 42 Contingont liabilities and commitments — Collateral,

Rernual Mporl, 3033

365/509

243

Oooooooa



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amounts im millions of Renminbi, anless otheratse stated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS
17.1 Analyzed by measurement basis

— Pl Ogcymber
Notes 2022 2021
Measured at amortized cost [§1] 17,638,704 15,951,755
Mensured at fair value through ether
comprehenidive income (2) 1,344,182 502,748
Tatal 18,982 886 16,454,503

{1} Meaiured ot omartized cosi:

4023 2021
Carparate faans amd aowamces
Loons and pdvances 10,814, 664 9 49 438
Prrsanal loons ond oovances P EE3 87 2135 564
Swhtohal 18,378 539 16,633,002
Acciued intenest 43,024 LR FS
Affowmnce for impairment losses (FE2 BEG) fR22.570}
Carrying omount of loons and edvances to customers
mepsied at amortized eost 17,538,704 15,351,755

(2 Meoazured of foir value through other comprehensive inoovme:

g.! FIF]

Carparate faans and odyonces
Logns and oovances AIE 634 R A8
_Diseounted bils, 1,007,548 _ 424,329

Corrying omount of loons ond advonces to
Fistamers msatided af fair walie throvgh
pther comprefwniive incosme 182 507,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment methoad

31 December 2022
Stage | Stage |1 Stage 11|
12m ECL Lifetirme ECL Toal
Gross loans and advances to custamiers
measured at amortiped cost 17,615,149 335,352 271,062 18,421,563
ABawance for impalrment losses {527,707} [20,243) {164,220) (7a2,859)
Loans and advances to customers
measured at amortized cost, net 17,277,352 254,510 106,842 17,638,704
Loans and advances to customers
maasured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,344,176 & o 1,344 182
Allowance for impairment losses of
loans and advances Lo customers
measured at Tair value through
other comprehensive income {37,372) (2] o {37,374)
31 December 2021
Stage | Slage ) Sage Wl
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total
Gross loans and advances to customers
measured at amortized cost 16,157,097 269,446 245,782 16,672,325
Allowance Tor impairment losses [500,117) (57.494)] {162,959} [720,570)
Loans and advances Lo custamers
measured at amortized cost, net 15,656,980 211,952 82,823 151951,755
Loans and advances to customerns
measured at falr value through other
comprehensive income 502,701 a7 = 502,748
Allowance for impairment losses of
loans and advances Lo customers
maeasured at fair value through
other comprehensive income [16, 108} [l - [16,117)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continuad)
17.2 Analyzed by ECL assessment method (Continued)

The ECL for corporate loans and advances in Stage | and 5tage |1, a5 well a3 personal loans and advances,

wre menured in sccovdance with the risk parameters modelling method, The ECL for corporate loans

and advances in Stage 1l were caleulated wsing the discounted cash flow method. For details, see Note IV

44.1 Cradit risk.

17.3 Anolyzed by movements in loss allowance

The movernents of loss allawance are mainly affected by

—  Transfers between stages due to loans and advances (o customers experiencing significant
increases (or decreases) in credit risk or becoming credit-impalred, and the corresponding transfer
of the measurement basis of the loss allowance between 12 months and the entire lifetime ECL

—  Allowance for new loans and advances Lo customers recognized;

— Remeasurement includes the impact of changes in model assumptions, updates of model
parameters, changes in probability of default and loss given default; changes in ECL due to transfer
of laans and advances to customers bebween stages; changes in ECL due to unwinding of discount
over time; changes in Toreign exchange translations for assets denominated in foreign currendies

and ather movemenis:

= The reversal ol allowances caused by repayment, transfer out and write-offs of loans and sdvances
1o custamens.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyred by movements in logs allawanece (Continued)

Tha Tollowing table shows the impact of above facbors on the allowance for impairment losses:

Year unded 31 Decomber 2022

Stage | Stage 1l e i
tud:pur:le lpans and adu:nnus 12m ECL {5} Lifetime ECL (1T} Total
1lamuary 2002 352,237 D260 140,834 543,381
Trarsler:
Stage Ito Stage |l [5.2BE) 5,288 - -
Stage Il to Stage | - {12,043} 12 043 -
Stage Il to Stage | 5,603 {5,603) - -
Stage N va Stage 1 = 6,154 (6.154) -
Originated or purchased financisl
assets 152,355 = - 152,359
Rameasurement (16,541) 22,052 44,450 43,961
Repaymens or transfer out (73,299} (9,374} 119,331) (102, 004)
Writa-offs - - (41,665) (81,6585)
31 December 2022 415,071 55,734 131,227 602,032
Year ended 31 December 2022
Stage | atage |l Stage |l
Persanal loans and sdvances 12 ECL {iif) Lifetirme ECL [iv) Total
1 lanuary 2022 163,988 7,243 22,075 193,306
Trarsfar:
Stage | Lo Stage |i {3.701) 3,701 - -
Stage Il 1o Stage | - (6,111) 6,111 -
Stage Il to Stage | 1375 {1,375) - <
stage 0l to Stage | - 397 |997) -
Originnted or purchaded financial
assets 62,092 - - 62,092
Refreasurement (7.000) 4,712 26,038 45,650
Repayment of transfes out [56,556) (4,057] {6.315) |66,928)
Write-alfs - - j15,919) {15,913)
31 December 2022 160,088 25,110 32,593 118,201
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyred by movements In loss allowanece (Continued)

The Tollowing table shows the impact of abowve factors on the allowance for impairment losses:

{Continued]:
Year ended 31 December 2021
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il

Corporate loans and advances 12m ECL (w) Lifetime ECL [vi] Tatal
1 Jamsary 2021 282,549 53,694 135634 471,883
Transfer:

Stage | to Stage i 6,338) 6,338 = =

Stage I bo Stage [l - [21,124) 21,124 -

Stage I o Stage | 1,448 [2,448) - -

Suage Hi to Stage Il - 1,151 {1,153) -
Originated or purchased financial

assefs 115,643 - - 115,643
Remeasurement 19,839 29,179 50,780 99,718
Repayment or transler out [6:1,904) [16,535) 119,730) {98,165)
Write-offs - - [45,753) 45,753)
31 Decernber 2021 352,237 50,260 140,834 543,381

Year ended 31 December 2021
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il

Personal loans and advances 12m ECL [wia) Lifietirme ECL {wiis} Total
1 Januwary 2021 128414 7,003 23,907 159,324
Transfer:

Stage | to Stage Il [1,859) 1899 = =

Seago 1 to Stage 10 - |4,341) 4,141 -

Stage I to Stage | 1,310 [2,320) - -

Stage 1l to Stage i - 1,264 {1.265) -
Originated or purchased financial

assets 65,962 - - 63,282
Remeasurcment 13,434 6830 11,106 31,31
Repaymant or transfar out [48,263) (2,297} {2,311} [53.871)
Writa-offs = - [13.485) 113,495
31 Decernber 2021 163,988 7.243 22,075 193,306
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements in lass allowance [Continued)

A In J0FZ, the charges of the Growp's koss odowanoe of corporote \oons ond odonces i Sage [ wene maimy
driven by the et increose of obout 22% in the book bolonce of the corporote fomns ond advonces compared with
1 farmuary 2023,

fd)  Im 2022, the chomges of the Group’s foss oliowonce of corparete foons and odvances i Stoge ¥ were moindy
driven by the net increcse of abowt 6% in the book balonce of the corporate loont and odvonces in Stage U
compored with 1 donwary 2022, and the increase of provision rotio cowsed by the transfer of relevont loons ond
irdvances fram Stoge | to Stage It

I 2022, the changes of Group’s foss olloswsmace of corpovate loans and odvances fn Stoge M were mainily driven
by both the net trondfer betwesn stapes which led to o net mcrease of nearly 4% in the correspanding gross
avreown covmpored with 1 fonuory 2022, and the increne of provision rativ coused by the transfer of redevant
Toans end adwraces from Stage If o Stage [ This impact was partioly affsel by the repayment; Bravsfer ol
and write-offs af corparate leans ead aovances.

@ I 3022, the changes of the Group's loss ellvwance of persana! loens ond mdvances in Stage | wene mainly driven
by the decrease of prowsion rotio.

] In 2022 the changes in loss all e of the Growp's personm Inans and advandes In Stage U wene mamly
driven by both the mer tronsfer between stages winch led to a aet bcrease of neery 106% io the corresponding
grots ermount and the increase of provision ratio,

In 2022, the chonges i loss allowonce af the Group's persanal loans and adwrnces in Stage U were mainly
driven by both the net transfer bebween stoges whivch bed fe o et increaie of neanly #4% i the corresponding
ross amount and increase in the proportion of pravision resw'ting from transfer of refevant foons and advances
[from Stege I to Stege MY, This impact was parfially offset by the repoyment, transfer oul and write-offs af
redevant looes ond advances.

fed 0o 2G21 the changes of the Group's loss alawanee of corporaie loans amd adwnces & Snage [ wore mainly
driven by the net increase of about 13% in the back bolonace of the corporate ioans ond advonaces comparsd
with 1 Jonuovy 2021, and the increase af the provision robia,

il In 2021, the chamges of the Group's lass ollowance of corporate lpans ond odwances in Shage I were mainly
driven by the net decrecse of about 21% in the book bafance of the corporate loons and odvonces in Stage ¥
compored with 1 jomrary 200, Its impact on the provision for losses wos partiofly offset by on dncreose in the
proportion of impolrments related to loens and advances in 2021

In XE21, tie chonges of the Group's loss oliowmace of corporote oons ond oovances in Stope W were moinly
driven by both the net fronsfer between stoges which led to o met increase of nearfy 5% in the corresponding
gross amowat compared with 1 fanuery 2021, and tive morecse of provision rotio coused by the transfer of
refevant foons and odvances from Stage Ui fo Stoge ML This impoct was partially offset by the regepment,
trionsfer out and write-affs of corporate fomns and odvonces.

fed  In 2021, the changes of the Group's loss ellowonce of persone! loans ond cdvances in Stoge | were mainky driven
by both @ net increase of nearly 15% in the corresponding gross amount, ond the increase af provision ratio.

Senual Report 3033 | 249

371/509



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amouins im mdllices of Renminbl, anlees of e racen stated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continuead)

17.3 Analyred by movements in loss alloweanee (Continuad)

el i 2021, the chonges in foss oflowance of the Growp's persomal loans and odvamces in Stage I were main'y
drksen by bath the net transfer between stopes which led to o net increose of aearly B% in the oorrespoading
gross amourrt and incréase b the propartion of provislon resufitng from transfer of refevant ioons ond cdwances
from Stage I to Stoge . This impoct was partiolly offset by the repayment of refevont foons and odvonces

I H021, the chonges i foss oliowonce of the Group’s persomal fomns ond odvonces in Stoge 0 were moindy
drkwer by both the aet tronsfer bebween stoges which led fo o net decreose of nearly $% In the correspording
gross amowt! and increase in the praportion of provision resuftmg from transfer of releeont (oons and cdvances

from Stage I to Stoge U6 This dmpoct was partially offset by the repayment;, tronsfer ot ond write-offs of
relevont faons and edvandes.

18 FINAMNCIAL INVESTMENTS

— Asat 3 December
- . - Notes 2022 2021
Financial asseis at fair value theough profit or los 18.1 522,057 460,241
Dbt instrument investments at amortized cost 16.2 7,306,000 6,372,522
Othar debt instrument and other equity investments
at ladr value through ather comprehensive income 18.3 1,702,106 1,397,280
Total 5,530,163 8,230,043

18.1 Financial assets at fafr value through profit or foss

As at 31 Decembar

_Huotes ZUZ2 201

Financial assets hiold for trading [§1] 155,869 159,382
Financial assets designated at fair value through

prafit o loss (2 1,250 2313
Other financial azsets at fair value thmugh

prafit or loss 3 364,938 298,546
Tatal 512,057 460,241
Analyzed as;

Listed in Hong Kong 5,480 5,409

Listed outside Hong Kang {i} 351,425 106,454

Unilistied 165,152 148,378
Tatal 522,057 460,241

il Debi securities troded on the Ching Domesiie Mntev-bank Bond Mdorket ore (npluded in “Listed outilde Hong
Kang®,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.1 Financial assets at folr value through profit er loss {Continued)
(1} Finarcial assets held for trading

2022 2021

Debt securities ssued by:
Governments 16,539 8,925
Public sectorand quasi-governments 53,951 25,144
Financial institutions 1B,445 BB, E00
Corporates 27,203 25,268
Subtotal 126,598 128,137
Precious metal contracts 17,988 #1389
Equity 5,790 5,274
Fund and others 5,493 4577
Total 155,863 159,382

(2)  Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December

2022 021
Debt securities issued by:
Financia! institutions 626 1,009
Corparates 624 1,304
Total 1,250 2,313

{31 Other financial assets ai fair value through profit or foss (i)

As at 11 December

2022 2021

Debt securities issued by
Public sector and quask-governments 17,678 22,636
Fimancial institutions 176,537 131,578
Corporates 232 BAS
Subratal 205,007 154,859
Egpuity 111,902 104,676
Fund and athers 47,939 39,011
Tatal 364,938 298,546

14} Ovher financhal assets of foir volue through prafit or foss refer fo financiel assets that do ot gualify far
measwrement af AC ar FYOD! and are nod held for trading, including bond invesiments, equily ierests,
funds, trust plans gnd assef management praducts of the Growp,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investments ot omortized cost

Asat 3l December
_Notes 2022 2021
Debt securities issued by:
Governmaents 4,751,633 4,117,564
Public sector and quasi-gowvernments 1,783,050 1,506,965
Financial institutions 169,354 145,826
Corporates 90,812 100,576
Subtotal of debt securities 6,794,889 5,870,931
Receivable from the MOF iy 190,891 250,891
Special government bond {i) 93,332 93,340
Others gl 11,580 13,463
Subtotal 7,190,692 6,268,625
Accrued interest 135,743 132,924
Allowance for impairment losses [20,435) [15,027)
Dabt Instrument investments at amortized cost, nat 7,306,000 6,372,522
Analyred as:
Listed in Hong Kong 35,017 19,594
Listed outside Hong Kang (] 6,832,620 5,882,053
Unlisted 438,362 AT0,475
Total 7,306,000 6,372,522

il The Group receqved a natice fram the MOF in Jenvary 2020, clorifping thet from 1 lanuary J0H), the interest
rte af the wnpard payments wil be ver(fied year by year based on the nete of retura of the five-year treasvy
bond of the previous pear,

W Spedial govermment bond nefers (o the non-grensferobie band issued by the MOF in 1998 i the oggregated
grincipal amownt of RME93.2 bilfon to the Predecessor Entity for copitol replenishment, The bond Wil mature
in 2028 ond bears inderest at @ fived rate of 2.25% per onorm, starfing froom 1 Qecember A0A

(W} Other debd fastrument mvestments ot amartized cost ore primarily related o LA T Noeted
structured entities hefd by the Group (Node IV 21621,

fiwl Dbt secwrities troded on the Ching Domestic Inder-bonk Bond Market ore included in “Lifed ouiside Hong
Kong®,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.2 Debt instrument Investments at amortized cost (Continued)

(1 Analyzed by ECL assessment method

31 Decombor 2022
i

Stage | 5ta age Wl Tatal
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
Grogs debt instrument
irvestments 5t amartized oot 7,324, TER 347 1,300 7,326,435
_Allowance fof impairment losses 119,150 = _11,285) {20,435}

Debt instrument Investments
at amortized cost, net 7,305,638 347 15 7,306,000

31 December 2021

Stage | Stage Il Stage Ul Total
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
Gross dabt instrument
imdestments at amortized cost 6,289,720 548 1,281 6,391,549
Allowance for impairment losses [17,7G4) - {1,263) (19,037}
Dbt instrument investments
—Eimpized GOst, NS 271955 243 13 £.278,332

Dbt instrument investmaents at amortized cost in 5tage Il and Stage 1l mainby included corparates
bonds and ather debt instrument investments,

(2} Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (i)

Year gnded 31 Degpmber 2023

Stage | Stage Il Stage Wl Total
i di Litatime ECL
1 January 2033 17,764 - 1,263 19,027
Originated or purchased finangial
assots 4,903 - - 4,503
Remaaturement 126 - 2 148
Maturities or transfer out (3,643) - - {3,643}
31 December 2022 19,150 - 1,285 20,415
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINAMNCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investments at amortized cost (Continued)
(2] Analyzed by movements in loss allowarnce (i) (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Stage | stage Il Stage I Total
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
1 January 2021 14,850 180 1,064 16,104
Transher:
S1age | transfer to Slage 1l 11) 1 - -
Stage | transfer to Stage NI 11] - 1 =
Stage Il transfer 1o Stage 1 - l?g 7
Stage |l transiar to Stage | 20 (30 - -
Originated or purchased
financlal assets 3,506 - - 3,996
Remeasurement 586 (1] 191 776
Maturities or transder out {1.696) [153) - {1,849}
31 Decomboer 2021 17,764 - 1,163 14,027

i Ayl 31 December 2023, the increases of the Growg’s loss afowance of deb! milrament investments of
amartized cost were mainly due fo the increase of debt instrument investments and the remeasurement
of remained debd fitrument invesiments i the pear.

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity Investments at falr value through ather
comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2022

Cumulative
amount of
change in fair
Amortized walue that
cost of debt Is acerued
imstrumants’ to other Cumulative
cost of equity comprehensive amount of
Notes instruments Falrvalue Income impairmant
Therde e T s Ao i i ke Ll
mvestments 1] 1,694,785 L.657,405 2,620 [6.343)
Other equity investments 2] 3,519 4,701 1,182 N/A
Total 1,698,304 1702, 106 3,802 [6,343)
Year ended 31 December 2021
Cumulative
amount of
change in fair
Armortized wiibug that
cost of debt is accrued
instruments/ o other Curmnulative
cost of equity comprehensive amaount of
e e oo CMies. TRsueaty Falr value income impalimient
Orther dobt Instrument . ) )
inwettmaents 1] 1,373,040 1.392, 691 19,651 [10,761)
Other eQuity investments 12} 3,4E0 4,589 1,109 Nia
Total 1,376,520 1,397 280 20,760 (10,761}
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

{1} Other debt instrument investments

fa)  Analyzed by types of issuers

—Asat3l Decembar

) _ Note 2022 2021
Db securities:

Govermmienis 870,330 549,753

Public sector and quasi-gavernments 235,712 241,528

Fimancial imstitutions 429,063 364,339

Corparates 135,994 105,803
Subtotal 1,671,108 1,361,723
Others. (1] 10,558 16,861
Subtotal of debt Instruments 1,681,666 1,378,584
Acerued interest 15,739 14,107
Total 1,697,405 1,392,651
Anahyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kong 124,853 131,184

Listed outside Hong Kong 1,436,760 1,186,801

Unlisted 85,792 4,706
Total 1,697,405 1,392,691

fip Oehers primarily imduole Imeestments in enconsoddoted stractured entitier held by the Group [Note
1V 120 such as trusd mvestment plons and debd investment plons.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity Investments af falr value through ather
comprehensive income (Continued)

{1} Other debst instrument investments [Continued)

(bl Analyred by ECL asseisment method

31 December 2022
Stage | Stage Il Stage 11 Total
1¥m ECL Lifetime ECL
Carrying amaund of other
debt instrument investments
at fair valve through other
campreh incoms 1,596,401 400 524 1,697,405
Allpwanoe forimpalrment losses 16,078} (%] {256) 15,343)
31 Gecember 2071
Stagn | Stage || [T Teaal
Lam ECL Ldetime ECL
Carrying amaunt of other
debt inslrument investments
at fair value through ather
compreharsive incoma 1,390.78% 1,870 n 1,353,691
Allowance for imoalrment losses [10.457) |184) [115) {10, 761)

Other debt instrument investments at fair value through other comprehansive income In 5tage Il
and Stage |l mainky included corporates bonds and financial institutions bonds.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and ather equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

{1} Other debt instrument investrents (Continued)

fe)  Analyzed by movements in loss alowanee (i}

— Yearended 3l December 2022 00000

Sage | Sage Il Stage il Total
1dm ECL Lifetime ECL

1 lanuary 2022 10,457 189 115 10,761
Transler;

Stage ransder to Sage HI [uy) - 111 -

Stage I transler to Stage | 51 [51) - -
Driginated ar purchaued

financial daels 1,042 st = 1542
Remeas urement |1,257 {a) 30 {1,231
Maturities ar trarsfer out |5, 0] [125] - (5.129)
31 December 2027 G078 L] 156 6,343

¥ear ¢nded 31 Decomber 2021
Stage | Stage || 11 Total
- 12en ECL Lifetime ECL

1 January 2021 9,536 432 106 10,074
Transfer

Sage | transter to Stage Il [§12] 188 - -

Stage Il transfer 1o Stage | o 130m - -
Originated or purchased

financial zssets 4,808 - - 4,808
Riemeas sre mient (50 I ¢ 139
Maturities ar transfer out {3,957 (128) - [4,083)
31 December 2021 10457 189 115 10,761

fil  As af 31 December 2022, the decreates af the Growp's loss olowance of ather debl instrument
favestments of foir valie through other comprehensive income were mainly due do moturities or
transfer gur of delit nstrument investments and the remeasurement of remmained debd instrument
avestments,

{2} Other equity instruments

_As at 31 December
2022 2081
Financial institutions i,564 i,448
Other enlerprises 137 141
Tatal 4,701 4,589
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Iavestment in subsidiaries

The following are the principal subsidiaries of the Bank a4 ot 31 December 2022:

Percentage
Dase ol Place of ety
Incarpoention/ Ircgrperatien) Rathodaed) [0
Name al entity Maotes  wibishmesi  establabment paichin easital %)
China Agfinultural Fnanee INewember 1588 Hoog Kong PRC  HETISEE 780000 il
Ca, it
ABC mtemational Holdings IiNovember 2000 Mooy Ken FRL FIDMD1LIRIAR0 fleili ]
Lirveted
ABC Financal Leaing 3 eptember 2010 Shanghal PRL RMIER 50000000 lecli1]
Lo, g, londom,
Agriouitural Bark of Cxing (L) 19 Navemiber 2L1 Usitsd Gngom  LUS0MD0000,00 10000
Liveeted
ABC-LA Fusd Management LB Wurch 2008 Sanghal FRC  RMWEL 750000001 S
o, ld
ABC Hexagten Raral Zank 12 Augast 2008 fncer Mongoka, PEC  RMEIS)E00,000 nm
Lireted Liab ity Company
ABC Hubesi HanthuanBurel Bank | 12 Auest 2008 Habei, PRC  RMI331,000000 nm
Lirnstesd Lish bty Company
B i Aur gl Bank Limited Liskiiry 15 Way 230 Mokl PRC RS A00000 s
Cormpany
ABC Brsal Rural Bank Umited 30 Mearch 2000 Sl BRC RUAS0/000000 5im
Lty Cormpany
AR Phesiarg onglang furalBank 0 dpri 2012 Dhejang PRC V110,000,000 Sum
Limite LisbBity {ompany
ABCXiamen Tong anRural Bank FLLE ] Fugin PRC RN 50,000,000 Hitod
ABC Life Insurance Co., Lid 19 Decorber 10X Bepng PRC  RMIEG S48 510475 it
Agrituityral Bark of Ching 36 Nivermber 2014 lwwsbowg,  EURI0I00000 luili]
[Lemprribeung] Lt Larrimrg
Agriouitural Bark of Ohirg Hecember Ml Mowow Aumia  HUBT S5605EN 10m
[Mizsow] Limied
ABC Financhal diset bewestmeat i L Augus 2007 Reging PRC  RAKECH) 000,000,000 1003
Ca, lad,
Aprictiueal ask of Ching Weakth 25 July 2018 Bejing FAC  RAMBLZ 000,000,000 1000
Managemes Co., Lod

B

g
et pincigal
N —
10000 imraimin hoiding
10000 iestment hoding
10000 Franda leng
10000 Baniing
SLET  fusd munagemen
5L Barlong
AR Buriing
sLm Earicng
SLo0 Eariung
100 Barkryg
iti] farling
sl Lirirssancy
b i) Barlong
10000 Bariung
100,000 Drest-e-equity ywap
g related genviced
liilif] ‘Wealth
Tanggemert

During the years ended 31 December 20232 and 31 December 2021, there were no changes in the
proporton of equity interest or voting rights the Bank heid in its subsidiaries.

i) Two of the three directors on the boord of ARC Hibed Haonchuan Rural Bonk Limited Limhility Company were
appainted by the Bank. The Bank conclvded that it has effective cantrol aver and has included this endfly in s

camsoliiariod sCope.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 INVESTMERNT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
(1) Ilavestment in subsidiaries (Continued)

4} On 21 December 2013, the Bank acquired 515 of the iseed share copiced of fiehe Life Inswronoe Co., Lid, and
renemed it os ABC Life insurance Co, Lt [“A8C Life Insuronce®). As at 31 Decembser 2012, the Group recogmired
goodwll of RME81 381 milllon @i o reswlt of this ooqusition. During the year encled 31 December 2016, the Bk
and other investors contrituted odaitional copltal fetalling RAME3, 761 miflion to ASC Life surance, comgrising
registered capifof of RMBS17 million ond copite! resorve of RA82 884 mitfon. dfter the copitod injection, the
proportion of equrly intevest ond wodiag sghts the Bonk heid in ABC Life asunmace remained af 51%.

The Sank fests the impolrment of goodwill anneally. When performing the impoinment test, the Bank compares
the corrpimg ovmaun! of the oisels (facuding goodwill and the value of the meérgers ond ocquisitions after
deduction of omovtiemtion] with the recoverable omount. The ewcess of corrying omownt over recoveralile
amaunt i fecognized in profit ar loss of the current period,

The recowerohle omrount of the afsets is based on odjusted net pssets, valee af wn-force business, volve of ome
year of new hineds, pew busimesd munlialier, ond ather date appvoaved by the management of ABC Life
Insurince, The ootuoriol valeotion method @ applied ond the Ak distount rate, refurn on invesimend, voluetion
didcount rale, and other misumpbions adophed fo forecadt cash flows respectvely reflect the specilic risks
assaciated wirth them,

As @t 31 Decernber 2032 and 31 December 2021, there wos no abjective evidence nated for any goodwl
impaifment, and Ao impairment loss was recognlied,

(il The Fank imcreated the chare copdal af ABC Finoncind Astef nvesiment Co, [ by AMBI0 billiss as ot 25
devweary 2021, and the propertion of equily interest amnd vating fights the Bonk held in this sdisidiary remained
af JOO%,

(2)  Structured entities

The Group alse consclidated structurad entities as disclosed in Note IV 41 Structured entities.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amounas im millions of Renminbi, anless ofhe redse statied |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

{1} Inwvestment in assoclates

Flane ol [Perierrnge of  Pesneninge of
Butrof  incepersion hethorond  equityIntevest  ting sights Prncipal
Name of entity Nobes  priablabmest Butinest apital %) %) aihsen
Sino-Corgoinst lask el iy ) ML broellConge ARSI BN o i Eark
Shenthen YeanssitahuiNa B [§] M1 Guangdosg PRC  RAEEEL1.000000 s B3 Elty iwsivent,
Iveytmen Erbpiprive imeumesd
[Lveted Parinerihip] FiuEret
WO
Begirg Gueofa Aerp Engine [l sl Beijng FRC WD 11200000 (11 nn Ror-segurie
Indusiry Imvgiiment fund wropimert wiwie
[enker [Lmited Parnershp| el et adviiony
Ll
in Bovgggethiwang Mew Enirfy  [d] F. L) B PRD RWBIERSS0000 Bl X0 Tt i .
Wanagement Cemer g e vty
[Limit=d Parinerthin] o]
Tinyian [Bedfag) Dot bgquty i) el eiing PRC AR I0R000,0 1A WE gty et
Speci Bgquity Imestment
Center |Limited Parinership]
Wationa] Green Developmest [ii] X Shasghs, PRD  RMERE 500000000 M S Eplty i,
Fund Ca_Ltd o et
el iweumeT!
managemen]
Faticrl Soial Endowrnest (] X Bajng, PRC RMELL 1500000000 (L] | 5 e
Iruiranoe 0 Lid.

il On 28 May MUS, the Sins- Congaleir Bank of Africa (Lo Beique Sino-Congalalie pour PAfrqure, herelnafter
referred to ay BSCA. Bank), establizhed by the Bank and other investors wath outhoszed capitel denomingted
im Centrod African CFA frone (“XAFT), wos granted the requived banking leense By the focal cegulvfory
outhorty, The HSonk bols 50% eguify imberest and vaiing rights in 8504, Honk, ond hes the nght o
participate in the financial and operational decivians of G5CA. Jank, bt doey nof comiitule confrol ar joinr
control over those decisions.

i The Bonk’s wholy-owned suhsidipn, ABC Firancial Assed Imvestmend Co, Lid. and' other fvestan invested in the
alevr meerliond entevprises. The Growe fuos The pight! Te poviiipoie br he Fnoacol ond operationel decisions of
these enterprises, but does pot constituie controd ar foind condral pver those decirions.

il The Donk woas opproved o porticipote in the nveibment in Noblanal Green Development Fund Co,, LEd. i 2021,
Thir Senk Folde 0 040% squily mberest ond has the gt fo porfaiomte in the fnencal ood operationm decisions,
but does met consttute confrol or jodnf comtral over those docisions.

iwl  The Donk’s wholle-ouwmed sebsidiary, Agroitvrod Ronk of Ching Weaith Monogemerd Co, Lid. ond ather

investors imvested in bhe obove mentioned enterprise. The Group hes the right to povticipate i the financio! ond
aperetional deciicns of the eriterpeiie, bl does mot corstitule conitral or foind control over thoe decivian
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 December 2022
[Amoupts im millions of Renminkd, unless otheraisn stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

{2) Investment in joint ventures

Phceal Perestage of  Percentage of
Daied  Isrpontion] Mshopsd  equtyinteret  wotingrights Princigal
Mo of pebity rabiinert baninest el 1] 1% ncthvities
Tangsu lequarsuihe Seato-wnad L] Eargiu, FRC RMEL00000000 £9.00 857 Equiyimettont,
Enterprine Mised Qwmenbp Reform el ety and
Fand {Limifed Parineritig] e gy
SV
Kongiin Gaotou Sulbei] Dt 4o Equity HiLe Hubel FRC AMESD0,000,000 ] B Honssnrtien ety
Irvest=ment Fand InETen Ktiviis
{limited Partmershép] g ratedadinary
i
lawng S Hew B Roag 2005 Ihejung, PRC AL 500,000,000 BE.ET H hdural vesmin
Irreestmenl Fend d rgy
|Limited Parteerihin) e
Thejiang Mirw Powet Fand M0 Thejiang. PRC RKSZ 000,000,000 5000 00 ndumrial imvesiment
[uimited Patnenhis) ] gl
T
e Morgola Mesgengiaui ME e Mongslly,  ANED, 000,000,000 000 5000 Equity imveitnien,
Devetopment Fund invesiment RO e
Center limded Fantremibi) managerent and
eyt sty
ke
Sanghal Gechua (8kEas Eguity 2009 Shanghai PRC A1 ENN 000,000 B6.5T 3000 Eruly imeume,
Iavasiment Fund, Lid. progect irvesimamd,
et
vy and s
rungrTes
Sergylnhun [Leng) Eguty 19 ejacg PRC  AMBAI0000000 03 5000  [Equtyimemes
frretstmant Parineniaip
{limited Partiershipi
Fmingriy nhasngtee [guity i Fasin, PAC RMB2, 500,000,000 o NN Eyetyremes
It [Tiargn) Fung w1 FubTen)
| Lirnitist Partsethin| FgETen
Shaaro Suhe Eguity Irvestment Furd bijt] Shaarod, FAC RMB1, 000,000,000 500 0m Lquity investment

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Dank, ABC Financial Asset Investment Co., Ltd. and ather
investors established the above-mentioned entities. According te the agreements, matters
condidered at the Meeting of Partners or investment decision-making committes shall be approved
by the unanimous consent af all the partners or all the committee members, The Group constitutes
Joint control over the financial and operational decisions of these limited partnerships with the other
investars.
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Fod the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21 PROPERTY AMND EQUIPMENT

Machinery
and Maoter Construction
Buildings  equipmant vehicles  in progress Tatal

Cost:

1 January X022 165,309 65,906 16,398 5,516 81,129
Additions 1,673 T.203 730 B, 100 17,315
Transfors inflout) 4,048 1,204 - (6,152} =
Other mavements [3.574) [5,347) {1,875] %) (10,805)
31 Decembser 2022 193,356 B8, 966 15,253 10,064 287,639
Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2022 (77.605) [45,724) {4,110} - [127,439)
Charge Tor the year (6,951} [6,283) (775) = 14,015)
Other movements 1,117 4,885 (o] = 6,701
31 December 2022 (83,439 [47,128) {4,186} - (134,753)
Allowanece for impairment losses:

1 January 2022 1270) 18] (81) {34 (391)
Impairment hoss 1z) - {11) = [13)
Oither movemeants 9 1 ag = 50
31 Docember 2022 {263) {51 (12} {34) {314)
Camying amount:
1 lanuary 2022 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299
31 December 2022 109,654 21,833 11,055 10,030 152,572
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Machinery
and Mator  Construction

- Bulldings __ equipment vehicles in progress Tetal

Cost:

1 January 2021 185,794 56,118 14,721 7.343 273,982

Additions 4,820 6,161 1,Ec4 7.443 20,288

Transfers inf{out) 4,482 592 194 [5,268) i

Dther movements [5.787) (B, 365) [381) (B} [13,141)

31 December 2021 189,309 65,906 16,398 9.516 281,129

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2021 (72,476} (16,282) {3.718) - (122,476}

Charge for the year {6,801) [5,951) [771) - (13,523)
_ Dther movements 1,672 6,509 379 = 8,560

31 December 2021 [77,605) (45,724) (4,110 - [127,43%9)

Allaswrance for Impairment losses:

1 lanuary 2021 (262} 9 [a7) {34) [352)

Impalrment boss {8} - [36) - (a4}

Other movements e 3 2 - 5
31 December 2021 (270) © (e B4) 35}

Carrying amount:

1 January 2021 113,056 19,827 10,956 7.315 151,154

31 December 2021 111,434 20,176 12,207 9,482 153,299

According to the relevant laws and regulations, subsequent to the Bank's transformation into a joint stock
company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Enlity are to be ransferred to the
Bank. As at 31 December 2022, the registration transfer process of these translerred properties and other
certain properties hos not been completed. Management balieves that the incomplete registration transfer
process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor to those assets or adversely affect the
Bank’s aperation.

22 DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presantation in the consolidated statement of financlal position, certain deferred tax assets
and Mabllithes have been offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets agalnst
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

2022 2021
Deferred tax assels 149,698 143,027
Delerred 1ax liabilities {a) [655)
Net 135,689 142,372
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

1

12]

264 [@imusml

The Tollowing are the movements and major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized:

Faifwihe
Alowance bx Areed Early changrs of
impudrrer bt wnpaid retreTe Fraecul
loses alt cont bewfin Frovision ttnanenty Dthen Totsl
1 laniry 2022 136059 i m L& Laam 12 lam
Creda fhare! 12 the constidaled
ssatement of profitor loxs 1.3 1383 B} LT B Ee ] F-
(harge o ather pamprehmiie come - - - - Lzl - [
31 December 2022 L5 AR o 1.1 {1413 56l La3 gas
Farmiue
Wlawanie by Boorued Tty rangss of
e bt unpadd IEETen Franod
b #all et benelity Fodsn  instroenty (then Totl
1 lareshry 2001 121,544 et 1. BE 19535 (10, 718) i% JEERIF]
Crecificharged 82 the corsabdated
eatpmiand of peofil o bes WIS 148 {118 (12 ] 56 T 1Ll
Charge o ather cemprehemive ncome - - - H fHh ] pe .15
31 December 2021 B 158 n 1461 [14437) 18 laLm

Deferred tax assets/[liabilities) and relsted temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amourts, are

attributable 10 the lfollowing items:

Beductible/ Deductible/
({taxable) Deferrod {taxabilc} Deferred
temparary tax assets/ larmiparary bax assols)
differences [labilities) diflerences {liabilities)
Deferred tax assets
Allgwance for impairment lossos 554,800 138,685 Ga4.441 136,059
Fair value changes of financial
instrurments 50,271 12,570 28,267 7.087
Accrued but unpald staff cost 59,238 14,807 47,379 11,844
Prowision 40,788 10,137 33,809 8,452
Early retiremant bonefits 758 189 1088 72
Othaers 2,220 561 TBD 1E2
_Subtotal 708,065 177,005 655,764 163,856
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial
instruments {109,455} {27,320} (86,404} (21,524}
Subiotal {109,465} [27,320) [86,404) [21,524)
Met 598,600 149,689 569,360 142,372
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 OTHER ASSETS

_ AsgtdlDecember

Motes 2022 2021
Accounts recenable and temporary payments 71,230 #5,176
Land use rights 1) 19,982 20,384
Right-of-use assets 12] 10,877 10,191
Intangie assels 7,885 6,188
Interest recelvable 3,662 1,836
Long-term deferrad expenses 2,996 2,718
Investment properties 2,153 2.018
Foraclosed assets 1,082 £99
Fremiums recelvable, reinsurance recefvabde and reserves 740 659
Others 14,458 15,567
Total 136,105 135,636

{1 Accordimg fo relevent laws and regulotions, swbsegueat to the Bonk's transfarmation info o Joinf stock compony, iend
use rights previowsty beld by the Predecessor [ntity are to be transferred to the Bonk. As ot 31 December 2022, the
registratian tronsfer process of certoln lend wse nights has not been compieted. Management believes that the
incomplete registration tronsfer process does not affect the Aghts of the Fank os the fegal successar to those lond wie
righis.

{3 The right-of-use ossets recognired by the Group molnly incude butldings, and one mainly used for doily busimess, The
deprecintion expense for the pear ended 31 December 2022 amounied to RMB3858 milfon (2021 AMB3,952 millioa],
Ag ot 21 December X022, the ocoumubrled depreciotion amounted o AMB10 688 milion (11 December 2001
AMEE. 903 mvifan)

24 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

2022 2021
Borrowings from central banks 891,603 740,625
Accrued interest 9,513 6,584
Total 901,116 747,213
25 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Ag ot 31 December
o 022 2021
Deposits fram:
Domestic banks 267,750 167,300
Other domestic financial institutions 2,121,826 1.401,314
Overseas banks 3,408 3,332
Other gverseas financial institutions 50,435 41446
Subtotal 2,443,479 1,613,392
Accrued interest 15,693 2974
Total 2,459,178 1,622,366
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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As at 31 Decamber

2022

2021

Pliscements from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 181,299 129,317
Cwverseas banks and other financial institutions 140,429 161,119
Subtotal 331,728 290,436
Accruped interost 2,027 1]
Total 333,755 281,105

27 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LO55

_Asat3lDecember

) 2022 2021
Financial liabilitles held for trading

Precious metal contracts 12,039 15,646
Financlal liabilities designated at fadr value

through profit o loss

Liabilities of the controlied structured entities 248 114
Total 12,287 15,860

For the current and prior year, there were no significant changes in the fair value of the Group®s financial
fiabifities designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to the changes in the Group's own credit

risk,

28 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Asat 31 December

2022 2021

Analyred by type of collateral;
Debt securities 40,010 31,258
Hitls. 3.560 4,720
Subtotal 43.570 36,018
Accrued interast 09 15
Total 43,773 36,033

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreemaents is disclosed in Note IV 42 Contingent Rabilities and

commitments — Collateral.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
29 DUETO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

S Note 2022 2021
Demand deposits
Carporate customers 5.470,463 5,346,931
Individual customers 6,508,440 5,978,690
Time depasits
Corporate customors 3,636,042 2,761,506
Individual customers B.479,927 7,000,805
Pledged deposits 51 427,953 335,588
Dthers 164,587 167,933
Sulbtatal 24,737,434 21,595,453
Accrued interest 383,606 311,674
Total 25,121,040 21,907,127

(1)  Analyzed by activity ta which pledged deposits are related to:

As at 31 December

2022 2021
Trade finance 152,626 127,002
Bank acoeptance 121,800 66,418
Letters of guarantee and guarantecs 52,384 #5099
Latters of crodit 50,783 32,948
Dthers 50,366 ECREE
Total a27,959 339,588

{21  As at 31 December 2022, due to customers measured at amortized cost of the Group amounted to
AMB25 093,700 million (31 December 2021: AMB21,854 821 millign), due to customers measured at fair
wilue through profit or loss of the Group amounted to RMB2T, 340 million (31 Decomber 2021:
RMBS52, 206 million). As at 31 Decermber 31022 and 31 December 2021, the difference between the fair
walue of the structured deposits designated at fair value through profit or loss ssued by the Group and
the contractual amount payable to the holders of these products upon maturity was not material,

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

. Motes _ 2022 . 021
Bonds issued i) 478,063 430,813
Certificates of deposit issued (2] 306,523 262,272
Other debt securithes issued (3] 1,074,198 816,321
Subtatal 1,858,784 1,499,406
Accrued Interest 10,614 8,251
Tolal 1,B69,393 1,507,657
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

As at 31 Decembser 2022 and 31 December 2021, there wai no default on the principal, interest or
redemption related to any debt securities issued by the Group,

{1] Bonds issued

Motes 1023 2021
2.40% CNY fixed rate Green Bonds h i o
maturing In October 2025 {ih 15,000 -
2.80% CNY fined rate Groen Bonds
maturing In October 2027 iy 5,000 -
1.25% USD fixed rate Green Bonds
maturing in January 2026 [[%1] 2,089 1.913
2.00% USD fied rate Green Bonds
maturing in lanuary 2027 (5] 2,089 -
SOFR+0.55% USD float rate Green Bonds
maturing in March 2023 (L] 209 -
4.95% subordinated fived rate bonds
maturing In December 2027 (v} - 50,000
4.45% Tier-two capltal fled rate bonds
maturing in October 2027 {wil) - 40,000
4.45% Tier-two capltal fixed rate bonds
maturing in April 2028 il 40,000 40,000
4.26% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in March 2029 [[54] 50,000 50,000
4.30% Tiar-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in April 2029 = 40,000 40,000
3.10% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in April 2030 {xi} 40,000 40,000
3.45% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in June 2032 i} 40,000 -
4.53% Tier-bwo capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in March 2034 {uii} 10,000 10,000
4.63% Tier-two capital fixed rate bands
maturing in April 2034 [EY] 20,000 20,000
3.65% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in lune 2037 [mw} 20,000 -
3.03% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in September 2032 [E] 50,000 -
3.34% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds
maturing in September 2037 (il 20,000 =
Muodium term notes issued [pewidi) 57,643 56,305
1.55% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in April 2023 {xix) 20,000 20,000
3.38% fined rate financial bonds maturing in April 2024 {mx] 20,000 20,000
3.68% CNY fived rate Green Bonds
maturing in June 3022 {ail} - 2,770
3.90% fixved rate financial bonds
maturing In November 2023 [} 2,000 2,000
3.06% fixed rate Nnancial bonds
maturing in August 2024 {miii} 2,500 2,500
3.30% fixed rate financial bonds
maturing In September 2022 [wnine} - 3,870
1.66% fixed rate financial bonds
maturing in March 2023 (B 4,000 4,000
3.40% fied rate financlal bonds
maturing in September 2024 [} 2,000 2,000
2.75% fined rate financial bonds
maturing in March 2025 [wsnwil) 6,000 6,000
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

(1) Bondd issued [Continued)

_ Asat3l December
Notes 2022 2021
3.20% fided rate financial bonds maturing in June 2035 [enenil) 500 500
4.10% lixed rate financial bonds maturing in April 2026 [acmin} 1,099 1,100
3.80% fixed rate financial bonds maturing in June 2026 [Ees] 2,598 3,000
5.55% lixed rate capital replenishment bonds
rmaturing In March 2028 [FEH ] 3,500 3,500
3.60r% fixed rate capital replenishment bonds
maturing in March 2030 [caii} 1,500 1,500
Tatal neminal value ATH,127 430,558
Less: Unamortized ssuance cost and discownts (B} [145)
Total 478 063 420,813

Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authorities, the bonds issued by the Group are set out
a8 below:

i The CNY green bonds issued in October 2022 howe o matwity of 3 peors, with o fived coupon rate 2 40%,
payuble orawmly.

f) The CHY green bonds issued in Ootober 2022 hawe o matwialty of 5 yeors, with o fived coupan rate 2 50%,
Dpayeble amnwally.

il The USD green bomds Hsced fn fanuory 2021 have o matudity of 5 years, with o fived coupon rote 2.25%,
payabie semi-onrally.

fael  The USD green boreds Bsued dn fanuery 2022 have o motwily of 5 peors, with o fleed coupon rote 2.00%,
payable semi-mnnually,

) The USD green bonds issved in Movch 2032 hove o moturily of 1 pear, with o Tool cougon rate SOFR+ 0LE5%,
payable manthdy, The bands hove expired on 2 Mavch 2023

fi}  The subardimated faed rote bondy sved in Decermber 2002 have @ motunty of 15 pears. with a fieed coupdn
rate of 4 99%, payobie annumlly, The Rank hai redeemed ofl of the bands ot face value o 70 December 2072,

frill  The Tier-two capltal Bands issued i October 2017 have a maturity of 10 peors, with o fired coupon rate of
4.45% poyable annually, The Bank has redeemed ol of the bonds of face volue on 17 Gotaber 2022,

fwis) The Tier-two copital bomds fswed in Aprl 2018 hove o metucity of 10 peors, with o fived coupon rate of 4.45%
payabde anoually, The Sank has o0 opiion to redeem part ar aff of the bonds of face velve i AarT 2023 If
specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject fo regwatory
mpproval. These Tier-two copital bends hove the write-down fratue af o Tier-two copital instrument ond they
ove quilified as Tier-two Copliod instruments in accordance with the CRRC reguirements.

faj  The Tier-rwo copite! bands sned (0 Morch 2009 hove o moturiny af 10 pears, with o fived coupan rete of 4,768%
payeble ganunlly. The Bonk hos on option 1o redeem parr or ail of the bonds at foce valve in Morch 2024 |f
spectfied redemplion conditions or stipulated In the affering documents were met, subject fo regulodory
opprowal, These Tier-two copital bonds hove the write-down feature of o Tier-two copftal instrisment and ehey
e qumified as Tier-two Capltal instruments in aocordance with the CRAC requirements.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amouins im mdllices of Renminbl, anlees of e racen stated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{1) Bonds issued [Continued)

fa]  The Tier-two copital bonds isswed in Apnl 2019 have o meturily of 10 pears, with o ficed covpan rate of 4.320%
payohie oanially. The Beak hot g option Mo redeem part or ofl of the bonds of face wbne in dpe 2024 if
specified redemprion conditions o5 stipufared in the offening dociments were met sulject 1o regulatony
appraval These Tier-two copitel boads hawe the write-down feoture of o Tier-twe copital instrument and they
are quiified of Tier-tvoe Copltal nstruments i aocordence with the CEAC requirements.

fwil  The Trev-two eopital bonds lsswed in April 2020 kave o meturily of 10 peard, with o fived covpan rate of 3.10%
payeble onnually, The denk has oo ophion o redeem part or ol of the bands af foce valkue in May 2025 if
specified redemphion conditions o5 stipufated in the offening documents were met, subfect o reguiatony
approval Theor Tier-iweo copited bonds hawe the weite.down featier of 0 Tier-two copital instrismend angd they
are quaified os Tier-twe Capltal Inghruments i accordance with the CBIAC requinements.

{x#]  The Tier-two copdtal bonds lswed in June 2022 have o moturity of 10 yecrs, with o fised covpon rote of 3.45%
payobie onnually, The donk hos an oplion fo redeem part or of of the bonds of foor vatue dn June 2027 If
specified redemption conditions o stipufated in e offering documents swere met, subject fo regulatory
approvol These Fier-hwo copitel bonds howe the write-down feoture of 0 Per<two copital instrement ang they
are quoified os Tier-two Copltal instruments i aocordance with the CERAC requirements.

{zl)  The Tier-two copite! honds issued in March JOI9 kave o maturity of 15 peors, with o fived coupan rote of 4.53%
payoble annvally. The Bonk has an eption fo redeem port or aff of the bends af face wolue in Aarch 2029 if
specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the affenring docements were met, subject fo regulaton:
approvol These Tier-hwo copitol bonds have the write-sown feature of o Tier-two copital instrument and they
ore quolified or Tier-tvo Capital instruments in socordance with the CBIAEC reguinements.

jmiw]  The Tier-two copital bonds isved in April 2019 have o moturily of 15 years, with o fived coupon rebe of 4.63%
payobie onmually. The Bonk hos an option to redeern part or off of the boods ot fooe volne in 4pnT 2029 if
specified redemplion conditions of stipufated in fhe offering dovuments were met,  subject fo reguelatory
opproval Theie Tier-two copitel bonds howe the write-down feotuwre of 0 Tier-two copital instrivment and they
are quoiified os Tier-dwo Copltol instruments in eocordance with the CBAC requnirements.

{mw]  The Tier-two copdtal bonds issved in June X022 have o moturity of 15 years, with o fived cowpor mete of 185%
payohie onnually. The Bmnk hoi an option to redeem part or off of the bands of foce value én dune 2032 if
specified redemption conditions os stipufated in the offening docwments were met, subject fo reguiatony
appravel. These Ther-twe capita! bonds have the wrile-down featire of o Tier-two copdtel instrument ard they
e guolified od Tier-fwo Capdhal fnefruments s aocordance with the CBRC requirement

j=w]  The Tier-bwo capdtal Bonds fssued dn Sepfember 2022 hove o moturity of 10 pears, with a fised coupon rote of
3.03% popable annwally. The Bank hos an option fo redeem part or aff af the bonds ot foce volie in Seprember
2027 i specified redemption carditions as slipwated in the affering documents were metd, subfect o regulanony
approval. Thedse Tier-two copital bands have the write-down feoture af o Tier-twa capitel insirument and they
are guinified @8 Tier-two Copinal Istruments i eocordance with the CBIAC requirements,

[wwii]  The Trer-twa copital Bonds fisued in September 2022 hove o moturity af 15 years, with a fired covpon rote af
3.34% popable arnuatly. The Bank hos an option bo redeern part or aff af the bonds of foce wiloe in Seplemiber
2032 i specified redempiian conditians ai stipwated in the affenng documents were mel, Julyec 1o regulatory
appraval These Tier-two copihal bamds have the wiite-down feofure of a Tier-two capitod instrument and they
are quilfied ;i Tier-twe Copdtal instruments i accordance with the CBMAC requirements,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amcnins ir mdllioes of Renminbs, anless ofheracisn sated |

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED [Continued)
(1] Bandd issued [Continued)

fuwi) Tl mediom ferm notes (“RTAE") were sswed by the Overseos Gperotions of the Group ond are megsured of
mmartired cost. The details of MTNs fsued were as followws:

31 December 2022

Outstanding

Fatisrity detes renging from Coupon rates (%) balance

Fised rate AR MTHs May 2023 to April 2024 1.60-2.90 2,801
Flxed rate HED MTNs March 2023 to June 2023 0.50=-0.66 4,906
Fioed rate LSD MTNs July 2023 to March 2027 0.r0-225 46982
Flaating rate LSO MTNs November 2023 3 months Liboreés 2.089

te 85bps
Fixed raote MOP MTNs Auguse 2023 LIS BES
Total 57643
31 December 2021

Culstonding

Maturity dates ranging fram Coupon rates (%) halpnce
Fixed rate RVE MTHs Moy 2023 ta April 2024 280-170 L
Fired rete HED MTNS Ortober 2022 to fune 2023 . 50-1.00 8,583
Fixed rote LSO MTNS July 2023 to Seplember 0. 70=1.65 3d,7a5

2026
Floating rote USD MTNs July 2022 to Novermber 2023 3 months Libar+66 11,475
1 B5hps
Taoital 56,305

faix) The fied rode finenciel bands issued by ABC in Apei! 2020 hove o moturity of 3 peors, with o fixed coupen rote of
1.99%, papatle annwally.

fxe)  The fixed robe finencanl Bonds issued by ABC in Apil 2021 have o moturity of 3 pears, with a fived coupen rote of
3385, poyoble ann ey,

{xef]  The CNY green bonds issied by ARC Financkal [easing Co, [rg) in June 2019 hove o murturity of 3 years, with o
fleed coupon rote 3.68%, popabie onovally, The bonds howe explred on 5 June 2022,

famk)  The fored rate financial bonds issed by ABC Financial Leasing Co., Lid, in Novernber 2020 bave o matuwiny of 3
peors, with @ floed coupen cobe of 3,90%, payeble amnuoily,

famai) The fleed rote financial bonds sseed by ABC Fiaonciod Leasing Go, Lid, b Avgust JET hove o matunity of 3
pears, with a flved coupan rofe of 3,06%, papeble annuoly,

[xxiy} The fiwed rate finenciol bonds isswed by ABC Finandial Asser lnvestment Co., Lfd, in Seprember J308 howe o
monrity of 3 peors, with o fived coupon rote af 3.30%, poyoble onnunly. The boads hove expired om 73
Seprtember 2022

faww)  The fired rate finonciy! bonds lssed by ABC Fiaonciod Ascet mvestment Co., Liol in AMarch 2020 hove o marornity
of 3 peors, with o fived corpon rate of 2.68%, payohie annuolly. The Bands have expired on 16 Movei 2023
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fod the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
|Amounts in millions of Reraminbi, wnless athersise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
{1) Bonds issued [Continued)

fznal The fized rote financial bonds maed by ABC Fiaonciol Afsel Invedstment Co, Lid i September JO19 have o
maturity of 5 pears, with o fixed cowpen rote of 3.40%, payable annvaliy

(endl] The fixed rode fTmargial Donds dvoed by ABC Financial Assel fvesimend Co, Ll in Morch 2020 hove o maturiy
af 5 peari. with @ fued couvpen rate of 2.75%, peyable aamnwally

[=mysid) Thee fimed rate frsrocial Bonds feswed by ASCT faves ireend Sushow Corporation Wimited i fune 2020 hove o
moturity of 5 yeavs, with o fixed coupon rate of 3.80%, peyoble ervally,

faxix) The fixedt rote fingnckal bonds issued by ABCH lnvesiment Sushou Conporetion Limwted in Apid 2021 have &
maturity of § years, with @ fixed coupon rate of 4 10%, popohle ermally,

fueef The flved rate financial bonds dsued by ABC Investment Beding Cosporstian Limvied in Jume 2021 hove @
maturity of 5 yeors, with o fieed coupon rate of 3.80%, payoble onavaliy.

fexel] The fixed rofe copitol replenishment bands issued by ABC Lifle fnsurance in Morgh 2018 have o maturity of 10
yoeors, with o fixed coupon rote of 5.55%, povable onnually. ABC Life insurance hes redeemed ol of the bands ot
face volue on § March 2523

froocd] The fiwed rofe capitod replenishmient bonds issued by ASC Lifle fnsuronce in Morch 2000 have o maturity af 10
yeors, with a flwed coupen rote of 2.60%, poyabie oamuply. ABC Lfe Inswrance has on option te redegm ol of
the bonds ot foce vlue i Movch 2005 If ABC Life fnsuronce dors mot eaevcise this optian, the coupon rate of
the bonds wowld increase to L60% per amown from 30 Maovch 2025 onwands.

{2)  As at 31 December 2022, the certificates of daposit were issued by the Cverseas Operations of the Group and
were measured ar amortized cost. The terms of the certificates of deposit ranged from seven days to five
years, with interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 5.85% per annum. (As at 31 December 2021, the terms of the
cerlificates of depesit ranged from ane month to five years, with interest rates ranging from -0.02% o
3.09% per annum.)

(3} Other debt securities issued by the Group are commercial papers and interbank certificates of deposit.

i} A% ot 31 December 2022, the commercial papers were Insued by the Overieas Operotions of the
Group ond were measured af amortized cost. The terms of the commerciel popers ranged from two
maoanths o one yoar, with interest rotes ranging from 0.00% to 3.37% per anowm, (A3 ot 31
December 2021, the terms af the commereiol papers ranged from two months to one year, with
interest rates ranging from 0.00% to 0.45% per onnum,}

i Asat 31 December 2022, the interbank certificates of deposit were swved by the Bank’s Heod Office
ond the Overseas Gperations of the Group, The terms of the interbank certiffcotes of deposit ranged
Sfrom two months to one year, with inferest rates ranging from 0.00% to 5.81% per annum, (As ot 31
December 2021, the terms of the interbonk certificate of deposit renged from one month (o one
year, with interest rates ronging from -0.51% to 0.59% per annum,}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032

{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 OTHER LIABILITIES

As ot 31 December

Motes 2022 2021
Insurance Habilities 125,130 106,767
Clearing and settlemeant 112,572 153 389
Staff costs payable 1) 71,469 59,736
Incame taxes payabbe 47,716 61,639
Prowvisian 2 40,788 33,809
Loase liahilities 10,5918 10,067
VAT and other taxes payable #4188 10,571
Amount payable to the MOF 1,732 1,286
Others 50,837 4,634
Total AT, 580 500,443
{1) Staff costs payable
Naotes 2022 2021
Shart-term employee benelits [y GE.H20 57,242
Deafined contribution benafits {iiy 1,851 1,386
Eafly retirement benafits (i) 758 1,088
Total 71,469 59,736
(i} Short-term employee benefits
102z
. L 1 fanuary Increase Decrease 31 December
Salaries, bonuses,
albewances and subsidies {a) 42,785 95,704 (E7,504) 51,985
Housing funds fa) 137 9,821 {@,781) 177
Social insurance inchuding: [} 406 B,DEZ (B,191) 338
— Medical insurance 418 5,735 [5,843) 310
— Maternity insurance 14 182 {1BL) 15
— Employrment irpury irsirancs 14 166 {167} 11
Labor unian fees and stalf
education expenses 9,145 4,312 [2,753) 10,698
Othars. 4,749 11,392 {10,513} 5,622
Total 57,262 128,312 {116,754} EBA20
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 OTHER LIABILITIES [Continued)

{1} Staff costs payable [Continued)

{it  Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

EDINETOOOO
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2021
HNote 1 lanuary Increase Decrease 31 Decermber
Salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies la) 35,010 20052 182,277) 42 TBS
Housing funds {a] 108 T 406 {9.377) 137
Sacial insurance including: (a) 185 5,805 (5,834) ddi
— Bedical insurance 36T 5,014 [5.463) 418
— BASLEIAIY INSUranoe 9 113 [218) 14
= Empoyment injury insurance 9 154 [153) 14
Labor union fees and staff
educition expenses 8,039 4,001 (2,895) 9,145
Others 3,818 10,987 110,071) 4,743
Total 47,3E0 130,336 [110,454) 57,262

(o) Saleries, bonuses, affowances ond subsidies. housing funds ond socfal inswroape one limely distribehed
ard poid in oocordance with refevont faws and regulrtions and the Group’s polioy.

fii}  Defimed contribution benefits

_ 2021 =
1 January Increass Docrease 31 Decomber

Baske pensions E54 11,283 {11,345) 628

Unemployment insurance 40 E L (342} (2]

Annuity Scheme 652 1610 [7.073) 1,195
Total 1,336 19,2689 {18,764) 1,891

T

1 laniary IFerease Decrease 31 Dacember
Basis pensions 619 10924 110,84%) G594

Unemployment insurance 0 30 EL ] 40

Annuity Scheme 723 5,593 113,563) 652

Tatal 7.830 18277 124.771) 1,386

Thi defined contribution benefits ane timely distributed and paid in sccordance with relevant laws
ond regulations and the Group's policy, There was no forfeited contribution available to reduce the
contribution payable by the Group under the abowve schemes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)
(1) Staff eosts payable (Cantinued)
{iii) Eariy retirement benefits

2022

1 lanuary Incraoase Dworease 31 Decomber

Early retitement benelits 1,088 B (368) 758
2021

1 January Increase Decrease 31 December

Early retirement benefits 1,551 15 [47H] 1,088

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

As a1 31 Decem bar

2022 2021

Discount rate 2.50% 2.58%

Annual average medical expense growth rate B.00% B.00%

Annual subsidies growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
Marmal retirement age

— Male B0 &0

— Female 55 35

Assumptions regarding future mortallty experience are based on the China Life Insurance
Mortality Table {published historical statistics in China).

Any difference arising from the actual reswlt or changes in assumptions may affect the amount
of expense recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or boss,

{2) Provision
As at 31 mhber
Mate 2022 2021
Loan commitments and financial
EUaraniae contracts i 28,051 20,271
Litigation provision 5,317 5,333
Dihers. iz 5,305
Tatal 40,788 33.R09
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For the yeas ended 31 December 3023
[Arnoniras im millices of Renminbs, anless ofherassn siated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES [Continued)
{2) Provision {Continued)

(il Analyzed by movements in loss allowance for foan commitments and financial
guarantée contracls

____Year ended 31 December 2022

EDINETOOOO
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Stage | Stage 1l Stage Wl
. — Note 12m ECL Lifetime ECL _Total
1 lanuary 2022 18,333 B51 1,267 20,271
Transfer:
Stage | transfer to Stage Hl {113} 113 - -
Stage Il transfer to Stage 1N - (133) 133 -
Stage Il transfer to Stage | 122 (122} - -
Stage Il transfer to Stage 1 - a7 97 -
Increase [a) 11,600 - - 11,600
Remeasurement 4,045 1,294 ara 5,818
Decrease fa) (8,350) (B39) {249) {9,638)
31 Docomber 2022 25,637 1,061 1,353 8,051
Year ended 31 December 2021
Stage | Stage Il Sage 10
Maota 13m ECL Lifatime ECL Tatal
1 lanuary 2021 33,356 1,661 Tig 35,756
Transfer:

Stage | ransfer to Stage 0 {155} 155 - =
Stage | transfer to Stage 1 - (219) 219 -
Srage Il transfer to Stage | 51 151) - -
Stage |l transfer to Stage 1l - £ ¥ {31} -
Increase [a) 9,797 - - 9,797
Remeasurement {79} 616 539 1,076
Docrease [a] [24,637) [1,542) {179) [26,358)
11 Decomber 2021 18,333 651 1,787 20,271

(w]  The impact af tass afewance dren By row loan commilments and fmoacie! guareates contracts signed’

tn 2022 ond 2021 Is disclosed as “Increase”. The impoct of loss oflowance deiven by watidrowals,

advanges or expiration of leon commitments and finoncis! guorastes conlrocts in 2027 ond 2021 are

disclored a5 “Decrease”, The changes of fess afk v far foan © steents and fimancial guarmatee

contracts in X2 are moinly driven by the net increase in the exposue of loon commibments ond financiol

guorantee controcts ond the increase of provision rotio The changes of foss afowance for loan
rommitments and finoncind guoranfee contracts in 2021 ore moinly driven by the net decrease bn the

exposwre of fomn commitments and fingacial guarontee contracts.
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32 ORDIMARY SHARES

31 December 2022

Number
of shares Naminal
(miltions) value
Domestic listed A shares, par value
AMIBL.00 per share 319,244 119,244
Overseas listed H shores, par value
__AMB1.00 per share. 30,739 30,739
Total 349,983 349,983
— ¥l Oecember 2021
Mumber
of shares MNanminal
{milkons) value
Damestic listed A shares, par value
RMBL.00 por share 319,244 119,244
Owerseas lHsted H shargs, par value
RBABL.00 per share 0,738 30,738
Total 349,983 349,983

Il A shares refer to the ordinary shores Nated in tise Chinese moiniond. They ore offered ond broded in AMEB. M shares
refer to the ordinary shares Ested in Hong Kong SAR. Thedr por value is denomingied dn A8 wien they wene initially
offered ond ore currently trided in HED

{2} ds ot 31 December 2023 ond 31 December 2021, the Bonk's A Shares ond H Shores wene not subject to lock-up
restriction, except fior the AE1S, 560 million ardinary shares (4 shares) Ssued thriough the private placement (n June
2018,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Financial

Eruménts pititanding

“Preference shares

= fird franche™

Prilerence shases
— Lpzond tranche™

Perpetual  Lindaind tier |
oy aplta bords
in 2059
= firgt
tranche™

Undated tier 1
captal boeds
In 2002
= sppoad

Undatad tier §
apital bonds
in 2023
— first
tranche=

Undated tier 1
capita boads
In 2022
_mw
tranche™

Dhidendrale

B.00% peer annums for the first 5
alfter wavianee, b re-priced every
5 years as stated below

5.50% per annus for the fint 5 yean
alfter ssuanie, and re-prived every
5 yeans ai sated briow

4.39% par snnus for the firt 5 yean
alter ssuznce, and re-priced every
Fyears a5 stated Delow

0 20% per annus for the first 5 year
alter issuance, and re-priced every
Fyean oy Saied below

348% per annuss for the first 5 yean
after suance, and re-priced every
5 ytars ot wated Selow

A 50% per annum for the first 5 yean
nlter tauance, b re-prived every
5 years a5 stated below

3.76% peer annum for the first 5 pear
alter Bauance, and re-priced every
5 years s anied below

149% por annun for the first § peans
alter ssuance, and re-pricsd svery
5 yeans i stated briow

307 per annum for the first § years
alter ndsiance, and re-priced every
Syears & stated Delow

number
Issued price  of sharei

|EMSyuse] [milllons) (milllon]
0

00

850

150

1%

nerinal
vakie

0000

40,000

55,000

15,000

5,000

5000

40000

0,000

30,000

Na raturity dite

He tratusity date

Hi atusity die

Mo materity ditt

Hi ettty dute

Na masturity dite

Wi ratanity dlate

A

hik

L]

L]

K&
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For the yeur ended 31 Decernbes 3022
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS [Continued)

{1} The Bank was authorized to issue no more than 800 million preference shares of RMBIOO
each, pursuant to the approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant regulatory
authorities.

The first tranche of 400 million preference shares was issued at par in November 2014, The carrying
amount, net of direct Bsuanee expenses, wat RMBID, 244 millian a5 at 31 December 2023, The first
tranche ol preference shares bears a dividend rate of 6.00% per annum; dividends are non-cumulative
and where payable, are paid annually, for the fiest five years from issuance. The dividend rate will be re-
priced every five years therealler with reference 1o the five-year PRC breasury bonds yield phes a fixed
premium of 2.29%, The first five-year dividend period gapired on 1 Nowvember 20019, During the seccond
dividend period beginning from 5 Nowember 2019, the bage rate and fixed pramium is 3.03% and 2.29%,
respectively, and the eoupon rate is 5.32%. The dividend is paid annually.

The second tranche of 400 milion preference shares was Bsued 8t par in March 2015 The carrying
amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMB39,955 million as ot 31 December 2022, The second
tranche of preference shares bears a dividend rate of 5.50% per annum; dividends are non-cumiulative
and where payable, are paid annually, for the first five years from issuance. The dividend rate will be re-
priced every five years thereafter with reference to the five-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a fixed
premium of 2.24%. The first five-year dividend period expired on 6 March 20200 During the second
dividend period beginning from 11 March 2020, the base rate and fived premium is 2.60% and 2.24%,
respectively, and the coupon rate is 4.B4%. The dividend s paid annually,

Thare were no changes in the carrying amounts of the preference shares since lssuance.

As puthorized by the ardinary equity holders in the annual general mecting, the Boord of Directors has
thi sale discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. The Bank shall not distribute
any dividends to its ardinary equity holders before it declares such dividends to preference sharehalders
for the relevant period. The distribution of preference shares dividend &s at the Bank’s discretion and is
non-cumulative. Preference shareholders are not entitled to participate in the dstrbution of retalned
carnings except for the dividends stated above.

The Bank has a redemption aption when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents are
met, subject ta regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right to request the Bank
to redeem the preference shares.

Upon liguidation, the claims of preference sharehalders have priority over ordinary equity holders on the
residual assets of the Bank, but are subordinated to those of depositors, general creditors, Tier-two
Capital Instruments holders or any other subordinated debt holders with equivalent rights.

Upon ocourrence of the triggering events as stipulated in paragraph 2{1} of the Guidance of the CBIRC on
Amendments to Commercial Banks' Innovation on Capital Instrumaents (CBIRC Mo, 42 [2019]) and swhject
to regulatory approval, the first tranche of preference shares and the second tranche of preference
shares shall ke mandatorily converted Into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the conversion price agreed,
partlally or entirely, The initlal conversion price of the preference shares issued by the Bank was RMB2.43
por share. In June 2018, the Bank has bssued 25,189 millon ordinary A shares to specific investors. The
conversion price of the preference shares will be adjusted whare certaln events ocour Including bomus
Issues, rights isswe, capitalization of reserves and new issuances of ordimary shares, subject to terms and
formulas provided in the offering documents, to maintain the relative interests between preference
shareholders and ordinary equity holders, Upan completion of the private placement of ordinary shares
by the Bank, the mandatory conversion price of the first tranche of preference shares and the second
tranche of preference shares issued by the Bank will be adjusted from RMB2.43 per share to RMB2.A6
per share.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{1} The Bank was authorized to isswe no more than 800 million preference shares of RMBIOO
each, pursuant to the approval by its ordinary egquity holders and refevant reguiatory
authorities. (Continued)

These prefarence shares are classified a5 equity instruments, and presented a: equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and are gualified as Additional Tier-one Capital Instruments in
accordanee with the CBIRC requirements,

The earrying amount of the preference shares issued by the Bank, net of direct issuance expenses, was
RMBTS,899 million as at 31 December 2022 [31 December 2021: RMBTS, 839 miilion].

f2)  With the approval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bank
was permitted to isswe undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (“Perpetual bonds” or the
“Bonds") of an amount no more than RMBET 20 billion in 2018,

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (first tranche] with the amount of RMBES billion
in the national interbank bond market on 16 August 2018, and the issuance was completed on 20 August
2019, The denomination of the Bonds is RMB100 each. The Bonds do not have any step-up mechanksm or
any ather incentive to redeem, The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at defined intervals
and determined by 8 benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a distribution rate adjustment period
overy 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years is 4.39%.

The Bank isswed undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (second tranche) with the amount of AMB3S
billken in the natbonal interbank bond market on 3 September 2019, and the ssuanoe was completed on 5
Septomber 2019, The denomination of the Bonds is RMBL100 each, The Bands do not have any step-up
mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fined spread, with a distribution rate
adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years is 4,200,

‘With the approval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bank was granted o
Msue undated additional tier 1 capital bonds of an amount no more than AMB120 billien in 2020,

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (first ranche) with the amount of RMBBS billion
in the national interbank bond market on 8 May 2020, and the issuance was completed on 12 May 2020,
The denamination of the Bonds & AMBLOD each, The Bonds do net have any step-up mechanism or any
other incentive to redeam. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at defined intervals and
devermined by a benchmark rate plus a ixed spread, with a distribution rate adjustment period every 5
years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five yoars s 3 485,

The Bank iswued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (second tranche] with the amount of RMB3AS
billizn in the national interbank bond market on 20 August 2020, and the ssuance was completed on 24
August 2020, The denomination of the Bands s AMB100 each, The Bonds do not have any step-up
mechaniem or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fized spread, with a distribution rate
adjustrment peried every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first filve years is 4.50%.

With the approval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bank was granted to
sue undated sdditional tier 1 eapital bonds of Bn amount ne mare than AMB120 billien in 2021.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

{2} With the approval from the annual general meeting and regulatory authorities, the Bamk was
permitied to issue undated additional tier | capital bonds {“Perpetual bonds® or the “Bonds")
of an amount no more than RMBI1 20 billion in 2019, (Continwed)

The Bank issued undated additional ther 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount of RMBA0 billien
in the national interbank bond market on 12 Nowvermnber 2021, and the ssuance was completed on 16
Nowember 2021, The dencmination of the Bonds is RMB100 ¢ach, The Bonds do not have any step- up
mechanism or any other incentive to redeem, The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
defined imervals and determingd by a benchmark rate plus & fixed spread, with a distribution rate
adjustment perfed every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years is 3.76%.

The Bank issued undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount of AMBSO billien
im the national interbank bend market on 18 February 2022, and the issuance was completed on 22
Fobruary 20232, The donomination of the Bonds is RMBLI00 cach, The Bonds do not have any stopoup
mechanism or any other imcentive o redeem. The distribution rate of the Bonds will be adjusted at
defined Intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a distribution rate
adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate far the first five years is 3 49%.

The Bank issued undated additsonal ther 1 capital bonds {second tranche] with the amount of RMBI0
Billion in the national interbank bond market on 1 September 2022, ond the Bawanoe was completed on 5
September 2022, The denomination of the Bonds s AMB10D each. The Bonds do not have any step-up
maochanism or any other incentive to redesm, The distribution rate af the Bonds will be adjustod at
defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a distribution rate
adjustment period every 5 years, and the annual coupon rate for the first five years is 3.17%.

The duration of the Perpetual bonds is the same as the continuing operation of the Bank, Subject to the
satisfaction of the redemption conditions and having oblained the prior approval of the CBIRL, the Bank
may redeem the Bonds in whale or in part an each distribution payment date fram the fifth anniversary
since the issuance date of the Bonds. Upen the occurrence of a trigger event for write-downs, with the
appraval of the CBIRC and without the need for the consent of the holders of the Bonds, the Bank has the
right to write down all or part of the aggregate amount of the Bonds then issued and outstanding. The
claims of the holders of the Bonds will be subordinated o the daims of depositers, peneral ereditors and
subordinated indebtedness that ranks senior to the Bonds; and shall rank in priority to all classes of
shares held |:|||- shareholders and will rank pari passu woith the claims in respect of any other additional tier
1 capital instruments of the Bank that rank parl passu with the Bonds.

The distributions on the Perpetual bonds are non-cumulative. The Bank shall have the right to cancel
distributions on the Bonds In whole or in part and any such cancellation shall not constitute an event of
default. The Bank may at its diseretion use the proceeds from the cancelled distribution to meet other
obligathons as they fall due. But the Bank shall not make any distribution to ordinary shareholders until its
decision to resume the distribution payments in whale to the holders of the Bonds.

The net proceseds from the Esuance of the Perpetual bonds after deducting offering related expenses
ware used to replenish the Bank's additional tier 1 capital.

The carrying amount of the undated additional tier 1 capital bonds Esued by the Bank, net of direct
Bsuance expenses, was RMB359,970 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB279,973
millignj,
34 CAPITAL RESERVE
The capital reserve mainly represents the premivm related 1o ordinary shares publicly issued by the Bank in
2010 and private placement of ordinary shares to the specific shareholders in 2018, Share premium was

recorded in the capital reserve after deducting direct issuance expenses, which consisted primarily of
underwriting fees and professional fees.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

2022
Grois carrying
o amount Tax effect Net effect
31 December 2021 45,408 {11,482} 34,927
Fair value changes on debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehansive income:
— Amount of gains recognized directly in ather
comprehensive income (15,523) 3,749 {11, 774)
— Amouwnt removed from other comprehensive
intame and recognized in prafit o loss (434) 109 [325)

Loas aflowance on debt instruments at fair value

through ather comprehansive incame 16,818 [a,407) 12,431
Fair valug changes on other equity investments

at falr value through other comprehensive income:

= Amount of gains recognized directly in athar

comprehensive income 128 {33} a5
31 December 2022 A7.418 [12.064) 35,354
P — 2“!1
Gross camying
arabint _Tax effect _Net effect
A1 Decomber 2020 34773 (8, 7EE) 25,987

Fair valug changes on debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income:
= Amount of gains recognized directly in othar

comprehensive Income B442 [2,192) 7.250
— Amgunt removed from other comprehensive
income and recagnized in profit or boss {1,131) 283 {848}

Loss allowance on debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 3.607 1902} 2,705
Fair value changes on other equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income:
— Amount of gains recognized directly in ather
comprehensive income [2B2) 115 {167}

31 December 2021 46,408 (11,482) 34,927

36 SURPLUS RESERVE

Under PAC Law, the Bank i3 required to transfer 10% of its net profit determined under the PRC GAAP to & nan-
distributable statutory surplus reserve. Appropriation to the statutory swplus reserve may cease whan the
balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital. Pursuant fo the resolution of the Board of Directors'
Meeting held on 30 March 2023, an appropriation af 10% of the profit for the current year, determined wnder
the generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC, to the stalutory surplus resecve, in the amount of
RMB 25,309 million {2021: RMB24,335 million) was approved, In addition, certain subsidiaries and everseas
branches alse appropriated surplus reserves in accordance with local requirements.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 SURPLUS RESERVE (Continued)

Subject to the appraval of the ordinary equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be wsed for replenishing
atcumulated lostes or increasing the Bank's ordinary share capital, The statutary surplis reserves amount used
to increase the ordinany share capital is imited to a level where the balance of the statutory surplus resences after
such capitalization is not less than 25% of the ordinary share capital,

17 GEMERAL RESERVE

Pursuant 1o Caijin [2012] Ne, 20 “Reguirermnents on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions™ (the
"R:l:pir:m:nt'] isaued by the MOF, effective an 1 July 2012, in addition to impairment h"vwmce, the Bank
establishes a general reserve within ordinary equity holders' equity through the appropriation of profit to address
unidentified potentizl losses. The general reserve should not be less than 1.5% of the aggregate amount of risk
assels as defined by the Reguirement. The general reserve includes regulatory reserve appropriated by the Bank's
overseas branches pursuant to kocal regulatary requirements,

Pursuam to relevant PAC domestic regulatory requirements, some domestic subsidiaries of the Bank are required
to appropriate certain amounts of thelr net profit as general reserves.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred ANVB 36,984 million {2021: RMEBSD, 167 milllan)
to the General Reserve pursuant to the regulatory reguirements in the PRC and overseas jurisdictions. Of this
amount, RMB32_221 million (2021: RMB39,217 million] related to the appropristion proposed for the year
ended 31 December 2021 which was approved in the annual general meeting beld on 29 June 2022,

On 30 March 2023, the Board of Directors’ meeting approved & proposal of appropriation of RMBG? 557 million
to general reserve. Such appropriation will be recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements alter
approval by ordinary equity holders in the forthcoming onnual genefal meeting.

38 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents nclude the following
balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

2022 2021

Cash 67,180 74,610
Balance with central banks 169,295 101,010
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 145,374 12,163
PMacements with and loans to banks and

ather linancial institutions 172,663 103,110
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,151,121 B33.EB9
Total 1,705,633 1,124,762

35 OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internsl organicational structure, management requirements
and internal management reporting rules of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Beard and relevant
management committeas, which constitute the chiefl operating decision makers, for the purposes of allocating
resources Lo segments and assessing their performance. The Group's chiel operating decision makers review
three different sets of financial information based on (i) geographical locations, {il] business activities and (i)
County Ares and Urban Ares banking business,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
359 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Theé meaiurement ﬁl{iwn! assetd and Rabilities, as well ai seégment revenue, expense and results are bated
an the EI"DLIP'{ ﬂttﬂl.l.l'lﬂl" pﬂh!lﬂ. There i no difference between the ﬂl:l:l'lllhli'l‘lg {ﬂrﬂh't uted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements and those uied in preparing the operating segment
infarmation,

Transactions between segments are conducted under normal eommereial terms and conditions Internal
charges and transfer pricing are determined with reference to market rates and have been reflected in the
performance of each segment.

Segment revenue, results, assets and labilities include items directly attributable to o segment o4 well os those
that can be sllocated on & reasonable basis.

Geographical operating segments

The details of the geographical operating segments are a3 follows:

Head Office

Yangize River Dela: Shanghal, liangsu, Thejiang, Ningbo

Pearl River Delta: Guangdong, Shenthen, Fujian, Xiamen

Bohai Rim: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebed, Shandong. Qingdao

Central China: Shanxi, Hubei, Henan, Hunan, liangxi, Hainan, Anhui

‘Western China: Chongging. Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan, Shaans, Gansu, Qinghal, Mingxia,
Xinjiang (including Xinfang Production and Construction Corps Branch), Tibet,
Inner Mongolia, Guangxi

Northeastern China: Linaning, Heilangjiang Him, Dalian

Owerseas and Others: Subsidiaries and overseas branches
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical aperating segments (Continued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3% OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical aperating segments [Continued)
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3% OPERATING SEGMENTS {Continued)
Business aperating segments
The details of the business operating segments are a5 follows:
Corporate banking
The corparate banking segment provides finaneial products and services to corporations, government agencies

and financial institutions, The range of products and services includes corporate loans and advances, trade
I'In;nr.q:-, depaait products, corporate weisalth managéement sérvicet and other types of corporate mtermaediary

services,

Personal banking

The personal banking segment provides linancial products and services to individual eustomers. The range of
products and services includes persanal loans, personal deposit, card business, personal wealth management
services and other types of personal intermediary services.

Treastury operations

The Group's treaswry operations conduct moncy market and repurchase transactions, debil instruments
imvestments, precious metal transactions and defivative trangactions for its own asccounts or on behall of
CLSEOMETs,

Cthers

Others comprise components of the Group that are not attributable 1o any of the above segments, along with

certain assets, labilithes, income o expenses of the Head Office that could nol be allacated on 8 reasonable
basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Business aperating segments [Continued)
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Corporate Personal Tressiery Consolidated
barking banking operatien Others total
Far the year snded 31 Dacember 2007
External interestintome 417,683 3674 339,541 7,543 1,508,547
External infarest axpensa [160,828) [239.431) [115,21%) (3,063} {518,581)
Wilef-Sapmant net Interel [Smenial/inddms {29,880} 124,630 1194.750] - -
_li!l_'ntnrntln:nmr 226,951 338,823 29,671 A, 480 SIELH&_
Few and comimission ncom 57,633 31156 905 4,724 95518
Fee and commitsion expanie [7.a7a) |6 4E8) [aa] {256) (14 2386)
Hek fee and commission income 50,183 25,750 el 4,458 H1XR2
Het irading gainf{loss) - - &I07 [1,188) 5519
Wt (losslgain on fimancial investments [ELH ] |2%4) 1338 5,578 5,908
Het gain on derecogrition of financial attets
measured at amortized cost - - 154 3 150
Qther pperating ingome 1,131 2Ed 5,715 34,837 42,563
Dparating income 277544 355,348 44438 LR E T5.49%
Qperating expenses 186,065 {123,520} [24,248] {40,189) {¥7a,033)
Credit Impairment lovses [100,987) {45,775) 1A14 |83} {145, 267)
kmpalrment lsses an oiher assels [4T) = = [12) 159)
Operating prafi 9,514 186,053 20,012 7581 306,150
_Share of results of associates and joint ventures = a = 68 56
Frofit belore tax R9.514 156,053 13,02 7,647 HeTlE
Eame Lk Experse [47.528]
Profit lor ihe year 256,688
Depeeciation ard amortization included
i aperaling Enpemses 5007 10987 3662 509 T0B6S
Caphal expendiurne 4,885 11004 4,418 2,405 22862
M at 1 December 20322
Segment assets 11,695,117 7512287 18,167, 923 407 %08 33,777 Bas
Includéng: Imeestmient in &ssociates and
|oint weniures - - - B,092 B092
Unafiocated assots 145,698
Total assots 18,507 550
Segment liabilities [9.945,976]  (I5450L970) [5A68,192) |338,210] (31,205357)
Unallocated liabikthes .
Total labsdinies 131,253,082)
Lean commiibments and financial
guaranigs Lontracts 2308207 104,186 - - 2,412,393
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS [Continued)

Busineiz aperating segments [Continued)

Cefparste Personal Trediury Condalidned
banking barking aperations Others total
For the year anded 31 December 2021
External | Mienestinpome G065 313486 34,3689 &071 1,008,014
[xtesnalintenest expenie {129,813) {210.535) 1B, 184) (3.306) 430,027}
Inter-Legmant net intarest (ecpense]incame [24,981) 185,820 {151, 848] - -
Metinterest income 227.27% 289,650 55157 4675 STr.oar
Fe @and commiksion income a7 342,090 1053 3,851 BT
e and Camimaion Eape rae 131,392} |6.634| [EL] (327 [18.392]
Met fes and commiilon income 48,3580 27 456 1019 151 B0,320
et trading gain - - 11,045 3.0 14,241
et {lozs)fgain an financial irvestments [2.181) [F5) 17,158 5,133 15,005
Het gain on derecognition of financal aasets
matasured atamartized cost - - 1 - 11
Otheer operating inoome 1,475 1341 357 30,370 143
Dperating Income 264,850 318.402 v 47,503 TIL TG
Dperaling expenses |82,315) (122,563 {29, 163] (36,129} (260,275}
Creditimpairmant losses {111,267 49,673} (4,567) (378} | 465,586}
Impairment lpstes 0m o1her 3358 [F2) L] ] (36) |114}
Dperating prafy 76,243 156,063 53,105 10,960 295,471
Share of nesu'ts of associates and joint ventues - - - a0 o
Predit bafore tax 76,243 156,063 59,085 11,363 195,580
INCOME Lix eXpefse [53,944)
Prodit for the year 241,936
Depreciation and amostization indluded
if apsraling Svparmes 5,230 10484 3,630 453 19,797
LCapral expendiure 5,933 13 909 5,510 1,592 16,944
A ot M December 2021
Segment asiels 5,535,860 1,110,002 11,884,433 191,833 IM926,128
including; investment in associates and
jaint vertured = - " 8,707 8,397
Unaflocated assets T
Total assets 20,060 155
—
Segment linkslities (#833.003)  (13,357.389) (#.083,852] [311,168)  (26,585.502)
Unallocated liabsligies |H‘,.H:ﬂ_
Total liabdinies (26,647,796
Loan commitments and financial
guarantes contracts 1,213,042 B74,363 - - 2.08E, 305
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 Decemiber 2022
[Arnoniras im millices of Renminbs, anless ofherassn siated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
389 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Caunty Area and Urban Area segments

The Group’s operating segments organized by County Area and Urban Anea banking butiness are set oul as
Tallows:

County Area banking business

The Group’s County Area banking business provides a broad range of fimancial products and services to
customers in désignated County Area, through its opérating branches in the counties or county-level cities
throughout the PRC, The products and services mainly comprise loans, deposits, bank cards, and other types of
intermediary services,

Urban Area banking business

The Group's Urban Area banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the County Area banking
business, overseas branches and subsidiaries.

200 | (D PevaRY
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35

202 | (D awany

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Caunty Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

County rea  Urban Area
banking banking Consolidated
g gEasans, S business  business Elminations total
For the year ended 31 December 2022
External interest income 291,067 H17 4BD - 1,108,547
External imterest expenie | 1565, 864] (353,717 - (518,581}
Inter-segment net intarest income/jeapense] 58544 (158,543) = =
Net interest income W3,747 306,219 £ __Taee
Fee and comenission income ] 57,739 = 95,518
Fee and commission expense (5,986] {8,250) - (14,236)
et fee and commission Income 31,13 45,488 - 81,282
Net trading {loss)/gain {1,950 7,509 5519
Net [loss]/gain on financial investments [211] 6,120 5,909
Net gain on derecagnition of financial assets
measured al amartized cost = 160 = 160
_Dther aperating income 4,441 18,212 - 42,653
Operating income 317,780 407,719 - 72545949
Dperating expenses [115,112) [158,911) - (274,023)
Credit impairment losses {71,334) (73,933} - {145,267}
Impairmant losses on other assets [17] [42) - [58)
Dperating profit 131,317 174,833 306,150
Share of results of associates and joint ventures - & - &6
Prafit before pax 131,317 174,899 . 306,216
IfezarE {hn exfiemse (47,528}
Profit for the year 758688
Depreciation and amortization ncluded
in operating expanses B 291 1.5 - 20,855
Capital expenditure E,012 16,850 - 12 BE2
s at 31 December 2022
Segment assets 12,003,909 12,160,053 (386,167) 33,777,435
Inchuding: nwestment in associates and joint ventures - 8,092 - 8,092
Unallocated assots 145,898
Total assets — 23 JITI3F
Segment llabligies {11,093,700) {20,497 E24) 385,167  (31.205.357]
Unallocated Rabilities [47,725)
Total liskilnies 131,253,082}
Loan commitments and financial guaraniee contracts 815,000 1,597,193 - 2,412,393
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Continuved)

County Area Wrban Area

banking Bbanking Consolidated
buisiness business Eliminations totad
For the year ended 31 December 2071
Externalinterest income 259,517 748,437 = LD0E 0L
External interest expense {140,954) | 289,073] - {430,027}
Inter-sepment net interest incomae[expense) 136,984 [136,984) - -
Met interest incame 255,547 332,440 - 577,947
Fee andcommission income 18,344 60377 - 98,721
Fee and commission expeme (7.328) [11,004) - [18,352)
Kat foe andcommission income 30,956 48,373 - 80,329
Net trading gain Ga9? 7,744 - 14241
Mt [loss)/gain om financial investments [2.478) 17511 - 15,035
et gain on derecognition of financial assets
measured alamortized cost - 1 - 11
Orther operating incoma 4471 29,672 - 34,143
Operating income 294,995 426,751 - 121,746
Dperaling expenses (104,046 (156,225) - (260,275)
Credit impairment losses {64,700} {104,098) - {165,BBE)
{rnp siprriest lnsSes oW SEMT RIS 148) 168) = L]
Operating profit 126,111 169,360 - 195,471
Share of results of associates and joint ventures - 4048 - 409
Profit before tax 116,111 169,769 - 195 880
Income tas expense 53.544)
Prafit for the year —al3E
Depreciation and amartization incduded
in nperating expenses 7,758 12,03% - 19,797
Capital expenditure G521 20,423 - 26,944
As at 31 December 2021
Segment assets 10,419,215 18,612,453 (105,580) 78,926,128
Ingluding: Irvestment in associated and jaint ventures = 8,297 = B.257
Unallocated assets 143,027
Total assets — 25,069,155
_m_ﬂ_t_ll;ﬂ_ﬁ_l‘tles |9.5131.IE.F!| IHEIE_B_,EE.] 105540  (26.585.502)
Unaliocated liabiiities (62.294)
Total liabilities — 126647 7961
Lozn commitments and financial guarantee contracts 703,432 1.384 883 - 2,088 305
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRAMNSACTIONS
(1) The Group and the MOF

As at 31 December 2022, the MOF directly owned 35, 39% (31 December 2021 35.29%) of the ordinary
shares of the Bank,

The MOF (s a Chinese government ministry, primarily respansible fer managing state ficcal revenue and
expenditure, and establishing and enforcing tazation policies. i reports 1o the Chinese State Couneil.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF i its ordinary courie ol business under fnormal
commaorcial terms. Details of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021

Ratio to Ratio to
similar simitar
Balance pransactions Balance  pranssctions
Assels
Treasury bonds and special government
bond 913,436 9.58% 797,193 9.69%
Receivable from the MOF EEEN ] 1.49% 324,619 31.094%
Liabilities
Due to customers 4,377 0.02% 4,018 0.02%
Other liabilities
= redemption of treasury bonds on
behalf of the MOF a 0.00% 4 0.00%
— amount payablc to the MOF 1,732 0.36% 1,286 0.26%
Year ended 31 Decembaer
2022 2021
Ratio to Ratio to
similar similar
Amount transactions Amount Iransaclions
Interest income 32,424 2.92% 28,513 2.83%
Interest expanse |58) 0.01% (50} 0.01%
Fee and commission incomea 1,382 1.45% 1,133 1.15%
Het trading gain 103 1LE7% 126 0.BE%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with the MOF during the year are as follows:

__Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Treasury bonds and recelvable from the MOF 0.00-5,00 0.00-9.00
Db 16y ELStOAIG A 0.00D01-4.43 0:01-0.E0

The Group's redemption commitment for treasury bonds undenwriting is disclosed in Note IV &2
Contingent labilitkes and commitments.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [Continued)

{1) The Group and Hulfin

204 (@eMs e

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ["Huijin™) is a wholly-owned subdidiary of China Investment Corporation
Umited, which Is incorporated with authorized capital of RMBEZE 209 million in Beijing, PRC, Huijin was.
edtablished to hold certain equity interests in state-owned fimancial institutions as authorized by the
Chinese State Council and does not engage in other commereial activities. Huijin exercises its legal rights
and assumes obligations related to the Bank on behall of the PRC Gavernment.

As ot 31 December 2022, Huijin directly owned 40.03% 13] December 2021: 40.03%) al the ordinary
shares of the Bank.

Transactions with Huijin

The Group enters into transactions with Huijin in its erdinary course of business. These balances and
transactions ane priced based on market prices and conducted under normal commercial terms. Details of
the major balances and transactions are as follows:

fis at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021

Ratio to Ratio o
similar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transoctions
Azseis
Loans and advances to customers 14,012 0.07% - -
Financial mvestments 31747 0.33% 52,357 0.64%
Liabilities
Due to customens 11,745 0.05% 38,0090 0.17%
Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
Ratio to Ratio b
similar simidar
Amount transactions  Amount  transaclions
Intedest imscome 1,077 0,105 1,787 0.18%
Interest pxpense (395] 0.08% [B16) 0.14%
Ket trading gain 3 0.05% 23 0.16%

Interest rate ranges for transactons with Huijin during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

; % %

‘Loans and advances to EUSTOMErs 1,65 Mfa
Financial investments 2.15-5.15 2.15-4.38
Db 10 CUSTOmMErs 0.45-2.10 0.45-2,10
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
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40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

f2)

The Graup and Huijin (Continued)

Transactions with companies under Huljin

Huifin has equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions wnder the direction af the
Central Government. The Group enters into transactions with these banks and financial inctitutions in the
ordinary course of business. These balances and transactions are priced based on market prices and
conducted under normal commercial terms. Details of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

As Al 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021

Ratio to Ratio to
similar samilar
Balance transactions Balamce  transactions
Aty
Depasits with banks and ather financial
institutions 120,662 19.13% 348,842 A0.6E%
Placemants with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 61,552 12.30% 123,271 27.58%
Derivative financial assets 6,045 19.69% 4,003 18.21%
Financial assois held under resale agreements 46,008 3.92% 27577 3.29%
Loans and advances to customers 31,468 0.17% 20,935 0.13%
Financial investments 851,275 B5.93% TIG027 B.04%.
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial
Institutions 122,269 4.97% 79,144 4.88%
Placements from banks and other financial
Institutions 91,97 27.56% 68,168 23.42%
Derivative financial labilities 5,604 18.08% 2,747 14.21%
Fimancial assets cold under repurchase
agresments 6,155 14.D6% 8,909 27.50%
Due to customers 3032 0.01% 4,159 0.02%
Equity
Other equity instruments 2,000 0.45% 2,000 0.56%
Of-balance sheet items
Letters of guarantee and guarantees 1,239 0.38% 1,800 0.59%

417/509
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [Continued)

{2) The Group and Huifin (Continuved)
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Transactions with companies under Hulfin [Continued)

Year ended 31 December
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2022 2021

Ratio ta Ratio to

sirmilar milar

S Amaunt transactions  Amount  transactions
Interest incoma 20,359 1.84% 20,143 2.00%
Intefest pxpene (2,91E) 0.56% {1,473) 0.34%
Met trading gain UL 12.67% 1,887 13.25%
Met gain on financial investrments 4,194 70.98% 3,061 20,36%

Interest rate ramges for transactions with companies under Hudjin during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2022
Deposits with banks and ather linancial institution -0.90-2.50
Placements with and loans ta banks and ather financial
Imstitutbons -0.25=9.50
Derivative financial assets 0.00-7.15
Financlal assets held under resale agreaments 2.65-4.40
Loans and advances o customers 0.00-6.15
Finaneial invvestments 0.00-5.98
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions D0.00-3.99
Pacements from banks and other financlal institutions -0.20-6.03
Derivative financtal Rabilities 0.00-6.26
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreemanis 2.00-4.23
Due to customers 0.0001-3.99
Driher eguily instruments 4,64

2021
__. 3
0.00-4.05

-0.52=4.00
0.02-5.00
2.55-3.89
0.00-4.90
0.00-2.00
0.23=-3.04
0.43-3.45
0,02-5.00
2.03-4.00
0.00-3.99
4.84
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(3) The Group and National Council for Soclal Security Fund of the People’s Republie of China

ag at 31 December 2022, the Bank™s shares held by National Cowncil for Social Security Fund of the
People’s Republic of China (the *55F") accounied for 6.72% of the Bank's total share capital (31
December 2021 6.72%). The Group enters inte transactions with the 55F in the ordinary course of
business. These balances and trantactions are priced bated on market prices and conducted under
narmal cammercial terms, Details of the major balances and transactions are as fallows:

Ratho to Ratho to
simllar smilar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
Adiets
Financial assets held under resale agreements 41,549 3.54% 43,755 5.22%
Liabilitles
Due to customers 78,773 0.31% 65,415 0.30%
Equity
Orther equity instruments 1,250 0.28% 1,250 0.35%
_.Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
Ratia ta Ratio to
similar similar
Amount transactions Amount  lransactions
Interest income 29 0.00% 32 0003
Interest capense {2,798} 0.54% [2.228) 0.52%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with 55F during the year are as follows:

Year endid 31 December

2022 2021
Fimancial as=2ts held under resale agreements 2.45-4.30 2.58-3.90
Duser b ELUSTGMIErs 0454 26 0.46—4.26
Other equity instruments 4.84 4 B4

Aerual epert 3023 | 29T

419/509



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amounts im millions of Renminbi, aness ofhe reise stated|

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{4) The Graup and other government related entities

Other thon disclosed above, & significant portion of the Group's banking transactions are entered into
with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and ather State controlled entities. These transactions
are entered into under normal cormmercial terms and conditions and mainly include provision of eredit
and guarantee, deposits, foreign exchange trantactions, dervative transactions, agency services,
underariting and distribution of bonds issued by government agencies, purchase, sales and redemption
of investment securities issued by government agencies.

bManagement contiders that these transactions are activities conducted in the ardinary course of business,
and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or undudy affected by the fact that the
Group and those entities are governmenl related. The Group has also established pricing policies Tor
products and services and such pricing policies da not depend en whether or not the custamers are
gowernment autharities, agencies, affiliates and other State controlled entities.

(5] The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Bank had the lollowing balances and transactions with [ts subsidisries in its ordinary course of
business, These balances and transactlons are priced based on market prices and conducted under
normal commercial terms. Details of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

A Db TERE YR T
Ratio to Ratio 1o
similar similar
Balance transactions Balance  transactions
ASSELS
Placements with and leans to banks and
other financial institutions 83,895 16.77% 84,863 18.99%
Financial investments 601 0.01%: 165 0.00%
Ortheer assets 188 0.21% 102 0.08%
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and otber
financial institutions 15,881 0.65% 14,079 0.87%
PMacements from banks and other
financial institwtions 798 0.249% - -
Duer to cLSLOMErs 2,247 0.01% 1,857 0.01%
~ Ortheer liabilitios 15 0,00% QBB 0. 20%
Off-balance shest iterns
Letters of guarantee and guarantees 1,866 0.87% 2,034 0.67%
Hon-principal guaranteed wealth
management products issued by the Group 10 0,00 16 0.00%
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) The Bank and its subsidiaries [Continued)

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

Ratio to Raotis to
similar similar

= = Amount transactions  Amgunt  tramackans
InTErest income 1,484 0.13% 1,440 0.14%
Met gain on insncial investments 100 1.69% 1 0.00%
Fer and commission income 1,941 2.03% 1,777 1.80%
Other operating income 150 0.35% Qi 0.30%
Interest expense (512) 0.10% {368) 0.09%
Fee and commission expense {1,655) 11.63% {321) L75%
Dperating eapenie {354) 0.13% {242) 0.09%

Interest rate ranges o transactions with its subsidiaries during the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 Decamber

2022 2021
% %
Placemients with and [oans to banks and '
other financial institutions 0.30-6.68 1.21-3,65
Firancial investments 0.00 0.03-3.68
Depoiits from banks and other financial institutions 0.00-4.13 0.00-5.12
Placements from banks and other financial instiiutions 1.25 NiA
D Lo Customiers 0.01-1.B5 0.30-1.B5

(6) The Group ond its essociotes and joint ventures

The Group had the following balances and transactions with its assoclates and joint ventures in iis
ordmary course of business, These balances and transactions are priced based on market prices and
conducted under normal commercial terms, Details of the major balances and transactions are as follows:

As ot 31 December 2022  _As at 31 December 2021

Ratio to Ratia to
similar similar
: _Balance transactions _Balance  trancactions
Assals
Leans and advances 1o customers 1,043 0.01% - -
Liabilithes
Depaosits from banks and other
financial institutions FLl 0.00% 16 .00
Due to CUstomers 2,664 0.01% - -
Off-balance sheat items
Men-principal guaranteed wealth
management products Bswed by the Group 4 0.00% A 0.00%
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6] The Group and its asseciates and jaint venture (Continued)

Year ended 31 Decamber

2022 2021
Ratio to Ratio to
similar similar
Amount transactions  Amoent bEesactions
Inbarast income 1 0.00% - -
Interest expense (9] 0.00% o 0,00%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with its associates and jaint ventures during the year are as follaws:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
. F)

Loans and advances to customers 3.65-4,60 NiA
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 0,00-1.65 0.00-0,72
Due to customers 0.25-1.85 NfA

{7} Key manogement personnel and reloted natural persons tronsactions

Key managerment personnel are those persons who hawve the autherity and responsibility te plan, direct
and eontral the activities of the Group. Key management personnel of the Group, their close relatives,
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by either the key
management personnel of the Group or their close relatives, are considered as related parties of the
Group. The Group enters into banking transactions with above related parties in the normal course of
business. Ad at 31 December 2022, the balance of laans and advances to the above related parties i
RMBD.57 million (31 December 2021: RMB10.40 million).

The Bank isued loans and eredit card budiness to related natural perions (as defined in the
Administrative Measures on Information Disclosure of Listed Companies issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (the "CSRCT)). As a1 31 Decermber 2022, the balance of such loans amounted to
RMB17 66 million (31 December 2021: RMB11.97 million),

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the yesrs was os follows:

- r

2022 1021 (Restated])

. : _ _{miliens) {millions}]
Salaries, bonuwses and staff wellare 11.84 15.44

According to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC, the key management personnel’s final
emoluments fos the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 have not been finalized. Management of the Group
believes that the difference between the final emoluments and that disclosed abowe will not have
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The final compensation will be
diselosed in & separate annauncement when determined,

The compensaton of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2021 was not decided
at the time when the Group®s 2021 consolidated financial statements were released and the amount of
remuneration of key management personnel recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year of 2021 was AMB11.94 milllon. Supplementary snnouncement on final compensation of
AMEB15.44 million was released by the Bank on 29 August 2022, The comparative figures for the year of
2021 have been restated accordingly.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(8) Related party transactions defined by CBIRC

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's balance of credit related transactions o the related parties as
defined in the Rules on Related-Party Transactions of Banking and Insurance Institutions by the CBAC
totalbed RMBIS, 327 millkon, and the amount of non-credit transaction totalled RMBLZ,732 millien, As ot
31 December 2021, the Bank's balance of eredit related transactions to the related parties as defined in
the Administration of Connected Transactions between Commaercial Banks and their Insiders and
Shareholders by the CBIRC toalled RMB4,085 million, and the balance of non-credit transaction was nil,

(%) The Group and the Annulty Scheme

The Group had the following balances and tramsactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank
apart from the obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme;

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021

Ratio to Ratic to
similar similar
HBalance transactions Balance  tramsactions
Liabilities
D posits from Annuity Scheme 7,342 0.03% 6,319 0.03%
Enuity
Other eguity instruments 7.500 1.70% 7,500 2.08%
Year ended 31 December
w022 2021
Ratio ta Ratio 1o
similar sirmilar
Amoiint transactions Amoarnt transactions
Interast expense {27%) 0.05% {240} 0.065%

Interest rate ranges for transactions with the Annuity Scheme during the year are as follows:

—Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

. I . % %
Depesits rom Annuity Scheme 0.00-5.00 0.00-5,00
Othed eguily imsiruments 4.83-5.32 4.84-5,32
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRAMNSACTIONS (Continued)

{10) Praportion of tronsactions with mafor related porties
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Related party transactions with subsidiaries have been offset in the process of preparing consolidated
financial staternents. When calculating the proportion of related party transactions, related party

vransactions do not include related party transactions with subsidiories.

(i) Tramsaction Balance

As at 31 December 2022 r 202
Related Aelated
party party
transactions  Proportien transactions Praportion
Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions 120,662 19.13% BR EdAZ A0 GEDE
Placerments with and
loans to banks and
other financial institutions 61,552 12.30% 123,271 27.58%
Derivative financlal assets 6,049 19.69% 4,003 18.21%
Financial assets held under
resale agreements 87,557 7.47% 71,332 8.52%
Loans and
advances to customers a6,523 0.25% 20,935 0.13%
Financial investments 2,123,536 22.35% 1,910,196 23.21%
Depaosits from banks and other
financial institutions 122,293 4.97% 79,160 4.88%
Flacements from banks and
wther financial Bvstitutions 91,971 27.56% GE, 168 23.42%
Derivative financial liabilities 5,604 18.08% 2,747 14.21%
Financial asiets sobd under
repurchase agreements 6,155 14.06% 9,909 27.50%
Due to customers 107,933 0.43% 118,001 0.54%
Other labilities 1,736 0.36% 1,290 0.26%
Other equity instruments 10,750 2.44% 10,750 2.99%
Letters of guarantee and
BuarANTEES 1,239 0.38% 1,800 0.59%
Mon-principal guaranteed weatth
management products
issued by the Group il 0.00% i 0.00%
(1} Transacrion amount
Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
Related Helated
party party
transactions Proportion transactions Propartion
Interest income 53,910 A.86% 50475 5.01%
Interest expense [6.457) 1.25% {4,605) 1.07%
Net trading gain BOS 14.59% 2,038 14.30%
Met gain on financial investments 4,194 70.98% 3,061 20.36%
Fee and commission incoma 1,382 1.45% 1,133 1.15%
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Cﬂntlnued}
41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(1) Coensolidated structured entities

Structured entities consolidated by the Group include cerain assel management plans, funds and
securitization products issued, managed and/or invested by the Group. The Group controls these entities
becouse the Group has power over, B exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement
with these entities and has the ability 1o use its power over these entities to affect the amount af the
Group's returns,

{2) Uneansolidated structured entities
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include non-principal
guaranteed WhP4, which are not subject 1o any guaraniee by the Group of the principal invested o
interest to be paid. The WRAPS invest in a range of assets, most typlcally money market instruments, debt
securities and nomstandardized debt assets. As the manager of these WMPs, the Group, on behalf of the
investors in these WHMPs, invests the funds faised from investors to the aisets as described in the
investment plan related to each WMP and distributes profits to investors based on product performance.

As ot 31 December 2022, the total assets invested by these non-principal guaranteed \WMPs amounted
1o RMB2,004,687 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,210,935 milkon] and the carresponding outstanding
WP issued by the Group amounted o AMBL.933.155 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,072 533
million). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's interest in these WMPs included net fee
and commission incorme of RMBS5.742 million [2021: RMBE,129 million]. The Group enters into
placements and repo transactions ot market Interest rates with these \WMPs, and the outstanding
balance of these transactions was represented the Group's makimum esposure o the WMMPs, These
transactions did not eccur during the yvear ended

31 December 2022 [the average balance and weighted average maturity during the year ended 31
December 2021 wese RMB14,238 million and 6.42 days; net interast income which related to placements
and repo transactions entered into by the Group with these WAMPs were RMBA2E million). And there was
no outstanding balance for the above-mentioned transactions at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, The Group was under no ohligation to enter into these transactions.,

There were no contractual Bquidity ammangements, guarantees or other commitments between the Group
and any third parties that could increase the level of the Group's risk from WhPs disclosed above during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. The Group was not required to absorb any
losses incurred by WiMIPs.,

In addition, other unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group included
funds, asset management plans and asset-backed securities, As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of
these products amounted to AMBA23,668 milllon (31 December 2021 RMBAGI, 451 million). During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's interest in these products mainly included net fee and
commission Income of RMEB1,55 milllon (2021: RMB1.530 million).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
{2} Unconsolidated structured entities (Continved)
Other unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in other unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed by
ather entitics for investment return, and records trading gains or losses and interest income therefram.
These unconsalidated structured entities primatily include asset management plans, WhPs, funds, trust
plans, asset-backed securities and debt mvestment plans, etc, As a1 31 December 2022, the related
carrying amount af investments snd the maximuem exposure by the Group ta these other unconsolidated
structured entities was RMB73,497 million (31 December 2021: RMBBE0,229 million), included under the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, debt instrument investments at amortized cost and
ather debt inttrument and ather squity investments at fair value through other compeehensive income
categories in the consalidated statement of financial position, The infarmation on the size of total asets
of these unconsalidated structured entities wad not readily available in the public domain,

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings and others

The Bank and its subsidiaries are involved as demandants/defendants in certain lowsults arising from their
normal business operations. As at 31 December 2022, provisions of RMEBS, 317 million were made by the Group
{31 December 2021: KMBS,333 million) based on court judgments or advice of begal counsel, and included in
ote iV 31 Other liabilities. Management of the Group believes that the final result of these lawsuits willl not
have a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group.

Capital commitments
— Asat3] December
2022 2021
Contracted bul notpravided for 1,929 1,961

Lean commitments and financlal guarantee contracts

As at 31 Decem ber

- B 2022 2021

Loan commitments

— With an ariginal maturity of less than 1 year 31,744 21,567

— With an original maturity of 1 year or above 383,807 438,333
Subtatal 415,641 459,900
Bank acceptances T02,237 414,934
Credit card commitmeants 787,219 T43,594
Letters of guarantee and guarantees 129,420 304,238
Letters of credit 167,876 165,639
Total 2,412,393 2,088,305

Loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts represent credit cards and general credit Facility limits
granted to customers, These general oredit facilities may be drawn in the form of loans or through the Bsuance
of letters of crodit, letters of guarantos and guarantees or bank accoptances,

304 @ewseni
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Co ntlnued}
42 COMNTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Credit risk welghted amount for eredit commitments

Cradit risk weighted amount for oredit commitments represents the counterparty credit risk asociated with
credit commitments and is calculated in accordance with the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)”
issued by the CBIRC which was effective on 1 January 2013 and is dependent on, among other factors,
creditwarthiness of counterparties and maturity characteristics af each type of contract As at 31 Decembaer
2022 and 31 December 2021, credit risk weighted amount for eredit commitments was measured under the
Inernal Ratings-Based approach,
As 131 December
2022 2021
Credit risk weighted amount far credit commitments 1,185,585 1,178,509

Collateral
Assets as collateral

A1 the end af each reporting period, the carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase
agreEments are ad follow:

As at 31 December
T o 203
Dbt securities 44,352 3,407
Bills 3,565 4,749
Tatal 47,317 38,156

As at 31 December 2022, the financlal assets sold under repurchase agreements (disclosed in Nowe IV

18 Financlal assets sold under repurchase agreements) by the Group amounted to AMB43. 778 million (31
December 2021: AMEBI6,033 million), Repurchase agreements are primarily due within 1 year from the
effective dates of these agreements.

Fimancial assets sold under ropurchase agreemaonts include certaln transactions wndor which, title of the
pledged securitias has been transferred to counterparties. These transactions have been disclosed in Note v 43
Transferred financial assets.

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged in accordance with
regulatory requirements as collateral for derivative transactlons or borrowings from central banks etc. by the
Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted to AMB1,218,412 million in total (31 December 2021: RMB1,095,330
millian].

Collateral accepted
The Growp received debt securities and bills as collateral in connection with the securities lending transactions
and the purchase of assots under resale agreements (Note IV 16 Financial assets held under resale agreements).

The Group did mot hold any collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {C antinued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued]
Redemption eammitment for treasury bonds

The Group is entrusted by the MOF 10 underwrite certain treasury bonds, The investors of these reasury
bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at any time prior to maturity and the Group is committed to honor
such redemption requests. The redemption price is caleulated as the nominal value of the bond plus payvable
interest in accordance with the terms of the related early redemption arrangement.

A ot 31 Decernber 2022, the nominal value of treasury bonds the Group was obligated 1o redeem prios 1o
maturity was RMB51,367 million 13-1 December 2021: RMBS3 405 milion]. The original maturities of theie
bonds vary from 3 to 5 years. Management of the Group expects the amount of redemption before the
maturity dates of these bonds will not be material.

Commitment on securlty underwriting

As at 31 Decermnber 2022, the Group did not have unespired securities underwriting obligations (31 December
2021: RMB140 million).

43 TRAMNSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters inte transactions in the normal eourse of business whereby it transfers recognized finanecial
assets to third parties or to struectured entites. In some cases these transfers may give rise to full or partial
derecognition of the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assets do not qualify for
derecognition as the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues
to recognize the transferred assets.

Securitiration transactions

The Group entars Into securitization transactions in the narmal course of business by which it transfers loans to
structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group assessed, among other factors,
whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and
rewards of the assets and whether it has relinquished its control over these assets based on the criteria as
detailed in Note 1| 8.7 Derecognition of financial assets and Note I 6 Derecognition of financial assets
transferred.

As at 31 December 2022, the total amount of unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative kboans
transforred by the Group before impairment allowance was RMB101.538 million {31 December 2021:
RMB102, 388 million). RMES, 736 million of this balance [31 December 20:21: AMB6,706 million) was in respect
of noen-performing loans and the Group concluded that these loans transferred were qualified for full
deregognition. The remaining balance of RMBS1,807 million (31 December 2021: RMBA5, 681 million) was in
respect of performing loani and the Group concluded that it had continuing invelvement in these assers. As a1
3] December 2022, the Group continued to recognize sssets of RMBBBSD milion (31 December 2021:
RMAG 631 millian) under loans and advances 1o custamers, The Group alwa recognized athier assets and other
liabilities af the same amount afising from such continuing inmvolvement.

Tranifer af non-perfarming loans

During the year ended 31 Decomber 2022, the Group transferred non-performing leans through disposal 1o
third parties or Bsuing asset-back securities, with gross loan balance of RMB11.B83 million {2021: RMB16,542
r|'ﬂ|F|¢1n].T|"|: Group carried out an assesament based on the criteria a3 detoiled in Note Il 8.7 and Nete Il 6 and
concluded that these transferred assets were gualified for full derecognition.

Financial assets sold under repurchose agreements
The Group did not derecognice financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase
agreements, As at 31 December 2022, book value of these collateral pledged disclased in Note IV

42 Contingent liabilities and commitments — Collateral, RMBL, 769 million (31 December 2021: RMBTO7
million) represented debt securities whereby legal title has been transfesred to counterparties,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
43 TRAMNSFERRED FINAMCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Securities lending tronsoctions

For debt securities lent to cownterparties under securities lending agreements, the counterparties are allowed
tao sell or repledge these securities in the absence of default by the Group, but have an obligation to return the
securities at the maturity of the contract, The Group has determingd that it retaing substantially all the risks
and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amount of debt securities lent to counterparties was AMB29,000 million {31 December 2021 there
wias no debt securities lent to counterparties).

44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Ouerview

The Group's primary risk management objective is to meet the reguirements of stable operation from
regulators, degositors and other stakeholders, s well 35 to masimize return for investors within an acceptable
level al k.

The Group has designed risk management policies, which address, among other things, the establishment of
risk limits and controls to identify, analyze, monitor and report risks. Relevant and timely information used to
conduct these risk management activities is provided through information systems maintained by the Group.
Thie Group regularly reviews its risk mansgement policies and systems to address changes in morkets, products
and emerging best practices

The most significant types of risk to which the Group |s cxposed are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk.
Market risk includes forelgn exschange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risk

Risk management framewark

The Board of Directors of the Group is responsible for formulating the Group®s overall risk appetite, reviewing
and approving the Group's major risk management policies and procedures.

Senior Management of the Group s responsible for the implementation of risk management, Including
implementing risk management appetite and strategics, formulating risk management policies and procedures,
and establishing a ritk management organirational structure to manage the Groap's majar risks.

44.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management

Crodit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer or counterparty’s failure to meet
Its obdigations when due. Credit risk can also arise from operational falures that result in an unauthorized
or Iinappropriate loams and advances, commitment or imvestment. The Group's major credit risks arise
fram loand and advances, treasury operations and off-balance sheet related credit rick exposunes,

The Group's credit risk management and governance structure comprise the Board of Dircctors and its
Risk Management and Consumer Protection Committes, Senior Management and its Risk Management
and Internal Control Committee, Credit Approval Committee and Asset Disposal Committes, Credit
Monasgement Department, Credit Approval Department and related frant-office customer departments.
The Group's eredit rick managerment funetion operates under contralited management and Authasization
under a range of specified limits,

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures, including credit due diligence and
proposal subimission, credit undenwriting review, loan disbursement, posi-lending monitoring and non-
performing bean management. The Group enhances its eredit risk management by strictly complying with
its eredit management procedunes; strengthening customer investigation, eredit rating, lending appraval
and post-lending monltoring measures; enhancing risk mitigation effect of loans through collateral;
accelerating  disposal process of non-porforming loans and contineously  wpgrading the credit
management system
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Credit Fisk management (Continued)

The Group writes off finandal assets, in whele or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery
offorts and has concluded there s no reasanable expectation of recovery, Indicators that there is no
reasanable expectation of recovery indude: (1) ceasing enforcement activity and (2) where the Group's
recovery method is forechosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering In full.

Duting the reporting period, the Group continued to improve the comprehensive risk manogement
system to ensure effective risk management. The Group strengthened oredit risk management in key
areas and asset quality eantral. Considering COVID-18 prevention and collection and dupatal of non-
performing loans, the Group accelerated the disposal of non-performing loans to ensure the stability of
asyets quality.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit-related assets, the credit risk arising from treasuny
operation busingss s managed by selecting counterparties with acceptable credit quality, balancing
credit risk and return, referencing 1o bath internal and extamal credit rating Information where available
and applying appropriate limits subject to different level of managemant authority, and timely reviewing
and adjusting those limits in credit system. In addition, the Group also provides loan commitments and
fimancial guarantee services to costomers which may require the Group to make poyments an behall of
customers upon their fallure to perform under the terms of the related contract, Risks arising from lean
commitments and financial guarantecs are simikar to thase associated with loans and advances, These
transactions are, therefore, subject to the same risk management policies and procedures.

Measurement of ECL

The Group applies the ECL model to calculate boss allowances for its debt finandial instruments measured
at amortized cost and FYOCI, as well as loan cemmitments and financial gusrantee contracts.

Methods applind by the Group In assewsing the expected credit losies al its financial assets include ritk
parameters model and the discounted cash flow (“DCF7) model. Retail credit asse1s and Stage | and Stage |l
wholesale credit asiets are assessed using risk parameters, while Stage [l wholesale credit assels are subject
o the discounted cash flow method.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forwaerd-looking information and uses models and sssumptions in
calculating the expected credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to the futune macroeconomic
conditions and the barrowers' creditworthingess (e g, the likelihood of default by cestomers and the
corresponding losses). In assessing the expected credit risks in accordance with accounting standards, the
Group uses the judgements, assumptions and estimates where appropeiate, incheding:

= Portfolio segmentation of credit risk exposures

= Parameters for measuring ECL

—  Critéria for significant inerease in eredit risk and default definition

—  Definition of credit-impaired financial assets

—  Forward-looking information

Estimation of future cash flows for Stage Il wholesale credit assets
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
441 Credit risk [Continued)
Measurament of ECL (Continued)
Porifolio segmentation of credit ritk exposures

For meausement of ECL, portialio segmentation is based on simitar credit risk characteristics, In periorming
the portfofio segmentation of credit assets, the Group condideds product types, customer types, industry,
customer size, risk mitigation method and mnrket distribution. The Group retedts and revises the rlllnnnl|il'|-
of portfolie segmentation of credit risk exposures every year.

Parameters for measuring ECL

According to whether there is a significant incresse in credit risk and whether a financial asset has
become eredit-impaired, the Group recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expected credit
loss for the newt 12 months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The relevant parameters of ECL
measurement include probability of default (PO, loss ghven default [LGD) and exposure at default (EAD)
The Group establishes its PD models, LGD models and EAD models based on the internal rating based
system as currently wied for is risk management purpose, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9,
in light of quantitotive analysis of historical statisties [such as counterparty ratings, guaraniee methods
and collateral types, repayment methods, ete.) and lforward-looking information,

The parameters are defined as follows:

—  PDrepresents the likelihood of o borrower defaulting on its finoncial obligation, sither aver the next
12 months ("12m PD"), or over the remaining [fetime |“Lifetime PD®) of the obligation;

—  EADis based on the amounts the Group expects (o be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
maonths (*12m EAD®) or over the remaining lifetime ("Ufetime EAD™);

— LG represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted exposure. it waries
depending on the type of counterparty, method of recourse and priority, and the avasdability of
collateral or other credit support. UGD ks expressed as a percentage loss per unit of expasure at the
tirme af default.

Criterin for significant increase in credit risk ("S/CR") and default defirition

Thae Group assesses whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments has Inoreased
significantly since the initlal recognition at each reperting date. For the purpose of steging assessment of
its financial assets, the Group thorouwghly conskiders various reasonable and suppertable information that
may reflect whether there has bean a significant change in thelr credit risk, including forward-looking
information. Key factors considered include regulatory and operating environments, intermal and external
credit ratings, solvency, wiabllity as a golng concern, terms of loan contracts, repayment behaviors,
among others. Based on the single financial instrument or the combination of financial instruments with
similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default of financial instruments on
the reporting date with that on the initial recognition date in order to figure out the changes of default
risk in the expected lifetime of financial instruments, The definition of default refers bo the fallure vo pay
the debt as agreed in the contract, or other vielations of the debt contract and have a significant impact
on the normal debl repayment.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)]
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Criteri for significant increase in credit risk (*SICR~) and defoult definition (Continued)

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to determine whether the credit risk ol a financial
instrumaent has increased significantly since its initial recognition, The eriteria includes changes in its
credit risk classification, changes in the borrower's PD, overdue stabus and other Tactors, In particular,
when the credit risk classification changes from Normal upan initial recognition to Special Mention, there
has been SICR, When the wholesale clients” PD rises 1o @ cortain bevel, there has been a SICR. Criteria to
determing SICR varied based on the original PD upan initial recognition, IF the borroswer's orginal PD &
retatively low (for example, loweer than 3%, there has been SICR when the credit grade falls at least 5
notches. When retad clients’ PD exceeds a certain level, there has been SICR. According to IFR5 9, a
backstop is applied and the financial instrument is considered to have experiencoed SICR if the borrower s
mare than 30 days past dug on its contractual paymants,

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition il the linancial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

The Group recognises o fimancial Instrument as hawing low credit risk if its internal rating i consistent
with thi globally accepted definition for low eredit risk (e g. external “investment grade™ rating).

Definition af credit-impaired finoncial assets

The eriteria adopted by the Group to determing whether a8 eredit impairment oocurs ender IFRS 9 i

consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives for relevant financial instruments, in

addition 1o consideration of quantitative and qualitative indicators. In assessing whether o barrower has

become credit-impaired, the Group mainly considers the following factors:

—  Significant financial difficulty af the issuer or the bormower;

= A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation to Interest or principal payment:

= The lender of the borrower, for cconomic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financlal
ljll’l'l.‘ult\l, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

= Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reonganization;

—  The disappearance of an active market for that fimancial asset because of financial difficulties;

=  The purchase ar origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the inourred credit
losses;

—  The borrower is averdue for moare than 90 days in any principad, advances, interest of imvestment in
bonds due to the Group.,

The eredit impairment of o linancial asset may be coused by the combined effect of multiple events
rather than any single discrete svent,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [Continued)
44.1 Credit risk [Continued)
Measurement of ECL [Continued)]
Forward-looking infarmation

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and the calculation of ECL
bath invelve forward-looking infarmation, Theough the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies the
forward-looking information that affect the credit risk and ECL of varlous portfolio. Forward-looking
information include Gross Domestic Product (GDP), Consumer Price Index (CPI) and Producer Price Index
(PP, enc.

The impact of these forward looking information on the PDs and the LGDs varies from one portfolio to
anather. The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert forecasts and statistical
analysis to determine the correlation between these forward-looking information and the PDs and LGDs.
The Group atseises and forecasts these forward-looking information at least every i months, calculates
the best estimates for the future, and regularty reviews and assessos results.

As al 31 Decembser 2022, the Group has assessed and forecasted the relevant forward-looking
infarmation for 2023, of which the forecast value of 2023 GDP growth rate under each scenario s as
follows: 4.50% under base sconario, 5 50% under uptido scenario, and 3,50% undor downgide scenaris,

Based on statistical analysis and expert judgements, the Group determings the weightings of multiple
scanarios and the corresponding forwardJooking information forecast under each scenario, The
weighting of base scenario is greater than the aggregated weightings of the ether two scenarsos, At 31
December 2022, the welghtings of the Group’s base, upside and downside scenarios have not changed
from 31 December 2021, The Group wies the weighted 12 months ECL (Stage 1) ar weighted lifetime ECL
{Stage Il and Stage Wi} to measure relevant impairment allowances. These weighted credit losses are
calculated by muRtiplying the expected chedit lass under each scenario by the ssigned scenario weighting.

A sensitivity analysis is performed on scenario and indicators used In forward-locking measurement.
Whan the assigned weightings of upside scepario and downside scenario change by 10% or major
indicators change by 10% under base scenario, the impact on the allowance of exspected credit loss s less
than 5%.

Estimation of future cash [Tows for Stope Il wholesele oredit ossets

The Group mexsures the ECL for Stage 10 whobesale eredit assets using DCF method. Under DCF method,
the loss allowance ks calculated based on the estimation of future cash flows, At each measurement date,
the Group projects the future cash inflows of relevant assets under different scenarios to estimate the
probability weighted cash flow of each future period. The cash flows are discounted and aggregated to
get the present value of the asses’ future cash flows,

Maximum exposure (o cred't visk wirthourt taking account of any collateral held or ather credit
enhancenents

The maximum exposure bo credit risk represents the worst credit risk exposure at the end of cach
reporting period, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements. The credit
risk exposure to the Group at the end of each reporting period primarily arises from credit and treasury
operations. in addition, off-balance sheet items such as loan commitments, credit card commitments,
bank acoeptances, letters of guarantes and guarantees and letters of oredit also inchede credit risks,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continwed)

Maximum cxposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral held or othar
credit enhancements [Continued)

A summary of the maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of the reporting period s as follows:

— AsatdlDecember
MNotes 2022 2021
Balances with central banks 2,481,950 2,246,796
Deposits with banks and ather financial institutions 630,885 218,500
Placements with and loans to banks and
ather financial institutions 500,330 Adh, a4
Derivative financial assets 30,715 21,978
Financial assets held under resale agreaments 1,172,187 837,637
Loans and advances to customers {11 18,982,886 16,454,503
Financial investmenls
Finaneial assets at fair valoe through prafit of losg 383,048 328,760
Debt instrument investments at amaortized cost [T 7,306,000 6,372,522
Other debt ingtrument investments at fair value
through other comprehensive incame (i} 1,697,405 1,392,691
Other financial assets 76,168 77,881
Subtotal 33,261,774 18,398,221
_Loan commitments and financlal guarantee contracts L] 2,384,342 2,068,034
Total 35,646,116 30,466,255

[y Maximum exposure 1o credit risk for loans and advances disclosed in credit risk levels

Thie Group classified the eredit risk levels of financial asets measured by ECL into "Low™ (credit risk
in good condition), "Medium” (increased credit risk), and “High® (eredit risk in severe condition],
based on the quality of assets. The credit risk level is used for the purpese of the Group's intermal
credit risk management, “Low” refers to assets with good credit quality. There is no sulficient
reason to doubt that the assets are not expected to Tulfill s contractual ebligation ta repay or if
there is any other behaviors breaching the debt contracts that would significantly impact the
repayment of debt according to contract terms. “Medium® refers to essets Tacing obwious negative
factors impacting its repayment eapacity, but not yet have non-repayment behaviors. “High” refers
to non-repayment according to the debt contract terms, of other behaviors Breaching the debt
contracts or having significont impact on the repayment of debt according to contract terms,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.1 Eredit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
eredit enhancements (Continued)

(il Maximum exposure to eredit risk for loans and advances disclosed in eredit risk levels (Cantinued)

Corpaorate loans and advances As at 31 December 2022
Stage || B
Stage | Stage I Tatal
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 11,726,113 21,104 11,747,217
Medium - 211,587 211,587
High - et 24000
Gross carmying amount 11,726,113 454,683 12,1E0,796
Allowance for impairment |gsses [377,699) {186,953) (564,658)
Met amount 11,348,414 267,724 11,616,138
“Parsonal Loans and advances As at 31 Decemnber 2022
Stage || &
Stage | Stage 1 Total
12m ECL  Lfetime ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 7,433,212 25,819 7,459,031
Madium - 76,848 76,848
High - 49,070 43,070
Gross carrying amount 7,433,212 151,737 7,384,949
Allgwance for impairment losses [160,008) [58,103) (218,201}
MNet amount 7,273,114 93,634 7,366,748
Corporate loans and advances _As a3t 31 December 2021
Stage Il B
Stage | Stage 1 Tatal

12m ECL Lifetirme ECL

Credit risk grade

Low 9,588,174 16,422 9,604,596

Medium - 203,289 203,289

High = 208,519 204,519
Gross carnying amaunt 9,588,174 429,230 10,017,404
Allowance for Impalrment ioises 1336125) {191.133) (527264)
Met amount 0,252 045 238,005 0,490,140
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Cradit risk (Continved)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

il Maximum exposure to eredit risk for loans and advanees disclosed in eredit rick levels [Continued)

Personal Loans and advances _ Asat3lDecember202l
Stage || &
Stage | Stage 1l Total

12m ECL Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade

Low 7071624 - 7071624
Medium - 45,781 49,781
High - 36,264 36,264
GFOSS ERFFYERE Amaunt 7071624 #6045 7,157,669
Allowance for impalement losses 163588 (29318 (193,306)
Net amount 5,007 636 56,727 6,064,363
(il Maximum expesure to credit risk for debt instrument investments ot amortized cost dischosed in eredit
risk bewels
As at 31 December 2022
Stage 1 &
Stage | Stage 1l Tatal
12m ECL Litetime ECL
Credit risk grade
Low 7,324,788 - 7,324,788
Medium - 347 347
High - 1.300 1,300
Gross CArmyIng amoaunt 7.324, 768 1647 7,326,435
Allowance for impaifment losses {19,150) {1,285) (20,415)
Nt amount 7,305,623 362 7,306,000
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Eﬂntlnued}
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Eredit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit emhancements (Cantinued)]

(i}  Maimwm expasure to credit risk far debt instrument investrmenis at amartized cost diselosed in eredit
risk eveds | Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Stagell &
Stage | Stage 1 Taral

12m ECL Lifetirme ECL

Credit risk grade

Low 6,385,720 - 5,385,720
Medium - 548 543
High = 1,281 1,281
Gross carnying amount 6,339,720 1,829 5,391,549
Allgwance for impaitmeant laises {17.764) {1.263) (19,027}
Met amount 6,371,956 566 5,372,522

{iiiy  Macimum exposure to credit risk for other debt instrument investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income disdosed in credit msk leveks

As at 31 December 2022

Stage I &
Stage | Stage I Total
B N 12m ECL  Ufatime ECL
Credit risk grade
Lo 1,696,481 400 1,696,881
Medium - 507 507
High = ir 17
Carrying amount 1,696,481 524 1,697,405
A% at 31 December 2071
Stage ll &
Stage | Stage Il Tatal
12mECL  Lifetime ECL
Credit risk grade '
Lionw 1,390,789 389 1,391,188
Medium = 1,471 1471
High = 32 32
Carrying amount 1,390,789 1,902 1,392,691
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit sk {Continved)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking inte account any collateral held or other
credit emhancemeants (Continued)|

(vl Maximum expoiure to credit risk for loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts is
balance after estimated contingent liabilities, Majority of loan commitments and linancial
Bubrantes contfacts is in Stage | with chedit risk grade as "Low™,

(v} As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, in its deposits with banks and ather financial
institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, and financial assets
held under resale agreements, the Group had insignilicant balances with "Medium” and "High™
credip risk grade and classified as Stage 1 and Stage 11 assets,

[wl] The Group has implemented specific policies and credit enhancement practices to mitigate credit
risk exposure to an acceptable level. The most typical practice |s obtaining guarantee deposits,
collateral and guarantees. The amount and type of acceptable collateral are determined through
the assessment of credit risk of barrowers o counterparties. The Group implements guidelines on
the acceptabiity of specific classes of collateral and evaluation paramelers.

Thix rain types of collateral obtained are as follows:

=  Maortgage loans to retall customers are generally collateralized by monmgages over residential
properties;

—  Other personal lending and corporate loans and advances are prirnardy collateralized by
charges over land and properties or other assets of the borrowers: and

= Financial assets held under resale agreements transactions are primarily collateralized by debt
securities and bilis,

Thie Group monitors the market value of collateral periodically and requests for additional
collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement when necessary.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Leans and advances to customers
The belew infoermoation dees not include accrued interests of loans and advances to customers.

{1} The compasition of lnans and advances 1o customers by geographical area is anatyzed ns follows:

As at 31 December

2022 2021
Amount % of total Amount % of total
Corporate boans and advances.
Head Office BO7 201 5.0 313,248 i1
Yangtee River Delta 2,953 442 a3 21,383,014 23.8
Paarl River Delta 1,645,878 13.5 1,325,589 13.2
Bokal Rim 1,663,666 136 1,427,512 14.3
Central China 1,784,698 14.7 1,477,841 14.8
‘Western China 2,686,130 221 2,297.775 23.40
MNortheastern China 407,763 34 367,382 3.7
Owerseas and Others 410,068 3.4 406,823 4.1
Subtotal 12,158, B46 1p0.0 9,990,184 100.0
Personal boans and advances
Head Office 43 0.0 a7 0.0
Yangtze River Delta 1,777,354 23.5 1,705,450 23.9
Pearl River Delta 1,588,311 210 1,514,233 1.2
Bahai Rim 1,083,299 143 1,033,741 14.5
Central China 1,308,100 17.3 1,187,096 16.6
Western China 1,561,455 20.7 1,451,317 20.3
Northeastern China 226,719 EX:] 215,328 3.2
__Overseas and Others 18,593 02 19,35 03
Subtotal 7,563,875 1000 7,136,568 100.0
Gross loans and advances
o Custamers 19,722,721 17,135,752
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Cradit risk (Continved)

Logns and advances to cUsiomers [Continued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances Lo customers by industry is analyzed as follows:

Az at 31 December

2022 2021
Amount % of total Ameunt % of total
Corporate loans and advances
Transportation, lagistics and
postal senvices 2,386,103 198 2,145617 Fa B
Manufacturing 2,107 478 i7.3 1,684 B9 17.0
Leasing and commercial services 1,768,094 14.5 1,507,059 15.1
Production and supply of power,
heat, gas and water 1,184,206 9.7 1064517 10.5
Real estate RO1470 73 ATR 407 a8
Water, emviranment and
public utilities management 874,684 7.2 719,530 1.2
Retail and wholesale 827,723 6.8 574,187 57
Finance 928,185 7.6 446,485 4.5
Construction 361,175 EX] 303,347 ano
Mining 223745 18 203,937 2.0
Others 605,983 5.0 473,218 A.7
Sulbtotal 12,158,846 1000 9,990, 184 100.0
Personal loans and advances
Residential mortgage 5,346,608 0.7 5,242,297 T34
Personal business 577,522 7.6 469,498 (Y]
Persanal consumption 210,850 28 183,706 27
Crodit cards E47,651 8k 626,783 8B
Others 781,244 10.3 G4, 84 85
Subtotal 7,563 875 100.0 7.136,563 100.0
Gross loans and advances
to customars 19,722,721 17,135,752
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44,1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advamces to customers (Continued)

{3 The composition of laans and advances 1o customers by cantractudl maturty and security type i
amalyzed o follows:

31 Decamber 2041

~ Less than 1-5 Over 5
1 year yoars Yaars Total
Linsocured loans 3,530,142 1,210,988 2,121,511 6861641
Guaranteed loans 727 408 526,599 1,036,344 2,290,351
Loans secured by mortgages 1,412,521 589,521 6,297,080  B,299,082
Pledged loans 283,640 132,28 1,855,725 2,270,647
Total 5,951,711 2,459,390 11,310,620 19,721,721
31 December 2021
Less than 1 Dwer 5
S —— _ Lyear  years  years  Towal
Unsecured loans 2,107,472 BEO,7ER 1824133 4992382
Guaranteed loans 667,336 466,119 TrT262 1.910,717
Loans secured by mortgages L279.772 587,215 6,096,590 7,963,577
Rledged loans 386,734 118,536 1,763,806 2,260,076
Tatal 4,641,314 2,032,658 10461780 17,135,752

{4) Orverdue loan (i)

31 December 2002
Owverdue  Owerdus Owverdue

Owverdue Overdue 91 te 361 days over
1-30days 31-80days 360 days todyears  3years  Tota
Unsecured loans 11,058 6,758 14,117 6,548 3,695 42,1746
Guarantoed loans 11,931 3,978 6,073 9,263 1,141 32,386
Loans secured by
mortgages 38,066 30,496 31,135 24,384 6,450 130,521
Pledged loans B22 23 3,180 2,380 1,133 1.756
Total 61,877 41,455 54,504 41,584 12,419 212,839
31December 2021
Overdue Overdue  Ovordue
Overdiee Owverdue 91 o 361 days aver
1=30days 31=90 days 360 days 10 Iyears 3 yoars Total
Ungecured loans 7.313 4,368 10,9439 4,431 4.318 31,339
Guarantead loans 5.017 2,953 1.569 9.031 LAT6 16,446
Loans secured by
morgages 30,3RE 21,419 29,563 22,740 7,734 111,844
Pladged loans 1,922 959 4, TEE a,684 2,501 15,232
Tatal 44, 640 29,719 52,847 40,856 16,829 184,921

Il When either loon principal or interedf i post due by one doy (inchiie] in ony peviod, the wivale koo i
classified o3 overdue loan
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Eredit risk [Continuved)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(3} Credit quality of loans and advances to customers

Within the eredit-impaired loans and advances, the portions covered and not covered by
collaterals held are as follows:

2022 2021
Portion covered 161,691 141,743
Partion not covered 109,371 104,539
Total 271,062 245,782

(B} Madification of contractual cash fows

A modilication or re-negotiation of a contract between the Group and a counterparty may result in
a change to the contractual cash flows without resulting in the derecognition of the financial assets.
Such restructuring activitios include extended payment term arrangemants, repayment schedule
madifications and thanges to the interest settlement methad, The risk of default af wech assets
after medification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original
terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and 30 does not resull in
derecognition of the original asiet. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated
and the related gain or loss is recognized in profit and loss, The gross carrying amount of the
financial asset is determined based on the present wvalue of the renegotiated or modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial asset”s original effective interest rate,

The Group manitors the subsequent performance of modified assets. If the Group determines that
the credit risk has significantly improved after modified, the impairment allowance of these assets
will be measured on the basis of 12 months ECL instead of the liletime ECL

Rescheduled loan i & loan which the contractual terms were renegotiated between the Group and
borrowers becouse of deterioration in bosrowers’ financial position, or the inability to meet
barrowers' original repayment schedule. Rescheduled loans and advanees of the Group as at 31
Decermber 2022 amounted to AMBL9,625 million (31 December 2021; AMAB18,307 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, as & result of debt-for-equity swaps of bankruptey
regiganization, the Group recognized ardinary shares with o fair value of RMBSA4 million (31

December 2021: RMB1,9E4 million). The lods asiociated with the debt-fer-equity swaps of
bankfuptey rearganization was not significant,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FIMNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continved)
Debt instruments
Credit quality of debt instruments

:l' ﬂl'lﬂwﬂi!. al the EIPEI!I.H credit lass '!.1.3,5,&5 af debt mstrement investments a1 amartized cost and
other deby instrument investments at fair value through other comprehensive income were
dieclosed in Noted IV18.2 and 1E.3, respectively.

{2} Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating

The Growp adopts a credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt instruments
portfalio held. The Group clasified the credit risk levels of financial assets measured by ECL into
“Low” (eredit risk in good condition], “Medium® [increased credit risk), and “High* [credit risk in
severe condition), based on the quality of assets. The credit risk level i used for the purpose of the
Group's internal credit risk management. “Low™ refers to assets with good eredit guality. There is no
sufficient reasen to doubt that the assets are not expected to fulfill its contractual obligation to
repay of if there are any other behaviars breaching the debt contracts that would sigrificantly
Impact the repayment of debt according te contract terms. “Medium™ refers to assets facing
obwvious negotive factors impacting its repayment capacity, but not yet have non-repayment
behaviors. “High” refers to non-fepaymeant acenfding to the debl contract terms, of ather behaviors
breaching the debt contracts and having significant impact on the repayment of debt acoording 1o
COmlract terms.

Thie earrying amounts of debl instruments investments at amortized cost and other debt instrumant
Investmants at fair value through other comprahensive income analyzed by their cradit rating as at
the end of the reporting perod are as follows (i):

31 December 2022

Credit grade Maote Low Medium High Tatal
Debt securities issued by
— Gowernmants 56640311 - - 5 EE4,531
= Pubdic sector and
quaLi-govermeants 2,060,235 o = 2,060,235
— Financial institutions 600,420 = = G00,420
— Corporates fii] 279,401 507 17 229,925
Special gowvernmient bond 04,114 - - 94,114
Recenable fram the MOF 333,078 ol = 333,078
Others 20,340 347 15 20,702
Tatal 9,002,519 B854 32 9,003,405
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2} Debt instruments analyzed by eredit rating [Continusd)

31 December 2021
Credit grade Mote Low  Medium High Total
Debt securities ssued by
— Governments 4,807 834 = = 4,807 834
= Public sector and
quasi-governments 1,787,588 = - 1,787 588
= Fimancial institutions 511,253 1,218 - 512,471
— Corporates {1} 209,339 253 32 209,624
Special government bond 54,122 - - 94,122
Recerable from the MOF 324,619 - - 324,619
Othars 28,389 548 18 28,955
Tatal 7,763,144 2,019 50 7,765,213

[ The ratings above were internal ratings obtained from the Group, fimancial a<sets at fair value
thraugh profit ar lods were not included in the eredit grade table as at 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021,

(6] #s at 31 December 2022, the ratings of super short-term commercial papers of the Group

amounted to AMBE2 million (31 December 2021: AMB3,634 million) included in corporate
bonds above were based on lksuer rating far this credit risk analysis.

44.2 Liquidity risk

Uiguidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in meeting abligations that are settled

bwy delivering eash or anather financial psser

The Group's Assets and Liabilities Management Department manages its liquidity risk through:

—  DOptimizing asset and lability structure;

—  Maintaining stability of deposit base;

= Making projections of future cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate liquid asset positson;

= Maintaining an effickent internal funds transfer mechanism within the Group; and

= Performing stress testing aon a regular basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and finarcial liabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities based an the carrying amount at the end of each reporting period:
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.2 Liguidity rsk {Continued)

324 [@Amuaml

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial ligbilities

(Covrtinwed)

The tables belaw summarize the maturity analysis of finaneial a0t and financial liabilities by remaining

contractual maturities based on the carryging amount at the end of each reporting period: [Continued)

11 Decwenber 1071
On st lhan =3 1 15 L2
o s e B s PO U o SO T ey S 1

Lathand balances with cesiral kasin - 1M - o - - = M el
Deportits with hanks and

it Miasncisl intitutiond - T 385 fi L 151 ALAE 510 LE RS - - fal Al ]
Macernats with s boam 10 baria

v athe frgrdd sritialion - = Lk | 1557 oL 45T Lk - 5
Derrymtive rgarial puisn - - 4,18 L ar 1688 1 1
gl assetn hkd undier

FELEE A eErETL m nean wia LED o) = ETS
Laar wnd daEndes |0 Dusanmen 16,555 BB 1A% RMINT G RN 14505
Fmangial aspt at fairvaue

wrcesgh prol't o fom = i 155 11608 i mns Iman 1A 46040
Dest mirarsent mvecmerts

al amonired oot 1 - faf ] nL s L8 LMasH £amin
Deterdest rtumest snd e bguty

It 21 Rair vabor through
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Aasets available 1o mest obligations related te the Group's liabilities and outstanding eredit
commitments primarily include cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and ather
firancial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, and financial assets held under resale agreements, In the pormal
courie of business, the majority of customer deposits repayable on demand of on maturity are expecled
to be retained. In addition, the Group iz able to sell the other debt instrument and other equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income to repay matured liabilities, if necessary,

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reparting period:

31 Dieenizer M1
G leathn H H o] Dwer
e Pat due dpwamd 1 ey maTtn Ry EaTy 5 pet (5 ] Tatd

Fuar-det it finnsal iU
i ped by with (el bk s H T 1B un - = LNGIN  LHIR
Depatity with birks and

o Frgncial msiftuiions - ot L 153,348 E-EE A - - &
Fcerenti wih ind lours lobary

e ather firgncial estiusiony ® ' pILE ] Ban Lok LEH L&l = SI0ETS
Feprial iiseds b ahiet

nesaie apreenent FELiLY - Lisage L Ly - - - L
Lt drad dwanies B atlomeny L1401 ] TR LT MM DL Daaar = BAAiR
Frarcal suets 7 lor vakse

[Proagh profe o lew = LU m His LEEHH b BT LA [+ A
Dl imtrunes| inweiteenty
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 Dther Bagatial asieti m Tom 1m 1M - ] {1 - L]

Tptal tonlet britive insecll it e B LIAGE  LMAT RELD LERIN MARMTW RANGH  LLANW
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b sl etaiu = (uEEATH LTSS [HLET) polDe [LkER - = |hESEH|
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Frapcal witefs Lokl Lot
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Dt Lo st - [ PESY (eS| QWU RSl 1= - |msmm)
Db seturites i = £ s (REEM) @SN QWML [SEME - L
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.2 Liquidity risk [Continued)

326 | (Pruniuy

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows [Continued)

The tables belew present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative finoncial assets and financial
liabvilities by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period: (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liguidity risk {Continued)
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settied on o net bodis

The tables below present the undiscounted cantractual cash Nows of the Groug's net derivative
positions based on their remaining contractual maturities:

31 December 2022

Less than 1-3 312 1-5 Dwer
1 manth months  months years 5 years Total
Derivatwes settied on a net basis [1,3592) aas 1,558 &7 = T2
= I ¢ | DEH:EE_H_!!_ZEIZI
Lessthan 1=3 3-12 1=5 Crer
1 manth manihs miarths years 5 ypiare Total
Derivatwves setiled on a net basks 650 512 A48 {101} - 1,509

Derivatives sctiled on a gross basis

The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross derivative
pasitions based an their remaining contractual maturities:

31 Decembaer 2022
Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 (="
1 month months manths yoars & years Todal
Deriwatives settled on a gross basis
— Caih inllow 216,726 172,243 69,123 196,445 6,192 1,290.729
— Cash outflow {219,050F [272.191) (469.332] (294,755 [36,015) (1,291,343)
Tatal [2.324] 53 {208} 1,580 177 {614}
11 December 2021
Less than 1=3 3-12 1=5 Owvar
1menth months manths years Eyears Tatal
Derivatives settled on a gross basls
= Cash Inflow 156,169 441,786 354,719 B8.158 751 1241783
— Cash outflaw {352,648}  (d39.852) [353,358) (68,759 (L.000] (1.215.628)
Tertad 3730 1,921 1,361 19,395 [249] 26,155

Aeruad Nepert 3023 | JET
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For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amons im mdllices of RBenminbl, anless of herasen stated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.2 Ligutdity risk (Continued)

Off-balance sheet items

The off-balance sheet items primarly include loan commitments, bank acceptonces, credit card
commitments, letters of guarantee and guarantees and letters af eredit. The tables below summarize the
amaunts of credit commitments by remaining maturity, Financial guarantees are also included below at
notional amounts and based on the earliesy contractual maturity date.

31 December 2022

Less than 1-5 Ower
1 year yoars 5 years Total
Loan commitments 129,074 135,563 161,004 415,641
Bank acceptances 702,237 = - 702,237
Credit card commitments 797,219 - - Ta1.219
Letters of guarantee and guarantees 155,951 156,531 16,938 329,420
Lettors of credit 157,063 10,448 355 167,876
Total 1,941,544 292,542 178,307 2,412,393

31 Decernber 2021

Less than 1-5 Dwer

1 year yEars 5 years Total
LOAR oM ilments - 85,271 177,371 197,258 450,900

Bank acceplances 414,934 = - 414,934
Credil card commitmenis Ta3,594 = - Td3,594
Letters of guarantes and guarantess 153,029 135,151 16,058 304,238
Letters of credit 162,515 2,738 386 165.639
Total 1,559,343 315,260 213,702 2,088,305

44,3 Market rizk

328 | (DEeeanl

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from changes in market rates of interest and foreign
enchange, as well as commodity and equity prices. Market risk arises from both the Group's progrietary
positions and customer driven transactions, in both cases related to on-and off-balance sheat activitles.

The Group is primarily exsposed to Interest rate risk through corporate, personal banking and freasury
operations. Interest rate risk (s inherent in many of the Group’s businesses and this situation Is common
among large banks. it fundamentally arises through mismatches between the maturity and re-pricing
dates of Interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing llabilities,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeur ended 31 Decernbes 3022
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [Cﬂntlnued}
44 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continuad)

Foreign exchange rate risk i the potential loss related 1o changes in foreign exchange rates affecting the
translation of forgign currency denominated assets and liabilities, The rsk of loss results from
movernents in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Group s alus exposed 1o commadity risk, primarily related to gold and other precious metals, The
risk of loss results from movements in commodity price, The Group manages the risk related 10 gobd
price together with I'urzlgn :sn'.h.:ngc rafe risk.

The Group has determined that the levels of market risk related o changes in equity prices and
commodity prices other than gold, with respect to the related exposures in |ts trading and Investment
portfolios, are immaterial,

Legregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, as well as the accuracy of determining the
levels of regulatory capital required related to market risk, the Group segregates assets and liabilivies,
both on-and off-balance sheet, into either the trading book or banking book. The trading book is
comprised of financial instruments and commaodity positions held for trading or risk hedging. Any other
positions are incheded in the banking boolk.

Markei Risk Management for Trading Book

The Group manages market risk in the trading book through methodologies that include Value ot Risk
{vaR), monitoring and management of established limits, sensithvity analysis, duration analysis, exposure
analysis and strass testing.

Based on changes in the external market and business operations, the Group formulates annual treasury
trading. investment business and market risk management policies, and further clarifies the baskc policies
to be followed for bond trading and derivatives trading, as well as risk control requirements such as
exposure and duration. The limit indicator system with VaR as the core, and the market risk management
system is used o realize the measurament and monltoring of market risk in the trading book.

The Bank has adopted an historical simulation method, with a confldence level of 99% based on holding
period of 1 day and historical data for 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading book, which includes
the Head Office, domestic branches and overseas branches. Based an the differences between domestic
and overseas markets, the Bank selected applicable paramaters for model and risk factors in oeder to
reflect the actual market risk levels, The Bank verified the accuracy amd reliability of market risk
measurements through data analysis, parallel modeling ond  back-testing of the rmarket risk
measunrements.

Aerual Neprt 5023 329
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For the year ended 31 December 3023
[Amons im mdllices of RBenminbl, anless of herasen stated|

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk (Continuved)

300 | DEEEaRl

Market Risk Management for Trading Book [Continwed)

VaR Analysis for the Trading Book

Bank
= 2022
Al the end
Note of the year Average Maximum Mirsinmwm
Intarest rate risk 63 43 10 29
Exchange rate risk i) 110 93 203 11
Cammadity sk 23 34 62 22
Orverall VaR 138 112 116 55
Bank
2021
At the end
Note of thi year Ayarage Mixirmum Minimum
Interest rate risk 53 67 og e
Exchange rate risk [#1] 149 180 289 s
Commaodity risk a4 83 136 21
Orverall YaR 150 210 307 ar

(1] VaR related (o gold i recognized as a component of foreign exchange rate risk

The Bank caleulates VaR for its trading book {excluding RMB forcign currency settlement contracts with
customers under relevant regulations). The Bank eonduets stress testing for its trading book quarterly.
The specific areas subject to this testing include the major areas of exposure, such as bands, interest rate
derivatives, foreign exchange derivatives and precious metal The stress testing uses & range of scenarios

to assess the potential impact on profit and lass,

Market Risk Management for Banking Book

The Group manages market risk related 1o the banking book by consistently applying technigues across

the Group that include expoiurs limit management, stresd teating, scenario analysis and gap analysis.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the yeas ended 31 Decemiber 2022
[Arnoniras im millices of Renminks, anless of e racsn tated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market rigk [Continued)
Market Risk Management for Banking Book [Continwed)
Intevest Aote Risk Managemenl

Inderest rate risk reders to the risk that the padverss I'J!HI'I!H im interest rate level and I'rﬂll]l‘ﬁ'q' structures will
cause the econamic vadee of the banking book or averall income to sulfer lases. The Bank’s book interest rate
sk mainfy comes {ram the mismatch af malurily ar repricing periods of interest-ieniitive asseld and Habilities
in the Bank's book and the inconsistent changes in the Benchmark interest rate on which asicts and
liakilities are based.

Since the People's Bank of China's AMB Loan Prime Rate (LPR) reform, the Bank has implemented
relevant policies in accordance with regulatory reguirements, promobted business system transfarmation,
modified system loan contracts, impraved internal and external interest rate pricing mechanisms,
strengthened staff training for branches, comprehensively promoted LPR applications, and basically
realized the entire system. The entine process of loan pricing applies LPR pricing. After the People's Bank
of China reforms LPR, the connection between the benchrark interest rate on loans and the market
interest rate will be claser, and the frequency and amplitude of volatility will increase relatively. To this
end, the Bank strengthened the monitering and prejedgment of the external interest rate environment,
adjusted internal and external pricing strategies in a timely manner, optimized the asset and liabiliny
product strocture and maturity strocture, and proactively adjusted the risk strecture o reduce the
economic value and overall impact of interest rate changes. The adverse impact of eamings, During the
reporting period, the Bank's interest rate risk level was generally stable, and all quota indicators were
contralled within the icope of regulatory requirements and management abjectives.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Maonogement

Forelgn exchange rate risk relates to the mismatch of forelgn currency denominated assets and lablktes,
and the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates, which largely arises through
operational activities,

The Group performs monitoring and sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange rate risk exposure, manages
the mismatch of foreign currency denominated assets and Habllities 1o effectively manage forelgn
exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable Nmits.

Market Risk Exposure Limit Managerent

Market risk expoiure limits of the Group are classified as either divective limits or Indicatiee limits, Including
position limits, stop-loss limits, VaR limits, and stress testing limits,

The Group is committed to continuous improvement of its market risk exposure limit management. The
Group establishes exposure limits reflecting its risk appetite and continuously refines the categorization
of market risk exposwre Hmits. Further, it regularly monitors, reports, refines, and implements
impravements to the market risk exposure limit process,

Forelgn exchange rate risk

The Group primarily conducts its business activities in RMB, with certain transactions denominated in
USD, HED and, to a lesser extent, other currencias,

33z | (Dravku
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Amaunts in millkons of Aesminbi, wnlees otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Cantinued)
Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

Thie compasition of all financial assets and liabilities ot the end of each repoarting perod analyred by
currency is as fallows:

_31 December 2022
Other
uso HED curreEngies
[ (R [Rika
R ___BMB_ oquivalent]  equivalent] equivalem]  Total
Cash and balances with central banks 2,451,235 62,050 ¥403 33348 1545110
Durporiits with banks and
ozher financial instiutions. 556,431 &0A28 3,504 30,514 BI0EES
Placements with and loans to banis
and ather financial institutions 126,596 1,213 8,543 s 500330
Derivakive Financial 3ty 12,433 3242 1 AGE 1501 TIE
Financial assats held
under desale agresments L172.187 - - - 17187
Loans and advances to customers 18,514,226 310,56% 68,962 #9129 18,942 B35
Financial assets at fair value through
praofit or koss S09.ET7 10,355 193 Loaz 522057
Debt instrement investments at
amartired cost 7,065,086 120,139 4,216 12,559 7,306,000
Onher debt instrument and othesr equity
imyestrients at Bair value throwgh
athef comprehentive Income 1,399,333 106,214 624 B9605 1,702,106
Dither linamtial sssets 50,338 318 1,768 1,130 V6,358
Total finsncial pssets 32,090,746 977 AlE 141,079 263,433 33,471,564
Borrowings bram eentral banks |Bo9,455] - - [LEEL) {901, 116}
Deposits from banks and
ather financial institutions i2,390,553] 130,94%) [25,589) [10,087)  {2,459,178}
Placemants from banks and
other financial institution (78,553) [191,965] [40,088) [23,005) (333,755}
Financial labilities at fair value through
profit or loss {12,243) - {a4) - {12.287)
Derivative financial Kabllities (23,656) {2,083) [2,019) [3,248) 131,004}
Finsneaal agusis wold
under repufchase agreements 111,855] [23.671) - [E.253) |43.779)
Due to custodmers [24,461,822] (581,718) {30,946) [45,754)  (25,021,040)
Dbt securities issued 11,558,352] [253,818) (20,772} [35458)  (1.865.300)
Dther financal Eabilities (267,757) (15,043) {2137 [1,243) (236,181}
Tatal financial liabilities (29,705,128]  [1,099.251) [122,555) |43, 706)  |31,087,738)
Met on-balance sheet position 2,385, 560 (121,845) 18,484 nLm 2,414 826
Met notional amaunt of dervatives 146,496 118,764 4,936 [124,394) 150,801
Loan commitments and financial
Ruaranter contracts 1,149,151 113,228 11,153 37,683 2,412.393

Aol epert 3022 331
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continued)
Forergn exchange rate risk (Cantinued]

The camposition of all financial assets and Rabilities at the end of cach reporting period analyzed by
currency is as follows: (Continued]

11 Decomber 2021

DOther
LED HKD [urrenciss
(AME (RMB [mMB
AWE  equivalent]  equivalent]  equivalent) Total
Cash and balamess with eertral Banks 2241015 61,231 1,142 18016 2,321,406
Deposits with banks and
oaber fnandial institutions 148,782 459,451 1.561 12,108 218,500
Flacements with and loans to banks and
ether financial institutions 152,884 18378 43,508 12,17 440,544
Derivative fingnclal assets 18,053 1,175 1.B0S a5 1478
Fimancial assets held
under resale agreemenrts fERRE - - - 837,637
Loans and advances to customers 15,985,155 344321 60,014 65,011 16,454,503
Fimancial assets at fair value through
prafit or loss 446,980 10,933 &7 1,651 460,241
Dt instrument investments at
amaortized cost 6,307,943 49 929 9,991 4,659 6,372,522
Dher debd instrument and ather egquity
inwegtmients a1 fair value through
oiher camprehensive intams 1,150,033 197,730 2,756 45,761 1,397,280
Other {inaneisl asets 5,258 5,315 1528 760 77,881
Tatal financial assets 27,358,740 938467 124,983 186,702 18,608,592
Barrowings from central hanks 145,557 ) ) nge ey
Deposits from banks and
oitfer financial irstitutions (1,572,838) {12.571) [24,877) (7082}  {1,612.366)
Placements frorm banks and
otber fnancial institutions 167,315] [178,23%) [26,842) [18557) {291,105}
Fimancial liabilities at fair value through
prafit or loss 115,860] - - - [15,860)
Derivative financial liabilities (14,357] |2.290) [2.164) i3] (15,337}
Fimancial assets sold
under repurchase agresments £20,302] (0,950) - [5,TEL} |36,033)
D to customers. (21,373,264) (459,095) (32,650) [42.114) (20,507,127}
Dbt securities issued {1,175,836] {229,954) (36,114} (65,713} (1507657}
Other financial kabilities (294, 74E] 118,984) [1,508) [2305) |308,543)
Tatal Financial liabiltiey {25,280,153] {317,175] [134,155) [143754) (16485 241)
Het on-balance shest pesition 21078,587 1,158 828 42,548 2,143,851
Met notional amount of derivatives 154,772 B.789 23,045 (35,28} 151,318

Loan cermmitrments and financial
guaraniee contracts 1,709,456 245431 10,216 33,102 2,028,305
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk [Cantinued)

334 | (riensuy

Foreign exchange rate risk (Confinued)

The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax and ather comprehensive income
ariging from a 5% appreciation or depreciation of RMB spot and lorward foreign exchange rates against a
basket ol all ather currencies an the net positions of lorelgn currency monetary assets and liabilities and
derivative instruments in the consalidated statement of finandal position of the Group.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Other Other
Profit  comprehensive Prodiy comprehensine
RMD before tax income bE'F\r.'rE_In!l. income
5% approciation [2,266) B2 [3.317) 186
5% depreciation 2,265 {B29) 3,317 186}

The effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive incomae s calculated based on the assumption
that the Group's forelgn currency sensitive exposures and foreign currency derivative instruments net
position at the end of each reporting period remaln unchanged. The Group mitigates |15 foreign exchange
rate risk through active management of its forelgn currency exposures and the appropriate wse of
derivative instruments, based on management expectation of future forelgn currency exchange rate
movements. Such analysis does not take Into account the correlation effect of changes in different
forelgn currencles, nor any further actions that could be taken by management to mitigate the effect of
forelgn exchange differences. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ from actual results
occurting through changes in forelgn exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arlses from the mismatches between contractual maturities or re-pricing
dates of nterest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as well as the inconsistent variations in
the benchmark interost rate on which the assets and liabilities are based, The Group's interest-generating
assets and interest-bearing liabilities are primarily denominated in AMB, The PBOC stipulated the
banchmark interest rate for RMB deposits. The depasit interest rate floating celling was removed by the
PBOC with effect from 24 December 2015 for commercial banks, Since 16 August 2019, the PEOC
established LFR to replace RMB benchmark interest rates for loan as a pricing benchmark of new loan
wharchy financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk, commercial and
market factors.

The Group manages its Interest rate risk by

—  Sgrengthen the pre-judgment af the situation and analyze the macrocconamic factars that may
affect the LPR interest rate, the benchmark deposit interest rate and the market interest rate;

—  Swrengthen strategy transmission and aptimize the repricing term structure of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities;

—  Implement Fmit management to control the impact of interest rate changes on the economic value
and averall income af banking boaks within the Emits.
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For the year ended 31 Decamber 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The tables below summarize the contractual maturity or re-pricing date, whichewer is earlier, of the
Graup's linancial assets and liabilities at the end of each reparting period:

31 Decemnber 1073
Has
Legs Bsan 1-3 1 15 [0 et
1 moeith menths nonEs years 5 yeary bearing Total

Cashard batances with central banks 108 - LAT3 - - 694 15900
e pansits with banks and

xhar financial ingtutions 145 625 155,047 EVER ] 5,714 - BEM [£5F
Plazemertywith and laans to banks

and other linancal re i 115867 L LTE 184,303 1,808 - LTED 500,15
Desivative Snancial ssets = ! = E r wnrs NN
Financlal assets hed

wndef reLle greements 1148559 [X=T] AN - - 4817 LITLIE
Loans and advances 1o cioment 431066 190N 10389515 THO 324 M 43024 14382 RAE
Finanziel Jsoet 3 (hf vk thenugh

prolit e loss e 758 5] 243 04,647 158918 522,057
Debd nstrument imsimests ot

amartized cost Man 135,806  S0R08 23PRMS 4000472 135067 7,306,000
(Cxier debi irif-umant ard other eqeily

invesiments # Lir value theough

ther commplibeitive incoime 72a 125,564 15T 575,67 514,612 WA L702,006
Total firancial assets B3N 15A%H  108B4NT1  RTEITEE 5041584 TIETAR 33472 EE4
Bosroaings from central banks [T 2 TNT o S %5 - - (9547  {ROLILE)
Deporsits Irom tanks and

cehar Fnanclal Institutiom [Egoomy  [RoGUPD)  (2sA0NA) (133800 - [¥mese]  fasnAm)
Placpmerss from banks and other

finzatial inglitutions (003} (10034 (10407 [RES1) L5 |LOET) fIEa )
Fnanta kabties a1 fr vaiue Brough

profitai ioss = = [&4] |boay ] (12, 187)
Der-vitive Iridtial ibites - - - = - 31,004} (34,00
Fnaneial gsets sold

anider repurchase agresments [13,78) (25,524) IERL ] [Fa) - [he%) (43,779}
Dot 10 costomiens (A0} (LA [LS0UARY)  [SIPROGE) [A015]  |B3E0E) {15.11040)
Dbl sevurities issued [S6e28)  [(B36A7Y)  (HSS00]  [LEOME) R0 [eO6E4]  [LR63,308)
Ciher financial labilities - - - - - [X86,181)  fie4.3E1)
Tonl Firancial iablives (S0 (LISLI0S  [STILTSE)  SERTATS)  [METS] [TSRESS) (3057
Interest rile gap [PHEEE L1150  CITA7EL  (LESRI0N  40NENEY (M1 201435
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

44.3 Market risk [Cantinued)

336 | ([Drunany

Interest rate risk [Cantinued)

The tables below summarize the contractual moturity or re-pricing date, whichever i earlier, of the

Group's financial assets and liakilities at the end of each reporting period: [Continued)

11 Becamber M1
L-3
liai thas 1-3 12 1-5 Ohve intered
1 mamth O, it yEY 5 yean bearing Tels

Cash and balances with central banks FEER - - = - I8 LIILAM
Diegenity with banks and

othaer financial ingtitutions 103 908 4109 AT 11,503 = B 114500
Placemsenss with and laans 1o bards.

and pthes tinandal msiitations 1217 116,358 130115 14,866 - 108 e
Derivachve Ananclal isets = = 2 = = 11578 IL5TE
Financla! assets held

unter resale agreamenty 809,116 10656 Lhs = - LT ] BN
Loans and atwant et 10 customen. S30A1EE  PAS1 TS ALARIENS 2928 253890 W\ 154550
Finaneii gitetd B Fiif wilue haagh

predt of s IBT36 56130 BES 32,078 T 153617 460341
Dedt instromesd imvestments at

amortived coit 57004 IDANGE  BALMID  2ETRO01  18G938F 11254 637N
Other debt instrament and cther equity

ImvesEments i fai vatue Dywroagh olhes

complelenise Feome Hsn 96,496 inm 550,597 pi L 153 L3922
(Crther farciad assets - . - - - 1B TLaEl
Tatal nancial astets TSILRED T RARER] 9.5m,2311 4011193 151861 THLBAE A e0MF
Barrewings from central Banks [=ESLE) (31,000 1558, 7361 (263} - Tebde) [P47.215]
Diegesins from banks and

other irancial inditutions: (L1 Tan IRROE (AN (l05s5H) B HLAM)  [LEXEE
Placemsenss Froem banks and other

Fnancial institutions 16T/ [REE) [TETET) A8 L2535 jLAG6) (281105
Fraancal lisbéities o1 fair vaiie Ehrough

proiin or oss - " = = {14 (Vb 1158500
Dervative fingacial liabittes - - - - - [IEERH ] ELE |
Financial aiuets s5id

under FepUrthase agreements (1863 ) [aum 1,151 = e Pem3
[ue b6 cuslomiers [LRUET (15} [LU0mE a0 (16088 AR ILMRUT
Dielet securitio ted [BI01y  (Ie4MER)  [FOLSSE. (IMSED (e @51} [LSOTEST)
e fmandai habiltie - - - - - IJLE S43p (308 54%)
Total financial kabilties [ILUTEN) (IEMTRY  (RATTIM  (SRRENY) (1SR4 (TILAET) (SeEs41)
Iniredd race gap 6735001 LI 4372511 34,0150 315530 1948 1Id1ESE
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk [Continuad)
Interest rate rFisk [Continued)

The fallowing toble illustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100
basis points in relevant interest rate curves on the Groug's net Interest Income and ather comprebensive
incame for the next twelve manths fram the reparting date, based on the Group®s positions of interest-
earning a55e15 and Imerest-bearing Habilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes
that interest rates of ol matuidies move by the same amount, and does nol refllect the potential impact
of unparalleled yicld curve movements,

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates
with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabllities held at the period end
rimains unchanged, and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepeyment
options on debt securities into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the affect of changes in fair value of
those financial Instruments classified as other debt instrument investments and other equity imvestments
at fair value through other comprehensive held, whose fair value changes are recorded 85 an element of
other comprehensive income,

3iDecember3022 31 December2021
Met Other ket Other

InMevest  comprehensive interest comprehansve

e P Income [Income Incame Inome
#100 teasis points [43,292) [59,1486) [37.792) (39, 264)
- 100 basis paints 43,207 50,145 37,792 39,264

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's copltal and Interest rate
risk management policy to mitigate changes to the Group's interest rate risk. Therefore the above
analysis may differ from the actual situation.

In additien, the presentation of interest rate sensitivity above is Tor illustration purposes only, showing
the potentinl impact on net interest income and other comprehensive income of the Group undes
different parallel yield curve movements, relative to thelr position at perlad-end, excluding the derivative

posithons.
44.4 Country Risk

Country risk represents the risk due to changes and inckdents occurred in the sconomy, polities and
society of a spedfic country or region, which results in the borrowers or debtors in that country or region
Incapable of or unwilling to pay their debts owed to the Bank or otherwise leads to business losses or
other losses to the Bank in that country or region.

According to the regulatory requirements of CBIRC, the Group managed country risk through tools and
approaches such as country risk rating, limit approval, exposure analysis and stress testing. In the
meanwhile, we fully considered the impact of country risk on asset guality, accurately kdentified,
reasonably assessed and prudently estimated the asset loss that may be caused by country risk
Corresponding provislons were also made for country risk impalrment,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.5 lnsurance risk

The Group engages in its insurance business primarily in Chinese mainland, Insurance risk refess 1o the
financial impact resulting from the unexpected occurrence of insured events. These risks are actively
managed by the Group through effective sales management, wnderwriting control, reinsurance
management and claim management. Through effective Lales management, the risk of mis-selling could
be reduced and the accuracy of infarmation used for underwriting is improved. Thraugh undenwriting
control, risk of sdverse selection coubd be reduced and moreover differential pricing policy based on the
level of each kind of risk could be utilized. Through reinsurance, the Group®s insurance capacity could be
enhanced and targeted risks could be mitigated. Effective claims management is designed (o ensurg that
Iinsuranee paymaents are contralled acconding to established criteria.

Uncerainty in the estimation of future berefit payments and premium receipts for long-term life
insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in averall levels of mortality.
The Group conducts experience analysis of mortality rate and surrender rate, in ofder to improve its risk
assessment and as a basis for reasonable estimates.
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Greup's capital manogement objectives are os follows:

= maintain an adequate capital base to support the development of its business;

= suppon the Group's financial stability and profitable growth;

—  allecate capital through an efficient and risk based approach to optimize risk-adusted returmn to
shareholders; and

= safeguard the long-term sustalnability of the Group's franchise so that it can continue to provide
sufficient shareholder returns and benefits for other stakeholders.

The “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisionall™ issued by the CBIRC in 2012 includes, among other
things, requirements for minimum capital, capital conservation buffer, additional capital surcharge for
systemically important banks, eountercyclical buffer and Plllar Il capital as follows:

= minimum regulatory requirements for Comman Equity Tler-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio, Tier-one Capital
Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adeguacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively;

= capital conservation buffer requires additional 2.5% of Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio;

= additional capital surcharge for systemically impartant banks requires additional 1% of Common Equity
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio;

= should the regulators reguire countercyclical buffer under parthoular circumstances or regulators impose
additional Pilar Il capital requirements for specific banks, these requirements shall be met within the spedfied
time limits.

30g | (DEEEanl
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

In April 2014, the CBIRC officially approved the Group 1o adopt advanced capital management approach.
Within the seape of the approval, the Intermal Ratings-Based approach is adepted to Credit Risk-weighted
Assets for both retail and non-retall risk exposures, and the Standardized approach for both Operational Risk-
weighted Assets and Market Risk-weighted Assets. The CBIRC will determine the parallel run period for the
Growp, which showld last for at least three years, During the parallel run periad, the Group should calculate its
Capital Adequacy Ratios under the advanced approach and the non-advanced approach, and thould conform
to the capital floar requirements as stipulated in the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks [Provisional |

In Jenuary 2017, the CRIRC n"lti.ulhp approved the Group to adopl the Intémal Moadels approach o measure s
Market Risk-weighted Assets for qualified rsk exposures,

Capital adequacy and the utiliration of regulatary eapital are closely monitored by the Group's management in
accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Committes and relevant regulations promulgated by
the CBIRC. Required information related to capital levels and wtilization is filed quarterly with the CBIRC.

The Group's capital adequacy ratio calculated in accordance with the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
{Provishonal)® issued by the CBIRC as at the end of the reparting period is as follows:

31 December 31 December

Notes 2022 2021
Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio (1] 11.15% 11.44%
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio (1] 1.3 13.46%
Capital Adeguacy Ratio (1) 17.20% 17.13%
Common Equity Tier-one Capital (2] 2,228,372 2,053,737
Deductible items from Commaon Equity
Terone Capital 3 AEnaT) (11,257)
Net Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital 2,215,395 2,042,480
Additional Tier-one Capital (4] 439,878 359,881
Met Tier-one Capital 2,655,273 2,402,361
Ther-two Capital (51 760,728 655,506
Met Capital 3,416,001 3,057 BaT
Risk-welghied Assets (6] 19,852,505 17,849,566

Pursuant to the “Capdtal Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisionaly™:

(1] The scope of consolidation related to the calculation of the Group's Capital Adequacy Ratios includes
Domestic institutions, Overseas Institutions and affillated financial subsidiaries specified in the Regulation,

The Commen Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated as Net Common Equity Tier-one Capital
divided by Risk-weighted Assets, The Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio is calculated as Net Tier-one

Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets, The Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated as Net Capital divided
by Risk-weightad Assets,

Senual Report 3033 | 32D
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MAMAGEMENT ({Continued)

(2}  The Group™s Common Equity Tier-one Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital reserve [subject to
regulatory imitations), surplus reserve, general reserve, retained earnings, non-controlling Interests (Lo
the extant permitted In the Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital under the Regulation], and the foreign
currency transkation reserve, el

(3} The Group’s Deductible ltems from Common Equity Tier-one Capital include: other intangible assets
(excluding land-use rights), and Common Equity Ter-one Capital investments rmade in financial
Institutions owver which the Group has control but are outside the regulatory consolidation scope for the
Capital Adeguacy Ratios calculation,

(#) The Group’s Additional Tier-one Capital includes: othes equity instrements issued and non-controlling
Interests (to the extent parmitted in the Additional Tier-one Capital definition under the Regulation).

[3)  The Group's Tier-two Copital inchudes: Tier-two capital instruments and related premivm (to the extent
allowed under the Regulation)], excessive allowance for loan losses, and minority interests (bo the extent
parmitted in the Tier-two Capital definition under the Regulation).

(6) Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-weighted Assets, Market Risk-weighted Assets and Operational
Rigk-woighted Astets.

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The majority of the Group’s assets and Habllities In the consolidated statement of financial position are
financial asiets and financial labilities. Fair value messurement of non-financial assets and non-financial
Habikthes does not have a material impact on the Group's financlal positien and operations, taken as a whale,

The Group does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities subjeet to non-recurring fair value
maasurements for the years ended 31 Docomber 2022 and 31 December 2021,

46.1 Valvotion technigue, input ond process
Thee fair value of the Group's financial assets and fingncial labdities are determined as follows:

—  If traded In active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial llabilithes with standard terms and
conditions are dotermined with referonce bo quated markat béd prices and ask prices, respactively;

= I not traded in active markets, falr values of financlal assets and financial liabllities are determined
by using valuation techniques, These valuatian techniques include the use of recent transaction
prices of the same o similar instrumenis, discounted cash flow analysis and generally accepted
pricing modeks,

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial liabilities,
The Financial Accounting Department of head office established the valuation models for financial assels
and financial Habilities of head office and its branches in China and Independently mplements the
valuation on & regular basis; and the Risk Monagement Department s responaible for validating the
valuation model, the Operations Departments records the accounting for these items, Overseas branches
and sub-branches designate departments or parsonnel that are indepondent from the front trading office
to perform valuation in accordance with the local regulatory requirements and their own department
setlings.

The Board of Directors shall be responsible for establishing and improving the internal control system
related to the valuation of fimnancial instruments and approving valuation policies.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there were no significant changes in the
valuation technigques or inputs used to determine fair value measuremants.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
462 Fair value hisrarchy

The level in which Tair wvalue measurement s categorized 18 determined by the hewel of the Fair valug hierarchy
of the lowest level input that s significant to the entire Tair value messurement:

Level 10 fair value measurements are those derived fram quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market
for identical assets ar liabilities,

Level 2: falr value measurements are thase dérived fram ingruts other tham guated prices included within
Lewel 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, cither directly or indirecthy; and

Leyel 3: fair value measurements are not based an observable market data.

46.3 Financial assets and financial labilities not measured at falr value in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and financial
liahilities not measured in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value. Financial
mssets and financial liabilities for which the carrying amounts apgroximate fair value, such as balances
with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and loans to
banks and other finoncial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances
1o customers, receivable from the MOF, special government bond, borrowings from central banks,
deposits and placements from banks and other financial institutions, due to customers, financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit jssued, interbank certificate of deposits
Bswed ond commercial papers issved ore nat included in the tables belaw.

e 11 December 2022
Carrying
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3
Fimanclal assets
Dbt instrument. investmants at
amartired cost (excluding neceivable
fram the MOF and special
governiment bond) 5,878,808 7.040,956 76,954 6,878,199 B5.203
Fimancial labllities.
Boids sswid AR7ATT 484 583 53,371 411,212 -
31 Decombur 2021
Carrying
ot Farplie Lt il 2 el 2
Financial assets
Dbt instrument investments at
amortieed cast (excluding neceivabile
fram the MOF and special
government bond) 5,553,781 5,107,347 12876 531,77 112,695
Financial liabilities
Bonds issued 428,856 435,680 47865 JET.815 -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financiol assers ond financial liabilities measured ot foir value in the consolidated
statement of finoncial pesition

The tables balow summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured in
this consslidated statement of financial position at thekr Falr value.

31 December 2022

Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Derivative financial assets
— Exchange rate derivatives - 26,850 - 26,850
— Interest rate derivatives = 2,512 = 2512
= Predious metal derivatives and others s 1,353 i 1353
Subtotal - 30,715 - 30,715
Loang and advances 10 customiers
— Discounted bills and forleiting - 1,344,182 - 1344182
Subtoial = 1,348,182 — 1,344,182
Financial mvestment
Finantcial assets at fair vabee through
prafit ar loss
— Held for trading
Bonds 5,931 110,665 - 126,598
Precinus metal contracts - 17,988 - 17,988
Equity 5.345 a5 - 5,790
Fund and others 5,493 - - 54393
— Other financial assats at fair value
thraugh profit o loss
Bonds 2 204,056 1,041 205,097
Equity 8,120 12,475 51,307 111,902
Fund and others 543 15,500 21,456 47,935
— Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds 1210 a0 - 1,250
_ subtotal 26,644 381,569 2 113844 SELOST
Other debt instruments and ather equity
Inwestrments at falr value through
other comprehensive income
— Debt instruments
Bonds 213,030 1473, 792 = 1,686,822
Others - 10,583 - 10,583
— Equity instrurmeats 1,230 - 3471 4,701
Subratal 214,260 1,484,375 34TL 1,702,106
Total assets 240,904 3,240,841 117315 3,599,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial Habilities measured at falr value in the conselidated
statement of financial pasition (Continued)

The tables below summarize the falr values of the financial assets and financial labilities measured in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, [Continued)

31 December 2022
———————— Level 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3 Tatal
Financial liabiftics at falr value through
jrrafit or lass
Held for trading
= Financial llabilithes refated to precious
mekals - (12,033] - [12,095)
Financial liakilities designated at fair
value through profit or boss
— Liahifities of the controdled structurned
enlities = = {2a8) (218)
Subtotal - {12,039) (248] (12,287
Derivative financial liahilities
— Exchange rate derivatives - {26,253) - {26,253)
— Interest rate derivatives - [871) - 1871)
— Precious metal derivatives and athers - {3,880) - {3,830}
S - (31004 - (31,004
DILE [0 EUSTOMErs
Drum to customers miasured at faie valee
through profit or boss = (27,340] - [27,340]
Total liabilitles = (70,383) {24E} [70,631)

Al Mepert 023 43
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financiol assets and financial iobilities measured ot foir value in the consolidoted
statement of finoncial positien (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities measured in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair valee, [Continuad)

31 December 2021
Lewel 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Tatal
Derivativg 'fin:lm:la'l asotn o ' .
— Exchange rate derivatives - 0 E1E - 20116
— Interest rate derivatives - 1,141 - 1,141
— Precious imelal derivalbves aivd others - 721 - T21
Subtotal = 21578 = 21578
Loans and advances Lo customers
— Discaunted bills and forfeiting. - 502, TAE - 502,748
subtotal - so7ee - sortaE
Fiftancial Mvastment
Finangial asscts at fair value through
profit or loss
— Held for trading
Bonds B.235 119,912 - 125,137
Precious metal cantracts - 21,389 - 21,388
Equity 3548 1,331 - 51279
Fumd ard others 4,261 116 - 4577
= Other financial assats at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds - 154,585 i 154,859
Equity 13,501 12,063 79,112 104,676
Fund and others 51 15,305 19,455 33,011
= Financial assets designated at fair valee
through profit or loss
Bonds 2,273 40 - 2,313
Subtotal 32,459 328,941 GE.B41 460,241
Other debt instruments and other equity
investments a1 fair value through other
camprehensive income
— Debt Instruments
Bands 162072 1,213,723 = 1,375,795
Others - 16,696 - 15,896
— Eguity Inl.trumen:l!. 1165 = 3424 #5859
Subtatal 163,237 1,230,619 3,424 1,397,280
Total assets 195,696 2,084,286 102,265 2,382,247

344 [DreeaEn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Foe the year ended 31 December 2032
{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial Habilities measured at falr value in the conselidated
statement of financial pasition (Continued)

The tables below summarize the falr values of the financial assets and financial labilities measured in
the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, [Continued)

31 December 2021
e Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial liabiftics at falr value through
prafit or lass
Held for trading
— Financial liabilithes related to
precious metals - (15,646] - {15,646)
Financial liabilities desgnated at fair value
through profit or loss
— Liabilities of the controlled
structured enfities - - 214y {214}
Suhiatal & (15,646 [214) {15, g50)
Dierlvatiae linancial habilities
— Exchange rate derivatives - [14,734] - [14,734)
= Interest rate derivatives - {1.366| - {2,386}
— Progious matal derivativis and others - {2,237} = 12,237}
Subtotal - [19,337} - 119,337}
Due to customers
Due to customers measured al fair value
through profit or lods - (52,306] - {52,306}
Total liabilities - (BT, 265 [214) (B7,503)

Substantially all financial matroments classified within Lewel 2 ol the far value hierarchy are debt
investments, currency forwards, currency swaps, intercst rate swaps, currcncy options, precious metal
contracts and structured deposit measured at fair value. Fair value of debt imvestments denominated in
RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository & Clearing Co.,
Lrd. Fair value of debt investments denominated in foreign currendies is determined based upon the
valuation results published by Bloomberg. The fair value of currency forwards, curfency swags, interest
rate swaps, currency options and structured deposit measurcd at fair value are calculated by applying
discounted cash flow analysis o the Black Scholes Pricing Model. The fair value of precious metal
contracts that are related to the Group's trading activities s determined with reference 1o the relevant
observable market paramelers. All significant inputs are obdservable in the market.

Aerual Nepert 023 345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
[Arnoanas im rmillices of Renminkd, unleys of e radsn siated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial Habilities measured at falr value in the consalidated
statement of financial position [Continued)

Level 3 financial assets of the Group mainly represented unlisted equity investments. As not all of the
inputs needed 1o estimate the fair valee of these assets and liabilities are observable, the Group classified
thite investment products within Level 3 aof the fair value measurement hierarchy. The significant
unobservable inputs related to thewe asiets and liabilities are those parameters relating to credit risk,
liguidity and discount rate, Management has made assumptions on unobservable inputs based on
obssived indicaters of mpament, significant changes in yield, éxternal credil ratings and comparable
credit spreads, but the fair value of these underlying assets and labilities could be different from those
disclosed.

Thee reconclliation of Level 3 classified financial assets and financial liabdities presented at fair value in the
condolidated statement of financial position is as fallows:

22
Due to
(ther debt instrumant Financial customers
Financial assets and other equity llabilithes. measured
at falr value Investmants at fair at falr value at fair value
through  wvalue through other thraugh through
profit of ass eamprehendive income predit or low prafit or loss
1 larvuary 3013 [TETT) 3434 [F3T1] =
Purchages 39m s L =
lswums - - - -
Settlements/disposalsfiransfer
out of Level 3 (15441 [ - -
Totad gain/{loss) recognized in
— Profit or loss a3 13 3a) -
— (Onher compremersive income - [233) - -
11 Dacidribir 202 2 113,844 3471 [2a8) -
Change in unrealived profit
of loas for the year
included in profit or loss
Toe essetsflishies held at
the end ol the year 523 - - =

4G DEmtany
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{Ampunts in millions of Remminbi, wniess otherwioe stabed)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets ond financial Hobilities measured ot fair value in the conselidated
statement of financial pasition (Continued)

2021
D 10
Other debt instrument Francuat Custemens.
Financial astety and ather egquity liahiities maasured
at fakr value Investments at fair at Falr value at falr value
through walwee through ather through thraugh
T profitorloss _ comprehensive incorve _ profiteejoss _ prafitor loss
1 January 2021 102,883 21,119 {3,770) [73,118)
Purchaies 12827 1,792 = =
[EE{ 2 - - - -
Settlementsidisposaistransier
out of Level 3 [37,436) {19,277) 9,570 73553
Tatal gain/{loss) recognized in
— Profitor loss 567 [43] (14) [435)
— Drhes compr shinii income - [BAG) - -
31 December 2021 G8.841 3424 {214) =
Change in unrealited profit or
loss For the year includad in
prof or boss Tor assetsf
liabdities held at the end
of the year 83 - - =

In Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or losses included in profit or loss for the year are
presented in netl gainfloss) on linancial investments (Note IV 4) ol the eonsalidated statement af pralit
or loss.

47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

47.1 Prafit appropriation

{1} An interest ot the interest rate of 3.49% per annum related to the 2022-Tirst tranche of perpetual
bonds of RMBS0 billion amounting 1o RMB1,745 million in total was declared on 20 February 2023
and distributed an 22 February 2023,

{2} Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ meeting on 30 March 2023, the proposal for profit
appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set forth as follows:

lij  An appropriation of RMB25, 305 mullion to the statutory surplus reserve (Nate IV 36);

i}  An appropriation of RMBET,557 millkan ta the general reserve (Note 1V 37);

[iii} A cash dividend of RMBD.2222 (tax included) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 based on the number of ordinary shares issued as at 31 December 2022
totaling RMBTT,766 million (tax included) [Note IV 10).

As ol 31 December 2022, the statutory surplus reserve had been recognized as appropriation. The

other two items will be recognized In the Group's financial statemants after approval by ordinary
pruity halders in the fortheaming Annual General Mesting,

Aeerual Mepert 3023 J4T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
[Arnoanas im rmillices of Renminkd, unleys of e radsn siated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)
46.1 Tier 2 capltal notes lssued
On 23 March 2023, the Bank completed the public ssuance of the “Agricuftural Bank of China Limived
2023 Tier 2 Capital Notes [Series 1) (the "Notes™) in the Mational Interbank Bond Market, The total
amaunt of the Notes is RMBT0 billion. The procecds from this isswance of the Notes will be used to boost
the Tier 2 capital of the Bank

48 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Cartain comparative figures in the notes have been adjusted to conform with ehanges in diselosures in
CAUFPERT i

49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK

As at 31 December

2022 2021
Assois
Cash and balances with central banks 2,548,564 2,320,907
Depasits with banks and other financial institutions 60,195 198,745
Precious metals 83,389 S, 50u
Placements with and loans to banks and other financial
institutions 583,078 531,065
Derivative financial assets 30,715 21978
Financial assets held under resale agreements 1,169,113 832,216
Loans and advances Lo customers 18,899,856 16,377,896
Financial investments
Financial assets at fair valua through profit or loss 347,744 310,106
Dbt instrument investments at amortized cost 7,267,567 6,337 768
Other debt instrument and other equity investments
ot Fair value through other comprehensive incame 1,650,807 1,337,218
Investment in subsidiarics 51,521 51,523
Investment in associates and joint veniures 2,105 1,073
Property and equipment 141,158 140,675
Deferred tax assits 148,699 142,180
Other assets 131,534 127,195
Total assets 13,665,047 28,837,049
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banki 901,077 747,101
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,475,046 1,636,419
Placements fram banks and other financial institutions 263,009 233,468
Financial iabifities at fair vabue through profit or loss 12,039 15,646
Derivative financial liabilities 31,004 19,337
Financial assets sold under regurchase agreements 35,484 ADA56
Due to customers 25,120,347 21,906,047
Dividends payable 1,936 =
Debt secutitios issued 1,828,305 1,461,094
Other liabilities 350,004 388 958
Total llabilitles 31,018,341 16,438,526
348 | ([ rtaE
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK [Continued)

As at 31 December

2022 2021

Equity
Crrdinary shares 349,583 349,283
Other ety insbrumants 440,000 50,000
Prefergnce shares 80,000 30,000
Perpistual bonds 360,000 280,000
Capital reserve 173,227 173,339
Investment revaluation resers 35,700 34,262
Surplus resen 245 235 219 935
General reserve 341,222 348,955
Retained earnings 1,019,630 913,752
Fareign currency translation resene 1,709 (1,584)
Total equity 2,646,706 2,398,523
Total equity and liabllities 33,665,047 28,837,049

Approved ard authorized for issue by the Board of Chrectors on 30 March 2023

ONLA /é’ﬁ

Chalrman Wice Chairman

Aenual Report 3023 349
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
50 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK

Fareige
brpmtirmen tumen
Drlaney D eguity Daplial  revslaniion Serplay syl Meinined  pramlation
AN il P il il ST ETNRS rig Tetal
AL 3 3L Cenember 2011 i 5E1 g N o FELLY iS5 s (L5M] 139501
Preafit | the yes . o - - - - Fizti g - e
Dther campehenian iome - - . 143 - - F: ] L]
Total compretestg Anore
ot e prar - - * Lax - - WL 1M HIAN
Capital contribad ion fram
equity boiders - B E] " . = . o
Fepeapriation 13 Rurghus rrian * ¥ : ' E3n = (A '
Ieprzraton o jener esene. - - . - - nm L]
Dividamed pale! by ordinary ety
tolgery - i = = = x {73 L%
Dividends puic tn other aquity
rtegmens bokber E g B - - - mng -
] ~ - i - - - 3 - k)
A4 31 Decermber 31T 1.8 0000 {1t #HE] B WIS HLI  LanEa LM 1N
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Axa 31 Cecereber 20 L] 1x000 IERER] B jlot fk] BRER [
Prolit for the year - - . - - - FLEEL - MR
Oter cpmprehemae meore - - - .EE} - - - {15081 gm
Total compreheciing noore
e the e 3 ] . 3 = . N
Capital contribytion frem
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47
2022 12 31
3.818
42
2022 12 31
1
3
2022 2022 2022 2022
3 3 6 30 9 30 12 31
125.6% 135.5% 132.0% 132.1%
3
2021 2021 2021 2021
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
129.8% 127.3% 127.9% 121.1%
CBIRC

GAAP
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1,045,056 142,060 263,427 1450,543
(1,143,279) (120,576) (127,831)  (1,391,686)
956,920 31,985 76,449 1,065,354
(827,280) (27,049) (196,765)  (1,051,094)
(9.876) (78) (9,954)
21,541 26,420 15,202 63,163
4,162 3,725 4,138 12,025
948,956 125,183 186,204 1,260,343
(914,889) (121,991) (143,268) (1,180,148
1,169,736 46,303 85,630 1,301,669
(1,165,736) (24,260) (121,580)  (1,311,576)
15,263 49 15,312
53,330 25,235 7,035 85,600
4,766 7,664 5,515 17,945

12 31

2022 2021

103,332 74,359
29,203 29,079
25,301 23,768
55,003 57,715
212,839 184,921
0.52% 0.43%
0.15% 0.17%
0.13% 0.14%
0.28% 0.34%
1.08% 1.08%
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2022 2021
19,625 18,307
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1
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
17.48 16.75 16.06 18.06 21.01
16.01 14.86 13.66 15.78 17.93
16.70 15.79 15.46 17.03 19.45
16.16 15.60 15.81 18.05 19.10
100
2022 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
12 1 2 3 4 5
19.74 19.50 19.62 19.77 19.54 19.95
18.94 18.84 19.10 19.03 19.04 19.35
19.35 19.18 19.44 19.39 19.36 19.61
100
19.74 2023 5 31
100
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2014 1 1 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315 5
2038 1 1 15 15 5
« D
2013 1 1 2037 12 31
2.1
2014 1 1 2037 12 31
20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
20 15 5
2009
Q)
)
2009
20
2013 1 1 2037 12 31 20.315
2016 1 1 2016
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 1 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code"), together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group uses an expected credit loss Our audit procedures to assess ECL for

(“ECL™) model to measure the loss allowance | loans and advances to customers included

for loans and advances to customers in the following:

accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standard 9, Financial instruments. with the assistance of KPMG’s IT
specialists, understanding and assessing

The determination of loss allowance for loans the design, implementation and

and advances to customers using the operating effectiveness of key internal

expected credit loss model is subject to the controls of financial reporting over the

application of a number of key parameters approval, recording and monitoring of

and assumptions, including the credit risk loans and advances to customers, the

staging, probability of default, loss given credit risk staging process and the

default, exposures at default and discount measurement of ECL for loans and

rate, adjustments for forward-looking advances to customers.

information and other adjustment factors.

Extensive management judgement is with the assistance of KPMG'’s financial

involved in the selection of those parameters risk specialists, assessing the

and the application of the assumptions. appropriateness of the ECL model in
determining loss allowances and the
appropriateness of the key parameters
and assumptions in the model, which
included credit risk staging, probability of
default, loss given default, exposure at
default, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustments, and
assessing the appropriateness of related
key management judgement.
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In particular, the determination of the loss
allowance is heavily dependent on the
external macro environment and the Group’s
internal credit risk management strategy. The
ECL for corporate loans and advances are
derived from estimates including the
historical losses, internal and external credit
grading and other adjustment factors. The
ECL for personal loans and advances are
derived from estimates whereby
management takes into consideration
historical overdue data, the historical loss
experience for personal loans and other
adjustment factors.

for key parameters involving judgement,
critically assessing input parameters by
seeking evidence from external sources
and comparing to the Group’s internal
records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part
of these procedures, we challenged
management’s revisions to estimates
and input parameters by comparing with
prior period and considered the
consistency of judgement.

comparing the macroeconomic forward-
looking information used in the model
with market information to assess
whether they were aligned with market
and economic development.

assessing the completeness and
accuracy of data used in the ECL model.
For key internal data, we compared the
total balance of the loans and advances’
list used by management to assess the
ECL with the general ledger to check the
completeness of the data. We also
selected samples to compare individual
loan and advance information with the
underlying agreements and other related
documentation, to check the accuracy of
the data and samples, to check the
accuracy of external data by comparing
them with public resources.
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

consolidated financial statements.

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management also exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss given default
based on a range of factors. These include
the financial situation of the borrower, the
security type, the seniority of the claim, the
recoverable amount of collateral, and other
repayment sources of the borrower.
Management refers to valuation reports of
collateral issued by qualified third party
valuers and considers the influence of
various factors including the market price,
status and use when assessing the value of
collaterals. The enforceability, timing and
means of realisation of collateral can also
have an impact on the recoverable amount of
collateral.

for key parameters used in the ECL
model which were derived from system-
generated internal data, assessing the
accuracy of input data by comparing the
input data with original documents on a
sample basis. In addition, we involved
KPMG’s IT specialists to assess the
logics and compilation of the loans and
advances’ overdue information on a
sample basis.

evaluating the reasonableness of
management’'s assessment on whether
the credit risk of the loan and advance
has, or has not, increased significantly
since initial recognition and whether the
loan and advance is credit-impaired by
selecting risk-based samples. We
analyzed the portfolio by industry sector
to select samples in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic
situation with reference to other
borrowers with potential credit risk. For
selected samples, we checked loan
overdue information, making enquiries of
the credit managers about the borrowers
" business operations, checking
borrowers’ financial information and
researching market information about
borrowers’ businesses, to check the
credit risk status of the borrower, and the
reasonableness of the loans’ credit risk
stage.
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)
Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the
consolidated financial statements.
The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified the measurement of ECL of
loans and advances to customers as a key
audit matter because of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgement
involved and because of its significance to

evaluating the reasonableness of loss
given default for selected samples of
corporate loans and advances to
customers that are credit-impaired, by
checking the financial situation of the

the financial results and capital of the Group. borrower, the security type, the seniority
of the claim, the recoverable amount of
collateral, and other repayment sources
of the borrower. Evaluating management
's assessment of the value of any
collateral, by comparison with evaluation
result based on the category, status, use
of the collateral and market prices. For
valuation reports of collateral issued by
qualified third party, we evaluated the
competence, professional quality and
objectivity of the external appraiser. We
also evaluated the timing and means of
realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, challenged the
viability of the Group’s recovery plans;
based on the above work, we selected
samples and assessed the accuracy of
calculation for loans and advances’
credit losses by using the ECL model.
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To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.5 Impairment of financial instruments, Note Ill 2
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance”, and “Note IV 8 Credit impairment
losses, Note IV 17 Loans and advances to customers, Note IV 44.1 Credit risk” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

performing retrospective review of
expected credit loss model components
and significant assumptions, to back-test
past estimates element against actual
outcomes, and assess whether the
results indicate possible management
bias on loss estimation.

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the financial statements in
relation to expected credit losses for
loans and advances against prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of interests in and consolidation of structured entities

statements.

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note 1l 2 Consolidation, Note 11l 5 Consolidation of
structured entities”, and “Note IV 41 Structured entities” to the consolidated financial

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Structured entities are generally created to
achieve a narrow and well defined objective
with restrictions around their ongoing
activities.

The Group may acquire an ownership
interest in a structured entity, through
initiating, investing or retaining shares in a
Wealth Management Products (“WMPs”),
securitization products, funds, trust
investment plans, debt investment plans and
asset management plans. The Group may
also retain partial interests in derecognized
assets due to guarantees or securitization
structures.

Our audit procedures to assess the
measurement of interests in and
consolidation of structured entities included
the following:

assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of financial reporting
over measurement of interests in and
consolidation of structured entities.

selecting significant structured entities of
each key product type and performing
the following procedures:

inspecting the related contracts,
internal establishment documents and
information disclosed to the investors
to understand the purpose of the
establishment of the structured entity
and the involvement the Group has
with the structured entity and to
assess management’s judgement
over whether the Group has the
ability to exercise power over the
structured entity;

inspecting the risk and reward
structure of the structured entity,
including any capital or return
guarantee, provision of liquidity
support, commission paid and
distribution of the returns, to assess
management’s judgement as to the
exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the Group’s involvement in such
an entity;
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of interests in and consolidation of structured entities (continued)
Refer to the accounting policy in “Note 1l 2 Consolidation, Note 11l 5 Consolidation of
structured entities”, and “Note IV 41 Structured entities” to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Key Audit Matter

In determining whether the Group retains any
partial interests in a structured entity or
should consolidate a structured entity,
management is required to consider the

How the matter was addressed in our audit
inspecting management’s analysis of
the structured entity, including
qualitative analysis and the
calculation of the magnitude and

power it possesses, its exposure to variable
returns, and its ability to use its power to
affect returns. These factors are not purely
guantitative and need to be considered
collectively in the overall substance of the
transactions.

We identified the recognition of interests in
and consolidation of structured entities as a
key audit matter because of the complex
nature of certain of these structured entities
and because of the judgement exercised by
management in the qualitative assessment of
the terms and the nature of each entity.

variability associated with the Group’s
economic interests in the structured
entity, to assess management’s
judgement over the Group’s ability to
affect its own returns from the
structured entity;

assessing management’s judgement
over whether the structured entity
should be consolidated or not.

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the financial statements in
relation to the measurement of interests

in and consolidation of structured entities
against prevailing accounting standards.
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of financial instruments’ fair value

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.3 Determination of fair value, Note 11l 3 Fair value

of financial instruments”, and “Note IV 46 Fair value of financial instruments” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Financial instruments carried at fair value Our audit procedures to assess

account for a significant part of the Group’s measurement of financial instruments’ fair

assets and liabilities. The fair value value included the following:

adjustments of financial instruments may

impact either the profit or loss or other assessing the design, implementation

comprehensive income. and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of financial reporting

The valuation of the Group’s financial over the model building, model

instruments, held at fair value, is based on a validation, independent valuation and

combination of market data and valuation front office and back office

models which often require a considerable reconciliations for financial instruments.

number of inputs. Many of these inputs are

obtained from readily available data, in assessing the level 1 fair value of

particular for level 1 and level 2 financial financial instruments, on a sample basis,

instruments in the fair value hierarchy, the by comparing the fair value applied by

valuation models for which use quoted the Group with publicly available market

market prices and observable inputs, data.

respectively. Where one or more significant

unobservable inputs, such as credit risk,

liquidity and discount rate, are involved in the

valuation techniques, as in the case of level 3

financial instruments, then estimates need to

be developed which can involve extensive

management judgements.
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To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Measurement of financial instruments’ fair value (continued)

Refer to the accounting policy in “Note Il 8.3 Determination of fair value, Note 11l 3 Fair value
of financial instruments”, and “Note IV 46 Fair value of financial instruments” to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified measurement of financial
instruments’ fair value as a key audit matter
because of the assets and liabilities
measured at fair value are material to the
Group and the degree of complexity involved
in the valuation techniques and the degree of
judgement exercised by management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation
models.

for level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments, on a sample basis,
involving KPMG’s valuation specialists
to assess whether the valuation method
selected is appropriate with reference to
the prevailing accounting standards. Our
procedures included: developing parallel
models, obtaining inputs independently
and verifying the inputs; assessing the
appropriate application of fair value
adjustment that form an integral part of
fair value, by inquiring of management
about any changes in the fair value
adjustment methodologies and
assessing the appropriateness of the
inputs applied; and comparing our
valuation results with that of the Group.

assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the financial statements in
relation to fair value of financial
instruments against prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor
s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’
s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited

(continued)
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Wong Yuen Shan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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